
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

APRIL 7, 2008 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the governing 
body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with these 
goals. 
 

Goals 

 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City 

government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual strategic 

planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

April 7, 2008 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Brother Calvin Modawell – The Church of 

Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Presentation of “Green Space in Troy” – Zach Kilgore and the Smith Middle 
School Student Ecology Club ............................................................................... 1 

b) Proclamation – National Child Abuse Prevention and Awareness Month – 
April 2008 Presented to Chuck Ludwig, Director of Advocacy and Prevention 
at CARE House .................................................................................................... 1 

c) Proclamation – Celebrating 25 Years Congregation Shir Tikvah Presented to 
Barry Rubin, President of Shir Tikvah .................................................................. 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – Republic/APT, 1889 
Larchwood 1 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

C-2 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to Republic/APT, 
1889 Larchwood 2 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Sale of Real Estate – 
John R Garden Subdivision 3 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 3 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 3 

E-1 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations:  None (b) City Council Nominations: Cable Advisory Committee and 
Personnel Board 4 

E-2 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Planning 
Commission b) City Council Appointments: Historic District Commission; Library 
Advisory Board; and Parks & Recreation Board 5 

E-3 Scheduling Special Meetings for Budget Discussion 6 

E-4 Addendum to Sylvan Glen Lease Agreement 6 

CONSENT AGENDA: 7 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 7 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 7 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 7 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): 7 

a) National Child Abuse Prevention and Awareness Month – April, 2008 ................ 8 

b) Congregation Shir Tikvah – Celebrating 25 Years ............................................... 8 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 8 



 

 

 -  -  

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Amend Agreement – 
Avondale Youth Assistance .................................................................................. 8 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Asphalt Patching Material ........................................................... 8 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Transit Mixed 
Concrete ............................................................................................................... 8 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Police Carports....... 9 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Lowest Acceptable Bidders – 

Liquid Calcium Chloride ........................................................................................ 9 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders – Aggregates ........... 9 
g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot 

Maintenance ....................................................................................................... 10 
h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Sole Bidder – Troy Daze 

Amusement Rides .............................................................................................. 10 

i) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 
Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products for Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary 
Lake Golf Courses .............................................................................................. 11 

j) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds on Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expenses – 
National League of Cities (NLC) Finance, Administration, and 
Intergovernmental Relations (FAIR) Steering Committee’s Spring Conference . 11 

k) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – Oakland County Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles ............................................................ 12 

l) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders – Hauling/Disposal 
of Dirt and Debris ............................................................................................... 12 

m) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Regional Educational Media Center – 
REMC Cooperative Program – Purchase of Storage Area Network (SAN) ........ 12 

F-5 Contract with Greenstar & Associates, LLC for Right-of-Way Services 13 

F-6 Proposed City of Troy Precinct Boundary Alterations and Relocations 13 

F-7 Application for Transfer of Class C License to AMC Troy, Inc. 13 

F-8 Clinton River Watershed Council Membership Dues 2007 and 2008 14 

F-9 Contract Addendum No. 1 – 07-6 – Northfield Parkway Mill and Overlay 14 

F-10 Allocation of 2008 Tri-Party Funds and Cost Participation Agreement for 2008 
Concrete Program 15 

F-11 Private Agreement for Binson’s Medical Equipment – Project No. 07.917.3 15 

F-12 Support of Project Safe Passage – Detroit Audubon Society 15 



 

 

 -  -  

F-13 Contract Extension – Concrete Pavement Repair 16 

F-14 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, 
Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #51    
Sidwell #88-20-02-228-039 – Bill and Minerva Dumiter 16 

F-15 Request to Waive Permit Fees, Christmas in Action Projects 17 

F-16 Private Agreement for Grand Troy Villas Condominiums 17 

F-17 Traffic Committee Recommendations – March 19, 2008 17 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 17 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 17 

a) Brownfield Redevelopment Plan #5 – Pavilions of Troy – NW Corner of Big 
Beaver and Coolidge – Section 19 (Former Kmart Site) – April 21, 2008 .......... 17 

G-2 Memorandums: 17 

a) Amendment to Chapter 3, Section 1.78 – Unclaimed Property .......................... 17 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 18 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 18 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 18 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 18 

REPORTS: 18 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 18 

a) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 6, 2007 ................... 18 
b) Election Commission/Final – December 7, 2007 ................................................ 18 
c) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – January 3, 2008 ....................... 18 
d) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – January 17, 2008 ....................... 18 
e) Historic District Study Committee/Final – February 5, 2008 ............................... 18 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – February 13, 2008 .. 18 



 

 

 -  -  

g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – February 19, 2008 .......................................... 18 
h) Downtown Development Authority/Final – February 20, 2008 ........................... 18 

i) Historic District Study Committee/Final – March 4, 2008 ................................... 18 
j) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 4, 2008 .............................. 18 

k) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – March 5, 2008 ..................................... 18 
l) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – March 6, 2008 ......................... 18 
m) Planning Commission/Draft – March 11, 2008 ................................................... 18 
n) Planning Commission/Final – March 11, 2008 ................................................... 18 
o) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – March 18, 2008 .............................................. 18 

p) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 25, 2008 ............................ 18 
q) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 25, 2008 ............................ 18 
r) Election Commission/Draft – March 27, 2008 .................................................... 18 
s) Personnel Board/Draft – April 3, 2008 ................................................................ 18 

J-2 Department Reports: 18 

a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services 
– January and February 2008 ............................................................................ 18 

b) City Council Expense Report – March, 2008 ...................................................... 18 
c) City Attorney’s Office – 2008 First Quarter Litigation Report .............................. 18 

d) City Manager’s Office – Zucker Report Implementation Plan ............................. 18 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 19 

a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Westland Mayor William Wild in 
Appreciation of the Participation and Support during Funeral Procession ......... 19 

b) Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson representing TEAM Troy from Steve 
Toth, Boys & Girls Club Executive Director for the City of Troy’s Casual for a 
Cause Contribution ............................................................................................. 19 

c) Letter of Thanks to Barb Myhal representing TEAM Troy from Patricia Rosen, 
CARE House Executive Director for the City of Troy’s Casual for a Cause 
Contribution ........................................................................................................ 19 

d) Letter to Lt. Frye from Virginia Bertram Commending Sgt. Barry Whiteside for 
his Professionalism and Dedication .................................................................... 19 

e) Letter of Thanks to Officers Brazel and Quaiatto from Troy Residents James 
and Paula Young ................................................................................................ 19 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 19 

a) State of Michigan Senate Resolution No. 148 – Commemorating March 2008 
as Ethnic and Cultural Heritage Month in the State of Michigan ........................ 19 

J-5  Calendar 19 

J-6  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Draft Minutes from February 21, 2008 19 



 

 

 -  -  

J-7  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding  
Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company 
– Case No. U-15506 19 

J-8  Communication from Chief Craft Regarding Skunk Removal Services 19 

STUDY ITEMS: 19 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 19 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 19 

CLOSED SESSION: 20 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 20 

ADJOURNMENT 20 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 20 

Monday, April 21, 2008 ............................................................................................ 20 

1. Brownfield Redevelopment Plan #5 – Pavilions of Troy – NW Corner of Big 
Beaver and Coolidge – Section 19 (Former Kmart Site) .................................... 20 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 20 

Monday, April 21, 2008 Regular City Council ........................................................ 20 
Monday, May 12, 2008 Regular City Council ........................................................ 20 

Monday, May 19, 2008 Regular City Council ........................................................ 20 
Monday, June 2, 2008 Regular City Council ......................................................... 20 
Monday, June 16, 2008 Regular City Council ....................................................... 20 

Monday, July 7, 2008 Regular City Council ........................................................... 20 
Monday, July 21, 2008 Regular City Council ......................................................... 20 
Monday, August 11, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................... 20 

Monday, August 25, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................... 20 

Monday, September 8, 2008 Regular City Council ................................................ 20 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Brother Calvin Modawell – The 

Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints  

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) Presentation of “Green Space in Troy” – Zach Kilgore and the Smith Middle School 
Student Ecology Club  

b) Proclamation – National Child Abuse Prevention and Awareness Month – April 2008 
Presented to Chuck Ludwig, Director of Advocacy and Prevention at CARE House  

c) Proclamation – Celebrating 25 Years Congregation Shir Tikvah Presented to Barry 
Rubin, President of Shir Tikvah   

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – Republic/APT, 1889 

Larchwood 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for Republic/APT, for property known as 1889 Larchwood, Troy, MI 48083-2226, Parcel # 
88-20-26-430-035, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-06-238; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

C-2 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to Republic/APT, 

1889 Larchwood 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the Troy City Council on April 7, 2008, 
established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 1889 Larchwood, 
Troy, MI 48083-2226, Parcel # 88-20-26-430-035; 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Republic/APT, for an Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 1889 Larchwood, Troy, MI 48083-2226, 
for twelve (12) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the Troy City Council, on April 7, 
2008, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 
Republic/APT, at 1889 Larchwood, Troy, MI 48083-2226 may have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing 
unit; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Republic/APT, at 1889 Larchwood, 
Troy, MI 48083-2226 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of Troy or the 

other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of Troy, or 
the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Republic/APT, at 1889 Larchwood, 
Troy, MI 48083-2226, Parcel # 88-20-26-430-035, for personal property for a term of twelve 

(12) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the City of 
Troy and Republic/APT, in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Republic/APT, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk to 
complete the application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, 
P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Sale of Real Estate – John 

R Garden Subdivision 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to sell surplus real estate 
parcel #88-20-26-429-045 located in Section 26, John R Garden Subdivision to the highest 
bidder, Orfeo Guerrier & Antonia Melaragni of Shelby Township, MI, at a total cost of 
$30,000.00, as listed on the bid tabulation opened February 29, 2008; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Real Estate and 

Development department to complete the sale of the City-owned parcel and AUTHORIZES the 
Real Estate and Development department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete 
this purchase according to the bid proposal instructions, terms and conditions of sale; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to sign a warranty deed to be delivered at closing. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  

E-1 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations:  None (b) City Council Nominations: Cable Advisory Committee and 

Personnel Board    

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations - None  
 

(b) City Council Nominations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 

 Term Expires 02/28/11 

 

Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/11 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

E-2 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Planning 

Commission b) City Council Appointments: Historic District Commission; Library 

Advisory Board; and Parks & Recreation Board 

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed Board and Committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit nominations for 
appointment at the meeting prior to consideration. Whenever the number of submitted names 
exceeds the number of vacancies, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required to 
confirm the nominee receiving the greatest number of votes in the Council polling process 
(current process of appointing). Remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the 
next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda for consideration.  

 

(a) Mayoral Appointments  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) –  3-Year Terms 

 
Lon M. Ullmann Unexpired Term 12/31/08 

 
Philip Sanzica Unexpired Term 12/31/09 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

Barbara Chambers Term Expires 03/01/11 

  
Sabah Jihad      *Historical Society Recommendation Term Expires 03/01/11 

  
Ann Partlan                 *Historical Society Recommendation Term Expires 03/01/11 

*Recommendations received from the Historical Society. 
 

Library Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) –3 Year Terms 
 
Belinda Sheltan Duggan / Julie A. Sigler / Susan Werpetinski Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular: 3-Year Term; 1-Troy School Board: 1-Year Term; 1-Troy Daze Committee: 

1-Year Term; 1-Adv. Comm for Sr. Citizens: 1-Year Term) 
  
Pauline Noce            *Advisory Committee for Sr. Citizens Rep Term Expires 04/30/09 

*Recommendation received from the Advisory Committee for Sr. Citizens received. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-3 Scheduling Special Meetings for Budget Discussion 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-04- 
Moved by   
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES special meetings for the purpose of 
budget discussion on Monday, April 28, 2008 and Monday, May 5, 2008 at 7:30 PM in the 
Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-4 Addendum to Sylvan Glen Lease Agreement 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-04- 
Moved by   
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Third Addendum to the Lease 

Agreement, by and between, Gallatin, Inc. and the City of Troy, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor 

and City Clerk to execute the addendum, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  

 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of March 17, 2008 

be APPROVED as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamations: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

a) National Child Abuse Prevention and Awareness Month – April, 2008  

b) Congregation Shir Tikvah – Celebrating 25 Years  

   
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Amend Agreement – Avondale 

Youth Assistance         
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS approval to amend the agreement 
between the City of Troy and Avondale Youth Assistance to expend an additional $3,790.00 of 
budgeted funds in the 2007/2008 fiscal year to provide counseling and community services to 
prevent youth offender recidivism to the residents of Troy who reside in the Avondale School 
District; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the agreement to fund these services. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Asphalt Patching Material         
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one-year contract for asphalt patching 
material to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Saginaw Asphalt Paving Company of 
Saginaw, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 6, 2008, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring 
April 30, 2009; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS bids for Item 2, 
QPR/UPM Picked-up.   

 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Transit Mixed 

Concrete         
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 

 
WHEREAS, On April 16, 2007, one-year contracts for transit mixed concrete were awarded to 
the low bidders, Superior Materials, LLC of Farmington Hills, MI as the primary supplier and 
Van Horn Concrete of Waterford, MI as the secondary supplier  (Res #2007-04-122-E4c); and 
  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

WHEREAS, The contracts contain an option to renew for one additional year and primary 
supplier Superior Materials, LLC has agreed to exercise the renewal under the same prices, 
terms, and conditions;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract with Superior Materials, LLC of Farmington Hills, MI, to provide one-year 
requirements of transit mixed concrete under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the 
original contract expiring April 30, 2009. 

 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Police Carports         
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all labor, materials 
and equipment to install carports for the City of Troy Police Department to the low bidder, Ross 
& Barr, Inc. of Warren, MI, for an estimated total cost of $66,430.00, at prices contained in the 

bid tabulation opened March 5, 2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, bonds and all 
other specified requirements; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS bids for the option to 
install a rainwater collection system. 

 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Lowest Acceptable Bidders – Liquid 

Calcium Chloride         
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide Liquid 
Calcium Chloride with an option to renew for one (1) additional year on a option by option basis 
to the lowest acceptable bidders:  South Huron Industrial, Inc., of Flat Rock, MI, Options A and 
C and Suburban Oil Company, of Taylor, MI, Option B, at unit prices contained in the bid 

tabulation opened March 5, 2008, copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting, with contracts expiring March 31, 2009; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  

 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders – Aggregates         
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide 
aggregates with an option to renew for one (1) additional year on an item by item basis to the 
low bidders as follows: 

 
Recommended Vendors Item / Description Price/Ton 

  B&W Landscape – Clinton Twp 6)     Crushed Concrete 1”-3” $10.44 

  Richmond Transport - Lenox 5)     Fill Sand 
11)   Limestone 1”-3” 
12)   Limestone 3”-6” 

$5.85 
$12.35 
$17.10 

  Novak Construction Inc - Almont 2)     22A Gravel 
4)     60/40 Gravel 
New-    Limestone 4”-8” 

$8.25 
$12.00 
$15.00 

  Edw C Levy Company - Detroit 1)     6A Slag $12.69 

  Lukes Trucking / Excavating - Holly 3)     Pea Gravel 
9)     2NS Sand 
10)   Mason Sand 

$11.55 
$8.45 
$9.89 

  Ellsworth Industries Inc - Northville 8)     Chloride Sand $17.50 
 

at unit prices confirmed in the bid tabulation opened March 10, 2008, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring  April 30, 2009; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  

 

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot 

Maintenance         
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete the City of Troy 
Parking Lot Maintenance Program for 2007/08 to the low total bidder, Midwest Pavement 
Contracting Inc. of Milford, MI, for the Aquatic Center, Troy Library, Police East, West and 
South Parking Lot, 52-4 District Court, City Hall East and West Parking Lot, Troy Museum, 
Nature Center, Fire Station # 4, Boulan Park 2nd Parking Lot, and the Engineering Field office 
at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 26, 2008, a copy of which shall 

be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract not to exceed 
budgetary limitations; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements.  

 

h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Sole Bidder – Troy Daze Amusement 

Rides         
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide three (3) year 
requirements of amusement rides for the Troy Daze/Magic of Fall Festival for the years 2008, 
2009, and 2010 to the sole bidder, Arnold Amusements, Inc. of Traverse City, MI, at a 40% rate 
of return on gross ride receipts; and pricing, terms, and conditions as detailed in the bid 
proposal opened February 25, 2008 and summarized on the bid tabulation, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 

 

i) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products for Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake 

Golf Courses         
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to purchase seasonal 
requirements of chemicals for Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses to the lowest 
bidders meeting specifications as follows: 
           

BIDDERS      ITEMS          
Turfgrass Inc of South Lyon, MI   1,4,7,10,11,12,16,17,19,28,32  
 
Tri-Turf Inc of Farmington Hills, MI  2,6,21     
 
UAP Professional Products of Linden, MI   3,26,27,39 
 
Helena Chemical Co. of Zeeland, MI  5,9,23,30,33,38   
 
Great Lakes Turf LLC of Grand Rapids, MI 8,13,14,15,22,24,25,31,34,35 
 
Harrell’s Inc. of New Hudson, MI   18, 20, 29 
 
Lesco Inc. of Cleveland, OH   36, 37   

 
for an estimated total cost of $172,876.93, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 

February 28, 2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, 
with a contract expiration of December 31, 2008. 

 

j) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds on Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expenses – National League 

of Cities (NLC) Finance, Administration, and Intergovernmental Relations (FAIR) 

Steering Committee’s Spring Conference         
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Council Member Robin Beltramini to 
attend the NLC FAIR Steering Committee spring conference from May 8-10, 2008 in Brevard, 
North Carolina in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 

 

k) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – Oakland County Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles         
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase four (4) 2008 
FLHTP Harley Davidson motorcycles from Motor City Harley Davidson, Farmington Hills, MI, 
through the Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement at an estimated total cost of 
$61,744.00.   

 

l) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders – Hauling/Disposal of 

Dirt and Debris         
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide 
Hauling/Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an option to renew for one (1) additional year on an 
item by item basis to the low bidders as follows:  
 

Recommended Vendors Item / Description Price/Ton 

Anglin Civil - Novi A)    Disposal of Broken Concrete   
        with & without wire, possibly mixed w/fill dirt 

$3.75 

Bedrock Express LTD - 
Ortonville 

B)    Broken Asphalt possibly mixed  with fill dirt 
C)    Fill Dirt, material excavated from water and   

sewer repairs, as well as ditching operations.             
Material may include culverts,  large stumps, 
logs and wood materials 

$4.24 
 
$4.24 
 

 Osburn Industries - Taylor D)    Catch basin sludge and street   
        sweepings 
        Saulk Trails Landfill (Canton) 

$14.00 
 

 
at unit prices confirmed in the bid tabulation opened March 17, 2008, copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring  March 31, 2009; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are contingent upon contractors’ submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  

 

m) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Regional Educational Media Center – REMC 

Cooperative Program – Purchase of Storage Area Network (SAN)         
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 
WHEREAS, The Police and Fire Departments’ utilization of digital technology in day-to-day 
operations continues to grow; and  
 
WHEREAS, Additional storage is needed for documents and evidence;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to 
purchase a storage solution from Hewlett Packard through the Regional Educational Media 
Center (REMC) Cooperative Program for an estimated cost of $46,878.00; and installation, 
configuration, and training be provided by Dyntek Services at an estimated cost of $1,500.00.  

 

F-5 Contract with Greenstar & Associates, LLC for Right-of-Way Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 
WHEREAS, On April 3, 2006 a two (2) year contract for right-of-way services was awarded to 
Greenstar & Associates, LLC; and 
 
WHEREAS, The contract contains an option to renew for one (1) additional year under the 
same prices, terms and conditions;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew its contract with Greenstar & Associates, LLC to provide right-of-way services, and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and Clerk to execute the agreement document. 
 

F-6 Proposed City of Troy Precinct Boundary Alterations and Relocations 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the City of Troy alterations of precinct 
24 and 25 divisional boundary, effective May 7, 2008, as follows: 
 

Divisional boundary between Precinct 24 and 25: The portion of Section 26 
within the Warren Consolidated School District and the portion of Section 25 
south of Garry Street and west of Milverton Street to be appended to Precinct 25 
and the remainder of Section 25 in the Warren Consolidated School District to 
comprise Precinct 24. 

 

F-7 Application for Transfer of Class C License to AMC Troy, Inc. 
 

(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
AMC Troy, Inc. to transfer ownership of the escrowed 2007 Class C licensed business with 
Official Permit (Food), from Kingsway LLC; transfer location, governmental unit under 
MCL436.1531(1), from 43155 Main, Suite 208, Novi Michigan, 48375, to 1873 E Big Beaver, 
Troy Michigan, 48083, Oakland County; with a new outdoor service (1 area), new 
entertainment permit, new SDM license, to be held in conjunction; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-04- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with AMC Troy, Inc. to transfer ownership of the escrowed 2007 Class C licensed business with 
Official Permit (Food), from Kingsway LLC; transfer location, governmental unit under 
MCL436.1531(1), from 43155 Main, Suite 208, Novi Michigan, 48375, to 1873 E Big Beaver, 
Troy Michigan, 48083, Oakland County; request a new outdoor service (1 area), new 

entertainment permit, new SDM license, to be held in conjunction; and AUTHORIZES the 

Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Clinton River Watershed Council Membership Dues 2007 and 2008 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is an active member of the Clinton River Watershed Council and 
annual membership dues are $5000.00; and 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONTINUES the 
membership in the Clinton River Watershed Council with the payment of 2007 and 2008 dues.   
 

F-9 Contract Addendum No. 1 – 07-6 – Northfield Parkway Mill and Overlay 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Addendum No. 1 to Contract No. 07-
6, Northfield Parkway Mill and Overlay Project, in the amount of $49,381.56 for work performed 
by Ajax Paving Industries, Inc., 830 Kirts Blvd., Suite 100, Troy, MI  48084, and the revised 
total contract amount authorization is $662,823.25 including the 10% overall contingency as 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

per the original contract award resolution, and the $49,381.56 amount for which Addendum No. 
1 exceeds the 10% contingency.   
 

F-10 Allocation of 2008 Tri-Party Funds and Cost Participation Agreement for 2008 

Concrete Program 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Cost Participation Agreement and 
2008 Tri-Party Program funding allocation between the City of Troy and the Board of Road 
Commissioners for Oakland County for the 2008 Concrete Program at an estimated cost to the 

City of Troy not to exceed $63,000.00, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 

the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.    
 

F-11 Private Agreement for Binson’s Medical Equipment – Project No. 07.917.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and 6475 Rochester 
Road, LLC, for the installation of sanitary and storm sewer, water main, underground detention, 

and concrete pavement on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and AUTHORIZES the 

Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-12 Support of Project Safe Passage – Detroit Audubon Society 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 
WHEREAS, The Mayor and Council of the City of Troy have consistently demonstrated a high 
level of commitment to quality of life issues in the community, which includes a healthy respect 
for nature and the environment;  
 
WHEREAS, More than 250 species of birds, including warblers, thrushes and tanagers, some 
declining steeply in numbers, fly over Michigan cities, including the City of Troy, during their 
migration seasons;  
 
WHEREAS, The lights of tall buildings often confuse the birds flying nearby, and birds die from 
exhaustion or by colliding with buildings;  
 
WHEREAS, Scientists estimate that nearly one billion birds are killed every year because of 
lighted buildings; and 
 
WHEREAS, By turning lights off at night in tall structures would save money, reduce pollution, 
save energy, and save the lives of many birds that fly over our skies at night; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 16 - 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy does hereby encourage business owners, building organizations 
and property owners to cooperate with the Project Safe Passage program; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby OFFERS support to the 
Audubon Society in its furtherance of the Safe Passage Great Lakes Days, which cover the 
periods annually of March 15th through May 31st and August 15th through October 31st. 
 

F-13 Contract Extension – Concrete Pavement Repair 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 
WHEREAS, On October 23, 2006, Troy City Council awarded contracts to complete the 
concrete pavement repair program with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low 
bidders:  Hard Rock Concrete, Inc. of Westland for proposal A, A-1 – Local Roads, Six-S, Inc. 
of Waterford for proposal B – Major Roads, and Major Cement Company of Detroit for proposal 
C – Industrial Roads at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 10, 2006 
(Resolution # 2006-10-320-E4e);  
 
WHEREAS, The options to renew were exercised and approved by Troy City Council in June 
2007, under the same prices, terms and conditions as the original contract (Resolution #2007-
06-172-E4d); and 
 
WHEREAS, All three contractors have agreed to keep costs for the 2008/09 program at original 
bid prices from 2006;   
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and hereby EXTENDS contracts to provide concrete pavement repair to Hard Rock 
Concrete, Inc. of Westland for proposal A, A-1 – Local Roads, Six-S, Inc. of Waterford for 
proposal B- Major Roads, and Major Cement Company of Detroit for proposal C – Industrial 
Roads under the same terms and conditions at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation for 
ITB-COT 06-42 not to exceed budgetary limitations to expire June 30, 2009, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 

F-14 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, 

Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #51    

Sidwell #88-20-02-228-039 – Bill and Minerva Dumiter 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Bill and Minerva Dumiter, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-
02-228-039, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road 
Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $37,610.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 17 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-15 Request to Waive Permit Fees, Christmas in Action Projects 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES permit fees for the work that is proposed to be 
performed by the Christmas in Action Troy group for their 2008 projects in the City of Troy. 
 

F-16 Private Agreement for Grand Troy Villas Condominiums 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Mr. Sridhar 
Rajagopalan & R. Rajaraman, for the installation of water main, sanitary and storm sewer, 
paving, sidewalks, detention ponds, and soil erosion control measures on the site and in the 

adjacent right of way, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-17 Traffic Committee Recommendations – March 19, 2008 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-04- 
 

Establishment of Fire Lanes – 1785 East Maple    
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the establishment of 
fire lanes at 1785 East Maple as recommended by the Fire Department. 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  

a) Brownfield Redevelopment Plan #5 – Pavilions of Troy – NW Corner of Big Beaver and 
Coolidge – Section 19 (Former Kmart Site) – April 21, 2008        

    

G-2 Memorandums:   

a) Amendment to Chapter 3, Section 1.78 – Unclaimed Property   



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 18 - 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced    
 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 6, 2007  

b) Election Commission/Final – December 7, 2007 

c) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – January 3, 2008  

d) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – January 17, 2008  

e) Historic District Study Committee/Final – February 5, 2008 

f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – February 13, 2008  

g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – February 19, 2008 

h) Downtown Development Authority/Final – February 20, 2008 

i) Historic District Study Committee/Final – March 4, 2008  

j) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 4, 2008  

k) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – March 5, 2008 

l) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – March 6, 2008 

m) Planning Commission/Draft – March 11, 2008 

n) Planning Commission/Final – March 11, 2008  

o) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – March 18, 2008 

p) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 25, 2008  

q) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 25, 2008 

r) Election Commission/Draft – March 27, 2008  

s) Personnel Board/Draft – April 3, 2008 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   

a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – January 
and February 2008  

b) City Council Expense Report – March, 2008  

c) City Attorney’s Office – 2008 First Quarter Litigation Report  

d) City Manager’s Office – Zucker Report Implementation Plan 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 19 - 

 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Westland Mayor William Wild in Appreciation of the 
Participation and Support during Funeral Procession  

b) Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson representing TEAM Troy from Steve Toth, Boys & 
Girls Club Executive Director for the City of Troy’s Casual for a Cause Contribution  

c) Letter of Thanks to Barb Myhal representing TEAM Troy from Patricia Rosen, CARE 
House Executive Director for the City of Troy’s Casual for a Cause Contribution 

d) Letter to Lt. Frye from Virginia Bertram Commending Sgt. Barry Whiteside for his 
Professionalism and Dedication  

e) Letter of Thanks to Officers Brazel and Quaiatto from Troy Residents James and Paula 
Young 

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   

a) State of Michigan Senate Resolution No. 148 – Commemorating March 2008 as Ethnic 
and Cultural Heritage Month in the State of Michigan 

 

J-5  Calendar 
 

J-6  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Draft Minutes from February 21, 2008 
 

J-7  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding  

Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company 

– Case No. U-15506 
 

J-8  Communication from Chief Craft Regarding Skunk Removal Services 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 

or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  April 7, 2008 

 

- 20 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, April 21, 2008 
1. Brownfield Redevelopment Plan #5 – Pavilions of Troy – NW Corner of Big 

Beaver and Coolidge – Section 19 (Former Kmart Site)  
 

 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, April 21, 2008.............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, May 12, 2008 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, May 19, 2008 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, June 2, 2008 ............................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, June 16, 2008 ............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, July 7, 2008 ................................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, July 21, 2008 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, August 11, 2008.......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, August 25, 2008.......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, September 8, 2008 ..................................................... Regular City Council 

 



1

Laura D Campbell

 
 
_____________________________________________ 
From: Cynthia A Stewart  
Sent: Tuesday, April 01, 2008 1:04 PM 
To: Mary F Redden; agenda 
Subject:  
 
 
HI Mary 
Would you please make this the first presentation for April 7 City Council… 
 
Zach Kilgore (student) & the Smith Middle School Student Ecology Club presentation on “Green Space in Troy” 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



PROCLAMATION 
NATIONAL CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION AND AWARENESS MONTH 

APRIL 2008 
 

WHEREAS, Children deserve to grow and thrive in an environment that nurtures and keeps them safe; 
unfortunately, abuse and neglect are suffered by children in our communities, regardless of age, race, 
gender or economic situation; and  
 
WHEREAS, One in four girls and one in six boys will be sexually abused before the age of 18; and 
 
WHEREAS, This reported maltreatment is only a portion of the overall problem threatening our children, for 
so many cases go unreported, and today’s technology has brought with it a new and dangerous form of 
child endangerment, the online predator; and 
 
WHEREAS, The devastating consequences of physical and emotional abuse of our children affects the 
community as a whole and finding solutions needs to be attended to by the community as a whole; and 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan has mandatory reporting by professionals working with children of any 
suspected abuse and neglect incidences -- a major step -- but more is needed in the communities; and 
 
WHEREAS, CARE House of Oakland County (home of Child Abuse and Neglect Council of Oakland 
County) works to break the cycle of child abuse and neglect, provides a protective circle of light and hope 
for a better life, and advocates for the safety and protection of children; and 
 
WHEREAS, CARE House of Oakland County partners with community organizations and agencies to 
offer programs and services aimed at preventing child abuse and neglect, knowing that effective programs 
succeed because of the involvement and partnerships created among schools, social service agencies, 
religious and civic organizations, the business community and law enforcement agencies;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby proclaim April as National 
Child Abuse Prevention and Awareness Month in the City Of Troy, Michigan; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council calls upon all citizens, community agencies, 
organizations and businesses to increase their participation in the efforts of CARE House to prevent the 
abuse of our children, thereby strengthening and protecting the communities in which we live. 
 
Signed this 7th day of April 2008. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



PROCLAMATION 
CELEBRATING 25 YEARS   

CONGREGATION SHIR TIKVAH 
 
 

WHEREAS, Congregation Shir Tikvah has met the religious needs of Troy residents and beyond since first opening their 
doors on April 22, 1983; and 
 
WHEREAS, The roots of Congregation Shir Tikvah began in 1979 when United Hebrew Schools opened a branch in Troy.  
With a desire to bring the High Holy Days closer to home, 18 families joined together in 1982 at an organizational meeting which 
grew to 48 families who very enthusiastically agreed to form the Troy Jewish Congregation; and 
 
WHEREAS, As the Troy Jewish Congregation, the families led weekly services under the guidance of a religious ritual 
committee which had been formed. These early days as the Troy Jewish Congregation were a hands-on operation which 
instilled a participatory heritage that continues to flourish today; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Jewish Congregation was able to expand with the support and donation of space from other local religious 
institutions including Emerson Unitarian Church, Lutheran Church of the Master and Northminster Presbyterian Church.  In 
1988, the congregation changed its name to Congregation Shir Tikvah, meaning Song of Hope, to emulate its foundation on 
tradition and in 1990 Arnie Sleutelberg became their first full-time rabbi; and  
 
WHEREAS, In 1995, with membership at 240 families, they approved the financial plan leading to a permanent home and the 
groundbreaking took place in October 1996 and the new Shul was dedicated on May 3, 1998; and 
 
WHEREAS, The changes that Congregation Shir Tikvah has seen in the last 25 years are remarkable as they have grown to 
more than 350 families. From a time when families led the services to now, when the congregation is served by two rabbis, 
Rabbi Arnie Sleutelberg and Rabbi Aaron Starr, the spiritual growth is evident as well; and  
 
WHEREAS, Congregation Shir Tikvah has influenced this community in a variety of ways, including the development of the 
Sam and Jean Frankel Family Education Program in 1992; the implementation of various programs, such as Empty Bowls, Light 
One Candle and hosting homeless families from the South Oakland Shelter. Shir Tikvah is also a founding partner of the Troy 
Interfaith Group which represents the wonderful religious diversity in Troy;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby congratulate Congregation Shir Tikvah on 
its 25th Anniversary and recognizes its impact upon not only its membership, but on the entire community;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council joins the citizens of this community in appreciation and celebration of 
Congregation Shir Tikvah’s 25th Anniversary as they enter into their next quarter century by bringing to life a celebration 
stretching back two millennia – the writing of a new Sefer Torah. “May-cha-yeel el cha-yeel, L’Dor V’Dor.”  May we go from 
strength to strength, from generation to generation. 
 
Presented this 7th day of April 2008. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01c



 

 
 
April 7, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager - Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Establishment of an Industrial Development District 

(IDD) for Republic/APT, 1889 Larchwood, Troy, MI. 48083-2226  
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Republic/APT purchased Lavalle & Ide Company in 2004. They are relocating the operations from 

Vermont to 1889 Larchwood, Troy, MI.  This is next door to the Michigan Drill operation owned by 
Republic/APT at 1863 Larchwood, a longtime taxpayer in the City of Troy (incorporated in 1967). 
 
They intend to add Tap Manufacturing to the product line.  For this purpose they will purchase 
machinery costing $600,000, including installation, and setting up operations at 1889 Larchwood.   
 
The company now employs 33 full time employees.  The new machinery will allow them to add 1 
or 2 new jobs. 

 
They are requesting an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to be issued by the City 
of Troy (application attached).  This is according to Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended) and local 
City policy.  As you will recall, this amounts to an approximate 50% reduction in personal property 
taxes that they would pay, over a twelve (12) year period.  This percentage is not inclusive of 
State Education Tax (6.00 Mill) or School Operating Tax (18.00 mills).  These taxes have been 
exempted on Personal Property of Industrial companies by the new Michigan Business Tax of 
2007.  It does now include Supplemental Millage in the calculation.   
 
In order to grant the IFEC, an Industrial Development District (IDD) must first be established.  This 
District sets the boundaries wherein the exemption may exist. 
 
The IDD and the IFEC do require separate Public Hearings, unless the local unit has delineated all 
areas where IDD’s may locate, in advance.  Council’s policy is to set the district as each 
application is received.  For this reason, the bulk of the information for this application is presented 
with the District public hearing. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 
 
 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $600,000 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $26,102.11, of which $8,454.83 would be City 
taxes. 

 
An abatement amounts to a savings of $13,051.06 in total taxes, of which $4,227.42 would be 
saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the amended tax abatement policy of the City Council of the 

City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this re-location.   

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option to establish an Industrial Development district, or not.  If Council does 

not establish a District, then no Exemption can be granted.  A public hearing is still necessary to 
deny the exemption. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\RepublicAPT\CouncilPakIDD PH 







Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:

Real Property?

Personal Property?

Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?

Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?

Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the

plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial

park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing

building?

Will this project require improvement of your road

service?

Will this project require improvement of your

sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm

sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water

services?

Will this project require additional police

personnel, police equipment or a need for new

police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire

personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment

or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided

through Local Development Finance Authority or

Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 

must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):

Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.

LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

$0.00 $600,000.00 $600,000.00

Leger A. (Nino) Licari  CMAE IV #6345

licarila
Text Box
Republic/APT

licarila
Text Box
1889 Larchwood, Troy MI 88-20-26-430-035







Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

Page 1 of 1

2/21/2008http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...

licarila
Rectangle



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

Page 1 of 1

2/21/2008http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...



 
Legal Description for: 
 
APT Michigan Drill 
1889 Larchwood 
Troy, MI 48083-2226 
Parcel ID: 88-20-26-430-035 
 

T2N, R11E, SEC 26  
JOHN R GARDEN SUB  
LOTS 190 & 191, ALSO  
S 1/2 VAC KELLEY ST  
ADJ TO SAME, ALSO  
LOTS 220 & 221 EXC  
S 5 FT TAKEN FOR LARCHWOOD AVE  
5-27-88 FR 012, 013 & 027 



Market Value 600,000 550,020 458,387 343,836 229,270 133,779 66,916 27,897 9,307 2,329 389 33 0
50% of Value 300,000 275,010 229,193 171,918 114,635 66,889 33,458 13,949 4,653 1,165 195 16 0

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Depreciation 0.9167 0.8334 0.7501 0.6668 0.5835 0.5002 0.4169 0.3336 0.2503 0.1670 0.0837 0.0004

Taxable Value 275,010 229,193 171,918 114,635 66,889 33,458 13,949 4,653 1,165 195 16 0

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59000 $162.26 $135.22 $101.43 $67.63 $39.46 $19.74 $8.23 $2.75 $0.69 $0.11 $0.01 $0.00
County 4.64610 $1,277.72 $1,064.86 $798.75 $532.61 $310.78 $155.45 $64.81 $21.62 $5.41 $0.90 $0.08 $0.00

Int Schools 2.94300 $809.35 $674.52 $505.95 $337.37 $196.86 $98.47 $41.05 $13.69 $3.43 $0.57 $0.05 $0.00
Comm Coll 1.58440 $435.73 $363.13 $272.39 $181.63 $105.98 $53.01 $22.10 $7.37 $1.85 $0.31 $0.03 $0.00

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
School Op 5.95940 $1,638.89 $1,365.85 $1,024.53 $683.16 $398.62 $199.39 $83.13 $27.73 $6.94 $1.16 $0.10 $0.00
Sch Debt 3.27640 $901.04 $750.93 $563.27 $375.59 $219.16 $109.62 $45.70 $15.25 $3.82 $0.64 $0.05 $0.00

Admin 0.37030 $101.84 $84.87 $63.66 $42.45 $24.77 $12.39 $5.17 $1.72 $0.43 $0.07 $0.01 $0.00
City 9.28000 $2,552.09 $2,126.91 $1,595.40 $1,063.81 $620.73 $310.49 $129.44 $43.18 $10.81 $1.81 $0.15 $0.00
Total 28.64960 $7,878.93 $6,566.30 $4,925.38 $3,284.24 $1,916.36 $958.56 $399.62 $133.31 $33.37 $5.57 $0.47 $0.00

Total 12 Years $26,102.11
Total City 12 Yrs $8,454.83

50% Total 12 Yr $13,051.06
50% Total City 12 $4,227.42 Net Total City Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Republic/APT

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application

Net Total Taxes Abated



F-5 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and 
Headquarter Companies 

 
Resolution #2006-06-238 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) 
encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in industrial areas, 
and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for certain 
industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that the following 
criteria are to be met, applied or measured by the City Manager or his designees in the review 
of areas and locations to be considered for designation as Industrial Development Districts 
(IDD) by the City Council: 
 

1) That the tax exemption shall not apply to real property except those building 
improvements which are uniquely required to support the personal property to be 
abated; and 

 
2) That the tax exemption shall not apply to leasehold improvements or building 

improvements except those uniquely required to support personal property to be 
abated; and  

 
3) That said abatement of taxes shall cease at such time as applicant fails to prove 

by factual evidence that such personal property is being used in compliance with 
the basic guidelines established above. 

 
4) The applicant would document that they are Michigan Economic Growth Authority 

(MEGA) eligible, would be filling vacant Troy space, or will retain or expand the 
number of jobs in Troy. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the term of abatement for any and all property meeting the 
aforementioned criteria SHALL NOT exceed 12 years, it being the INTENT OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL TO APPROVE various lengths of abatements to the extent provided by laws of the 
State of Michigan. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



February 21, 2008 
 
 
To: State Tax Commission 
 P.O. Box 30471 
 Lansing, MI 48909-7971 
 
From: Leger (Nino) Licari, Assessor 
 
Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC 
 
 
 
 
  This affidavit attests that no payment of any kind has been made or 
promised in exchange for favorable consideration of an exemption 
certificate application by the City of Troy, in regards to the application of                     
Republic/APT, 1889 Larchwood, Troy, Michigan 48083. 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________               ______________ 
Signed, Leger (Nino) Licari, City Assessor                                           Dated 
 
 
____________________________________________                     __________________ 
Signed,                                                                                                 Dated 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between Republic/APT, (“Company”) and the City of 
Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of Public Act 198, as 
amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), Republic/APT, understands that through its 
investment of $600,000 and its qualification for Michigan Economic 
Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its investment of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually investing in and 
benefiting from this economic development project, and furthermore, 
agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is __ 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2020, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2010, Republic/APT will report to the Assessing Department 
of the City of Troy the actual cost of this project and indicate 
any differences and the reason for any differences in the cost 
or scope of the project as compared to the IFEC application 
submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) Republic/APT, agrees to remain within the City of Troy for the 

period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) abatement in order 
to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless permission for 
relocation is granted by the City Council of the City of Troy. 

 
Republic/APT, further understands that if it chooses to leave 
the City of Troy without permission for relocation prior to the 
end of the term of the IFT, the City Council of the City of 
Troy has the right to recapture from the Company the total 
amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  Republic/APT, understands that the City of Troy may reduce 

the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or recover from the 
Company, the amount of taxes which were abated if the 
project has not been completed, expenditures made, as 
represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 
 
 



 
5.)  Republic/APT, agrees that it will operate the Project in 

accordance with all applicable Federal, State and Local laws 
or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, outside 
storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water quality, noise 
control, other environmental regulations, and all of the terms 
and conditions of the Consent Judgment governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 
 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew                         (date) 
 City Clerk 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, April 7, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from Republic/APT, for the establishment of an Industrial 

Development District (IDD) at the following location: 

 

88-20-26-430-035  1889 Larchwood, Troy,  MI.  48083-2226 

T2N, R11E, Section 26 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
WARREN CONSOLIDATED 
SCHOOLS 
31300 ANITA 
WARREN MI 48093-1697 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
MACOMB INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
44001 GARFIELD 
CLINTON TWSHP MI 48038-1100 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
PATRICK DOHANY 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
MARK LINARI c/o 
REPUBLIC/APT 
1889 LARCHWOOD 
TROY MI 48083-2226 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  





 

 
 
April 7, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager - Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC) to Republic/APT, 1889 Larchwood, Troy, MI. 48083 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Republic/APT is moving a Tap Manufacturing division that they have purchased, from Vermont, to 

1889 Larchwood.  They are seeking an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to 
facilitate their ability to move to Troy. 

 
This is according to Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended) and local City policy.   
 

Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $600,000.00 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $26,102.11, of which $8,454.83 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $13,051.06 in total taxes, of which $4,227.42 would be 
saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 
 The application is in compliance with the recently amended tax abatement policy of the City 

Council of the City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this expansion.   

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option of granting the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate for any period 

of one (1) to twelve (12) years, or not at all.   
 

Staff recommends that the Exemption be granted for a twelve (12) year period. 
 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\RepublicAPT\CouncilPakIFEC PH 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, April 7, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from Republic/APT for the granting of an Industrial Facilities 

Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for a period not to exceed 12 years, beginning December 

31, 2008, for personal property located at: 

 

88-20-26-430-035, 1889 Larchwood Troy, MI.  48083-2226 

T2N, R11E, Section 26 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
WARREN CONSOLIDATED 
SCHOOLS 
31300 ANITA 
WARREN MI 48093-1697 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
MACOMB INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
44001 GARFIELD 
CLINTON TWSHP MI 48038-1100 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
PATRICK DOHANY 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
MARK LINARI c/o 
REPUBLIC/APT 
1889 LARCHWOOD 
TROY MI 48083-2226 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  





campbellld
Text Box
D-01















 

 
 
March 20, 2008 
 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 
SUBJECT:  Scheduling Special Meetings for Budget Discussion 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Each year Administration schedules special meetings for City Council to review the annual budget 

document; two meetings are usually in order. 
 The proposed budget will be distributed to Council members at the April 21, 2008 regularly 

scheduled Council meeting. 
 A public hearing for adoption of the budget will occur at the May 19, 2008 regularly scheduled 

Council meeting. 
 There are no regular Council meetings scheduled for April 28, 2008 nor May 5, 2008, therefore 

these dates should work for special meetings to review the annual budget document. 
 

Options: 
 
 It is recommended that City Council set special meetings for budget review on Monday, April 28, 

2008 and Monday, May 5, 2008 at 7:30 PM in the Council Board Room. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2008\04.07.08 - Scheduling Special Meetings for Budget Discussion 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: April 3, 2008 
SUBJECT: Addendum to Sylvan Glen Lease Agreement 

 

 

 

  At the March 17, 2008 regular meeting, revised ordinance language to Chapter 30 
was approved, allowing for our independent food service providers to sell beer and wine 
from a beverage cart on Troy’s municipal golf courses.  At that same meeting, the lease 
between the City and Kosch for the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course was amended to allow for 
a beverage cart.   
     
  The independent food service provider for Sylvan Lake Golf Course, Gallatin Inc., 
has also requested an amendment to the lease with the City.  Since this lease is based on 
a monthly rental figure, Gallatin Inc. has agreed to an increase in the monthly rental 
amount, in exchange for the opportunity to operate a beverage cart on the golf course 
proper.  The addendum also provides some additional provisions regarding the operation 
of the beverage cart on the golf course proper.  The lease provides for a one year re-
opener to evaluate the success.   The lease is also amended to provide a 90 day opt out 
period, which is consistent with the lease for the Sanctuary Lake food service provider.  
   

A resolution approving the addendum to the lease is provided for your review and 
consideration.  If you have any questions, please let us know. 

  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04



THIRD ADDENDUM TO LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into on ____________________, 2008, between the CITY 
OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, whose address is 500 W. Big Beaver 
Road, Troy Michigan, 48084, hereinafter referred to as the “City,” and Gallatin, Inc. 
d/b/a Camp Ticonderoga, 2405 Rock Valley Road, Metamora, Michigan 48445 
hereinafter referred to as the “Operator”; 

RECITALS 

A. On December 18, 1995, the City and Operator entered into a lease in which the 
City leased to the Operator certain premises to be used and occupied for the 
purposes stated in the lease, located at 5725 Rochester Road, Troy, Oakland 
County, Michigan, and adjacent to Sylvan Glen Golf Course. 
 

B. On May 1, 2000 the City and Operator agreed to A Second Addendum to the 
Lease.  This addendum provided in paragraph (3) three “As a result of City 
Council’s resolution on March 29, 1999, Lessee shall be permitted to sell to 
golfers a maximum of two (2) beers per golfer from the clubhouse on Lessor’s 
premises for consumption on the Golf Course provided Lessee secures the 
necessary licenses from the Michigan Liquor Control Commission (“MLCC”)” 
 

C. On March 17, 2008 the Troy City Council passed an amendment to Chapter 30, 
Golf Courses, of the City Code of Ordinances that now authorizes the City’s sub-
contractor permission to sell alcoholic beverages on the City’s golf courses.  
 

D. Operator desires to serve alcoholic beverages on the Sylvan Glen Golf Course 
proper through use of a beverage cart. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Operator agree to the following terms and conditions 
as an addendum to the Agreement Food Service at Sylvan Glen Golf Course: 

1. Definitions.  The following terms in this Addendum to the Agreement are defined 
as follows: 

A. “Alcoholic beverages” shall mean beer, wine, and other alcoholic 
beverages that contain less than 21% of alcohol by volume. 

B. “Golf Course” shall mean Sylvan Glen Golf Course. 

2. Sale of Alcoholic Beverages 

A. Paragraph (3) three of the Second Addendum to the Lease is hereby 
deleted. 



B. Operator shall be permitted to sell alcoholic beverages on the Golf Course 
proper through use of one (1) beverage cart, which shall be purchased or 
leased by the Operator.  

3. Rent 

The Operator’s monthly rent shall be upwardly adjusted $125 for the 
remainder of the lease, in consideration of the Operator’s increased 
opportunity for revenue.  All other previous lease terms remain in effect.  

4. Other 

A. The Operator is ultimately responsible for compliance with all federal, 
state and local laws related to the sale, distribution, use, or possession of 
alcohol, and the administrative rules, procedures, and guidelines as 
provided by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission including, but not 
limited to, obtaining or maintaining the necessary license(s) or permit(s), 
which allow for the operation of the beverage cart on the golf course.  

B. Any employee operating the beverage cart must be trained to operate it in 
a safe manner. The operator or restaurant manager will train all operators 
of the beverage cart. The operator shall keep records of all training, and 
shall make such records available for review by the City upon request.  

C. The Operator has the responsibility of determining the routing and hours 
of operation for the beverage cart.  However, the City may adjust the 
routing or hours of operation in the event of severe weather or other 
environmental conditions, after consultation with the Operator. 

D. Storage of the beverage cart is the sole responsibility of the Operator. If 
the Operator chooses, the Operator may store the beverage cart with the 
golf carts during the golf season. Off season, the Operator is responsible 
for beverage cart storage.  Storage of the beverage cart inventory is also 
the sole responsibility of the Operator. The City has no liability or 
responsibility for damages to the beverage cart during storage. 

E. Operator shall offer sandwiches, snacks, water and other nonalcoholic 
beverages, in addition to alcoholic beverages, for sale on the beverage 
cart. 

F. It is understood that the purchase of the beverage cart is an investment 
with unknown return. Therefore, should the City cancel or otherwise 
terminate the ability of the operator to sell alcoholic beverages on the 
course without just cause and before the end of the golf season in the 
year 2010, the City will purchase and take possession of the beverage 
cart. This does not include the food and beverage inventory, which is the 
sole responsibility of the Operator. The cost for the beverage cart will be 
the Operator’s documented cost of acquisition, minus depreciation, based 



on the rules and regulations published by the IRS Act 1986 as amended. 
The Operator shall also have the discretion to remove the cart and waive 
payment as set out herein. If the City purchases the beverage cart, then 
payment shall be made within 60 days after receipt of documentation 
setting forth the Operator’s cost, minus depreciation.  Should the Operator 
lease the beverage cart, the City will have no obligation under this section. 

G. The City does not make guarantee of player load or other guarantee of 
revenue. 

H. All other terms of the executed lease agreement remain in effect, and are 
incorporated herein by reference. 

I. This agreement shall commence on April 7, 2008 or as soon as 
reasonably possible after that date. 

J. This addendum, providing for the use of the beverage cart, shall be 
applicable for the duration of the term of the original lease. However, the 
parties shall have the opportunity to reopen negotiations of the terms of  
this addendum after  one year (April 1, 2009). The parties can also 
terminate this addendum at any time, upon ninety (90) days written notice, 
sent by registered mail.  The mutual agreement to terminate this 
addendum shall not obligate the City to pay for the cost of the beverage 
cart, as provided in Paragraph F. 

CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal 
Corporation 

By:____________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 
 
By:____________________________ 

Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk  
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN       ) 

   )ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 
__________________,2008 by Louise E. Schilling, the Mayor of the City of Troy, a 
Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation.  
____________________________ 
Notary Public, ___________County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 



STATE OF MICHIGAN       ) 

   )ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 
__________________,2008 by Tonni L. Bartholomew, the City Clerk of the City of Troy, 
a Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation.    

 

____________________________ 
Notary Public, ___________County, Michigan 

My commission expires: 

 

        Gallatin, Inc. d/b/a Camp Ticonderoga 

      By:___________________________ 
      Its:___________________________ 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN       ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND   ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 

________________________,2008 by_________________________________, 
the_______________________________of Gallatin, Inc. d/b/a Camp Ticonderoga 

 

____________________________ 
Notary Public, ___________County, Michigan 

My commission expires: 

 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, March 17, 2008, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
Pastor John Frankenstein of Zion Christian Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming  
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a. On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation to Terry Socall 

of The Business Advisory Group, LLC in celebration of their 20
th

 year anniversary. 
b. On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation to Paul Scobie, 

TYA Caseworker and Jeanne Stine of Troy Youth Assistance in celebration of their 50
th

 
year anniversary. 

c. Mayor Schilling presented the 2007 Traffic Safety Award received from the “Governors 
Traffic Safety Advisory Commission” to Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer, John 
Abraham and staff members from the Engineering Department. 

d. An update was presented by State Representative Marty Knollenberg – 41st District.  
e. Kerry Krivoshein, of the Trails Committee, provided an update on the trails and pathways 

in Troy. 
 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Re-Programming Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 

2005 Unexpended Funds 

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2008-03-093 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy, after conclusion of a Public Hearing on this 
date, March 17, 2008 has determined that Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

program year 2005 unexpended funds of $82,795.00 should be re-programmed from the Flood 
Drain Improvements Project to the Public Facilities and Improvements, Section 36 Park 
Improvement Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, The balance of CDBG Program Year 2005 Special Assessment Project funds for 
approximately 12 low-moderate income residents on Olympia and Tacoma Streets in the 
amount of $4,703.43 should be re-programmed to the Public Facilities and Improvements, 
Section 36 Park Improvement Project;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADDS the Public Facilities 
and Improvements, Section 36 Park Improvement Project, to the list of CDBG projects for 
2005.  
 
Yes: All-7  
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Liquor Violations – Class C; Class C Resort & Hotel B: (f) LaShish, Inc. (dba: 

LaShish) – Continuance of Public Hearing 
The Mayor continued the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2008-03-094 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked or not renewed after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 
and continued on Monday, March 17, 2008 for the following licensed establishment:  
 
  Name:  La Shish, Inc. (dba: La Shish)  
  Address: 3720 Rochester Road, Troy, MI 48083 
  License No. Class C (100797-2007 SS)  
 
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR (DPU) 
(Compliance Test), December 13, 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, The licensee had prior violations on October 28, 2003 SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); August 16, 2001 SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test);  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 and 
continued on Monday, March 17, 2008;  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

WHEREAS, No representatives from LaShish have made any commitment or provided any 
other assurances to the City Council of the City of Troy that affirmative and pro-active steps 
have been taken to prevent future violations of the liquor laws at La Shish;  
 
WHEREAS, Subsequent to the February 20, 2008 City Council hearing date, La Shish, Inc. 
closed its business in the City of Troy and at all other locations in the State of Michigan, without 
any advance notice to either the City or its own employees;  
 
WHEREAS, The liquor license is one of the limited Class C quota licenses available in the City 
of Troy, and as such, the Troy City Council is interested in promoting businesses that are 
located within the City of Troy, and in encouraging business within the City of Troy, and in 
having a viable restaurant business located in the otherwise vacant restaurant facility;  
 
WHEREAS, On March 13, 2008, the above referenced Class C liquor license, License Number 
100797-2007 SS, was placed in escrow, and could remain in escrow for a period of up to five 
years, and could also be transferred to another jurisdiction in Oakland County;  
  
WHEREAS, The licensee has also failed to pay City of Troy taxes for 2007 and 2008; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy City Council welcomes the opportunity to review any prospective 
transferee of the subject liquor license, and may revisit the objection to the renewal at that time, 
after being provided with the prospective transferee‟s qualifications and credentials;      
  
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That after due notice, appropriate hearing and 

deliberations, and having made findings, the City Council of the City of Troy hereby OBJECTS 
to the automatic renewal of the Class C Liquor License, License Number 100797-2007 SS, in 

the name of LaShish, Inc., and hereby REQUESTS that this information be immediately 
forwarded to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission prior to April 1, 2008.   
 
Yes: All-7  
 

D-2a Liquor Violations – SDD/SDM: (a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: 

Macy’s) (a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) – Continuance of 

Public Hearing 
The Mayor continued the Public Hearing for public comment for agenda items D-2a and D-2b 
Liquor Violations - The May Department Stores Company. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the attorney representing 
the licensee and the licensee; no comment was received from the public. 
 
Resolution #2008-03-095 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy:  
 

 Name:  The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy‟s) 
  Address: 2752 W. Big Beaver Rd., 48084 
  License No.: SDM (133308-2007)  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee‟s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on May 10, 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 20, 2008 and continued on Monday, March 17, 
2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The licensee has had no prior violations; and  
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 and continued on 
Monday, March 17, 2008; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, 

HAS DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws 
and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor;  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee‟s file. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

D-2b Liquor Violations – Class C; Class C Resort & Hotel B: (a) The May Department 

Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) – Continuance of Public Hearing 
 
Resolution #2008-03-096 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 and continued 
on Monday, March 17, 2008 for the following licensed establishment: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

  Name:  The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy‟s) 
  Address: 500 W. Fourteen Mile Road, 48083 
  License No.: Class C (132719-2007)  

 

and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR (DPU) 
(Compliance Test), December 13, 2007; 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 and 
continued on Monday, March 17, 2008; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number 132719-2007 in the 

name of The May Department Stores Company in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED with the 

STIPULATION that all employees be TIPS AND/OR TAMS trained and that the Licensee 
provide proof of training to the Troy Police Department within ninety (90) days; and a certified 

copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: All-7  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 

E-5 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Sale of Real Estate – John 

R Garden Subdivision     

  
Resolution #2008-03-097 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES agenda item E-5 Standard 
Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Sale of Real Estate – John R Garden 
Subdivision until staff has a chance to review and after meeting with bidders, come back with 
further information and another recommendation.  
 
Yes: All-7  
 

The meeting RECESSED at 9:05 PM. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 9:18 PM 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

E-1 Nominations for Appointment to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Nominations: 

Planning Commission b) City Council Nominations: Board of Zoning Appeals; 

Historic District Commission; Library Advisory Board; and Parks & Recreation 

Board  

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations  
 
Resolution #2008-03-098 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Howrylak  

 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
persons to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 

 
Lon M. Ullmann Unexpired Term 12/31/08 

 
Philip Sanzica Unexpired Term 12/31/09 

 
Yes: All-7   
 

(b) City Council Nominations 
 
Resolution #2008-03-099 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
  
Matthew W. Kovacs Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Barbara Chambers Term Expires 03/01/11 

  
Sabah Jihad  *Historical Society Recommendation Term Expires 03/01/11 

  
Ann Partlan  *Historical Society Recommendation Term Expires 03/01/11 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

Library Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) –3 Year Terms 
 
Belinda Sheltan Duggan / Julie A. Sigler / Susan Werpetinski  Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular: 3-Year Term; 1-Troy School Board: 1-Year Term; 1-Troy Daze Committee: 

1-Year Term; 1-Adv. Comm for Sr. Citizens: 1-Year Term) 
Pauline Noce  *Advisory Committee for Sr. Citizens Rep Term Expires 04/30/09 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

E-2 Resolution to Reconsider Board and Commission Appointments of January 9, 

2006 

  
Resolution #2008-03-100 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

(a) Vote on Reconsideration of Resolution #2006-01-007 Board and Commission 
 Appointments of January 9, 2006 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECONSIDERS Resolution #2006-01-007, Moved 
by Schilling and Seconded by Beltramini, as it appears below: 
 

RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE 

MAYOR to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Board of Review  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (3) – 3 years 
 
Frank J. Howrylak Term Expires 01/31/09 

 

Planning Commission  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (9) - 3 Year Terms 
 
Robert M. Schultz Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Thomas Strat Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Mary Kerwin Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Yes: Beltramini, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
No: Broomfield, Fleming  

 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Yes: All-7    



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

(b) Vote on Separation of Vote for Resolution #2006-01-007 Board and Commission 
 Appointments of January 9, 2006 
 
Resolution #2008-03-101 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SEPARATES active motion as follows: 
 
Resolution #2006-01-007 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve 
on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Board of Review  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (3) – 3 years 
 
Frank J. Howrylak Term Expires 01/31/09 

 

and 
 
Resolution #2006-01-007 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve 
on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (9) - 3 Year Terms 
 
Robert M. Schultz Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Thomas Strat Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Mary Kerwin Term Expires 12/31/08 

   
Yes: All-7    
  

(c) Vote on Board of Review Appointment Resolution as Separated 
 
Resolution #2006-01-007 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve 
on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

Board of Review  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (3) – 3 years 
 
Frank J. Howrylak Term Expires 01/31/09 

 
Yes:  Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, Beltramini  
No:  Schilling  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

(d) Vote on Planning Commission Appointments Resolution as Separated 
 
Resolution #2006-01-007 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (9) - 3 Year Terms 
 
Robert M. Schultz Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Thomas Strat Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Mary Kerwin Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Yes:  All-7    
 

E-3 Adjustment to Plumbing Permit Fees 

  
Resolution #2008-03-102 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following revisions to the 
Plumbing Permit Fees as recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, and said fee revisions shall apply to 
plumbing permit applications submitted after April 1, 2008: 
 

PLUMBING PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE 

Description Current Fee Proposed Fee 

Stacks/Conductors $10.00 No Change 

Sink (any description) $ 8.00 $10.00 

Bathtub $ 8.00 $10.00 

Water Closet $ 8.00 $10.00 

Lavatory $ 8.00 N/A 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

Water Heater $ 8.00 $10.00 

Water Heater (replacement) $25.00 No Change 

Laundry Tray or Stand Pipe $ 8.00 $10.00 

Floor Drain $ 8.00 $10.00 

Ejector Pump or Water Lift $ 8.00 $10.00 

Drinking Fountain $ 8.00 $10.00 

Grease Trap Interceptor $ 8.00 $10.00 

Urinal $ 8.00 $10.00 

Bar Sink – Soda Fountain (each opening) $ 8.00 N/A 

Shower Trap or w/Pan $ 8.00 $10.00 

Dishwashing Machine $ 8.00 $10.00 

Humidifier $ 8.00 $10.00 

Garbage Disposal $ 8.00 $10.00 

Sump or Interceptor $ 8.00 $10.00 

Hose Bibs $ 5.00 $ 8.00 

Water Treatment Device Softener/Filter $10.00 No Change 

Washing Machine $ 8.00 N/A 

Special Fixture $ 8.00 N/A 

Refrigeration Connection $ 8.00 N/A 

Dental Chairs $ 8.00 $10.00 

Surgical Cuspidor $ 8.00 N/A 

Building Main to Sewer $20.00 No Change 

Inside Sub Soil Drains System $15.00 No Change 

Roof Sump $10.00 No Change 

Underground – Slab - Separate Inspection $ 9.00 N/A 

Miscellaneous Fixtures $ 8.00 $10.00 

Back Water Valve N/A $10.00 

Backflow Prevention Device N/A $10.00 

Medical Gas (per opening) N/A $10.00 

   

Water Distribution (see below): 

¾‟ = $15.00  1-1/2” = $30.00  3” = $55.00 

1” = $20.00  2” = $30.00  4” = $63.00 

1-1/4” = $25.00  2-1/2” = $45.00  Over 4” = $75.00 

   

Minimum Permit Fee $25.00 N/A 

   

Special Inspection (per hour) $30.00 /hour $50.00 /hour 

   

Addition to permit before Inspection – Regular Fee   

Addition to permit after Inspection – Minimum Fee   

Cancellation of Permit - 25% of Permit Fee/$10.00   

Minimum   

   

Contractor Registration Fee (per year) $1.00 /year $5.00 /year 

 
Yes: All-7  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

E-4 Final Preliminary Plat Approval (Extension) – Beachview Estates Subdivision, 

West Side of Beach, South of Long Lake – Section 18 

 
Resolution #2008-03-103 
Moved by Kerwin   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a two-year extension of Final 
Preliminary Plat Approval for Beachview Estates Subdivision, located on the west side of 
Beach, south of Long Lake in Section 18, including 8 lots, within the R-1A zoning district, being 
5.55 acres in size. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

E-6 Alcohol Sales on Golf Courses – Proposed Amendment to Chapter 30     

 
Resolution 
Moved by Kerwin   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the recommendation of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee that would limit the sale of alcoholic beverages on City owned golf courses 
to beverages that contain less than 21 percent alcohol by volume; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amending 
Section 10 of Chapter 30 of the Code of the City of Troy, Golf Courses, and that incorporates 
the recommendation of the Liquor Advisory Committee, as recommended by City 

Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; 
and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Addendum to 
the Agreement entitled Food Service At Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, by and between, Kosch 
Special Events L.L.C. and the City of Troy, and labeled Version A incorporating the Liquor 

Advisory Committee‟s recommendation, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute the addendum as of the effective date of the amendment to Chapter 30, a copy of 
which shall be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Agenda Item E-6 Alcohol Sales on Golf Courses – 
Proposed Amendment to Chapter 30     
 
Resolution #2008-03-104 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution for agenda item E-6 

Alcohol Sales on Golf Courses-Proposed Amendment to Chapter 30 by INSERTING “and 

SUBJECT TO inserting „without just cause‟ after „course‟ in 4. Other, F. of the Addendum to the 

Agreement” AFTER “recommendation” in the third RESOLVED of the resolution. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

Yes: All-7  
 

Vote on Resolution as Amended 

 
Resolution #2008-03-105 
Moved by Kerwin   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the recommendation of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee that would limit the sale of alcoholic beverages on City owned golf courses 
to beverages that contain less than 21 percent alcohol by volume; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amending 
Section 10 of Chapter 30 of the Code of the City of Troy, Golf Courses, and that incorporates 
the recommendation of the Liquor Advisory Committee, as recommended by City 

Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; 
and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Addendum to 
the Agreement entitled Food Service At Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, by and between, Kosch 
Special Events L.L.C. and the City of Troy, and labeled Version A incorporating the Liquor 

Advisory Committee‟s recommendation and SUBJECT TO inserting „without just cause‟ after 

„course‟ in 4. Other, F. of the Addendum to the Agreement, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the addendum as of the effective date of the amendment to Chapter 30, a 
copy of which shall be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin,  
No: Howrylak 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2008-03-106 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item F-4a, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2008-03-106-F-2  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of March 3, 2008 

be APPROVED as submitted. 
 

F-3 City of Troy Proclamations: 
 
Resolution #2008-03-106-F-3 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamations: 
 
a) Community Development Block Grant Week – March 24-30, 2008 
b) Business Advisory Group, LLC – Celebrating 20 Years 
c) Troy Youth Assistance – Celebrating 50 Years  

  
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Renewals Over $10,000.00 – Michigan Municipal League     
 
Resolution #2008-03-106-F-4b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES payment for annual membership 
dues to the Michigan Municipal League, for the time period of May 1, 2008 through April 30, 
2009, in the amount of $12,252.00. 
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Agreement – Live 

Scan     
 
Resolution #2008-03-106-F-4c 
 
WHEREAS, The electronic capture and transmission of fingerprints is a proven and effective 
method of storing fingerprint impressions and identifying persons;  
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County has purchased the latest technology using grant funds and must 
retain ownership of the equipment; and  
 
WHEREAS, All participating agencies are being asked to pay for maintenance on the 
equipment on an annual basis;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Live Scan 
Agreement with Oakland County for maintenance and preventative services for each cabinet 
style hand scanner system at a cost of $3,313.00 per year through December 31, 2013, and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

F-5 Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road 

Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 

Parcel #73 – Sidwell #88-20-01-110-001 – John and Nancy Lozenkovski 
 
Resolution #2008-03-106-F-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council ACCEPTS the Regrading and Temporary Construction 
Permit in the amount of $500.00 from John and Nancy Lozenkovski, owners of property having 
Sidwell #88-20-01-110-001; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AGREES to pay John and Nancy 
Lozenkovski an amount not to exceed $500.00 for permission to use land for construction; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-6 Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road 

Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 

Parcel #80 – Sidwell #88-20-01-104-001 – John and Nancy Lozenkovski 
 
Resolution #2008-03-106-F-6 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council ACCEPTS the Regrading and Temporary Construction 
Permit in the amount of $2,220.00 from John and Nancy Lozenkovski, owners of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-01-104-001; and 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AGREES to pay John and Nancy Lozenkovski an 
amount not to exceed $2,220.00 for permission to use land for construction; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Troy Racquet Club Rates 
 
Resolution #2008-03-106-F-7 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2008-2009 membership rates for 
Troy Racquet Club as stated in the report from the Parks and Recreation Department dated 

March 10, 2008, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy 

of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 

F-8 Approval of Relocation Claims, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to 

South Boulevard – Project No. 02.04.5 – Parcel #47B Sidwell #88-20-02-228-037 – 

Charles E. Kemen, Eric Deentry and Philip Kemen 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

Resolution #2008-03-106-F-8 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council APPROVES the Relocation Claims in the amounts of 
$2,500.00 and $5,000.00 for relocation benefits for residential tenants being displaced from the 
property required for John R Road Improvements, from Square Lake Road to South Boulevard; 
and 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AGREES to pay relocation benefits in the amount 
of $2,500.00 to Charles E. Kemen, the residential tenant displaced from 6753 John R; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby AGREES to pay relocation benefits in 
the amount of $5,000.00 to Eric Deentry and Philip Kemen, residential tenants also displaced 
from 6753 John R. 
 

F-9 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement – Kirts and Livernois 
 
Resolution #2008-03-106-F-9 
 
WHEREAS, The Livernois Road Project signal improvements were postponed to allow for 
faster completion of the reconstruction project last year; and 
 
WHEREAS, Kirts is a city road and Livernois Road is under the jurisdiction of the Road 
Commission for Oakland County; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council APPROVES the cost agreement with 
the Road Commission for Oakland County and the City for the installation of the modernized 
traffic signals at Kirts and Livernois (City share 1/3, or $33,333.00) and for sharing costs of 
approximately $1,800.00 per year, at 1/3 City and 2/3 Road Commission for Oakland County. 
 

F-10 Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2007 
 
Resolution #2008-03-106-F-10 
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to furnish certain road information to the State of Michigan for the 
purpose of obtaining funds under Act 51, P.A. 1951, as amended; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy hereby accepts the following platted and non-platted streets: 
Andrew, Benjamin, Kimberly, Merrick, Cambria, Eckerman, Quill Creek, Hedgewood, 
Timbercrest, Timbercrest Court and Cottonwood; 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS said streets into the City of Troy 
local street system, and said streets are located within the City of Troy; right of way is under the 
control of the City of Troy; said streets are public streets and are for public street purposes and 
were open to the public prior to December 31, 2007; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DECERTIFIES the following 
street: Lincoln effective on December 31, 2007. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 16 - 

F-11 Rome Love v. City of Troy 
 
Resolution #2008-03-106-F-11 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES and DIRECTS the City Attorney to 
represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Rome Love v. 
City of Troy, and to retain any necessary expert witnesses or pay any necessary costs to 
adequately represent the City.  
 

F-12 Approval of Additional Payment of $100.00 for Loss of Trees – John R Road 

Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard Project No. 02.204.5 – 

Parcel #76 – Sidwell #88-20-01-108-018 – Hana Rrapi 
 
Resolution #2008-03-106-F-12 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an additional payment of $100.00 to 
Hana Rrapi for the loss of trees in the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit area from 
Hana Rrapi, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-01-108-018; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
revised Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register of 

Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-13 Blood Draw Agreements 
 
Resolution #2008-03-106-F-13 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement with William 

Beaumont Hospital, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement with Alliance Mobile 

Health and Oakland Healthcare Alliance, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 

execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 

  
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Aboveground Fuel 

Storage – Sanctuary Lake Golf Course     
 
Resolution #2008-03-107 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 17 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to install one new 
aboveground fuel storage tank at Sanctuary Lake Maintenance Facility to the low bidder, R.W. 
Mercer Company of Jackson, MI, for an estimated total cost of $45,575.00, at prices contained 
in the bid tabulation opened February 11, 2008, and subsequent letter dated February 25, 

2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, bonds and all 
other specified requirements. 
 
Yes: All-7  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Republic/APT, 1889 Larchwood – Request for Industrial Development District (IDD) and 

the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – April 7, 2008     
Noted and Filed 

 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted  
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
Mayor Schilling asked staff for an update on the status of the house located on Creston. 
 
Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning, reported that the house was recently designated as 
a dangerous building. He added that the owners may appeal the designation and that once the 
deadline for the appeal period has passed, a public hearing will be set. Mr. Stimac indicated 
that there is no land area notification requirement and only the parties involved will receive 
notice of the public hearing. He continued by stating that Council will receive notice of the 
public hearing on an upcoming City Council agenda. 
 
Council Member Broomfield asked whether or not public comment cards are available at 
Sanctuary Lake. 
 
Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director, replied that public comment cards are available. 
However, she noted that staff is currently in the process of establishing an e-mail listing of 
golfers so that staff has the opportunity to provide feedback regularly instead of just relying on 
the hardcopy comment cards. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 18 - 

Council Member Broomfield stated that she was approached on two separate occasions from 
residents complaining about the odor emitted from Sanctuary Lake. Council Member 
Broomfield wondered if this issue has been raised by others. 
 
Ms. Anderson responded that the odor Council Member Broomfield is referring to is from 
methane gas and that staff is unable to control the odor because it is a natural phenomenon 
that will eventually dissipate over time as the land settles. She added that the odor is much less 
noticeable now than at the time of construction. 
  
Council Member Kerwin complimented the environmental work Carlson Marketing at 2800 
Livernois is undertaking and added that she is looking forward for their work to be complete on 
the Employee Green Room. Council Member Kerwin explained that Carlson Marketing is 
attempting to reduce their carbon imprint through the Employee Green Room. She continued 
by stating that they hold monthly “Green Reads” where information is shared about improving 
the environment. Council Member Kerwin encourages the City to take advantage of every 
opportunity to go green.  
 
Council Member Beltramini participated in a luncheon in Washington, D.C. last weekend with 
Kenneth Wade, CEO of NeighborWorks America, serving as the keynote speaker. Council 
Member Beltramini explained that NeighborWorks America is a non-profit organization formed 
by Congress whose mission is to build healthy communities and to provide financial support, 
technical assistance and training for community based revitalization efforts through various 
types of partnerships. Council Member Beltramini continued by stating that Mr. Wade‟s 
luncheon topic featured the current foreclosure crisis and indicated that homeowners can 
receive foreclosure information and advice by anonymously contacting the NeighborWorks 
America helpline at 1-888-995-HOPE. She added that homeowners can also view information 
at their website at www.nw.org.  
 
Council Member Eisenbacher would like to see the NeighborWorks America contact 
information added to the City‟s website. 
 
Council Member Howrylak raised concerns about modifying the City‟s policy in regard to 
providing relief to neighborhoods with unkempt abandoned homes.  
 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services, agreed that there is a 
dilemma in providing proper notice to homeowners with property violations. Mr. Murphy 
believes that because City staff has a better understanding of the foreclosure process that they 
can now be more responsive to the lawn maintenance side of this issue. He added that they 
are also more aware of other serious health threats such as swimming pools. Mr. Murphy 
continued by stating that they plan to continue to use the City‟s lawn and brush hog contractors 
as they did last year to attempt to keep on top of this problem.  
 
Council Member Howrylak assured City staff that Council will assist them with this issue if 
needed.  
 
Council Member Kerwin believes a Study Session would be in order for City Council to address 
many of the items mentioned under Council Comments.  

http://www.nw.org/


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 19 - 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Animal Control Appeal Board Minutes/Final – September 5, 2007  
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – October 3, 3007  
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – October 3, 2007 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – January 2, 2008  
e) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – January 2, 2008 
f) Library Advisory Board/Final – January 10, 2008  
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – February 6, 2008  
h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – February 11, 2008 
i) Planning Commission/Draft – February 12, 2008  
j) Planning Commission/Final – February 12, 2008 
k) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – February 19, 2008  
l) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 4, 2008  
m) Animal Control Appeal Board/Draft – March 5, 2008 
n) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – March 5, 2008  
o) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – March 10, 2008 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of February, 2008  
b) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – February 29, 2008  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Walsh College President Stephanie Bergeron 

Regarding Traffic Assistance during Commencement Ceremonies  
b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Westland Fire Chief Michael Reddy Regarding 

Participation and Support during Firefighter Funeral  
Noted and Filed 

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 

J-5  Calendar 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 

Amended Notice of Hearing for the Electric Delivery and Supply Customers of the 

Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-15244 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-7  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 

Amended Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison 

Company – Case No. U-15417 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 17, 2008 

 

- 20 - 

J-8  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Leroy S. Nardi v. 

City of Troy 
Noted and Filed 

 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  
 
Resolution #2008-03-108 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded Broomfield  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (e), Pending Litigation – Morrell v Troy, et al.     
Yes: All-7  
 

The meeting RECESSED at 10:29 PM. 

 
The meeting RECONVENED at 10:40 PM. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:48 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



PROCLAMATION 
NATIONAL CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION AND AWARENESS MONTH 

APRIL 2008 
 

WHEREAS, Children deserve to grow and thrive in an environment that nurtures and keeps them safe; 
unfortunately, abuse and neglect are suffered by children in our communities, regardless of age, race, 
gender or economic situation; and  
 
WHEREAS, One in four girls and one in six boys will be sexually abused before the age of 18; and 
 
WHEREAS, This reported maltreatment is only a portion of the overall problem threatening our children, for 
so many cases go unreported, and today’s technology has brought with it a new and dangerous form of 
child endangerment, the online predator; and 
 
WHEREAS, The devastating consequences of physical and emotional abuse of our children affects the 
community as a whole and finding solutions needs to be attended to by the community as a whole; and 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan has mandatory reporting by professionals working with children of any 
suspected abuse and neglect incidences -- a major step -- but more is needed in the communities; and 
 
WHEREAS, CARE House of Oakland County (home of Child Abuse and Neglect Council of Oakland 
County) works to break the cycle of child abuse and neglect, provides a protective circle of light and hope 
for a better life, and advocates for the safety and protection of children; and 
 
WHEREAS, CARE House of Oakland County partners with community organizations and agencies to 
offer programs and services aimed at preventing child abuse and neglect, knowing that effective programs 
succeed because of the involvement and partnerships created among schools, social service agencies, 
religious and civic organizations, the business community and law enforcement agencies;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby proclaim April as National 
Child Abuse Prevention and Awareness Month in the City Of Troy, Michigan; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council calls upon all citizens, community agencies, 
organizations and businesses to increase their participation in the efforts of CARE House to prevent the 
abuse of our children, thereby strengthening and protecting the communities in which we live. 
 
Signed this 7th day of April 2008. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03a



PROCLAMATION 
CELEBRATING 25 YEARS   

CONGREGATION SHIR TIKVAH 
 
 

WHEREAS, Congregation Shir Tikvah has met the religious needs of Troy residents and beyond since first opening their 
doors on April 22, 1983; and 
 
WHEREAS, The roots of Congregation Shir Tikvah began in 1979 when United Hebrew Schools opened a branch in Troy.  
With a desire to bring the High Holy Days closer to home, 18 families joined together in 1982 at an organizational meeting which 
grew to 48 families who very enthusiastically agreed to form the Troy Jewish Congregation; and 
 
WHEREAS, As the Troy Jewish Congregation, the families led weekly services under the guidance of a religious ritual 
committee which had been formed. These early days as the Troy Jewish Congregation were a hands-on operation which 
instilled a participatory heritage that continues to flourish today; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Jewish Congregation was able to expand with the support and donation of space from other local religious 
institutions including Emerson Unitarian Church, Lutheran Church of the Master and Northminster Presbyterian Church.  In 
1988, the congregation changed its name to Congregation Shir Tikvah, meaning Song of Hope, to emulate its foundation on 
tradition and in 1990 Arnie Sleutelberg became their first full-time rabbi; and  
 
WHEREAS, In 1995, with membership at 240 families, they approved the financial plan leading to a permanent home and the 
groundbreaking took place in October 1996 and the new Shul was dedicated on May 3, 1998; and 
 
WHEREAS, The changes that Congregation Shir Tikvah has seen in the last 25 years are remarkable as they have grown to 
more than 350 families. From a time when families led the services to now, when the congregation is served by two rabbis, 
Rabbi Arnie Sleutelberg and Rabbi Aaron Starr, the spiritual growth is evident as well; and  
 
WHEREAS, Congregation Shir Tikvah has influenced this community in a variety of ways, including the development of the 
Sam and Jean Frankel Family Education Program in 1992; the implementation of various programs, such as Empty Bowls, Light 
One Candle and hosting homeless families from the South Oakland Shelter. Shir Tikvah is also a founding partner of the Troy 
Interfaith Group which represents the wonderful religious diversity in Troy;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby congratulate Congregation Shir Tikvah on 
its 25th Anniversary and recognizes its impact upon not only its membership, but on the entire community;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council joins the citizens of this community in appreciation and celebration of 
Congregation Shir Tikvah’s 25th Anniversary as they enter into their next quarter century by bringing to life a celebration 
stretching back two millennia – the writing of a new Sefer Torah. “May-cha-yeel el cha-yeel, L’Dor V’Dor.”  May we go from 
strength to strength, from generation to generation. 
 
Presented this 7th day of April 2008. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03b



 

 
 
March 11, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Director of Purchasing 

Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
     
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Amend Agreement – 

Avondale Youth Assistance 
 

Background 
 
 This item was previously presented and approved by Troy City Council on November 12, 2007.  

City Council Resolution #2007-11-324, Item F4-a.  Since then it has been discovered the agreed 
upon amount was increased from $2,210.00 to $6,000.00.   

 

Financial Considerations 

 
 Funds for this program are budgeted in the Police Administration Contractual Services account 

#305.7802.104 
 

Options 
 
 City management is requesting approval to amend the agreement between the City and Avondale 

Youth Assistance to expend an additional $3,790.00 to provide funding for the program at a total 
annual cost of $6,000.00 for the 2007/2008 fiscal year.  

 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:  ____________________________            
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/AwardStandardPurchasing Resolution 5 Avondale –corrected02.08.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a



 1

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND 
AVONDALE YOUTH ASSISTANCE 

 
 
 

 This is an Amendment to Agreement Between the City of Troy and 
Avondale Youth Assistance by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver 
Road, Troy, Michigan  48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and the 
Avondale Youth Assistance, P.O. Box 214257, Auburn Hills, Michigan  48321, a 
Michigan non-profit organization, (hereinafter referred to as “AYA”).  
 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, on November 12, 2007, the CITY approved an Agreement 
with Avondale Youth Assistance which would provide problem-solving services 
for Troy youth and parents through individual, group, and family counseling in 
exchange for a monetary contribution from the City of Troy, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, that Agreement provided for funding for services in the 
amount of $2,210.00 for the period of August 1, 2007 to July 31, 2008; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the actual amount negotiated and included in the budget for 
services from Avondale Youth Assistance for August 1, 2007 to July 31, 2008 
was $6,000.00; 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of meeting the needs of the youth of 
the CITY, and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants hereinafter 
contained, the parties agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 
 
 

A. The paragraph entitled “TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES” on page 3 of the 
previously approved Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
 

“TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

The CITY hereby agrees to pay to AYA $6,000.00 which is the total 
amount for contract services rendered between August 1, 2007 and July 31, 
2008. AYA acknowledges that $2,210.00 has already been paid by the CITY. 
The remaining $3,790.00 shall be paid by the CITY to AYA on or before  

      April 1, 2008. 
 

Obligations incurred by AYA prior to or after the period covered by this 
Agreement shall be excluded.” 

 



 2

B. All other terms and conditions of the November 12, 2007 Agreement, 
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein, shall remain in full force 
and effect. 

 
 The Mayor and City Clerk and AYA Chairperson are authorized to execute 
this Amendment to the Agreement between the City of Troy and AYA. 
 
 
WITNESSES:     CITY OF TROY 
 
 
____________________________ ____________________________ 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 

____________________________         ______________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:  AVONDALE YOUTH ASSISTANCE 
 
____________________________ _____________________________ 
      John Dalton, AYA Chairperson 
 
____________________________  
 
 
 













 

 
March 14, 2008 

 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:                Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – 

Asphalt Patching Material 
Background 
 On March 6, 2008, bid proposals were received and opened to furnish one-year requirements of Asphalt 

Patching Material. 
 43 vendors were notified of the bid opportunity via the MITN system with six (6) bid responses received, as 

well as one statement of no bid. 
 Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. bid an alternate item, CP6 that does not meet the current Michigan 

Department of State Highways Standard Specifications as listed in the bid proposal. Ajax Materials 
Corporation bid an alternate item, SPM that does not meet the current Michigan Department of State 
Highways Standard Specifications as listed in the bid proposal. 

 Proposals submitted for Item 2, QPR/UPM – Picked up, are recommended for rejection because the cost 
savings gained by awarding the apparent low bidder, Saginaw Asphalt Paving Co., would be offset by 
transportation and fuel costs traveling to their plant in Saginaw. 

 In times of emergencies, material will be picked up on an as needed basis utilizing the informal three-quote 
process. 

 
Financial Consideration 
 Funds are available through the Public Works operating budgets for Streets and Water Divisions. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 08-13, to furnish one-year requirements of Asphalt Patching Material was competitively bid and 

opened with four vendors responding. 
 The award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of proper insurance certificates, and all specified 

requirements. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supply asphalt patching 

material to the City of Troy. (Goal II). 
 QPR/UPM material is used in the general patching and maintenance of major and local roads and drains. 

(Goal I & V)  
 
Options 
 City management recommends awarding a contract for Item 1, QPR/UPM – Delivered to the lowest bidder 

meeting specifications, Saginaw Asphalt Paving Co. of Saginaw, MI, at price contained in the bid 
tabulation. In addition, staff recommends rejecting Item 2, QPR/UPM - Picked up by City employees. 

 
S:/Murphy’s Review//Agenda04.07.08 SR2 Asphalt Patching Material 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04b



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT  08-13
Opening Date -- 3/06/08 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 3/14/08 (sl) ASPHALT PATCHING MATERIAL (COLD)

 
VENDOR NAME: ** Saginaw Asphalt Ajax Materials Barrett Paving

 Paving Company Corporation Materials, Inc.

ITEM EST QTY
# (TONS) DESCRIPTION Price/Ton Price/Ton Price/Ton

1 400 QPR/UPM or Approved Alternate 75.04$                78.85$                 80.00$                 
Standard Train Load 50 50 50

2. 50 QPR/UPM or Approved Alternate 66.00$                 76.00$                 80.00$                 
Picked up as needed

ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR ITEM BEING AWARDED: 30,016.00$         31,540.00$          32,000.00$         

HOURS OF OPERATION: 8 AM to 5 PM 7:30 AM-3:30 PM 7 AM to 3 PM
Notice of Delivery: # of Hours 48 24 24
For Saturdays: N/A call for availability Call

PROXIMITY: Location-- I-75 & M-13 - Saginaw Ajax plant - Crooks Rd Mt. Clemen's Plant
Miles-- 87 6.75 Blank

FOR
ITEM 1 INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
ONLY Cannot Meet

TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 Days Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: Blank Per UPM Specs Blank

DELIVERY:  (Item 1) 2 Days Blank 24 Hour Notice

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:              Y or N Yes Yes Yes

DMS:
  Ajax Materials Corporation - Alternate Bid - SPM - product not as specified ($30,562.50)
  Barrett Paving Materials Inc - Alternate Bid CP6 - product not as specified ($29,250.00)

NO BID:
Seal Master Michigan ** DENOTES LOWEST BIDDER MEETING SPECIFICATIONS

ATTEST:
Diane Fisher
Tom Rosewarne Susan Leirstein CPPB
Deana Theobald Purchasing Director
Linda Bockstanz

G:\ Asphalt Paving Materials ITB-COT 08-13

RECOMMEND REJECTION - ITEM #2



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT  08-13
Opening Date -- 3/06/08 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 3/14/08 (sl) ASPHALT PATCHING MATERIAL (COLD)

 
VENDOR NAME: Ultimate Epoxy

 

ITEM EST QTY
# (TONS) DESCRIPTION Price/Ton

W/TERMS $94.84
1 400 QPR/UPM or Approved Alternate 96.77$                   

Standard Train Load 50

2. 50 QPR/UPM or Approved Alternate N/A
Picked up as needed

ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR ITEM BEING AWARDED: 38,708.00$           

HOURS OF OPERATION: 8 AM to 5 PM  M-F
Notice of Delivery: # of Hours 48
For Saturdays: Blank

PROXIMITY: Location-- N/A
Miles-- Blank

FOR
ITEM 1 INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
ONLY Cannot Meet

TERMS: 2% 10/30 Days Net

WARRANTY: Blank

DELIVERY:  (Item 1) Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Lump sum bid all
    material delivered
    50 T minium

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:              Y or N Yes

G:\ Asphalt Paving Materials ITB-COT 08-13

RECOMMEND REJECTION - ITEM #2



 

 
March 17, 2008 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:               Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option –  

Transit Mixed Concrete 
Background 
 
 On April 16, 2007, Troy City Council approved contracts to provide one-year requirements of transit mixed 

concrete with an option to renew for one additional year to the low bidders:  Superior Materials LLC, as 
primary supplier and Van Horn Concrete, as secondary supplier. CC Res #2007-04-122-E4c 

 The contracts contain an option to renew for one additional year based upon mutual consent.  Superior 
Materials has agreed to renew the current contract under the same prices, terms, and conditions; Van Horn 
Concrete of Waterford has declined. 

 Purchasing has analyzed market trends and found the City would not benefit from soliciting new bids for 
the items specified as operating and material costs continue to rise.  

 If a secondary source of supply is needed during the contract term, the department will utilize the informal 
three-quote process. 

   
Financial Consideration 
 
 Funds are available in the Operating Budgets of the Streets Division for major and local drains and road 

surface maintenance; and the Water Division for mains, service and tap-in maintenance. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 ITB-COT 07-09, one year requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with an option to renew for one 

additional year was competitively bid, in accordance with City Charter and Code. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 By renewing existing contracts, the City minimizes cost increases, and benefits from efficient strategic 

planning. (Goal II) 
 
Options 
 
 City management recommends exercising the option to renew for one additional year with Superior 

Materials LLC of Farmington Hills, MI under the same prices, terms and conditions expiring April 30, 2009.   
 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 04.07.08 SR3 – Transit Mix Concrete Letter.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04c







CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  April 16, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Transit Mixed 
Concrete         

 
Resolution #2007-04-122-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide one-year 
requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with an option to renew for one additional year to the 
low bidders, Superior Materials L.L.C. formerly Clawson Concrete Company of Farmington 
Hills, MI, as the primary supplier and Van Horn Concrete of Waterford, MI as the secondary 
supplier, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 14, 2007, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting with contracts expiring April 30, 
2008; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
E-5 Authorization Requesting Reimbursement – Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund

  
Resolution #2007-04-122-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council for the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, hereby 
AUTHORIZES the City of Troy Parks and Recreation Department, to seek reimbursement in 
the amount of $30,057.91 from the Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund for expenditures 
incurred while instituting proactive public health measures to reduce the population of infected 
mosquitoes in the environment.  
 
E-6 Private Agreement for Stone Haven Park Site Condominiums – Project No. 

06.936.3  
 
Resolution #2007-04-122-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Mondrian 
Properties Stone Haven Development LLC, for the installation of water main, sanitary sewer, 
storm sewer, paving, sidewalks, and soil erosion on the site and in the adjacent right of way, 
and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Application for Transfer of Class C License for Wellington Corp.   
 
(a) New License 
 
Resolution #2007-04-122-E-7 (a) 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Wellington Corp. to transfer ownership of 2006 Class C 
licensed business from Ichibang Corporation, Inc., located at 1129 E. Long Lake, Troy, MI 
48098, Oakland County be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL; and  



 

 
April 10, 2007 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:               Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidders – Transit Mixed 

Concrete 
Background 
 
 On March 14, 2007, bid proposals were received for one-year requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with 

an option to renew for one additional year. 
 A secondary suppler is awarded in the event that the primary supplier is unable to provide material, or meet 

delivery needs. 
 21 vendors were notified of the bid opportunity via the MITN system and one- (1) vendor walked-in.  Six 

bidders responded.  
 
Financial Consideration 
 
 Funds are available in the Operating Budgets of the Streets Division for major and local drains, road and 

sidewalk surface maintenance; and the Water Division for mains, service and tap-in maintenance. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 ITB-COT 07-09, to furnish one-year requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete was competitively bid and 

opened with six bidders responding. 
 Awards are contingent upon contractor’s submission of proper insurance certificates and all specified 

requirements. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying transit mixed 

concrete material to the City of Troy.  (Goal II) 
 Proper maintenance of our roadways and other public infrastructure enhances the livability and safety of 

the community.  (Goal l)  
 
Options 
 
 City management recommends awarding the contract to low bidder, Superior Materials L.L.C. of 

Farmington Hills, MI, formerly Clawson Concrete Co. as the primary supplier at unit prices listed in the bid 
tabulation.  In addition, in the event that the primary supplier is unable to supply material as specified, Van 
Horn Concrete of Waterford, MI shall be named as the secondary supplier. 

 
 
EF\ef S:Murphy’s Review/Agenda 04.16.07 SR1 Transit Mixed Concrete  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-09
Opening Date -- 3/14/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/10/07 TRANSIT MIXED CONCRETE

Primary
Superior Materials Secondary Old Bid Form

VENDOR NAME: LLC formerly Van Horn Piedmont Utica Transit
Clawson Concrete Concrete, Inc. Mix

Concrete Co
EST UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE/YD PRICE/YD PRICE/YD PRICE/YD
PROPOSAL A: WEEKDAY DELIVERY

1. 100 YDS 6 SACK MIX 72.50$               69.50$             75.00$             77.00$              

2. 800 YDS 7 SACK MIX (High Early) 77.50$               76.50$             79.00$             84.00$              

3. 200 YDS 12 HR 300 PSI MIX 80.50$               -$                 78.00$             86.00$              
Flexural Strength/ 7 sack

4. SPLIT LOAD CHARGES
     a. 20 TIMES 2 LOCATIONS -$                  100.00$           40.00$             75.00$              
     b. 5 TIMES 3 LOCATIONS -$                  150.00$           40.00$             75.00$              

Range ($60 - $100)
5. 30 TIMES BELOW MINIMUM LOAD CHARGE 80.00$               60.00$             70.00$             60.00$              

6. 40 YDS COLD WEATHER PROTECTION 5.00$                4.00$               6.00$               5.00$                

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS- 87,950.00$        72,860.00$      89,640.00$      95,975.00$      

PROPOSAL B: SATURDAY DELIVERY

1. 25 YDS 6 SACK MIX 77.50$               75.50$             81.00$             82.00$              

2. 100 YDS 7 SACK MIX (High Early) 82.50$               81.50$             85.00$             89.00$              

3. 100 YDS 12 HR 300 PSI MIX 85.50$               -$                 84.00$             91.00$              
Flexural Strength/ 7 sack

4. SPLIT LOAD CHARGES
      a. 5 TIMES 2 LOCATIONS -$                  100.00$           40.00$             85.00$              
      b. 2 TIMES 3 LOCATIONS -$                  150.00$           40.00$             85.00$              

Range ($60 - $100)
5. 10 TIMES BELOW MINIMUM LOAD CHARGE 80.00$               60.00$             70.00$             -$                  

6. 10 YDS COLD WEATHER PROTECTION 5.00$                4.00$               6.00$               5.00$                

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS - 19,587.50$        11,477.50$      19,965.00$      20,695.00$      

UNLOADING TIME PER CUBIC YARD:  6 minutes 6 minutes 7 minutes 6 minutes

MINIMUM LOAD: 2 yards 6 yards 6 yards 6 c.yards
  Sat. 6 to Noon

HOURS OF OPERATION:  7 to 5 7:00 to 5:00 M-F     6 to 5 7 AM to 5 PM

24 HRS PHONE NO.  810-533-0756 248-640-7640 248-446-1503 248-249-5026



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-09
Opening Date -- 3/14/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 4
Date Prepared  -- 4/10/07 TRANSIT MIXED CONCRETE

Primary
Superior Materials Secondary Old Bid Form

VENDOR NAME: LLC formerly Van Horn Piedmont Utica Transit
Clawson Concrete Concrete, Inc. Mix

Concrete Co

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed  Y or N No Yes Yes Missing Page

TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Net 30 30 Day Net

WARRANTY: 1 year Blank Blank Blank

DELIVERY TIME: 7 to 5 7 AM to 5 PM As specified Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

PROPOSAL - One (1) Year Requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with an Option to
Renew for One (1) Additional Year

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDERS
Debra Painter
Emily Frontera
Thomas Rosewarne ______________________________
Linda Bockstanz Susan Leirstein CPPB

Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 07-09 TransitMixConcrete 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-09
Opening Date -- 3/14/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/10/07 TRANSIT MIXED CONCRETE

VENDOR NAME: Nagy Ready Sterling Concrete
Mix, Inc. Products, Inc.

EST UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE/YD PRICE/YD
PROPOSAL A: WEEKDAY DELIVERY

1. 100 YDS 6 SACK MIX 78.95$                78.00$                 

2. 800 YDS 7 SACK MIX (High Early) 83.95$                90.00$                 

3. 200 YDS 12 HR 300 PSI MIX 83.95$                84.00$                 
Flexural Strength/ 7 sack

4. SPLIT LOAD CHARGES
     a. 20 TIMES 2 LOCATIONS 105.00$              75.00$                 
     b. 5 TIMES 3 LOCATIONS 155.00$              75.00$                 

Range ($60 -$100)
5. 30 TIMES BELOW MINIMUM LOAD CHARGE 65.00$                80.00$                 

6. 40 YDS COLD WEATHER PROTECTION 6.00$                  6.00$                   

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS- 96,910.00$        101,115.00$       

PROPOSAL B: SATURDAY DELIVERY

1. 25 YDS 6 SACK MIX 84.95$                83.00$                 

2. 100 YDS 7 SACK MIX (High Early) 89.95$                95.00$                 

3. 100 YDS 12 HR 300 PSI MIX 89.95$                89.00$                 
Flexural Strength/ 7 sack

4. SPLIT LOAD CHARGES
      a. 5 TIMES 2 LOCATIONS 105.00$              75.00$                 
      b. 2 TIMES 3 LOCATIONS 155.00$              75.00$                 

Range ($60 - $100)
5. 10 TIMES BELOW MINIMUM LOAD CHARGE 65.00$                80.00$                 

6. 10 YDS COLD WEATHER PROTECTION 6.00$                  6.00$                   

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS - 21,658.75$        21,860.00$         

UNLOADING TIME PER CUBIC YARD:  6 minutes 6 minutes

MINIMUM LOAD: 7 c. yards 1 c. yard
Sat  7 to Noon

HOURS OF OPERATION:  M-F    7 to 5:30 7:00 AM to 5:00 PM

24 HRS PHONE NO.  248-891-2231 Blank



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-09
Opening Date -- 3/14/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 4 of 4
Date Prepared  -- 4/10/07 TRANSIT MIXED CONCRETE

VENDOR NAME: Nagy Ready Sterling Concrete
Mix, Inc. Products, Inc.

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed  Y or N Yes Yes

TERMS: Blank Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: Blank Blank

DELIVERY TIME: Blank As Required

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Attached
To Bid

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 07-09 TransitMixConcrete 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 March 18, 2008 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Charles T. Craft, Police Chief   
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder –  

Police Carports 
 

Background 

 Bids were received and publicly read on March 5, 2008, for supplying labor, materials, and 
equipment to install carports covering seventy-three (73) parking spaces in the Police/Fire 
parking area on the west side of the Police Department.   

 Carports may extend the useful life of any covered vehicle for years by protecting them from 
climatic weather changes and ultraviolet rays.  In addition, the carports will help prevent 
overheating of the electronic equipment now installed in most Police / Fire vehicles. 

 84 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with three (3) bidders responding.  After the 
bids opened, CMA Construction Services withdrew from the bid process and their bid deposit 
of $6,700.00 was returned. 

 

Financial Considerations 

 Funds for the carport structures are available in the Drug Enforcement Account 
#401305.7978.065.   

 Due to budgetary limitations, the option to install a rainwater collection system is being 
rejected. 

  
Legal Considerations 

 The carport structures were competitively bid as required by City Charter and Code.  

 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying all 
labor, material, and equipment to install the carports for the City of Troy. 

 The award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of proper insurance, bonds, and any 
other specified requirements. 

 

Policy Considerations 

 Officers will improve response time by not having to clean snow/ice from the vehicles prior to 
use. (Goal I) 

 The carport structures will provide protection from the elements to the fleet of emergency 
vehicles parked in the west lot. (Goal II)  

 It will also protect the computer equipment in all the vehicles from the heat of the sun.   
(Goal) IV 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04d



Page 2 of 2 
 

March 18, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Award To Low Bidder – Police Carports 
 

 

Options 

 City management and the Police department recommend awarding a contract to install carport 
structures at the City of Troy Police/Fire parking area to the lowest bidder, Ross & Barr Inc. of 
Warren, MI, for an estimated total cost of $66,430.00, as set forth in the bid tabulation opened 
on March 5, 2008.  In addition, staff recommends rejecting the option to install a rainwater 
collection system, due to budgetary limitations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Carports-Police 03-08.doc 



Opening Date -- 3/5/08 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-11
Date Prepared -- 3/11/08 (sl) BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 1

POLICE CARPORTS

VENDOR NAME: ** Ross & Barr Lang Construction

CHECK #: 057240 199145302-2
CHECK AMOUNT: 6,700.00$               6,700.00$               

PROPOSAL:   TO FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO INSTALL CARPORTS FOR THE CITY OF 
  TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT LOCATED AT 500 WEST BIG BEAVER
BASE BID:   To furnish all labor, materials, and equipment to install Carports covering (73) Seventy-three parking spaces

In Accordance with Specifications

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 66,430.00$             68,888.00$             

STYLE/MODEL: Back to Back Flat Topped
MANUFACTURED BY: Classic Carport Structures

OPTION: Rainwater Collection System
Includes Gutters & Downspouts 5,475.00$               2,500.00$               

TOTAL  (Base bid & Option) 71,905.00$              72,388.00$             =>Total Includes Insurance

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes

COMPLETION DATE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

QUESTIONNARIE: Completed XX XX
Not Completed

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hours of Operation  8:00 AM to 4:30 PM M-F   8 AM to 5 PM
24 Hr Phone No. 810-459-5371 810-610-8868

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

+$1,000

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: Included Y/N Yes Yes

TERMS: Net 30 Net 30

WARRANTY: 1 year Per Specs

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Does not carry workmens

Comp can obtain on Corp. 
Officers at mentioned Price

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y/N Yes Yes

TWO FORMS: Non-Collusion Affidavit & Legal Status No Yes

WITHDRAWN:
CMA Construction Services ($134,900.00) ** DENOTES LOW BIDDER

ATTEST: _______________________________
Diane Fisher Susan Leirstein CPPB
Robert Redmond Purchasing Director
Linda Bockstanz
G:ITB-COT 08-11 Carports - Police (Re-bid)

RECOMMEND REJECTION

JUNE 1, 2008



 

 
March 13, 2008 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:                 Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: – Award To Lowest Acceptable Bidders –  

Liquid Calcium Chloride 
 
Background 
 On March 5, 2008, bid proposals were received for one-year requirements of Liquid Calcium Chloride with 

an option to renew for one additional year. 
 Liquid Calcium Chloride is required for dust and ice control, and ordered on an as needed basis. 
 Items bid were separated into three (3) categories, Options A – C. Option A to deliver and apply material 

for dust control; Option B to deliver to a storage tank for ice control; and Option C to deliver to a storage 
tank for dust control.  The City reserves the right to award the bid to the lowest responsible bidders for 
each option. 

 Even though Liquid Calcium Chloride Sales was low bidder for Option A, their bid was not in the City’s best 
interest due to their exception of an all or none award and firm pricing only until 10/31/08. 

 Low bidders are as follows: South Huron Industrial Inc of Flat Rock, MI, Options A and C; and Suburban Oil 
Company of Taylor, MI for Option B. 

 84 vendors were notified via the MITN system with three (3) bid responses received, as well as one 
statement of no bid.  

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Streets and Drains Division for snow and ice control 

and surface maintenance – gravel roads.   
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 08-09, one-year requirements of Liquid Calcium Chloride with an option to renew for one 

additional year was competitively bid and opened on March 5, 2008, in accordance with City Charter and 
Code. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying services for the 

City of Troy. (Goal I) 
 
Options 
• City management recommends awarding contracts on a option by option basis to the two lowest 

acceptable bidders: South Huron Industrial Inc of Flat Rock, MI, Options A and C; and Suburban Oil 
Company of Taylor, MI, for Option B, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation dated March 5, 2008.  

 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 LiquidCalciumChloride 03.08.doc 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04e



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-09
Opening Date -- 3/5/08 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared --3/13/08  (sl) LIQUID CALCIUM CHLORIDE

VENDOR NAME: ** Suburban Oil South Huron Liquid Calcium
Company Industrial Inc. Chloride Sales

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION GALLON GALLON GALLON

OPTION A: DMS
45,000 Bidder to deliver and apply up to 14,000 Blank 0.575$                      0.529$                          
GALS   gallons in one day, as requested by the Alternate

  City for dust control. Minimum 6,000 gal 5,500 Gals
0.39$                           

OPTION B:
15,000 Bidder will deliver to storage tank located at 0.32$                   0.415$                      0.46$                           
GALS   4693 Rochester Rd., Troy, shipments of

  no less than 3,000 gallons, as requested Alternate
  by the City for ice control. 5,500 Gals

0.48$                           
OPTION C:

4,000 Bidder will deliver to storage tank located at 0.32$                   0.27$                        0.65$                           
GALS   4693 Rochester Rd., Troy, shipments of

  no less than 2,000 gallons, as requested
  by the City for dust control

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST: N/A 33,180.000$             33,305.00$                   
ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 4,800.00$             26,955.00$              N/A

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hours 8 AM to 5 PM 7 AM to 6 PM 6 AM to 11 PM

24Hr Phone Number 734-941-5812 734-782-9840 989-245-2518

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

DELIVERY:
See Bid

TERMS: 30 Days Blank Net 30, 1% Disc, 10 Days
Alternate Quote for larger

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank loads included in bid proposal
Attached to Bid
Prices Firm until 10/31/08
All or None Award

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:    Y or N Yes Yes Yes

NO BID:
 Cryotech Deicing Technology PROPOSAL - One year requirements of Liquid Calcium Chloride with an

option to renew for one additional year
ATTEST:
Diane Fisher **DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDERS
Deanna Theobald
Tom Rosewarne _____________________________
Linda Bockstanz Susan Leirstein CPPB

Purchasing Director
G:\ ITB-COT 08-09 Liquid Calcium Chloride

As Specified



 

 
March 20, 2008 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:                 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: – Award To Low Bidders – Aggregates 
Background 
 On March 10, 2008, bid proposals were received for one-year requirements of Aggregate Materials with an 

option to renew for one additional year. 
 45 vendors were notified of the bid opportunity via the MITN system with seven (7) responses received, as 

well as two (2) late bids, which were noted and filed but not considered. 
 Each item on the proposal was considered as a separate bid; and recommendations made to the lowest 

responsible bidders for each item. 
 Informal quotes will be taken for Item 7, crushed concrete 3”- 6”, as no formal bids were received.  

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the 2008 Operating Budgets for the Streets and Water departments. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 08-07, Aggregate Materials were competitively bid as required by City Charter and Code. 
 The awards are contingent upon contractors’ submission of proper insurance certificates, and all other 

specified requirements. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 Aggregates are used for general maintenance of major and local roads. (Goal I & V) 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying aggregate 

materials for the City of Troy. (Goal II) 
 
Options 
• City management recommends awarding contracts on an item by item basis to the six low bidders.  

Informal quotes will be taken for Item 7, crushed concrete 3”- 6”, as no formal bids were received. 
 
Recommended Vendors Item / Description Price/Ton 
  B&W Landscape – Clinton Twp 6).    Crushed Concrete 1”-3” $10.44
  Richmond Transport - Lenox 5).    Fill Sand 

11)   Limestone 1”-3” 
12)   Limestone 3”-6” 

$5.85
$12.35
$17.10

  Novak Construction Inc - Almont 2).    22A Gravel 
4).    60/40 Gravel 
New-    Limestone 4”-8” 

$8.25
$12.00
$15.00

  Edw C Levy Company - Detroit 1).    6A Slag $12.69
  Lukes Trucking / Excavating - Holly 3).    Pea Gravel 

9).    2NS Sand 
10)   Mason Sand 

$11.55
$8.45
$9.89

  Ellsworth Industries Inc - Northville 8).    Chloride Sand $17.50
 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 04.07.08 – SR1 – Aggregates Letter.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04f



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-07
Opening Date -- 3/10/08 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 3/19/08 (sl) AGGREGATES

VENDOR NAME: B & W Landscape Richmond Novak Edw. C. Levy
and Patio Supply Transport Construction Company

Inc. Inc.

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY/TONS DESCRIPTION TON TON TON TON

1. 1,500 6A SLAG 12.95$                 13.85$              15.00$              12.69$                 
2. 3,500 22A GRAVEL 11.94$                 10.00$              8.25$                9.25$                   
3. 300 PEA GRAVEL 13.94$                 13.35$              12.00$              12.64$                 
4. 200 60/40 GRAVEL 14.94$                 14.35$              12.00$              13.54$                 
5. 2,000 FILL SAND Class II GR 7.74$                   5.85$                7.00$                6.74$                   
6. 200 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 1" - 3" 10.44$                 10.90$              12.50$              N/B
7. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 3" - 6" -$                     -$                  -$                  N/B
8. 250 CHLORIDE SAND -$                     23.90$              18.50$              N/B
9. 250 2NS SAND 10.42$                 9.80$                8.50$                9.09$                   
10. 250 MASON SAND Mortar Sd 11.24$                 10.50$              11.00$              11.07$                 
11. 200 LIMESTONE, 1" - 3" 13.36$                 12.35$              13.00$              15.64$                 
12. 100 LIMESTONE, 3" - 6" 4" - 8" 19.94$                 17.10$              15.00$              N/B

0 Blank Blank 0

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 2 088 00$ 15 880 00$ 32 775 00$ 19 035 00$

DISCOUNT IF AWARDED ALL ITEMS

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 2,088.00$           15,880.00$      32,775.00$       19,035.00$         

MINIMUM ORDER REQUIREMENTS 50 Tons 50 Tons 50 Tons 50 Tons
Within Hours 24 Hrs 24 Hrs 48 Hrs 24 Hrs

INSURANCE CAN MEET XX XX XX XX
CANNOT MEET

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation M- F  8AM to 5PM 8:30 AM to 5 PM 9 AM to 5 PM M- F  7AM to 5PM
24 Hr. Phone No. 586-615-2410 None 810-441-5811 313-429-5389

TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Days Net 30 Net 30
See Product Sheet

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank 6A Natural Stone Alternates:
can be delivered at Mortar Sand for Mason Sand &

$13 per ton Class II GR for Fill Sand

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

ATTEST: PROPOSAL:  One(1) Year requirements of Aggregates with an Option to renew for One (1)
Cheryl Stewart Additional Year
Deanna Theobald
Tom Rosewarne BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDERS
Linda Bockstanz

_______________________________
Susan Leirstein CPPB
Purchasing Director

G \ITB COT 08 07 AggregatesG:\ITB-COT 08-07 Aggregates



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-07
Opening Date -- 3/10/08 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 3/19/08 (sl) AGGREGATES

VENDOR NAME: Lukes Trucking & Lukes Trucking & Ellsworth Osburn
Excavating LLC Excavating LLC Industries, Inc. Industries, Inc.

W/TERMS
EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/

ITEM QTY/TONS DESCRIPTION TON TON TON TON

1. 1,500 6A SLAG N/B -$                 13.55$                
2. 3,500 22A GRAVEL 9.75$                   9.56$                  -$                 10.50$                
3. 300 PEA GRAVEL 11.55$                 11.32$                -$                 13.00$                
4. 200 60/40 GRAVEL 14.19$                 13.91$                -$                 14.00$                
5. 2,000 FILL SAND 6.49$                   6.36$                  -$                 6.50$                  
6. 200 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 1" - 3" N/B -$                 10.80$                
7. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 3" - 6" N/B -$                 -$                    
8. 250 CHLORIDE SAND N/B 17.50$             30.00$                
9. 250 2NS SAND 8.45$                   8.28$                  -$                 9.50$                  
10. 250 MASON SAND 9.89$                   9.69$                  -$                 10.20$                
11. 200 LIMESTONE, 1" - 3" N/B -$                 13.30$                
12. 100 LIMESTONE, 3" - 6" N/B -$                 18.05$                

0 0 0

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 8,050.00$           N/A 4,375.00$        N/A

MINIMUM ORDER REQUIREMENTS 50 Tons 50 Tons 50 Tons
Within Hours 24 Hrs 24 Hrs 48 Hrs

INSURANCE CAN MEET XX XX XX
CANNOT MEET

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 7 AM to 7 PM 6 AM to 6 PM 5 AM to 5 PM
24 Hr. Phone No. 248-240-0938 313-218-4790 313-363-0077

2% 10 days
TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Net 30 Days

EXCEPTIONS: Blank None Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 08-07 Aggregates

DISCOUNT IF AWARDED ALL ITEMS



 

 
  March 18, 2008 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidder – Parking Lot Maintenance  
 
Background 

• On February 26, 2008, bids were received to complete the City of Troy Parking Lot 
Maintenance Program for the following locations:   Aquatic Center, Troy Library, Police East, 
West and South Parking Lot, 52-4 District Court, City Hall East and West Entrance, Troy 
Museum, Nature Center, Fire Station # 4, Boulan Park 2nd Parking Lot, and the Engineering 
Field office. 

•  (174) vendors were notified of the bid opportunity via the MITN system and one (1) potential 
vendor walked-in to pick-up the bid documents.  Six (6) bid responses were received of which 
S & J Asphalt Paving Co. withdrew their bid due to a unit price error.  

• Midwest Pavement Contracting Inc. of Milford, MI was the low total bidder.   The project is 
being awarded on a low total basis due to bonding and insurance requirements. 

 
Financial Considerations  

• Funds are available in the 2007/08 Public Works Administration Municipal Parking Lots Capital 
Account # 401464.7974.165. 

 
Legal Considerations 

• ITB-COT 08-05 for Parking Lot Maintenance was competitively bid as required by City Charter 
and Code.  

• The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contracts and 
bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  

 
Policy Considerations  

• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the Parking Lot 
Maintenance Program for the City of Troy. (Goal II). 

• Moving this work forward will improve public safety and reduce liability for the City. (Goal I) 
 
Options 

• City management and the Public Works Department recommend awarding a contract for 
Parking Lot Maintenance services to the low total bidder, Midwest Pavement Contracting Inc. 
of Milford, MI, for an estimated total cost of $52,283.08, at unit prices contained in the bid 
tabulation, not to exceed budgetary limitations.  

 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 04.07.08 – SR1 – Parking Lot Maintenance 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04g



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-05
Opening Date -- 2/26/08 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 6
Date Prepared --  3/4/08       (SL) PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME: **

 
Ck # 742880903 891221448-6 068231176
Ck Amt $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

TASK (1)  AQUATIC CENTER PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT UNIT 
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 9,350 LFT 0.55 5,142.50$         0.55 5,142.50$       0.65 6,077.50$         

2 Double Seal Coat 11,390 SY 0.36 4,100.40$         0.485 5,524.15$       0.45 5,125.50$         
3 Striping (Yellow) 5,007 LFT 0.10 500.70$            0.12 600.84$          0.10 500.70$            
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 8 EA 5.00 40.00$              12.00 96.00$            10.00 80.00$              
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 560 LFT 0.12 67.20$              0.12 67.20$            0.15 84.00$              

Estimated Total Cost – Task (1)  $        9,850.80  $    11,430.69  $      11,867.70 

TASK (2) TROY LIBRARY PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 3,350 LFT 0.55  $        1,842.50 0.55  $      1,842.50 0.65  $        2,177.50 
2 Double Seal Coat 10,411 SY 0.36  $        3,747.96 0.485  $      5,049.34 0.45  $        4,684.95 
3 Striping (Yellow) 4,628 LFT 0.10  $           462.80 0.12  $         555.36 0.10  $           462.80 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 7 EA 5.00  $             35.00 12.00  $           84.00 10.00  $             70.00 
5 Stop Bars 12" Wide (White) 12 LFT 1.50  $             18.00 0.50  $             6.00 2.00  $             24.00 
6 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 350 LFT 0.12  $             42.00 0.12  $           42.00 0.15  $             52.50 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (2)  $        6,148.26  $      7,579.20  $        7,471.75 

TASK (3) TROY POLICE EAST PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 5,100 LFT 0.55  $        2,805.00 0.55  $      2,805.00 0.65  $        3,315.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 5,683 SY 0.36  $        2,045.88 0.485  $      2,756.26 0.45  $        2,557.35 
3 Striping (Yellow) 1,995 LFT 0.10  $           199.50 0.12  $         239.40 0.15  $           299.25 
4 Stop Bars 12" Wide (White) 12 LFT 1.50  $             18.00 0.50  $             6.00 2.00  $             24.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (3)  $        5,068.38  $      5,806.66  $        6,195.60 

TASK (4) TROY POLICE WEST PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 3,700 LFT 0.55  $        2,035.00 0.55  $      2,035.00 0.65  $        2,405.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 5273 SY 0.36  $        1,898.28 0.485  $      2,557.41 0.45  $        2,372.85 
3 Striping (Yellow) 2047 LFT 0.10  $           204.70 0.12  $         245.64 0.15  $           307.05 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 6 EA 5.00  $             30.00 12.00  $           72.00 10.00  $             60.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 400 LFT 0.12  $             48.00 0.12  $           48.00 0.20  $             80.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (4)  $        4,215.98  $      4,958.05  $        5,224.90 

TASK (5) TROY POLICE SOUTH PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 1,900 LFT 0.55  $        1,045.00 0.55  $      1,045.00 0.65  $        1,235.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 3,132 SY 0.36  $        1,127.52 0.485  $      1,519.02 0.45  $        1,409.40 
3 Striping (Yellow) 722 LFT 0.10  $             72.20 0.12  $           86.64 0.20  $           144.40 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 4 EA 5.00  $             20.00 12.00  $           48.00 10.00  $             40.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 150 LFT 0.12  $             18.00 0.12  $           18.00 0.25  $             37.50 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (5)  $        2,282.72  $      2,716.66  $        2,866.30 

TASK (6) 52-4 DISTRICT COURT PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 2,450 LFT 0.55  $        1,347.50 0.55  $      1,347.50 0.65  $        1,592.50 
2 Double Seal Coat 8,178 SY 0.36  $        2,944.08 0.485  $      3,966.33 0.45  $        3,680.10 
3 Striping (Yellow) 3,939 LFT 0.10  $           393.90 0.12  $         472.68 0.15  $           590.85 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 1 EA 5.00  $               5.00 12.00  $           12.00 10.00  $             10.00 
5 Stop Bars 12" Wide (White) 12 LFT 1.50  $             18.00 0.50  $             6.00 2.00  $             24.00 
6 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 80 LFT 0.12  $               9.60 0.12  $             9.60 0.20  $             16.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (6)  $        4,718.08  $      5,814.11  $        5,913.45 

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

Midwest Pavement
Contracting, Inc.

T & M Asphalt Paving Brooks Striping, Inc. 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-05
Opening Date -- 2/26/08 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 6
Date Prepared --  3/4/08       (SL) PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME: **

 

TASK (7) CITY HALL WEST ENTRANCE PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 3,000 LFT 0.55  $        1,650.00 0.55  $      1,650.00 0.65  $        1,950.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 6,674 SY 0.36  $        2,402.64 0.485  $      3,236.89 0.45  $        3,003.30 
3 Striping (Yellow) 2,276 LFT 0.10  $           227.60 0.12  $         273.12 0.15  $           341.40 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 11 EA 5.00  $             55.00 12.00  $         132.00 10.00  $           110.00 
5 Stop Bars 12" Wide (White) 36 LFT 1.50  $             54.00 0.50  $           18.00 2.00  $             72.00 
6 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 450 LFT 0.12  $             54.00 0.12  $           54.00 0.20  $             90.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (7)  $        4,443.24  $      5,364.01  $        5,566.70 

TASK (8) CITY HALL EAST ENTRANCE PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 4,600 LFT 0.55  $        2,530.00 0.55  $      2,530.00 0.65  $        2,990.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 4,683 SY 0.36  $        1,685.88 0.485  $      2,271.26 0.45  $        2,107.35 
3 Striping (Yellow) 2,205 LFT 0.10  $           220.50 0.12  $         264.60 0.15  $           330.75 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 8 EA 5.00  $             40.00 12.00  $           96.00 10.00  $             80.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 420 LFT 0.12  $             50.40 0.12  $           50.40 0.20  $             84.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (8)  $        4,526.78  $      5,212.26  $        5,592.10 

TASK (9) TROY MUSEUM ENTRANCE PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 1,200 LFT 0.55  $           660.00 0.55  $         660.00 0.70  $           840.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 2,833 SY 0.36  $        1,019.88 0.485  $      1,374.01 0.50  $        1,416.50 
3 Striping (Yellow) 1,000 LFT 0.10  $           100.00 0.12  $         120.00 0.25  $           250.00 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 2 EA 5.00  $             10.00 12.00  $           24.00 10.00  $             20.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 150 LFT 0.60  $             90.00 0.12  $           18.00 0.30  $             45.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (9)  $        1,879.88  $      2,196.01  $        2,571.50 

TASK (10) NATURE CENTER PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 1,500 LFT 0.55  $           825.00 0.55  $         825.00 0.65  $           975.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 4,133 SY 0.36  $        1,487.88 0.485  $      2,004.51 0.50  $        2,066.50 
3 Striping (Yellow) 1,259 LFT 0.10  $           125.90 0.12  $         151.08 0.15  $           188.85 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 3 EA 5.00  $             15.00 12.00  $           36.00 10.00  $             30.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 210 LFT 0.30  $             63.00 0.12  $           25.20 0.20  $             42.00 
6 Arrows 3 EA 8.00  $             24.00 10.00  $           30.00 25.00  $             75.00 
7 Repairs 200 SF 5.50  $        1,100.00 4.00  $         800.00 6.00  $        1,200.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (10)  $        3,640.78  $      3,871.79  $        4,577.35 

TASK (11) FIRE STATION #4  PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 1,300 LFT 0.55  $           715.00 0.55  $         715.00 0.65  $           845.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 2,418 SY 0.36  $           870.48 0.485  $      1,172.73 0.50  $        1,209.00 
3 Striping (Yellow) 960 LFT 0.10  $             96.00 0.12  $         115.20 0.10  $             96.00 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 2 EA 5.00  $             10.00 12.00  $           24.00 10.00  $             20.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 70 LFT 1.35  $             94.50 0.12  $             8.40 0.15  $             10.50 
6 Repairs 175 SF 5.50  $           962.50 4.00  $         700.00 6.00  $        1,050.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (11)  $        2,748.48  $      2,735.33  $        3,230.50 

TASK (12) BOULAN PARK 2nd PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 100 LFT 4.00  $           400.00 0.55  $           55.00 4.00  $           400.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 1,069 SY 0.50  $           534.50 0.485  $         518.47 0.60  $           641.40 
3 Striping (Yellow) 168 LFT 0.10  $             16.80 0.12  $           20.16 1.00  $           168.00 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 1 EA 5.00  $               5.00 12.00  $           12.00 10.00  $             10.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 100 LFT 1.80  $           180.00 0.12  $           12.00 1.00  $           100.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (12)  $        1,136.30  $         617.63  $        1,319.40 

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

Brooks Striping, Inc. 
Contracting, Inc.

Midwest Pavement T & M Asphalt Paving



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-05
Opening Date -- 2/26/08 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 6
Date Prepared --  3/4/08       (SL) PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME: **

 

TASK (13) ENGINEERING FIELD OFFICE PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 150 LFT $3.00  $           450.00 0.55  $           82.50 3.00  $           450.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 1,601 SY $0.40  $           640.40 0.485  $         776.49 0.60  $           960.60 
3 Striping (Yellow) 640 LFT $0.10  $             64.00 0.12  $           76.80 0.40  $           256.00 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 1 EA $5.00  $               5.00 12.00  $           12.00 10.00  $             10.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 70 LFT $1.90  $           133.00 0.12  $             8.40 0.48  $             33.60 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (13)  $        1,292.40  $         956.19  $        1,710.20 

ADDITIONAL PRICES SECTION:
ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Removing 12" Asphalt Pavement & Base Materials  $             23.00  $           55.00  $             38.00 
2 Aggregate Base under Bituminous - 21 AA Limestone  $             25.00  $           18.00  $             38.00 
3 Sub-grade Undercutting  $             30.00  $           25.00  $             38.00 
4 Aggregate under Sub-grade (Cubic Yard)  $             30.00  $           35.00  $             38.00 
5 Butt Joint & Cold-Milling Pavement Surface  $               3.00  $             2.00  $              6.00 
6 Bituminous Mix No. 500, 20C  $             70.00  $           50.00  $             75.00 
7 Bituminous Mix No. 1100L, 20AA  $             75.00  $           51.00  $             80.00 
8 Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA  $             75.00  $           52.00  $             85.00 

Additional Prices Totals  $           331.00  $         288.00 $398.00

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: **  $      52,283.08  $    59,546.55  $      64,505.45 

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper 8 AM to 5 PM 6 AM to 6 PM 7 AM to 7 PM
24 Hr Phone # (248) 318-6724 (248) 719-1687 (586) 924-9200

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:

COMPLETION DATE:     Can Meet Y or N Yes Yes Yes

SITE INSPECTION:    Visited Site Yes Yes Yes
                                Date Visited 2/20/2008 2/18/2008 2/23/2008
                                Did Not Visited

INSURANCE:             Can Meet XX XX XX
                            Cannot Meet

TERMS: 30 Days - upon Completion

WARRANTY: 1 Year

EXCEPTIONS: N/A

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Yes No Yes

TWO FORMS COMPLETED:

                       Legal Status Y or N Yes Yes Yes
                       Non-Collusion Y or N Yes Yes Yes

WITHDRAWN: 
S & J Asphalt Paving Company - $38,545.49 Re: Unit price error

ATTEST: ** DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER

Diane Fisher
Thomas Rosewarne Susan Leirstein CPPB
Marina Farouk Basta Purchasing Director
Linda Bockstanz

G:ITB-COT 08-05 Parking Lot Maintenance

30 Days Upon Completion

EST QTY

T & M Asphalt Paving Brooks Striping, Inc. 
Contracting, Inc.

Payment per Task Completed

Per Contract

Midwest Pavement

Net 30 Days from completion

JUNE 30, 2008

Per Contract

Blank

1 yr - Workmanship/Material

Blank

30 Days from Completion



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-05
Opening Date -- 2/26/08 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 6
Date Prepared --  3/4/08      (SL) PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
 

Ck # 083620 078920802
Ck Amt $2,500.00 $2,500.00

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

TASK (1)  AQUATIC CENTER PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT 
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 9,350 LFT 0.63 5,890.50$        0.75 7,012.50$        

2 Double Seal Coat 11,390 SY 0.46 5,239.40$        0.52 5,922.80$        
3 Striping (Yellow) 5,007 LFT 0.13 650.91$          0.12 600.84$          
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 8 EA 22.50 180.00$          11.50 92.00$            
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 560 LFT 0.25 140.00$          0.12 67.20$            

Estimated Total Cost – Task (1)  $     12,100.81  $     13,695.34 

TASK (2) TROY LIBRARY PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 3,350 LFT 0.63  $       2,110.50 0.86  $       2,881.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 10,411 SY 0.46  $       4,789.06 0.52  $       5,413.72 
3 Striping (Yellow) 4,628 LFT 0.13  $         601.64 0.12  $         555.36 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 7 EA 22.50  $         157.50 12.00  $           84.00 
5 Stop Bars 12" Wide (White) 12 LFT 1.15  $           13.80 0.17  $             2.04 
6 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 350 LFT 0.25  $           87.50 0.12  $           42.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (2)  $       7,760.00  $       8,978.12 

TASK (3) TROY POLICE EAST PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 5,100 LFT 0.635  $       3,238.50 0.80  $       4,080.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 5,683 SY 0.495  $       2,813.09 0.52  $       2,955.16 
3 Striping (Yellow) 1,995 LFT 0.13  $         259.35 0.12  $         239.40 
4 Stop Bars 12" Wide (White) 12 LFT 1.15  $           13.80 0.18  $             2.16 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (3)  $       6,324.74  $       7,276.72 

TASK (4) TROY POLICE WEST PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 3,700 LFT 0.635  $       2,349.50 0.87  $       3,219.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 5273 SY 0.495  $       2,610.14 0.52  $       2,741.96 
3 Striping (Yellow) 2047 LFT 0.13  $         266.11 0.13  $         266.11 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 6 EA 23.50  $         141.00 11.50  $           69.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 400 LFT 0.25  $         100.00 0.15  $           60.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (4)  $       5,466.75  $       6,356.07 

TASK (5) TROY POLICE SOUTH PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 1,900 LFT 0.635  $       1,206.50 0.86  $       1,634.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 3,132 SY 0.51  $       1,597.32 0.52  $       1,628.64 
3 Striping (Yellow) 722 LFT 0.13  $           93.86 0.12  $           86.64 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 4 EA 23.50  $           94.00 12.00  $           48.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 150 LFT 0.25  $           37.50 0.12  $           18.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (5)  $       3,029.18  $       3,415.28 

TASK (6) 52-4 DISTRICT COURT PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 2,450 LFT 0.635  $       1,555.75 0.87  $       2,131.50 
2 Double Seal Coat 8,178 SY 0.485  $       3,966.33 0.52  $       4,252.56 
3 Striping (Yellow) 3,939 LFT 0.13  $         512.07 0.13  $         512.07 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 1 EA 23.50  $           23.50 11.50  $           11.50 
5 Stop Bars 12" Wide (White) 12 LFT 1.15  $           13.80 0.18  $             2.16 
6 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 80 LFT 0.25  $           20.00 0.12  $             9.60 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (6)  $       6,091.45  $       6,919.39 

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

A & R Sealcoating
Inc

Lacaria Concrete
Construction



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-05
Opening Date -- 2/26/08 BID TABULATION Pg 5 of 6
Date Prepared --  3/4/08        (SL) PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

 

TASK (7) CITY HALL WEST ENTRANCE PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 3,000 LFT 0.635  $       1,905.00 0.86  $       2,580.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 6,674 SY 0.495  $       3,303.63 0.51  $       3,403.74 
3 Striping (Yellow) 2,276 LFT 0.13  $         295.88 0.12  $         273.12 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 11 EA 22.50  $         247.50 11.50  $         126.50 
5 Stop Bars 12" Wide (White) 36 LFT 1.15  $           41.40 0.20  $             7.20 
6 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 450 LFT 0.25  $         112.50 0.12  $           54.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (7)  $       5,905.91  $       6,444.56 

TASK (8) CITY HALL EAST ENTRANCE PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 4,600 LFT 0.635  $       2,921.00 0.86  $       3,956.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 4,683 SY 0.495  $       2,318.09 0.55  $       2,575.65 
3 Striping (Yellow) 2,205 LFT 0.13  $         286.65 0.13  $         286.65 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 8 EA 22.50  $         180.00 11.50  $           92.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 420 LFT 0.25  $         105.00 0.13  $           54.60 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (8)  $       5,810.74  $       6,964.90 

TASK (9) TROY MUSEUM ENTRANCE PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 1,200 LFT 0.635  $         762.00 0.89  $       1,068.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 2,833 SY 0.61  $       1,728.13 0.55  $       1,558.15 
3 Striping (Yellow) 1,000 LFT 0.13  $         130.00 0.13  $         130.00 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 2 EA 22.50  $           45.00 15.00  $           30.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 150 LFT 0.25  $           37.50 0.13  $           19.50 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (9)  $       2,702.63  $       2,805.65 

TASK (10) NATURE CENTER PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 1,500 LFT 0.635  $         952.50 0.87  $       1,305.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 4,133 SY 0.61  $       2,521.13 0.55  $       2,273.15 
3 Striping (Yellow) 1,259 LFT 0.13  $         163.67 0.15  $         188.85 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 3 EA 22.50  $           67.50 13.00  $           39.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 210 LFT 0.25  $           52.50 0.12  $           25.20 
6 Arrows 3 EA 12.00  $           36.00 17.00  $           51.00 
7 Repairs 200 SF 5.00  $       1,000.00 11.50  $       2,300.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (10)  $       4,793.30  $       6,182.20 

TASK (11) FIRE STATION #4  PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 1,300 LFT 0.635  $         825.50 0.89  $       1,157.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 2,418 SY 0.610  $       1,474.98 0.53  $       1,281.54 
3 Striping (Yellow) 960 LFT 0.30  $         288.00 0.11  $         105.60 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 2 EA 25.00  $           50.00 12.00  $           24.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 70 LFT 0.40  $           28.00 0.12  $             8.40 
6 Repairs 175 SF 5.72  $       1,001.00 13.00  $       2,275.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (11)  $       3,667.48  $       4,851.54 

TASK (12) BOULAN PARK 2nd PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 100 LFT 7.75  $         775.00 4.60  $         460.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 1,069 SY 0.80  $         855.20 0.52  $         555.88 
3 Striping (Yellow) 168 LFT 0.80  $         134.40 0.13  $           21.84 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 1 EA 25.00  $           25.00 13.00  $           13.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 100 LFT 0.85  $           85.00 0.13  $           13.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (12)  $       1,874.60  $       1,063.72 

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY

A & R Sealcoating Lacaria Concrete
Inc Construction



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-05
Opening Date -- 2/26/08 BID TABULATION Pg 6 of 6
Date Prepared --  3/4/08       (SL) PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

 Cracks & Joint Sealing
TASK (13) ENGINEERING FIELD OFFICE PARKING LOT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joints Sealing 150 LFT 5.00  $         750.00 $3.83  $         574.50 
2 Double Seal Coat 1,601 SY 0.80  $       1,280.80 $0.53  $         848.53 
3 Striping (Yellow) 640 LFT 0.30  $         192.00 $0.12  $           76.80 
4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 1 EA 25.00  $           25.00 $13.00  $           13.00 
5 Handicapped Cross Walks - 4" wide 70 LFT 0.40  $           28.00 $0.15  $           10.50 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (13)  $       2,275.80  $       1,523.33 

ADDITIONAL PRICES SECTION:
ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Removing 12" Asphalt Pavement & Base Materials  $             7.31 $17.25
2 Aggregate Base under Bituminous - 21 AA Limestone  $           24.75 $33.93
3 Sub-grade Undercutting  $           18.00 $17.25
4 Aggregate under Sub-grade (Cubic Yard)  $           24.75 $33.93
5 Butt Joint & Cold-Milling Pavement Surface  $           11.25 $5.75
6 Bituminous Mix No. 500, 20C  $           63.20 $58.50
7 Bituminous Mix No. 1100L, 20AA  $           65.00 $65.50
8 Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA  $           66.20 $69.00

Additional Prices Totals  $         280.46 $301.11

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL:  $     68,083.84  $     76,777.93 

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper 5 AM to 8 PM 7 AM to 6 PM
24 Hr Phone # (248) 867-8243 (313) 218-6834

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:

COMPLETION DATE:       Can Meet Y or N Yes Yes

SITE INSPECTION:    Visited Site Yes No
                                Date Visited 2/19/2008
                                Did Not Visited

INSURANCE:             Can Meet XX XX
                            Cannot Meet

TERMS: 45 Days      Upon Completion

WARRANTY: 1 Year     Stated in Contract

EXCEPTIONS: None
Requested

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Yes Yes

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Yes Yes

TWO FORMS COMPLETED:
                       Legal Status Y or N Yes Yes
                       Non-Collusion Y or N Yes Yes

G:ITB-COT 08-05 Parking Lot Maintenance

45 Days of completion

EST QTY

Payment in full

Construction
A & R Sealcoating Lacaria Concrete

Blank

JUNE 30, 2008

Inc



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
March 25, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
    
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Sole Bidder – Troy Daze 

Amusement Rides   
 
Background 
 On February 25, 2008, proposals were opened to provide a three (3) year contract for Amusement 

Rides for the Troy Daze/Magic of Fall Festival. 
 24 vendors were notified via the MITN system with one (1) midway company responding. 
 Arnold Amusements, Inc., 1140 Oak Terrace, Traverse City, Mi 49686 was the sole bidder. 
 Bidder will provide the City a 40% rate of return on gross ride receipts, as identified in their 

proposal and summarized in the attached bid tabulation. 
 Bidder will pay the City $300.00 per game booth for a maximum of 20 game booths, $440.00 per 

food booth for a maximum of 6 food booths, and $540.00 per booth for exclusive rights to three 
food booths offering Popcorn, Cotton Candy, Candy Apples, and Elephant Ears. 

 Bidder will also pay the City of Troy a one-time payment of $3,000.00 toward festival 
improvements or advertising. 

 Arnold Amusements, Inc. has been the amusement vendor for the Troy Daze/Magic of Fall 
Festival for many years and enjoyed a positive and beneficial relationship with the City of Troy and 
Troy Daze Advisory Committee. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 All payments collected from Arnold Amusement will be deposited in the Community Fair Fund 

Revenue Account #1030.4653.AMUSE. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 08-01, Amusement Rides was competitively bid as required by City Charter and Code. 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying 

amusement rides for the Troy Daze/Magic of Fall Festival. 
 Award is contingent upon bidder’s submission of proper insurance, and/or any other specified 

requirements. 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04h



Page 2 of 2 
 

March 25, 2008 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Troy Daze Amusement Rides 
 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 The amusement rides are an important element to the Troy Daze Festival which attracts more 

than 100,000 resident and non-resident visitors to Boulan Park during the 4-day event. (Goal I) 
 The Troy Daze event showcases many Troy businesses and organizations. (Goal III) 

 
Options 
 
 City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend awarding a three (3) 

year contract to provide Amusement Rides for the Troy Daze/Magic of Fall Festival for the years 
2008, 2009, and 2010 to the sole bidder, Arnold Amusements, Inc., 1140 Oak Terrace, Traverse 
City, MI 49686 at a 40% rate of return on gross ride receipts, and pricing, terms, and conditions as 
detailed in the bid proposal opened February 25, 2008 and summarized on the bid tabulation, a 
copy of which shall be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 –Amusement Rides 03-08.doc 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-01
Opening Date -- 2/25/08 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 2/29/08 AMUSEMENT RIDES

VENDOR NAME: Arnold Amusements Inc

PROPOSAL: AMUSEMENT RIDES FOR TROY DAZE FOR YEARS 2008, 2009, & 2010
PROPOSAL A: PAYMENT SCHEDULE 40% Gross - +$3,000 towards festival Improvements & Advertising

(Commission Rate) Payment schedule based upon the gross receipts of rides.  Minimum acceptable
percentage is 34% of the gross receipts.  Monies & Final audit reports, etc.

PROPOSAL B:   RIDES # of Rides Cost per Ride
2008 INDIVIDUAL CHILDREN'S 12 $2.00

INDIVIDUAL ADULT 12 $3.00
SPECTACULAR RIDES 8 $4.00
SPECIAL BOOKLET/50 Tickets $40.00
WRIST BRACELETS:
      Saturday - All Day $25.00
      Sunday - All Day $20.00
      Mega - Entire Festival $50.00
SPECIAL FAMILY BOOKLET:

2009 INDIVIDUAL CHILDREN'S 12 $2.00
INDIVIDUAL ADULT 12 $3.00
SPECTACULAR RIDES 8 $4.00
SPECIAL BOOKLET/50 Tickets $40.00
WRIST BRACELETS:
      Saturday - All Day $25.00
      Sunday - All Day $20.00
      Mega - Entire Festival $50.00
SPECIAL FAMILY BOOKLET:

2010 INDIVIDUAL CHILDREN'S 12 $2.00
INDIVIDUAL ADULT 12 $3.00
SPECTACULAR RIDES 8 $4.00
SPECIAL BOOKLET/50 Tickets $40.00
WRIST BRACELETS:
      Saturday - All Day $25.00
      Sunday - All Day $20.00
      Mega - Entire Festival $50.00
SPECIAL FAMILY BOOKLET:

SPECIAL FAMILY BOOKLET - Marked Blank

PROPOSAL C:  DESCRIPTION OF RIDES, SHOWS, CONCESSIONS
ITEM #1:  CHILDREN'S RIDES RIDE NAME LENGTH OF RIDE

List 10 Children's Rides: 1 Super Trucks 3 - 5 Min
2 Bear-A-Fair 3 - 5 Min
3 Wave Runners 3 - 5 Min
4 Motorcycles 3 - 5 Min
5 Circus Train 3 - 5 Min
6 Moon Walk 3 - 5 Min
7 Go Gator 3 - 5 Min
8 Sports Cars 3 - 5 Min
9 Jumping Jumbos 3 - 5 Min

10 Roadsters 3 - 5 Min
ITEM #2:  ADULT RIDES RIDE NAME LENGTH OF RIDE

List 10 Adult Rides: 1 Tilt-A Whirl 3 - 5 Min
2 Super Slides (2) 3 - 5 Min
3 Tornado 3 - 5 Min
4 Spider 3 - 5 Min
5 Mardi Gras 3 - 5 Min
6 Rock-0-Plane 3 - 5 Min
7 Sizzler 3 - 5 Min
8 Kreepy Kastle 3 - 5 Min
9 Super Swing 3 - 5 Min

10 Fun House 3 - 5 Min



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 2-25-08 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 2/29/08 AMUSEMENT RIDES

VENDOR NAME: Arnold Amusements Inc

ITEM #3: SPECTACULAR RIDES SPECTACULAR RIDES LENGTH OF RIDE

List 5 Spectacular Rides 1 Pharoh's Furry 3 - 5 Min
2 (2) Eagle 16 Ferris Wheels 3 - 5 Min
3 Crazy Dance 3 - 5 Min
4 Orbiter 3 - 5 Min
5 Zipper 3 - 5 Min

ITEM #4:  SPECIAL RIDE NIGHT - THURSDAY
List 10 Rides  (10 rides for $10) 1

2 All Rides
3
4
5
6 All Rides
7
8
9

10
ITEM #5:  DESCRIPTION OF AUDIT SYSTEM

Attached to Proposal & Marked "A"

ITEM #6: REQUEST FOR FOOD/GAME BOOTHS
Attached to Proposal & Marked
$440/Food Booth & $300/Game Booth

ITEM #7: REQUEST FOR EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS TO GAMES:
Attached to Proposal & Marked

PROPOSAL D:  EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS FOR FOOD BOOTHS  (Optional)
Attached to Proposal & Marked "X"
$540/Booth

FORM:     Completed Indemnification Clause   Y/N Yes

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS:

COMPLETION:

EXCEPTIONS:
$40.00 - We do not wish to lower our
ticket pricing due to rising cost of 
Operating expenses (Fuel, Insurance)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y/N

ATTEST: SOLE BIDDER
Diane Fisher ____________________________
Ron Hynd Susan Leirstein CPPB
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 08-01 Amusement Rides

Yes

SEE PAYMENT SCHEDULE

AS SPECIFIED

Tickets are in sheets of 44 for

DESCRIPTION OF RIDES

"B"

Blank



Page 1 of 5 
 

 

 
 
March 24, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting  
    Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products for Sylvan Glen and  
    Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses 
 
 
Background 

 On February 28, 2008, bids were received and opened for IBT-COT 08-06 to provide turfgrass 
chemicals and fertilizers for Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses. 

 53 vendors were notified via the MITN system with seven (7) bidders responding and one 
statement of no bid received. 

 Serious consideration was given to all vendors on all items due to the fact that some chemicals 
are now coming off patent. 

 All bids received for Item #6 had identical agency prices.  Tri-Turf Inc. was awarded the Item 
based on terms, no minimum shipment and one (1) day delivery. 

 Lesco Inc. bid alternates on Items #8, #10, #12, and Helena Chemical Co. and Tri-Turf Inc. bid 
alternates on Item #10 that does not contain the micro-nutrient package and patented plant 
extracts essential for quality plant growth. 

 Helena Chemical Co. bid an alternate on Item #13 that does not contain the proprietary 
nitrogen source as specified. 

 Lesco Inc. and Tri-Turf Inc. bid alternates on Item #14. Based on application rates Lesco’s 
product exceeds the quantities listed on the bid. Tri-Turf’s product is derived from ammonium 
calcium nitrate, a product with high burn potential during the summer months. 

 Helena Chemical Co. bid an alternate on Item #15 which does not contain complex 
carbohydrate, proteins and vitamins necessary for plant digestion and photosynthesis. 

 All bids received for Item #16 had identical agency pricing.  Turfgrass Inc. was awarded the 
Item based on the best payment terms of 2% 10 days, Net 30. 

  Lesco Inc. and Tri-Turf Inc. bid alternates on Item #17. Lesco’s product does not contain 
phosphites essential for thickening plant cell walls. Tri-Turf’s product does not contain the 
micronutrient package as specified. 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04i



Page 2 of 5 
 

March 24, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products 
 
Background 
 Turfgrass Inc. and Lesco Inc. bid alternates on Item #18, both products have to be watered in 

immediately after application and cannot be applied if heat and humidity indexes exceed 
thresholds; product specified requires no water and can be applied at any time. 

 Lesco Inc. bid an alternate on Item #20, while researching this product the Lesco 
representative questioned the availability of his product and could not guarantee delivery at 
the appropriate time. Based on this information Item #20 was awarded to the next lowest 
bidder, Harrell’s Inc. 

 Tri-Turf Inc. bid an alternate on Item #24, which is considered a general use wetting agent not 
formulated for moisture retention in the upper levels of the soil and root profiles. 

 Helena Chemical Co. bid alternates on Items #25, #28, Lesco Inc. and Tri-Turf Inc. bid  
alternates on Item #28. All alternates do not contain the percentage of proprietary blend of 
surfactants specified. 

 Lesco Inc. and Tri-Turf Inc. bid alternates on Item #32 which do not contain Contec 
Technology. This allows the fertilizer to dissolve quickly into the turf canopy after application 
and irrigation reducing the potential of turf damage to the golf course greens. 

 Helena Chemical Co., Harrell’s Inc. and UAP had identical prices on Item #33. Item was 
awarded to Helena Chemical based on delivery and payment terms. 

 Helena Chemical Co., Lesco Inc. and Tri-Turf Inc. bid alternates on Item #34, these products 
do not contain the proprietary blend of potassium phosphite technology specified. 

 Helena Chemical Co. bid an alternate on Item #36; this product to be effective needs multiple 
applications at higher rates making it more expensive and exceeds quantities listed on the bid. 

 Turfgrass Inc. bid an alternate on Item #38. Insignia is a different chemistry class and mode of 
action. The Golf Division has tried this product in the past with poor results. 

 
 
Financial Considerations 
 

 The department has funds budgeted in the Sylvan Glen Seed/Planting Supplies account 
#785.7740.100 and the Sanctuary Lake Seed/Planting Supplies account #885.7740.100. 

 
 
Legal Considerations 
 

 ITB-COT 08-06 to furnish seasonal requirements of chemicals for Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary 
Lake Golf Courses was competitively bid and vendors were given the opportunity to respond 
with their level of interest in supplying turf chemicals and fertilizers to the City’s golf facilities. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 5 
 

March 24, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products 

 
Policy Considerations 
 

 Vendors were required to submit product information on all alternates in order to assist in the 
recommendation process. Based on this, the City was able to accept four generic products at a 
cost savings. (Goal II) 

 Communicate with educators and vendors on newer cost effective chemistries and products 
for the future. (Goals II and IV) 

 
Options 
 

 City management recommends awarding the seasonal requirements of chemicals for Sylvan 
Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses to the following low bidders meeting specifications for 
an estimated total cost of $172,876.93 at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation. 

 
Turfgrass Inc., South Lyon, Michigan 
 
Item 
No. 

Product Description Estimated Quantity Case Price Estimated Cost 

1. Iprodione Pro SE 100 Gallons- 20 Cases $303.75 $6,075.00 
4. Aqua-Aid Wetting Agent 60 Gallons- 2 Drums $598.80 $1,197.60 
7. Zenith 75 W.S.B. 153.6 Ounces- 6 Cases $744.19 $4,465.14 
10. Gary’s Green 18-3-4+Iron 150 Gallons- 30 Cases $171.00 $5,130.00 
11. Sili-Kal B 150 Gallons- 30 Cases $234.00 $7,020.00 
12. Ultraplex 150 Gallons- 30 Cases $230.00 $6,900.00 
16. Bayleton 50WSP 68.74 Pounds- 2 Drums $2,727.00 $5,454.00 
17. PK Plus 150 Gallons- 30 Cases $255.00 $7,650.00 
19. Kelly’s High Calcium Lime 

Greens Grade 
17 Tons- 17 Bags $237.60 $4,039.20 

28.  Cascade Plus 20 Gallons- 1Drum $1,377.00 $1,377.00 
32. Anderson’s 18-9-18 

Contec DG Pro 
4,000 Pounds- 100 Bags $37.04 $3,704.00 

    $53,011.94 
 
Tri-Turf Inc., Farmington Hills, Michigan 
 
Item 
No. 

Product Description Estimated Quantity Case Price Estimated Cost 

2. Daconil Weatherstik or 
Echo 720 

150 Gallons- 30 Cases $142.00 $4,260.00 

6. Trinity 50 Gallons- 10 Cases $1,525.00 $15,250.00 
21. Primo Maxx 10 Gallons- 1 Link Pak $2,580.00 $2,580.00 
    $22,090.00 
 



Page 4 of 5 
 

March 24, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products 

 
 
UAP Professional Products, Linden, Michigan 
 
Item 
No. 

Product Description Estimated Quantity Case Price Estimated Cost 

3. Banol 10 Gallons- 5 Cases $723.00 $3,615.00 
26.  Allectus 25 Gallons- 5 Cases $866.12 $4,330.60 
27. Prostar 50 Pounds- 5 Cases $440.50 $2,202.50 
39. Glacier 4F 200 Gallons- 40 Cases $107.50 $4,300.00 
    $14,448.10
 
 
Helena Chemical Company, Zeeland, Michigan 
 
Item 
No. 

Product Description Estimated Quantity Case Price Estimated Cost 

5. Gallery Herbicide 24 Pounds- 6 Cases $478.71 $2,872.26 
9. Emerald 70 WG 98 Pounds- 20 Cases $1,320.55 $26,411.00 
23. Alliette/Signature 110 Pounds- 5 Cases $409.20 $2,046.00 
30. Allectus Granular 1,000 Pounds- 20 Bags $66.50 $1,330.00 
33. Cutless 30 Pounds- 1 Drum $3,243.00 $3,243.00 
38. Disarm 48 Pounds- 2 Cases $5,395.20 $10,790.40              
                                                                                                                                  $46,692.66 
 
 
Great Lakes Turf LLC, Grand Rapids, Michigan 
 
8. Astron 15 Gallons- 3 Cases $410.00 $1,230.00 
13. 23-0-0 Carbon N 75 Gallons- 15 Cases $120.00 $1,800.00 

14. Calphlex 100 Gallons- 20 Cases $195.00 $3,900.00 

15. Protesyn 100 Gallons- 20 Cases $220.00 $4,400.00 
22. Perk-Up 40 Gallons- 8 Cases $410.00 $3,280.00 
24.  Retain 25 Gallons- 5 Cases $440.00 $2,200.00 
25.  Pervade 30 Gallons- 6 Cases $180.00 $1,080.00 
31. Carbon K 0-0-24 75 Gallons- 15 Cases $130.00 $1,950.00 
34. PK Fight 0-0-28 30 Gallons- 6 Cases $215.00 $1,290.00 
35. P-48 180 Pounds- 6 Pails $115.00 $690.00 
    $21,820.00 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 5 
 

March 24, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products 
 
 
Harrell’s Inc., New Hudson, Michigan 
 
Item 
No. 

Product Description Estimated Quantity Case Price Estimated Cost 

18. Harrell’s Tru-Prill 15-2-15  
Greens Fertilizer 

4,000 Pounds- 80 Bags $46.00 $3,680.00 

20. Cascade Granular 2,000 Pounds- 40 Bags $98.00 $3,920.00 
29. Verde-Cal G 4,000 Pounds- 80 Bags $24.50 $1,960.00 
    $9,560.00
 
Lesco Inc., Cleveland, Ohio 
 
Item 
No. 

Product Description Estimated Quantity Case Price Estimated Cost 

36. Lesco-Flo 80 Gallons- 16 Cases $282.45 $4,519.20 
37. Lesco T-Storm 60 Pounds- 5 Cases $245.01 $1,225.05 
    $5,254.23 
 
                                                                                  ESTIMATED TOTAL COST:  $172,876.93 
 
 
 



 CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 08-06
Opening Date -- 2/28/08 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 12
Date Prepared - 03/20/08 (sl) CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: UAP

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 100 GALS CHIPCO 26 GT FLOWABLE or Alt:Chipco 2 X 2.5 GALS 114.00$      570.00$     
(20 CASES)  IPRODIONE PRO 2 SE 5 GALS/CASE 120.00$    600.00$       Altr  $66.00 330.00$     

2. 150 GALS DACONIL WEATHERSTIK 2 X 2.5 GALS Terms 6/5/08 72.00$        360.00$     
(30 CASES) or ECHO 720 5 GALS/CASE 72.00$      360.00$       Altr $35.96 179.83$     

3. 10 GALS BANOL 2 X 1 GAL

(5 CASES) 2 GALS/CASE 378.00$    756.00$       361.50$      723.00$    

4.  60 GALS AQUA-AID 30 GALS

(2 DRUMS) WETTING AGENT PER DRUM N/B N/B N/B N/B

5. 24 lbs GALLERY 4 x 1 lb

(6 CASES) HERBICIDE 4 1lbs/Case 140.00$    560.00$       124.61$      498.45$     

6. 50 GALS TRINITY 2 X 2.5 GALS Terms 6/13/08
(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 305.00$    1,525.00$    305.00$      1,525.00$  

7. 153.6 oz MERIT 75 W.S.P. 4 X 4 X 1.6 OZ.

(6 CASES) 25.6 OZ./CASE 15.47$      1,525.00$    13.969$      357.63$     

8. 15 GALS ASTRON 2 X 2.5 GALS

(3 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

9. 98 LBS EMERALD 70 WG 10 X 0.49 lbs Terms 6/13/08
(20 CASES)  4.90 lbs/CASE 275.00$    1,347.50$    275.00$      1,347.50$  

10. 15 GALS GARY'S GREEN 18-3-4+Iron 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

11. 150GALS SILI-KAL B 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

12. 150 GALS ULTRAPLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 CASES) 5 GALS./CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

13. 75 GALS 23-0-0 CARBON N 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

14. 100 GALS CALPHLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(20 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

15. 100 GALS PROTESYN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(20 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

16. 68.74 LBS BAYLETON 50WSP 34.37 lbs per Terms 5/20/08
(2 Drums) Drum 79.34$      2,727.00$    79.342$      2,727.00$  

Harrell's Inc.



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 08-06
Opening Date -- 2/28/08 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 12
Date Prepared - 03/20/08 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: UAP 

EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
17. 150 gals PK PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

18. 4,000 lbs HARRELS TRU-PRILL
(80 BAGS) 15-2-15 GREENS 50 LBS/BAG 0.92$       46.00$        N/B N/B

19. 17 TONS KELLY'S HIGH
(17 BAGS) CALCIUM LIME GREENS GRADE 1 Ton/Bag N/B N/B N/B N/B

20. 2,000 LBS CASCADE GRANULAR
(40 BAGS) 50 LBS/BAG 1.96$       98.00$        N/B N/B

21. 10 GALS PRIMO MAXX 1 X 10 GALS Terms 6/05/08
(1 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK 369.00$    3,690.00$    369.00$      3,690.00$  

22. 40 GALS PERK-UP 2 X 2.5 GALS

(8 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

23. 110 lbs Alliette/Signature 2 x 11 lbs

(5 Cases) 22 lbs/CASE 20.90$      460.00$       20.85$        458.70$     

24. 25 Gals RETAIN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(5 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

25. 30 Gals PERVADE 2 X 2.5 GALS

(6 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

26. 25 Gals ALLECTUS 2 X 2.5 GALS Package 4x1
(5 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 245.00$    980.00$       173.22$      866.12$    

27. 50 lbs PROSTAR 10 x 1 lb

(5 Cases) 10 lbs/CASE 50.00$      500.00$       44.05$        440.50$    

28. 20 Gals CASCADE PLUS
(1 Drum) 20 gal. DRUM N/B N/B N/B N/B

29. 4,000 LBS VERDE-CAL G
(80 Bags) 50 lbs/ BAG 0.49$       24.50$        N/B N/B

30. 1,000 lbs ALLECTUS GRANULAR
(20 Bags) 50 lbs/ BAG 1.58$        79.00$         1.40$          70.00$       

31. 75 Gals CARBON K 0-0-24 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

32. 4,000 LBS ANDERSON'S 18-9-18 40 LBS/BAG Net 60 Days
(100 Bags) CONTEC DG PRO 0.98$        39.00$         N/B N/B

33. 30 LBS CUTLESS Terms 2/28 - 5/1/08 After 2/29/08 - $111.33 lb
(1 DRUM) 30 LBS/DRUM 108.10$    3,243.00$    108.10$      3,243.00$  

Harrell's Inc.



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 08-06
Opening Date -- 2/28/08 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 12
Date Prepared - 03/20/08 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: UAP

 EST UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

34. 30 Gals PK FIGHT 0-0-28 2 X 2.5 Gals

(6 Cases) 5 Gal/Case N/B N/B N/B N/B

35. 180 LBS P-48
(6 PAILS) 30 LBS/PAILS N/B N/B N/B N/B

36. 80 GALS LESCO - FLO 2 X 2.5 Gals

(16 Cases) 5 Gal/Case N/B N/B N/B N/B

37. 60 LBS CLEARY's 3336 6 X 2 lbs/Case

(5 CASES) 12 lbs/Case 20.80$      250.00$       15.47$        185.63$     

38. 48 LBS DISARM 24 X 1 LB.JUG

(2 CASES) 24 LBS/Case N/B N/B 249.77$      5,994.48$  

39. 200 GALS GLACIER 4F 2 X 2.5 Gals

(40 CASES) 5 Gal/Case 23.50$      117.50$       21.50$        107.50$    

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF AWARDED ITEMS --

MINIMUM SHIPMENT: N/A 0
Days after call N/A                1 - 3 

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Oper:    7:30 AM to 5:00 PM        8 AM to 5 PM
    Phone #      (248) 515-9880         (586) 839-8930

TERMS        Manufacturers               N 30

WARRANTY        Manufacturers           Per MFG.

EXCEPTIONS                Blank               Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N                Yes                 Yes

NO BIDS: PROPOSAL:  Seasonal Requirements of Turfgrass Chemicals
Weingartz

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDERS
ATTEST:
Diane Fisher
Danny McDonald Susan Leirstein CPPB
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 08-06 Chemicals-Golf Courses

9,560.00$                        14,448.10$                      

Harrell's Inc.



 CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 08-06
Opening Date -- 2/28/08 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 12
Date Prepared - 03/20/08 (sl) CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Turfgrass, Inc.
Company

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 100 GALS CHIPCO 26 GT FLOWABLE or Alt:Chipc 2 X 2.5 GALS Iprodione $68 340.00$              Alternate Ipro 25 E
(20 CASES)  IPRODIONE PRO 2 SE 5 GALS/CASE 114.79$    573.95$       60.75$       303.75

Alt-Dockit WS
2. 150 GALS DACONIL WEATHERSTIK 2 X 2.5 GALS 33.00$            165.00$              Alternate Chlorothaloni

(30 CASES) or ECHO 720 5 GALS/CASE 72.00$      360.00$       33.75$       168.75$       

3. 10 GALS BANOL 2 X 1 GAL

(5 CASES) 2 GALS/CASE 370.96$    741.93$       382.64$     765.28$       
27.5 Gal

4.  60 GALS AQUA-AID 30 GALS Alternative Reservoir
(2 DRUMS) WETTING AGENT PER DRUM 60.00$      1,650.00$    19.96$       598.80$      

5. 24 lbs GALLERY 4 x 1 lb

(6 CASES) HERBICIDE 4 1lbs/Case 119.67$   478.71$      137.21$     548.84$       

6. 50 GALS TRINITY 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 305.00$    1,525.00$    305.00$     1,525.00$    
Alt-Touchstone 75 (48x1.6oz) 48 x 1.6oz 

7. 153.6 oz MERIT 75 W.S.P. 4 X 4 X 1.6 OZ. 12.04$            924.67$              Alternative Zenith 75 WSB
(6 CASES) 25.6 OZ./CASE 13.69$      350.50$       9.69$         744.19$      

8. 15 GALS ASTRON 2 X 2.5 GALS

(3 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B
$134.75/.49=275

9. 98 LBS EMERALD 70 WG 10 X 0.49 lbs

(20 CASES)  4.90 lbs/CASE 269.50$   1,320.55$   275.00$     1,347.50$    

10. 150 GALS GARY'S GREEN 18-3-4+Iron 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative CoRoN 18-3-6
(30 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS 34.20$       171.00$      

11. 150GALS SILI-KAL B 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B 46.80$       234.00$      

12. 150 GALS ULTRAPLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 CASES) 5 GALS./CASE N/B N/B 46.00$       230.00$      

13. 75 GALS 23-0-0 CARBON N 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative CoRoN 28-0-0
(15 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS N/B N/B

14. 100 GALS CALPHLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(20 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

15. 100 GALS PROTESYN 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative Renova
(20 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS N/B N/B

16. 68.74 LBS BAYLETON 50WSP 34.37 lbs per

(2 Drums) Drum 79.34$      2,727.00$    79.34$       2,727.00$   

Helena Chemical 



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 08-06
Opening Date -- 2/28/08 BID TABULATION Pg. 5 of 12
Date Prepared - 03/20/08 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Turfgrass, Inc.
Company

EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
17. 150 gals PK PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B 51.00$       255.00$      

18. 4,000 lbs HARRELS TRU-PRILL Alternative Gngy 516-4-8
(80 BAGS) 15-2-15 GREENS 50 LBS/BAG N/B N/B DMS

19. 17 TONS KELLY'S HIGH 40 bags/ton 50lb bags
(17 BAGS) CALCIUM LIME GREENS GRADE 1 Ton/Bag N/B N/B 5.94$         237.60$      

20. 2,000 LBS CASCADE GRANULAR Alternative Soaker Maxx G 40 lb bags

(40 BAGS) 50 LBS/BAG 2.23$        111.50$       1.99$         79.80$         
Alt-Podium 2/1 Gal

21. 10 GALS PRIMO MAXX 1 X 10 GALS 330.00$          660.00$              
(1 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK 386.00$   3,860.00$   369.00$     3,690.00$   

22. 40 GALS PERK-UP 2 X 2.5 GALS

(8 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

23. 110 lbs Alliette/Signature 2 x 11 lbs

(5 Cases) 22 lbs/CASE 18.60$     409.20$      21.89$       481.70$      

24. 25 Gals RETAIN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(5 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B
55 Gal Drum 

25. 30 Gals PERVADE 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative ProMate Injector

(6 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS N/B N/B

26. 25 Gals ALLECTUS 2 X 2.5 GALS 4 gals
(5 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 212.20$    1,061.00$    235.77$     943.08$       

27. 50 lbs PROSTAR 10 x 1 lb

(5 Cases) 10 lbs/CASE 44.48$      444.80$       47.88$       478.80$       
2/2.5 Gal

28. 20 Gals CASCADE PLUS Alternative Soaker Plus
(1 Drum) 20 gal. DRUM DMS 68.85$       1,377.00$   

29. 4,000 LBS VERDE-CAL G
(80 Bags) 50 lbs/ BAG N/B N/B N/B N/B

30. 1,000 lbs ALLECTUS GRANULAR
(20 Bags) 50 lbs/ BAG 1.33$       66.50$        1.47$         73.87$         

31. 75 Gals CARBON K 0-0-24 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

32. 4,000 LBS ANDERSON'S 18-9-18 40 LBS/BAG

(100 Bags) CONTEC DG PRO N/B N/B 0.92$         37.04$        

33. 30 LBS CUTLESS
(1 DRUM) 30 LBS/DRUM 108.10$   3,243.00$   111.33$     3,340.00$    

Helena Chemical 



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 08-06
Opening Date -- 2/28/08 BID TABULATION Pg. 6 of 12
Date Prepared - 03/20/08 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Turfgrass, Inc.
Company

 EST UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
34. 30 Gals PK FIGHT 0-0-28 2 X 2.5 Gals Alternate EleMax 0-0-26

(6 Cases) 5 Gal/Case DMS N/B N/B

35. 180 LBS P-48
(6 PAILS) 30 LBS/PAILS N/B N/B N/B N/B

36. 80 GALS LESCO - FLO 2 X 2.5 Gals Alternate Soaker
(16 CASES) 5 Gal/Case DMS N/B N/B

Alt - T-Methyl G  (6x2 lbs)
37. 60 LBS CLEARY's 3336 6 X 2 lbs/Case 15.50$            186.00$              

(5 CASES) 12 lbs/Case 20.26$      243.15$       21.38$       256.56$       

38. 48 LBS DISARM 24 X 1 LB.JUG Alternate Insignia
(2 CASES) 24 LBS/Case 224.80$   5,395.20$   DMS

39. 200 GALS GLACIER 4F 2 X 2.5 Gals Alternate Turfcide 4F
(40 CASES) 5 Gal/Case 24.00$      120.00$       21.75$       108.75$       

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF AWARDED ITEMS --

MINIMUM SHIPMENT:                N/A        1 case or 1 bag
Days after call                 1- 2               1- 3

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Oper:          7 AM to 6 PM         8 AM to 5 PM
    Phone #         (616) 340-9557        (248) 866-6081

TERMS              90 Days       Net 30, 2%  10 Days

WARRANTY According to Manufacturer       Per Manufacturer

EXCEPTIONS   See attached Exception Page Item #1, #2, #7, #18, #26
 (Page shows alternates for & #38 are alternates.
  items on Bid proposal.)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N               Yes                Yes

G:ITB-COT 08-06 Chemicals-Golf Courses

53,011.94$                       

Helena Chemical 

46,692.66$                     



 CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 08-06
Opening Date -- 2/28/08 BID TABULATION Pg 7 of 12
Date Prepared - 03/20/08 (sl) CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Great Lakes Turf, LLC

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 100 GALS CHIPCO 26 GT FLOWABLE or Alt:Chipco 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative Lesco 18 Plus
(20 CASES)  IPRODIONE PRO 2 SE 5 GALS/CASE 62.00$       310.00$        N/B N/B

2. 150 GALS DACONIL WEATHERSTIK 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative Manicure 6 FL
(30 CASES) or ECHO 720 5 GALS/CASE 32.00$       160.00$        40.00$       200.00$         

3. 10 GALS BANOL 2 X 1 GAL

(5 CASES) 2 GALS/CASE 415.00$     830.00$        N/B N/B

4.  60 GALS AQUA-AID 30 GALS Alternative Lesco Wet Plus
(2 DRUMS) WETTING AGENT PER DRUM 26.50$       795.00$        N/B N/B

5. 24 lbs GALLERY 4 x 1 lb

(6 CASES) HERBICIDE 4 1lbs/Case 145.01$     580.04$        N/B N/B

6. 50 GALS TRINITY 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 305.00$     1,525.00$     N/B N/B

7. 153.6 oz MERIT 75 W.S.P. 4 X 4 X 1.6 OZ.

(6 CASES) 25.6 OZ./CASE 15.04$       385.03$        N/B N/B

8. 15 GALS ASTRON 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative Bolster
(3 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS 82.00$       410.00$        

9. 98 LBS EMERALD 70 WG 10 X 0.49 lbs

(20 CASES)  4.90 lbs/CASE 275.00$     1,347.50$     N/B N/B

10. 150 GALS GARY'S GREEN 18-3-4+Iron 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative Green Flo 18-3-6
(30 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS N/B N/B

11. 150GALS SILI-KAL B 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B N/B N/B

12. 150 GALS ULTRAPLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative Iron&Chelaled
(30 CASES) 5 GALS./CASE DMS N/B N/B

13. 75 GALS 23-0-0 CARBON N 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B 24.00$       120.00$        

14. 100 GALS CALPHLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative Green Flo 6-0-0
(20 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS 39.00$       195.00$        

15. 100 GALS PROTESYN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(20 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B 44.00$       220.00$        

16. 68.74 LBS BAYLETON 50WSP 34.37 lbs per

(2 Drums) Drum 79.34$       2,727.00$     N/B N/B

LESCO, Inc.



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 08-06
Opening Date -- 2/28/08 BID TABULATION Pg. 8 of 12
Date Prepared -- 03/20/08 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Great Lakes Turf, LLC

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
17. 150 gals PK PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative Iron&Chelated 12n

(30 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE DMS N/B N/B

18. 4,000 lbs HARRELS TRU-PRILL Alternative Trivex 18-3-18E
(80 BAGS) 15-2-15 GREENS 50 LBS/BAG DMS N/B N/B

19. 17 TONS KELLY'S HIGH
(17 BAGS) CALCIUM LIME GREENS GRADE 1 Ton/Bag N/B N/B N/B N/B

20. 2,000 LBS CASCADE GRANULAR Alternative Lesco Flo
(40 BAGS) 50 LBS/BAG DMS N/B N/B

2 x 2.5 gal
21. 10 GALS PRIMO MAXX 1 X 10 GALS Alternative Regimax PGR

(1 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK 320.00$     1,600.00$     N/B N/B

22. 40 GALS PERK-UP 2 X 2.5 GALS

(8 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B 82.00$       410.00$        

23. 110 lbs Alliette/Signature 2 x 11 lbs Alternative Prodigy Signature

(5 Cases) 22 lbs/CASE 22.39$       492.58$        N/B N/B
30 Gal Drum

24. 25 Gals RETAIN 2 X 2.5 GALS 80.00$       2,400.00$      
(5 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B 88.00$       440.00$        

30 Gal Drum
25. 30 Gals PERVADE 2 X 2.5 GALS 34.00$       1,020.00$      

(6 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B 36.00$       180.00$        
4 x 1 Gal/Case

26. 25 Gals ALLECTUS 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative Allectus GC SC
(5 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 271.88$     1,087.52$     N/B N/B

27. 50 lbs PROSTAR 10 x 1 lb

(5 Cases) 10 lbs/CASE 56.44$       564.40$        N/B N/B
55 Gal

28. 20 Gals CASCADE PLUS Alternative Lesco Flo Ultra
(1 Drum) 20 gal. DRUM DMS N/B N/B

29. 4,000 LBS VERDE-CAL G
(80 Bags) 50 lbs/ BAG N/B N/B N/B N/B

30. 1,000 lbs ALLECTUS GRANULAR
(20 Bags) 50 lbs/ BAG 1.74$         87.00$          N/B N/B

31. 75 Gals CARBON K 0-0-24 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B 26.00$       130.00$        
50 lb Bag

32. 4,000 LBS ANDERSON'S 18-9-18 40 LBS/BAG Alternative Trivex 20-2-16E
(100 Bags) CONTEC DG PRO DMS N/B N/B

33. 30 LBS CUTLESS 30 x 8 oz 15 lb/mini drum
(1 DRUM) 30 LBS/DRUM 111.34$     1,670.10$     N/B N/B

CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 08-06

LESCO, Inc.



Opening Date -- 2/28/08 BID TABULATION Pg. 9 of 12
Date Prepared - 03/20/08 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: Great Lakes Turf, LLC

 EST UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
34. 30 Gals PK FIGHT 0-0-28 2 X 2.5 Gals Alternative Green Flo 0-0-5

(6 Cases) 5 Gal/Case DMS 43.00$       215.00$        

35. 180 LBS P-48
(6 PAILS) 30 LBS/PAILS N/B N/B 3.83$         115.00$        

36. 80 GALS LESCO - FLO 2 X 2.5 Gals

(16 CASES) 5 Gal/Case 56.59$      282.45$       N/B N/B
4x10x8oz=320/16oz = 20lbs/cs Alternative TEE OFF

37. 60 LBS CLEARY's 3336 6 X 2 lbs/Case Alternative Lesco T-Storm Per Gallon 2 x 2.5 Case
(5 CASES) 12 lbs/Case 12.25$      245.01$       140.00$     700.00$         

38. 48 LBS DISARM 24 X 1 LB.JUG 4 x 16 oz
(2 CASES) 24 LBS/Case 270.00$     1,080.00$     N/B N/B

39. 200 GALS GLACIER 4F 2 X 2.5 Gals Alternative Revere 4000 FL
(40 CASES) 5 Gal/Case 29.00$       145.00$        N/B N/B

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF AWARDED ITEMS --

MINIMUM SHIPMENT:              NONE              1 Case
Days after call              7 - 10              2 Days

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Oper:   8 AM to 5 PM     M-F        8 AM to 5 PM
    Phone #      (800) 321-5325       (586) 915-9281

TERMS   0%   Net 30 Days Net 30 from date of receipt

WARRANTY            Blank          Per Manufacturers

EXCEPTIONS            Blank Item #37  Tee Off is Generic
tiophanate methyl.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N               Yes                Yes

G:ITB-COT 08-06 Chemicals-Golf Courses

5,254.23$                         21,820.00$                        

LESCO, Inc.



 CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 08-06
Opening Date -- 2/28/08 BID TABULATION Pg 10 of 12
Date Prepared - 03/20/08 (sl) CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME:

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 100 GALS CHIPCO 26 GT FLOWABLEAlt:Chipco 2 X 2.5 GALS

(20 CASES)  IPRODIONE PRO 2 SE 5 GALS/CASE 65.00$          325.00$           

2. 150 GALS DACONIL WEATHERSTIK 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 CASES) or ECHO 720 5 GALS/CASE 28.40$         142.00$          

3. 10 GALS BANOL 2 X 1 GAL

(5 CASES) 2 GALS/CASE 415.00$        830.00$           

4.  60 GALS AQUA-AID 30 GALS Alternative Aquaduct
(2 DRUMS) WETTING AGENT PER DRUM 41.50$          1,245.00$        

5. 24 lbs GALLERY 4 x 1 lb

(6 CASES) HERBICIDE 4 1lbs/Case 142.00$        568.00$           

6. 50 GALS TRINITY 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 305.00$       1,525.00$       

7. 153.6 oz MERIT 75 W.S.P. 4 X 4 X 1.6 OZ.

(6 CASES) 25.6 OZ./CASE 11.05$          282.88$           

8. 15 GALS ASTRON 2 X 2.5 GALS

(3 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B

9. 98 LBS EMERALD 70 WG 10 X 0.49 lbs

(20 CASES)  4.90 lbs/CASE 275.00$        1,347.50$        

10. 150 GALS GARY'S GREEN 18-3-4+Iron 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative Plant Food 18-3-6
(30 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS

11. 150GALS SILI-KAL B 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B

12. 150 GALS ULTRAPLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 CASES) 5 GALS./CASE N/B N/B

13. 75 GALS 23-0-0 CARBON N 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B

14. 100 GALS CALPHLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative Calcium Nitrate
(20 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE DMS

15. 100 GALS PROTESYN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(20 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B

16. 68.74 LBS BAYLETON 50WSP 34.37 lbs per

(2 Drums) Drum N/B N/B

Tri-Turf



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 08-06
Opening Date -- 2/28/08 BID TABULATION Pg. 11 of 12
Date Prepared - 03/20/08 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME:

EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
17. 150 gals PK PLUS 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative K-Phite 7LP

(30 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE DMS

18. 4,000 lbs HARRELS TRU-PRILL
(80 BAGS) 15-2-15 GREENS 50 LBS/BAG N/B N/B

19. 17 TONS KELLY'S HIGH
(17 BAGS) CALCIUM LIME GREENS GRADE 1 Ton/Bag N/B N/B

20. 2,000 LBS CASCADE GRANULAR Alternative Primer SWDG
(40 BAGS) 50 LBS/BAG 2.10$            105.00$           

21. 10 GALS PRIMO MAXX 1 X 10 GALS 10 Gal
(1 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK 258.00$       2,580.00$       

22. 40 GALS PERK-UP 2 X 2.5 GALS

(8 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B

23. 110 lbs Alliette/Signature 2 x 11 lbs

(5 Cases) 22 lbs/CASE 24.00$          528.00$           

24. 25 Gals RETAIN 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative Primer Select
(5 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE DMS

25. 30 Gals PERVADE 2 X 2.5 GALS Alternative Dispatch
(6 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 59.00$          295.00$           

26. 25 Gals ALLECTUS 2 X 2.5 GALS

(5 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 262.00$        1,310.00$        

27. 50 lbs PROSTAR 10 x 1 lb

(5 Cases) 10 lbs/CASE 51.00$          510.00$           

28. 20 Gals CASCADE PLUS Alternative 16-90
(1 Drum) 20 gal. DRUM DMS

29. 4,000 LBS VERDE-CAL G
(80 Bags) 50 lbs/ BAG N/B N/B

30. 1,000 lbs ALLECTUS GRANULAR
(20 Bags) 50 lbs/ BAG 1.55$            77.50$             

31. 75 Gals CARBON K 0-0-24 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B
50 lb bag

32. 4,000 LBS ANDERSON'S 18-9-18 40 LBS/BAG Alternative LEBANON 18-3-18
(100 Bags) CONTEC DG PRO DMS

33. 30 LBS CUTLESS
(1 DRUM) 30 LBS/DRUM N/B N/B

Tri-Turf



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 08-06
Opening Date -- 2/28/08 BID TABULATION Pg. 12 of 12
Date Prepared -- 03/20/08 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME:

 EST UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
34. 30 Gals PK FIGHT 0-0-28 2 X 2.5 Gals Alternative K-Phite

(6 Cases) 5 Gal/Case DMS

35. 180 LBS P-48
(6 PAILS) 30 LBS/PAILS N/B N/B

36. 80 GALS LESCO - FLO 2 X 2.5 Gals Alternative 16-90
(16 CASES) 5 Gal/Case 62.00$          310.00$           

37. 60 LBS CLEARY's 3336 6 X 2 lbs/Case

(5 CASES) 12 lbs/Case 17.10$          205.20$           

38. 48 LBS DISARM 24 X 1 LB.JUG 16 oz 24 Units
(2 CASES) 24 LBS/Case 259.00$        6,216.00$        

39. 200 GALS GLACIER 4F 2 X 2.5 Gals

(40 CASES) 5 Gal/Case 23.50$          117.50$           

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF AWARDED ITEMS --

MINIMUM SHIPMENT:          No Minimum
Days after call              1 Day

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Oper:      8:00 AM  to 5:00 PM
    Phone #      (248) 640-4439

TERMS       2%  10 - Net 60*

WARRANTY         Manufactor

EXCEPTIONS * Agency Terms - Invoice before
3/31/08  Terms 6/13/08  
Invoice after 3/31/08 Terms Net 60
Next day delivery

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N                 Yes

G:ITB-COT 08-06 Chemicals-Golf Courses

22,090.00$                               

Tri-Turf



 

 
March 31, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mary Redden, Administrative Assistant to the City Manager   
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 

Expend Funds on Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expenses – 
National League of Cities (NLC) Finance, Administration, and Intergovernmental 
Relations (FAIR) Steering Committee’s Spring Conference 

 
Background: 
 
 Council Member Beltramini requests approval to travel to Brevard, North Carolina from May 8-

10,2 008 in order to attend the NLC FAIR Steering Committee’s spring conference.  Discussions 
will focus on NLC policy and federal relationships in these areas. 

 Conference materials are not yet available, so are not included as back-up to this agenda item. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Funds are available in City Council’s Education and Training account, number 102.7960. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Council member attendance of educational conferences potentially impacts all of the established 

goals and objectives for the city. 
 
Options: 
 
 Staff requests that Council pass a resolution that would authorize approval to expend funds on 

any travel expenses incurred as a result of Council Member Beltramini’s attendance of the  NLC 
FAIR Steering Committee’s spring conference in Brevard, North Carolina. 

 
 
 
 
MR/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2008\04.07.08 – Standard Purchasing Resolution #10 – NLC FAIR Steering Committee Spring Conference 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04j



 
March 27, 2008 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Charles T. Craft, Police Chief 

Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 
  
Background 

• Motor City Harley-Davidson is the low total bidder in the Oakland County cooperative bid. 
• The four motorcycles being purchased are replacements, due to lease termination. 

 
Financial Considerations 

• Funds are available in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account # 565.7981. 
• Motorcycle usage will be charged back to the Police Department on an hourly rate basis, consistent 

with current vehicle rental practice. 
                                                                                                                                       ESTIMATED 

                UNIT COST    TOTAL 
 Motor City Harley-Davidson  

    (4) Model FLHTP W/ABS brakes & Title    $15,436.00  $61,744.00 
         _________  _________ 

   ESTIMATED  TOTAL   $15,436.00  $61,744.00 
 
Legal Considerations 

• There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  
 
Policy Considerations 

• The motorcycles are used on a daily basis, weather permitting, to assure proper and proactive Police 
protection and service (Goal I). 

• The purchase of the Police motorcycles would assure the safety and welfare of citizens and businesses 
and also reduce the liability for the City. (Goal I). 

• Harley Davidson motorcycles are fuel efficient and maneuver more easily thru congested traffic than 
patrol cars. (Goal II) 

 
Options 

• City management and the Public Works Fleet Division recommend awarding a contract to purchase 
four (4) 2008 FLHTP Harley Davidson motorcycles from Motor City Harley Davidson, Farmington Hills, 
MI, through the Oakland County purchasing agreement at an estimated total cost of $61,744.00.   

 
 
SPL\S:\Murphy’s Review/Agenda- 4. 7.08 – SR4- Vehicles Oakland County Letter 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04k



 

 
March 25, 2008 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:                 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: – Award To Low Bidders – Hauling/Disposal of Dirt 

and Debris 
Background 
 On March 17, 2008, bid proposals were received for one-year requirements of Hauling/Disposal of Dirt and 

Debris with an option to renew for one additional year. 
 78 vendors were notified via the MITN system with eight (8) bid responses and one statement of no bid 

received.  In addition, one (1) bid was submitted that could not be considered for a different solicitation, 
which opened the previous week. 

 Each item on the proposal was considered as a separate bid; and recommendations made to the lowest 
responsible bidders for each item. 
 

Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the 2008 Operating Budgets for the Streets and Water departments. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 08-08, Hauling/Disposal of Dirt and Debris was competitively bid as required by City Charter and 

Code. 
 The awards are contingent upon contractors’ submission of proper insurance certificates and all other 

specified requirements. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in providing hauling/disposal 

services for the City of Troy. (Goal II) 
 
Options 
• City management recommends awarding contracts on an item by item basis to the three low bidders.   
 
Recommended Vendors Item / Description Price/Ton 
Anglin Civil - Novi A).    Disposal of Broken Concrete with & without  

         wire, possibly mixed 
$3.75

Bedrock Express LTD - Ortonville B).    Broken Asphalt possibly mixed with fill dirt 
C)    Fill Dirt, material excavated from water and   
        sewer repairs, as well as ditching 
operation.   
        Material may include culverts, large 
stumps,    
        logs & wood materials 
 

$4.24
$4.24

  Osburn Industries - Taylor D).    Catch basin sludge and street sweepings 
         Sauk Trails Landfill (Canton) 
 

$14.00

 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 04.07.08 SR1 Haul-Dispose Dirt-Debris Letter.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04l



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-08
Opening Date -- 3/17/08 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 3
Date Prepared -- 3/25/08 HAULING/DISPOSAL OF DIRT AND DEBRIS

VENDOR NAME: ** Anglin Civil Bedrock Osburn 
Express LTD Industries

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY(TONS)  DESCRIPTION TON TON TON

A. 2,000 Broken concrete with and without wire, possibly mixed 3.75$                 4.24$                5.00$                 
 w/fill dirt

B. 1,000 Broken asphalt possibly mixed with fill dirt 5.25$                 4.24$                5.00$                 

C. 7,000 Fill Dirt, material excavated from water and sewer 5.25$                 4.24$                14.00$               
repairs, as well as ditching operations. Material may
include culverts, large stumps, logs & wood materials

D. 1,000 Catch basin sludge and street sweepings. 18.00$               16.89$              14.00$              

ESTIMATED TOTAL ALL ITEMS: 67,500.00$        59,290.00$       127,000.00$      

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 7,500.00$         33,920.00$       14,000.00$       
Riverview 

DISPOSAL SITE: Saulk Trails Landfill Highland Saulk Trails

APPROVED SITE Y or N Yes Yes Yes
EPA PERMIT #: MIR 000009207 L tt Att h d t Bid MIR 000009207EPA PERMIT #: MIR 000009207 Letter Attached to Bid MIR-000009207

SITE VISIT: Yes/No Yes Yes Yes
Date 3/10/2008 Previous Bids 3/4/2008

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Operations 6 AM to 7 PM M-Sat  7AM to 6 PM 5 AM to 5 PM
24 Hr Phone # 248-521-3833 810-217-6324 313-363-0077

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

EQUIPMENT LIST: Attached Yes Yes No
30 days Net 30

TERMS:  1 1/2% per annum 2% Disc - 10 th Net 30

PICK-UP SCHEDULE:

EXCEPTIONS: None Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed Y or N Yes Yes Yes

NO BID: 
Allied Waste Services - Detroit North PROPOSAL: One (1) Year Requirements of Hauling and Disposal of Dirt

  and Debris with an Option to Renew for One (1) Additional Year

ATTEST: ** DENOTES LOW BIDDERS
Diane Fisher
Deana Theobald ___________________________
Tom Rosewarne Susan Leirstein CPPB
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

AS SPECIFIED



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-08
Opening Date -- 3/17/08 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 3
Date Prepared -- 3/25/08 HAULING/DISPOSAL OF DIRT AND DEBRIS

VENDOR NAME: Lukes Trucking Gipson Brothers Homrich, Inc.
& Excavating Trucking, Inc.

LLC

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY(TONS)   DESCRIPTION TON TON TON

A. 2,000 Broken concrete with and without wire, possibly mixed 4.95$                 5.50$               10.00$                
 w/fill dirt

B. 1,000 Broken asphalt possibly mixed with fill dirt 5.25$                 6.25$               10.00$                

C. 7,000 Fill Dirt, material excavated from water and sewer 5.25$                 7.00$               8.00$                  
repairs, as well as ditching operations. Material may
include culverts, Large Stumps, logs & wood materials

D. 1,000 Catch basin sludge and street sweepings. 17.65$               18.00$             19.00$                

ESTIMATED TOTAL ALL ITEMS: 69,550.00$        84,250.00$      105,000.00$       

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: N/A N/A N/A
Oakland 

DISPOSAL SITE: Heights Developmt Sauk Trail Hills Sauk Trail Hills

APPROVED SITE Y or N Yes Yes Yes
EPA PERMIT #: MID 985607076 Blank Lic #9152 /FID 410118

SITE VISIT: Yes/No Yes Yes No
Date 2/22/2008 3/7/2008

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Operations M-Sat   7 AM to 7PM M-F  7am to 5pm M-F   7 am to 5pm
24 Hr Phone # 248-240-0938 313-330-3073 Provided upon award

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

Addendum "A"
EQUIPMENT LIST: Attached Yes Yes Yes

TERMS: Net 30 days 30 Days Net 30 Days

PICK-UP SCHEDULE:
See Addendum "B"

EXCEPTIONS: Price of fuel reachs N/A Proposal is based
$4.50 during Contract on award of all items
.25 cent per ton will

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed Y or N be added; at $5.00 Yes Yes
an additional .25 cents
for a total of $.50

Yes

G:\HaulingDirt&Debris ITB-COT 08-08

AS SPECIFIED



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-08
Opening Date -- 3/17/08 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 3
Date Prepared -- 3/25/08 HAULING/DISPOSAL OF DIRT AND DEBRIS

VENDOR NAME: Lou's Transport Able Demolition
Inc Inc.

EST PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY(TONS)   DESCRIPTION TON TON

A. 2,000 Broken concrete with and without wire, possibly mixed 25.00$             12.00$               
 w/fill dirt

B. 1,000 Broken asphalt possibly mixed with fill dirt 25.00$             13.00$               

C. 7,000 Fill Dirt, material excavated from water and sewer 25.00$             40.00$               
repairs, as well as ditching operations. Material may
include culverts, Large Stumps, logs & wood materials

D. 1,000 Catch basin sludge and street sweepings. 25.00$             40.00$               

ESTIMATED TOTAL ALL ITEMS: 275,000.00$    357,000.00$      

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: N/A N/A
Oakland

DISPOSAL SITE: Heights Landfill Pinetree Acres

APPROVED SITE Y or N Yes Yes
EPA PERMIT #: MID 985607076 101046 MI

SITE VISIT: Yes/No Blank No
Date Blank

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Operations 7 AM to 5 PM 6 AM to 5 PM
24 Hr Phone # 248-467-7108 810-217-4739

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

Addendum "A"
EQUIPMENT LIST: Attached Yes Yes

TERMS: Blank Net 30 Days

PICK-UP SCHEDULE:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed Y or N Yes Yes

G:\HaulingDirt&Debris ITB-COT 08-08

AS SPECIFIED



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
March 28, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 
    William Nelson, Fire Chief 

Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
     
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Regional Educational Media Center – 

REMC Cooperative Program - Purchase of Storage Area Network (SAN) 
 

Background 
 The Police and Fire Departments are approaching a point where electronic storage of files must 

be expanded to meet current and future needs.   
 Evidence Technicians and Fire Investigators have been using digital photography to collect 

evidence at fire, crime, and other incident scenes.  These photos are quite large and must be 
stored for lengthy periods depending on the type of case.  The storage demands for evidence and 
other digital photographs and documentation is beginning to fill up the Police and Fire file server.  
This solution will provide large storage areas thereby freeing up space on the file server.  It will 
also provide a better method for storage, retrieval, and managing the chain of custody in 
evidentiary digital photographs. 

 The Police Department also needs to expand storage capability of the building security system.  
Most important in this system is the Lockup Section.  Police administrators have set a target of 
storing digital data two years.  Interviews conducted by investigators will also be stored for a 
greater length of time. 

 The Police Department also needs to expand the length of time the in-car videos are stored.   
 By proper configuration of the SAN system, the Police department can better utilize the storage 

across a wider number of applications and allocate storage on a real time, as needed basis. 
 The single SAN system, as opposed to independent storage devoted to a particular application, 

also allows the Police department to purchase more storage while lowering procurement and 
implementation costs.   

 The single SAN system also allows for lower future expansion costs.   
 

Financial Considerations 
 Funding for this project is available in the Police department communications capital accounts 

#401325.7980.030 and #401325.7980.050.  Funding for the Fire Department’s share is available 
in account #338.7740.115. 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04m



Page 2 of 2 
 

March 28, 2008 
 
To:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: REMC Cooperative Program – Storage Area Network 
 
 

Legal Considerations 
 While there are no legislative mandates addressing the storage of digital photography, the 

purchase of the SAN system will insure the Department meets or exceeds the length of time 
police administrators have established in department policy.   

 

Policy Considerations 
 The purchase of the SAN system will increase the Police and Fire Departments’ efficiency in 

storing photographs, videos, and other evidence and documents (Goals #2 – “Minimize cost and 
increase efficiency of City government” and #4 – “Effectively and professionally communicate 
internally and externally”), and provides long term storage capability and reduces civil liability 
(Goal #1 – “Protect life and property”). 

 

Options 
 City management recommends that the City Council authorize the purchase of the Hewlett 

Packard storage server solution from Hewlett Packard under the REMC contract at an estimated 
cost of $46,878.00.  Furthermore, since Dyntek Services, Inc. is familiar with the existing 
installation of the Hewlett Packard hardware and software storage solution in general, it is 
recommended they be employed to install, configure, and train department personnel in the 
operation of the system at an estimated cost of $1,500.00.  The total estimated cost of the project 
is $48,378.00.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 – StorageAreaNetwork 03.08.doc 



 

SHOPPING CART 
Today's Date : 3/3/2008 2:15:48 PM 
Contract: MI - REMC (WSCAII) ( HP-WSCA-04 ) 

Product availability and product discontinuation are subject to change without notice.  The prices in this 
shopping cart are valid for 30 days from the date above.  If you do not wish to place this order electronically, 
please include this form when submitting your purchase order.  
Show address and comment fields. Use the File - Print option to print this form for your future reference.  

 

 Items/description Part no  Unit price Qty Ext price
HP ProLiant DL380 G5 Base Storage Server Base  $5,216.00 1 $5,216.00
HP ProLiant DL380 G5 Base Storage Server AG815A   
Form factor 
2U Rack 

   

Processor 
1 x Quad-Core Intel Xeon E5345 2.33 GHz / 1333 FSB / 2 x 4MB L2 
cache (up to 2 supported) 

   

Memory 
2GB (up to 32GB) Memory 

   

Memory protection 
Advanced ECC 

   

Network controller 
Embedded dual NC373i Multifunction Gigabit Server Adapters with 
TOE 

   

Storage controller 
Smart Array P800 Controller with 512MB cache (RAID 0/1/5) 

   

External storage 
Supports MSA50/60/70 

   

Internal storage 
2 x 36GB 3G SAS 15K SFF HDDs (for mirrored OS internal to 
server) 

   

External Storage Included 
No external storage included 

   

 
HP 2GB Smart Buy Fully Buffered DIMM PC2-5300 2X1GB Memory 397411-S21  $174.00 1 $174.00

 

 
 
 
 
24x7, 4 hr response hardware on-site 3 yrs UB952E  $1,807.00 1 $1,807.00
 
MSA1500 Dual channel SCSI I/O module AA988A  $420.00 3 $1,260.00
 
HP 750GB SATA 3.5 1.5Gb 7,200 rpm Hard Drive 432341-B21  $356.00 36 $12,816.00

 

 
 
 
HP Modular Smart Array 20 Base  $1,525.00 3 $4,575.00
HP Modular Smart Array 20 335921-B21   
Form factor    



3.5 in. (drive) 
2U (enclosure) 
Total drive count 
Up to 12 SATA drives 

   

Capacity 
Up to 9TB of storage 

   

Interface 
SATA drive interface; Ultra320 SCSI host interface 

   

Expansion 
Supports MSA1500cs, MSA1510i 

   

 

 
 
 
HP StorageWorks 20 Modular Smart Array w/ 12 750GB SATA 
drives & MSA1500 controller shelf bundle 

Base  $9,359.00 1 $9,359.00

HP StorageWorks 20 Modular Smart Array w/ 12 750GB SATA 
drives & MSA1500 controller shelf bundle 

AJ686A   

Form factor 
3.5 in. (drive) 
2U (enclosure) 

   

Total drive count 
Includes 12 x 750GB SATA drives 

   

Capacity 
9TB of storage 

   

Interface 
SATA drive interface; Ultra320 SCSI host interface 

   

Expansion 
Includes MSA1500 controller shelf 

   

 

 
 
 
 
HP 3year 4hour 24x7 MSA20/30/50 HW Support U8130E  $956.00 4 $3,824.00

 

 
 
 
 
HP StorageWorks MSA1500 HA Starter G2 Upgrade Kit AE328B  $6,131.00 1 $6,131.00

 

 
 
 
 
HP 3year SupportPlus 24 ProLiant DL380 G4/G5 Storage Server 
Service 

UD575E  $1,716.00 1 $1,716.00

Subtotal:  $46,878.00
   

 



DynTek Services, Inc.
24401 Halsted Road

Farmington Hills, MI  48335
Phone: 248.474.6641  Fax: 248.477.5549

Fed ID# 13-4067484

Q U O T A T I O N
Date Quotation #

03/03/08 DTKQ12538

Ship To:Quote To:

City of Troy City of Troy

Ryan Wolf Ryan Wolf

City Clerk
500 W. Big Beaver Road
Troy, MI 48084

City Clerk
500 W. Big Beaver Road
Troy, MI 48084

Phone: (248) 619 7697 Phone: (248) 619 7697

Terms Salesperson Quotation Expires

NET 30 30 days

Ln # Qty Part Number Description Unit List Price Unit Price Ext. Price

1 1 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00DynServ DynTek Services - HP SAN Installation 

SubTotal $1,500.00

Sales Tax $0.00

Shipping $0.00

Total $1,500.00

Comments or Special Instructions:

Please give me a call for questions.
Please fax all orders to (248) 477-5549.

Thanks!

Tom White
Senior Account Manager
Incomp Technical Services Group
Formerly DynTek 
(248) 477-5385
Tom.White@dyntek.com

The undersigned accepts quotation and authorizes DynTek to order and invoice for this product and/or services.

Date ___________________  Signature  __________________________________  Printed Name_____________________________

03/03/08 14:59:09 Page 1



campbellld
Text Box
F-05





 
Date April 2, 2008 

 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Proposed City of Troy Precinct Boundary Alterations & Relocations
  

Background: 
 

 
The City Clerk’s Office has received and reviewed City precinct boundary and voter 
allocations associated with the redistricting authorized by City Council on January 7, 2008 
from the State of Michigan. As part of the review, the number of registered voters allocated 
to every precinct was confirmed. This number is approximated during the process of 
redistricting and unfortunately not confirmable until the information is processed by the 
State of Michigan. While the City of Troy GIS system was utilized to approximate the 
numbers, it is not an exact number and because of the inability to confirm this number until 
after the State makes the map changes, discrepancies may exist. Such is the case with the 
most recent relocation of precinct boundaries. The Clerk’s Office has found an unbalanced 
situation existing in the Warren Consolidated School District precincts. 
 
Precincts 24 and 25 are both housed at St. George Antiochian Orthodox Church located at 
2160 East Maple Road. Precinct 24 has 3,100+ registered voters and Precinct 25 has 
approximately 1,700 registered voters. The boundaries should have been drawn to have a 
more balanced allocation of voters. The proposal will move the portion of Section 26 within 
the Warren Consolidated School District and the portion of Section 25 south of Garry Street 
and west of Milverton Street within the Warren Consolidated School District to be appended 
to Precinct 25. The remainder of Section 25 in the Warren Consolidated School District will 
comprise Precinct 24 in its entirety. This change will provide for a more balanced 
distribution of voters and compliance with the Election Law provision which limits the 
number of registered voters to exceed not more than 2,999.  
 
The reallocation of the voters will be seamless to the voters. They will continue to vote in 
the same polling location. The reallocation will provide for a balancing of lines and demands 
on each precinct. While it would be the desire of the Clerk’s Office to hold off on making this 
adjustment until after the May 6th Election, it is in the best interest of the voters to make the 
adjustments expeditiously to allow for Precinct Delegate filings to occur prior to the May 13th 
deadline. Currently, there are no filings for Precinct Delegates within the area proposed to 
be relocated. 
 
Election Law provides for the boundary adjustment to be made by the Election Commission; 
however, in the past and in addition to the Election Commission approval, the Council has 
been requested to approve the adjustment. The Election Commission was alerted to the 
potential change at their meeting on March 24, 2008, and is anticipating it coming before 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



them for action in the near future.  
 
The reconfiguration will not affect the ability of the City’s practice to consolidate precincts for 
elections that do not contain state or federal offices/questions. This requested change will 
not have any bearing on the upcoming Warren Consolidated School District Election, as 
these two precincts have been consolidated for the May 6, 2008 Election. All voters in the 
Warren Consolidated School District, Precincts 24 and 25, will be receiving new Voter 
Identification Cards similarly to all Troy voters receiving boundary or polling location 
changes associated with the redistricting of January 7, 2008. 
 
City Management recommends that Precinct 24 and 25 divisional boundary be changed as 
indicated on the attached precinct map effective with the August 5, 2008 Primary Election.  
 
Notification will be posted at current and former locations during the 2008 election cycle to 
inform voters. Maps and copies of the new precinct boundary details and polling locations 
will be forwarded to the Secretary of State and Oakland County upon adoption. 
 

Financial Considerations: 
 

The one-time cost for printing and mailing new voter identification cards to voters is 
estimated at $250.00. 

 

Legal Considerations: 
 

There are no known policy considerations. 
 

Policy Considerations: 
 

There are no known policy considerations. 
 

Options: 
 

Adopt the proposed revised precinct boundary separating Precincts 24 and 25.  
 



2427
25

30

12
11

16

2220
19

21 23

28

18 17

8

15 14 13

1097

6 4
5

2 1

26

3

31

29

DE
QU

IN
DR

E

JO
HN

 R

LIV
ER

NO
IS

AD
AM

S

CO
OL

ID
GE

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

CR
OO

KS

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER

AD
AM

S

ST
EP

HE
NS

ON

CO
OL

ID
GE

75

JO
HN

 R

CR
OO

KS

FOURTEEN MILE

LIV
ER

NO
IS

WATTLES

LONG LAKE

SQUARE
LAKE

SOUTH BLVD

DE
QU

IN
DR

E

MAPLE

BIG BEAVER

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

LONG LAKE

MAPLE

75

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

MA
IN

D
C

I

M

L

R

H

Q

G

P

F

J

O

N

K

E

B A

Voting Precinct Map

Effective: 6/1/2008

PRECINCT ADDRESS LOCACTION MAP ID
1 2601 E SQUARE LAKE EVANSWOOD CHURCH OF GOD A
2 1825 E SQUARE LAKE KENSINGTON COMMUNITY CHURCH B
3 6660 ROCHESTER WOODSIDE BIBLE CHURCH C
4 280 E SQUARE LAKE ST ELIZABETH ANN SETON CATHOLIC CHURCH H
5 6710 CROOKS FAITH APOSTOLIC CHURCH D
6 6685 COOLIDGE HWY. TROY NATURE CENTER E
7 5500 ADAMS ST STEPHEN EPISCOPAL CHURCH F
8 1800 W LONG LAKE NORTHFIELD HILLS BAPTIST CHURCH G
9 280 E SQUARE LAKE ST ELIZABETH ANN SETON CATHOLIC CHURCH H

10 1825 E SQUARE LAKE KENSINGTON COMMUNITY CHURCH B
11 2601 E SQUARE LAKE EVANSWOOD CHURCH OF GOD A
12 6660 ROCHESTER WOODSIDE BIBLE CHURCH C
13 2075 E LONG LAKE BETHESDA ROMANIAN PENTECOSTAL CHURCH I
14 4571 JOHN R ST ANASTASIA CATHOLIC CHURCH J
15 200 E WATTLES ST LUCY CROATIAN CHURCH O
16 4328 LIVERNOIS FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH K
17 760 W WATTLES ST NICHOLAS GREEK ORTHODOX CHURCH L
18 5500 ADAMS ST STEPHEN EPISCOPAL CHURCH F
19 2345 COOLIDGE ST ALAN CATHOLIC CHURCH Q
20 760 W WATTLES ST NICHOLAS GREEK ORTHODOX CHURCH L
21 200 E WATTLES ST LUCY CROATIAN CHURCH O
22 4571 JOHN R ST ANASTASIA CATHOLIC CHURCH J
23 2442 E BIG BEAVER ST JOSEPH CHALDEAN CATHOLIC CHURCH P
24 2160 E MAPLE ST GEORGE ANTIOCHIAN ORTHODOX CHURCH R
25 2160 E MAPLE ST GEORGE ANTIOCHIAN ORTHODOX CHURCH R
26 3179 LIVERNOIS TROY COMMUNITY CENTER N
27 3179 LIVERNOIS TROY COMMUNITY CENTER N
28 2345 COOLIDGE ST ALAN CATHOLIC CHURCH Q
29 3150 N ADAMS NORTH HILLS CHRISTIAN REFORMED CHURCH M
30 3179 LIVERNOIS TROY COMMUNITY CENTER N
31 6685 COOLIDGE HWY. TROY NATURE CENTER E



campbellld
Text Box
F-07

























campbellld
Text Box
F-08







campbellld
Text Box
F-09





campbellld
Text Box
F-10

















campbellld
Text Box
F-11











campbellld
Text Box
F-12















Page 1 of 2 

 

 
   
March 31, 2008 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
RE:  Contract Extension – Concrete Pavement Repair 

 
Background 
• June 4, 2007, Troy City Council exercised the renewal option  for concrete 

pavement repair contracts for one (1) additional year to the low bidders:  Hard 
Rock Concrete for proposal A), A-1)- Local Roads; Six-S, Inc for proposal B)- 
Major Roads; and Major Cement Company for proposal C)- Industrial Roads 
(Resolution #2007-06-172-E4d).  

• All three contractors have agreed to extend and amend the construction 
quantities under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the original 2006 
contracts.   

• A favorable market survey was conducted in 2007 by the Purchasing Department 
and determined the City would not benefit from soliciting additional sealed bids. 

• The Engineering Department proposed to the Road Commission for Oakland 
County (RCOC) that concrete slab replacements be done early this spring on 
portions of John R, Dequindre and Big Beaver roads using 2008 Tri-Party 
Program Funds in the amount of $189,000.00.  The City’s contractor, Six-S Inc. 
as part of this contract extension, would do these repairs.  A separate cost 
participation agreement with the RCOC requires Council approval, after 
acceptance of this contract extension with Six-S.    

 
Financial Considerations  
• Funds for this project should be available in the 2008/09 Capital Accounts for 

Public Works Construction. 
• Proposal A, Local Roads, #401499.7989.500   
• Proposal B, Major Roads, #401479.7989.500  
• Proposal C, Industrial Roads, #401479.7989.300 
•  Funds for the City of Troy’s share of the Tri-Party Program work are included in 

the 2007/08 Major Road fund, account number #401479.7989.500 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
F-13



Page 2 of 2 

March 31, 2008 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re  Contract Extension – Concrete Pavement Repair 
 
Legal Considerations  
• ITB-COT 06-42, Concrete Pavement Repair was competitively bid and vendors 

were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in 2006. 
• Formal bidding procedures are waived, as no benefit would be derived from 

soliciting additional sealed bids. 
 
Policy Considerations  
• Concrete pavement repair preserves infrastructure and would improve public 

safety and also reduce liability for the City. (Goal I & V) 
 
Options 

City management and the Public Works department request a waiver of the 
formal bid process and approval to extend contracts for one (1) additional year to 
the low bidders: Hard Rock Concrete Inc. of Westland for proposal A, A-1, Local 
Roads; Six-S, Inc. of Waterford for proposal B – Major Roads, and Major Cement 
Company of Detroit for proposal C- Industrial Roads; with amended construction 
quantities under the same prices, terms and conditions as the original contract to 
expire June 30, 2009, not to exceed budgetary limitations.  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 













Page 1 of 2 

 

 
  May 29, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
RE:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option  –  

Concrete Pavement Repair 
 

Background 
• On October 23, 2006, Troy City Council approved contracts for concrete 

pavement repair with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low 
bidders by proposal: Hard Rock Concrete for proposal A), A-1)- Local Roads, 
Six-S, Inc for proposal B)- Major Roads, and Major Cement Company for 
proposal C)- Industrial Roads (Resolution #2006-10-320-E4e).  

• Hard Rock Concrete Inc., Six-S, Inc., and Major Cement Company have agreed 
to renew and amend the construction quantities under the same prices, terms, 
and conditions as 2006/07. 

• All three contractors have been producing a quality product for the City. 
• A favorable market survey was conducted by the Purchasing Department and 

determined the City would not benefit from soliciting additional sealed bids. 
 
Financial Considerations  
• Funds for this project are available in the 2007/08 Capital Accounts for Public 

Works Construction. 
• Proposal A. Acc.# 401499.7989.500 Local Roads, Section 7,15,13 & 19 
• Proposal B. Acc.# 401479.7989.500 Major Roads, Coolidge & Rochester 
• Proposal C. Acc.# 401479.7989.300 Industrial Roads Northwood, Alger, Chicago 

& Minnesota 
 
Legal Considerations  
• ITB-COT 06-42, Concrete Pavement Repair was competitively bid and opened 

October 10, 2006, with ten bidders responding. 
• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the 

concrete pavement repair program. 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

pallottaba
Text Box
E-04d



Page 2 of 2 

May 29, 2007 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re  Exercise Renewal Option – Concrete Pavement Repair 
 
 
Policy Considerations  
• Concrete pavement repair preserves infrastructure and would improve public 

safety and also reduce liability for the City. (Goal I & V) 
 
Options 
• City management and the Public Works department recommend exercising the 

option to renew for one (1) additional year to three separate low bidders: Hard 
Rock Concrete Inc. of Westland for proposal A, A-1, Local Roads; Six-S, Inc. of 
Waterford for proposal B – Major Roads; and Major Cement Company of Detroit 
for proposal C – Industrial Roads with amended construction quantities, under 
the same prices, terms and conditions as the original contract to expire June 30, 
2008. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mbf  S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 06.04.07 SR3 ConcretePavementRepair 
 



 
 

   May 10, 2007 
 

TO:      Susan Leirstein CPPB 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:      Linda N. Bockstanz 
      Associate Buyer 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR  
 
HARTWELL CEMENT CO. – Lisa                                                                     (248) 548-5858 
Lisa has indicated that concrete will increase in price because of fuel prices. The increase will 
be about 15% to 20%. Companies that deliver product to their business have been charging 
them a fuel surcharge – so they have to pass this additional cost on to their customers.   
 
FLORENCE CEMENT CO. – Angelo Lanni                                                        (586) 997-2666 
According to Angelo, prices will be going up 20% because of the rising cost of fuel and labor 
costs.  He will have to increase his prices also to accommodate for these items.  
 
GIORGI CONCRETE LLC – Michelle Solomon                                                  (313) 366-2921 
Michelle informed me that because of fuel cost being high – the cost of concrete and steel will 
be increasing about 10% to 20% in price.   A fuel surcharge will be included in the cost of 
concrete and any of their other products. 
 
LACARIA CONCRETE – Sal Lacaria                                                                   (313) 843-3865 
Per Sal – he believes that prices will hold because of competition out there.  He is going to hold 
and even lower his if possible. 
 
CENTURY CEMENT CO. – A.J. Pighin                                                               (734) 284-8770 
Called too busy to answer any questions for the market survey. 
 
DILISIO CONTRACTING – Gioseppe Lia                                                             (586) 783-4044 
Called and left messages on 5/8, 5/9, & 5/10/07.  No response to calls. 
 
KOALA-T CONSTRUCTION – Nicholas Reeser                                                  (248) 322-2751 
Called and left messages on 5/8, 5/9, & 5/10/07.  No response to calls. 
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the offers to 
renew the various contracts for Concrete Pavement Repair to the current vendors based on the 
fact costs for Concrete will increase about 10% to 20% because of fuel prices.   
 
CC: File  











CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42
Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 1 
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Hardrock Six-S Major Lacaria
 Concrete Inc Cememt Co Concrete

Ck Number 514507186 710545098-6 710540842-5 473333442
Ck Amount 10,000.00$      10,000.00$      10,000.00$       10,000.00$      

Proposal A:  Abbington, Ashley, Mayberry Littler & Scattered Location in Section #11
Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type 7 Sack HE, - 8" Non-reinforced 1000 S.Y. $33.00 $41.00 $36.00 $35.00
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type 7 Sack HE, - 7" Non-reinforced 16,000 S.Y. $31.00 $39.00 $34.00 $34.50
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $36.00 $37.08 $30.00 $30.00

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $36.00 $37.08 $28.00 $28.00

5 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each $375.00 $229.96 $250.00 $300.00
6 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. $375.00 $227.85 $100.00 $300.00
7 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each $375.00 $229.95 $275.00 $300.00
8 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. $375.00 $227.85 $100.00 $300.00
9 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 1000 CY $17.00 $15.00 $22.00 $20.00

10 Installation of 6” edge drain
(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $12.00 $9.27 $10.00 $10.00

11 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 100 L.F. $22.00 $15.00 $20.00 $20.00
12 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 10 Each $350.00 $286.78 $300.00 $400.00

13 Traffic Maintenance Included
Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A $557,325.00 $688,750.06 $610,650.00 $617,550.00

Proposal A-1: Various Sections - Bradbury, Blair, Gabriel Court, Lyster Lane, Victoria Court & Other Scattered Locations 
Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, - 8" Non-reinforced 800 S.Y. $34.00 $45.75 $42.00 $39.00

2 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, - 7" Non-reinforced 7,000 S.Y. $34.00 $44.20 $40.00 $37.70

3 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $36.00 $38.09 $29.00 $33.00

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $36.00 $38.09 $28.00 $31.00

5 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each $375.00 $236.24 $250.00 $400.00
6 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. $375.00 $234.07 $100.00 $400.00
7 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each $375.00 $236.22 $275.00 $400.00
8 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. $375.00 $234.07 $100.00 $400.00
9 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 500 C.Y. $17.00 $15.00 $21.00 $21.00
10 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $12.00 $8.00 $10.00 $10.00
11 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 100 L.F. $22.00 $15.00 $20.00 $20.00
12 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 10 Each $350.00 $250.00 $300.00 $400.00
13 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A-1 $285,025.00 $361,849.46 $332,725.00 $317,000.00
ESTIMATED TOTAL COST FOR A & A-1: $842,350.00 $1,050,599.52 $943,375.00 $934,550.00



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42
Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 2 
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Hardrock Six-S Major Lacaria
 Concrete Inc Cement Co Concrete
Proposal B  – 2006-07 Major Road Maintenance - Rochester Road, Coolidge Hwy., Elliott & Scattered Locations
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete Pavement

Patching Type P-NC-9" Non-reinforced 18,500 S.Y. No Bid 45.75$                 47.00$              50.75$                 
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 8" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. No Bid 44.00$                 42.00$              50.00$                 
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 7" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. No Bid 42.00$                35.00$              49.00$                 
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced

(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. No Bid 32.00$                 29.00$              48.00$                 
5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk

4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. No Bid 27.00$                 27.00$              40.00$                 
6 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each No Bid 223.31$               250.00$            500.00$               
7 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. No Bid 221.27$               100.00$            500.00$               
8 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each No Bid 223.30$               275.00$            500.00$               
9 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. No Bid 221.27$               100.00$            500.00$               
10 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA Gravel 900 C.Y. No Bid 15.00$                 21.00$              22.00$                 
11 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. No Bid 8.00$                   7.00$                10.00$                 
12 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. No Bid 15.00$                 20.00$              22.00$                 
13 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Ea No Bid 278.49$               250.00$            400.00$               
14 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal B No Bid 872,924.79$       900,625.00$        978,050.00$        

Proposal C: 2006-07 Major Road Maintenance - Industrial - Kirts, Executive, Minnesota, Northfield Parkway, Robbins & Allen
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching Type P-NC-9" Non-rein 18,500 S.Y. 46.00$                 45.75$                 45.00$              50.75$                 
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 8" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 45.00$                 44.00$                 42.00$              50.00$                 
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 7" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 44.00$                 42.00$                 35.00$              49.00$                 
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 36.00$                 32.00$                 29.00$              48.00$                 

5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 36.00$                 27.00$                 27.00$              40.00$                 

6 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each 375.00$               223.31$               250.00$            500.00$               
7 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. 375.00$               221.27$               100.00$            500.00$               
8 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each 375.00$               223.30$               275.00$            500.00$               
9 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. 375.00$               221.27$               100.00$            500.00$               
10 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 900 C.Y. 17.00$                 15.00$                 22.00$              22.00$                 
11 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 12.00$                 8.00$                   7.00$                10.00$                 
12 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 22.00$                 15.00$                 19.00$              22.00$                 
13 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Ea 350.00$               278.49$               250.00$            400.00$               
14 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal C $883,350.00 $872,924.79 $864,425.00 $978,050.00



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42
Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 3
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Hardrock Six-S Major Lacaria
 Concrete Inc Cement Co Concrete

INSURANCE:                      Can Meet XX XX XX XX
                                         Cannot Meet

PROPOSED PAYMENT SCHEDULE:  Bi-Weekly Bi-weekly every two weeks not at this time

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Oper. 7 AM to 8 PM 8 - 5pm 313-532-3212 7 - 5pm
Phone 734-564-0925 248-249-8705 248-388-1168 313-218-6834

AWARD                       100% of Contract XX XX XX
                                         Partial Contract: Proposal A X

Proposal B
Proposal C X

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:

TERMS: As in Contract Net 15 days 14 days Blank
Maintenance

WARRANTY: As per Contract Bond Blank Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank None

ACKNOWLEGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

Legal Status of Bidder Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes
Non-Collusion Affidavit Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDERS
Aileen Bittner
Marina Basta Farouk
Emily Frontera
Linda Bockstanz

PROPOSAL - City of Troy Concrete Pavement Repair Program for Local,
Major, and Industrial Roads with an Option to Renew for an
Additional One-Year Period

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G: ITB-COT 06-42 Concrete Pavement Repair

BY JUNE 30, 2007



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42
Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 4
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Century DiLisio Florence Giorgi
 Cement Co Contracting Cememt Co Concrete LLC

Ck Number 736270808 1080001386 473350702 46022
Ck Amount 10,000.00$        10,000.00$      10,000.00$          10,000.00$        

Proposal A:  Abbington, Ashley, Mayberry Littler & Scattered Location in Section #11
Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type 7 Sack HE, - 8" Non-reinforced 1000 S.Y. $44.00 $40.60 $46.75 $48.20
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type 7 Sack HE, - 7" Non-reinforced 16,000 S.Y. $40.00 $39.60 $43.90 $44.89
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $35.00 $38.60 $40.00 $47.25

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $34.00 $35.00 $33.75 $37.80

5 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each $500.00 $150.00 $150.00 $315.00
6 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. $300.00 $200.00 $170.00 $157.50
7 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each $400.00 $150.00 $150.00 $262.50
8 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. $300.00 $200.00 $170.00 $157.50
9 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 1000 CY $1.00 $30.00 $24.00 $26.25

10 Installation of 6” edge drain
(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $12.00 $6.00 $9.00 $12.60

11 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 100 L.F. $30.00 $22.00 $23.00 $26.25
12 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 10 Each $350.00 $400.00 $475.00 $367.50

13 Traffic Maintenance Included
Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A $696,925.00 $714,090.00 $784,073.75 $803,846.25

Proposal A-1: Various Sections - Bradbury, Blair, Gabriel Court, Lyster Lane, Victoria Court & Other Scattered Locations 
Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007 Year 2007

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, - 8" Non-reinforced 800 S.Y. $44.00 $40.60 $46.75 $48.20

2 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, - 7" Non-reinforced 7,000 S.Y. $40.00 $39.60 $43.90 $44.89

3 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $35.00 $38.60 $40.00 $47.25

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $34.00 $35.00 $33.75 $37.80

5 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each $500.00 $150.00 $150.00 $315.00
6 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. $300.00 $200.00 $170.00 $157.50
7 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each $400.00 $150.00 $150.00 $262.50
8 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. $300.00 $200.00 $170.00 $157.50
9 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 500 C.Y. $1.00 $30.00 $24.00 $26.25
10 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $12.00 $6.00 $9.00 $12.60
11 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 100 L.F. $30.00 $22.00 $23.00 $26.25
12 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 10 Each $350.00 $400.00 $475.00 $367.50
13 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A-1 $327,625.00 $334,570.00 $367,623.75 $377,071.25
ESTIMATED TOTAL COST FOR A & A-1: $1,024,550.00 $1,048,660.00 $1,151,697.50 $1,180,917.50

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42



Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 5
Date Prepared --  10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Century DiLisio Florence Giorgi
 Cement Co Contracting Cement Co Concrete LLC
Proposal B  – 2006-07 Major Road Maintenance - Rochester Road, Coolidge Hwy., Elliott & Scattered Locations
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete Pavement

Patching Type P-NC-9" Non-reinforced 18,500 S.Y. 55.00$                48.90$            53.00$                 NO BID
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 8" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 50.00$                43.50$            50.00$                 
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 7" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 45.00$               39.60$            47.00$                 
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced

(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 35.00$                38.60$            40.00$                 
5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk

4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 34.00$                35.00$            33.75$                 
6 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each 500.00$              150.00$           150.00$               
7 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. 300.00$              200.00$           170.00$               
8 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each 400.00$              150.00$           150.00$               
9 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. 300.00$              200.00$           170.00$               
10 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA Gravel 900 C.Y. 1.00$                  30.00$            16.00$                 
11 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 12.00$                6.00$              9.00$                   
12 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 30.00$                22.00$            23.00$                 
13 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Ea 350.00$              400.00$           475.00$               
14 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal B 1,036,200.00$   947,617.50$    1,012,998.75$    

Proposal C: 2006-07 Major Road Maintenance - Industrial - Kirts, Executive, Minnesota, Northfield Parkway, Robbins & Allen
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching Type P-NC-9" Non-rein 18,500 S.Y. 52.00$                48.90$            53.00$                 NO BID
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 8" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 50.00$                43.50$            50.00$                 
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 7" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 45.00$                39.60$            47.00$                 
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 35.00$                38.60$            40.00$                 

5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 34.00$                35.00$            33.75$                 

6 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each 500.00$              150.00$           150.00$               
7 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. 300.00$              200.00$           170.00$               
8 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each 400.00$              150.00$           150.00$               
9 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. 300.00$              200.00$           170.00$               
10 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 900 C.Y. 1.00$                  30.00$            16.00$                 
11 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 12.00$                6.00$              9.00$                   
12 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 30.00$                22.00$            23.00$                 
13 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Ea 350.00$              400.00$           475.00$               
14 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal C $980,700.00 $947,617.50 $1,012,998.75



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42
Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 6
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Century DiLisio Florence Giorgi
 Cement Co Contracting Cement Co Concrete LLC

INSURANCE:                      Can Meet XX XX XX XX
                                         Cannot Meet

PROPOSED PAYMENT SCHEDULE: monthly  Bi-Weekly Bi-Weekly Every 30 Days

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Oper. 6am-6pm 9 am to 5 pm 7am - 7pm 7am-5pm
Phone 734-284-8770 586-783-4044 586.781.8691 313.300.3599

AWARD                       100% of Contract XX XX XX
                                         Partial Contract: Proposal A X X

Proposal B X
Proposal C X

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:

TERMS: 90 Days TBD Blank every 30 days
Two-Year

WARRANTY: Blank Maintenance Blank One Year

EXCEPTIONS: Blank N/A Based upon N/A
award of all

sections

ACKNOWLEGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

Legal Status of Bidder Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes
Non-Collusion Affidavit Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

G: ITB-COT 06-42 Concrete Pavement Repair

BY JUNE 30, 2007



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42
Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 7
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Koala-T Hartwell
 Construction Inc Cement Co

Ck Number 314139167 473351653
Ck Amount 10,000.00$         10,000.00$           

Proposal A:  Abbington, Ashley, Mayberry Littler & Scattered Location in Section #11
Year 2007 Year 2007

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type 7 Sack HE, - 8" Non-reinforced 1000 S.Y. $48.50 $51.30
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Type 7 Sack HE, - 7" Non-reinforced 16,000 S.Y. $46.70 $49.60
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $40.00 $47.90

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $36.00 $45.00

5 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each $250.00 $175.00
6 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. $500.00 $150.00
7 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each $250.00 $175.00
8 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. $500.00 $150.00
9 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 1000 CY $35.00 $25.00

10 Installation of 6” edge drain
(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $13.00 $8.00

11 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 100 L.F. $30.00 $25.00
12 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 10 Each $450.00 $950.00

13 Traffic Maintenance Included
Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A $844,150.00 $886,147.50

Proposal A-1: Various Sections - Bradbury, Blair, Gabriel Court, Lyster Lane, Victoria Court & Other Scattered Locations 
Year 2007 Year 2007

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, - 8" Non-reinforced 800 S.Y. $48.50 $51.30

2 Remove & Replace with Concrete
Type 7 Sack HE, - 7" Non-reinforced 7,000 S.Y. $48.00 $49.60

3 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $40.00 $47.90

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. $36.00 $45.00

5 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each $250.00 $175.00
6 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. $500.00 $150.00
7 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each $250.00 $175.00
8 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. $500.00 $150.00
9 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 500 C.Y. $35.00 $25.00
10 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. $13.00 $8.00
11 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 100 L.F. $30.00 $25.00
12 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 10 Each $450.00 $950.00
13 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A-1 $405,750.00 $416,987.50
ESTIMATED TOTAL COST FOR A & A-1: $1,249,900.00 $1,303,135.00

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42



Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 8
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Koala-T Hartwell
 Construction Inc Cement Co
Proposal B  – 2006-07 Major Road Maintenance - Rochester Road, Coolidge Hwy., Elliott & Scattered Locations
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete Pavement

Patching Type P-NC-9" Non-reinforced 18,500 S.Y. NO BID 53.00$                 
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 8" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 51.30$                 
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 7" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 49.60$                 
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced

(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 47.90$                 
5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk

4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 45.00$                 
6 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each 175.00$               
7 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. 150.00$               
8 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each 175.00$               
9 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. 150.00$               
10 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA Gravel 900 C.Y. 25.00$                 
11 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 8.00$                   
12 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 30.00$                 
13 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Ea 950.00$               
14 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal B 1,031,770.00$      

Proposal C: 2006-07 Major Road Maintenance - Industrial - Kirts, Executive, Minnesota, Northfield Parkway, Robbins & Allen
NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching Type P-NC-9" Non-rein 18,500 S.Y. NO BID 53.00$                 
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 8" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 51.30$                 
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

Pavement Patching - 7" Non-reinforced 25 S.Y. 49.60$                 
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/

Driveway, 6" Non-reinforced
(Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 47.90$                 

5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 25 S.Y. 45.00$                 

6 Gatewell Adjustment 1 Each 175.00$               
7 Gatewell Repair Per Foot 2 L.F. 150.00$               
8 Manhole or Catch Basin Adjustment 2 Each 175.00$               
9 Manhole or Catch Basin  Repair per Foot 2 L.F. 150.00$               
10 Miscellaneous Base Repair per Cubic Yard 

to excavate & replace with 21AA compacted 900 C.Y. 25.00$                 
11 Installation of 6” edge drain

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 8.00$                   
12 Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter. 

(Locations not specified) 100 L.F. 30.00$                 
13 Install MDOT Sidewalk Ramp with 24"

Detectable Warning 20 Ea 950.00$               
14 Traffic Maintenance Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal C $1,031,770.00



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-42
Opening Date -- 10/10/06 BID TABULATION Page 9
Date Prepared -- 10/13/06 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Koala-T Hartwell
 Construction Inc Cement Co

INSURANCE:                      Can Meet XX XX
                                         Cannot Meet

PROPOSED PAYMENT SCHEDULE: every two weeks As required by City

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Oper. 7am - 7pm 8am - 4:30pm
Phone 810.560.3213 248.789.4148

AWARD                       100% of Contract XX
                                         Partial Contract: Proposal A X

Proposal B
Proposal C

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:

TERMS: 14 days Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: One Year One Year

EXCEPTIONS: N/A Blank

ACKNOWLEGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Yes Yes

Legal Status of Bidder Y or N Yes Yes
Non-Collusion Affidavit Y or N Yes Yes

G: ITB-COT 06-42 Concrete Pavement Repair

BY JUNE 30, 2007



campbellld
Text Box
F-14













 

 
 
April 2, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

 
SUBJECT: Request to Waive Permit Fees, Christmas in Action Projects 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 A volunteer organization called Christmas in Action provides free home repairs to seniors and 

handicapped residents of the community.  We have received a request from their President, Rick 
Gauthier, asking that the fees for permits required for the work that they are performing be 
waived.  Although the full scope of work involved and therefore the final fees normally necessary 
for the work are not known at this time, we estimate that the amount of fees would be 
approximately $200. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The waiver of fees for this project would not significantly impact the budget and operation of the 

Building Department. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council, by resolution, establishes permit fees and can provide waiver of the fees by the 

same action. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Enhance the livability and safety in the community (Goal 1) 
 Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment (Goal 3)  
 
Options: 
 
 City Council can waive permit fees for this project. 
 Permit fees will be charged for the work that is proposed. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-15





campbellld
Text Box
F-16











campbellld
Text Box
F-17



















campbellld
Text Box
G-01a









  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: April 1, 2008 
SUBJECT: Amendment to Chapter 3, Section 1.78- Unclaimed Property 

 

 

 

 

In cooperation with the Troy Police Department, our office has prepared a 
proposed amendment to Chapter 3, Section 1.78 of the City of Troy Ordinances- 
Administrative Service.  This amendment is being proposed to allow the Troy Police 
Department to donate several unclaimed bicycles to the Oakland County Sherriff, who 
operates a program entitled Sheriff’s Recycle for Kids.  Under this program, the Oakland 
County Sheriff collects new, used, or damaged bicycles, which get refurbished by inmates 
in the Oakland County Jail.  Once the bikes are repaired or refurbished, the bikes are then 
donated to charities, such as the Boys and Girls Club of South Oakland County, Easter 
Seals, or St. Vincent de Paul of Pontiac.   

 
Currently, the Troy Police Department stores these unclaimed or abandoned 

bicycles in the property room for two years, until they can be sent to auction.  At the last 
auction, the total proceeds received for all of the bicycles was completely offset by the cost 
of conducting the auction.  This did not include administrative time prior to the auction.  

 
Under a recent amendment to Michigan law (MCL 434.171. and MCL 434.181), 

municipalities are now authorized to donate bicycles to the local sheriff’s department.  
However, the current ordinance provisions require all unclaimed property to be sold at 
auction, with the proceeds going into the general fund.      

 
Even though the dollar amounts are not substantial, City Council must still insure 

that public dollars are being used for a public purpose.  Council could opine that the 
donation of these bikes under the Sheriff’s Recycle for Kids, satisfies the public purpose 
requirement.  Therefore, the proposed amendment is being provided to you for your 
review.  It is our intent to submit this as a proposed action item for the April 21, 2008 
regular City Council meeting.  In the interim, if Council has questions, concerns, 
suggestions or objections, please let us know as soon as possible.   
   

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 3 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 3, Administrative 
Service, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
Chapter 3, Section 1.78, shall be amended as follows:   
 
 
1.78. Unclaimed Property. As to any property remaining in the custody of the Police Department 

as to which there are no claims pending and no finder having any rights therein, the Police 
Chief shall cause said property, except money, to be sold at public auction, reserving the 
right to reject any or all bids, or to be sold by a system recommended by the City Manager 
and approved by resolution of City Council. If the unclaimed property is a bicycle, the Police 
Chief or his/ her designee may donate it to a state licensed charitable organization, or to 
the Oakland County Sheriff, in connection with any Sheriff operated recognized charitable 
program as provided in 1959 PA 54, MCL 434.171 et. seq. as amended. By written 
authorization of the City Manager, unclaimed property may be retained by the City for City 
use. Notice of the time and place of such sale shall be given by publishing notice thereof in 
a newspaper of general circulation with the City and posted for ten (10) days in three (3) of 
the most public places in the City. Such notice shall set forth a full description of said 
property. The Police Chief is hereby authorized to deliver and convey such property to the 
successful purchaser upon payment of the full purchase price without any warranty or 
representation as to title and with the understanding that in the event the rightful owner 
recovers such property in an action at law against such purchaser, that the liability of the 
City of Troy shall be limited to the amount paid by said purchaser for such property. The 
proceeds of all such sales and any money which shall have been held for sixty (60) days 
against which there is no claim pending either by any purported owner or by the finder 
thereof, shall be paid by the Police Chief to the City Treasurer to the credit of the General 
Fund. The City of Troy may purchase property at any such sale in the same manner as any 
other bidder. 

 
Section 3. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This 
ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended 
by this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the 
effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time 
of the commission of such offense. 



 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ 
day of _____________, ______. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                      Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Dec. 6, 2007 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
Dec. 6, 2007 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at 
1:00 PM. 
 
Present: Jo Rhoads, Member James Berar, Member   
 JoAnn Thompson, Member   Frank Shier, Member 
 David Ogg, Member Merrill Dixon, Member  
 Bud Black, Member Betty Coven, Member 
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Absent: Pauline Noce, excused 
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming 
 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2007-12-001 
Moved by James Berar 
Seconded by Betty Coven  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Nov. 1, 2007 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 8  
No:  0  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming discussed school district news, handed out a list of school board members and 
circulated a menu from the Terrace Café. 
 
Old Business 
 
Lunch Visits:   Betty Coven said that the holiday lunch in Troy in November was wonderful.  
JoAnn Thompson said that Emerald has been working very well with the hospitality committee.  
 
New Business 
 
Medicare Part D:  JoAnn Thompson lead a discussion about the difficulty of having to decide 
which program to sign up for.  Carla reported that help is available at the Community Center.   
 
Meeting at Baker Middle School:  Jo Rhoads reported on a meeting that she attended at 
Baker Middle School put on by the Police Department about how seniors can make their 
homes safe for their grandchildren.  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Dec. 6, 2007 

2 

Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was one suggestion to add a third aquatics class.  
The winter session is free due to HAP sponsorship.  Usually we would not even fill one 
session, let alone three.  There will be a charge again in the spring.  If both sessions fill, we will 
try to add another one, but it would have to be in the afternoon. 
 
Airport Rides:  Bud Black reported that he contacted several airport ride services and this is 
what he found: 
 
Metroride 800-320-1683 $73 there, $79 back 
Checker Sedan 800-351-5466 $78 each way 
Detroit Metro Transportation 866-389-8294 $79 each way 
Carey Limousine 800-336-4646 $109 each way 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  No report. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that the Cross Train Your Brain class was recently featured 
in an article on the front page of the Detroit Free Press.  The first winter session is full and we 
have added a second section.  SHARP (Senior Home Assistance Repair Program) now has an 
online bulletin board where volunteers can check for unassigned jobs.  Requests are referred 
to by job number only – names, address, etc. do not appear on line, and only approved 
members can visit the site.  
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that they have been very busy and things are going well.  
 
OLHSA:  No report  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that they had a speaker about 
reverse mortgages and that seniors should have a legal person look things over before signing 
anything. 
 
 Comments 
 
JoAnn Thompson reported that the Restaurant Group has a nice outing at the Europa Bistro in 
Rochester in December.  The next outing in February will be to Kim’s in Troy. 
 
James Berar said that the front desk needs a list of which rooms activities are being held in.  
Carla said that room numbers are listed on the electronic bulletin board by each entrance and 
the front desk staff does have a list.  She will make sure everyone knows about it. 
 
Bud Black reported that he has a speaker lined up from the Library for the January meeting to 
talk about what the Library has to offer seniors.  
 
Frank Shier reported that the Heart-Of-The-Hills players would like to put on another 
performance here in February and he will get the information to Carla. 
 
Betty Coven reported that the Spice of Life discussion group that she leads at the Library is 
well attended.  It meets on Wednesdays from 10-11:30 a.m. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Dec. 6, 2007 

3 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:05 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair  
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Final December 7, 2007 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Friday, December 7, 2007, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 
7:35 AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  Timothy Dewan 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of October 1, 2007  
 
Resolution #EC-2007-12-011 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Monday, October 1, 2007, are APPROVED as 
submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments – Tuesday, January 15, 2008 
Presidential Primary Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2007-12-012 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 

 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be appointed for the Tuesday, January 15, 2008 
Presidential Primary Election, as presented by the City Clerk, are hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Proposed Precinct Alterations and Relocations 
 
Resolution #EC-2007-12-013 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Final December 7, 2007 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby RECOMMENDS the City of Troy 
alterations of precinct boundaries and relocation polling locations to the City Council for 
adoption as follows: 
 

PCT # BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION POLLING LOCATION 

1 Section 1  Evanswood Church of God 
2601 E. Square Lake  

2 Section 2 in the Troy School District Kensington Community Church 
1825 E. Square Lake 

3 Sections 2, 3 and 4 in the Avondale 
School District 

Woodside Bible Church 
6600 Rochester  

4 Sections 3, 4 and 5 in the Troy 
School District 

St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic Church 
280 E. Square Lake 

5 Sections 5 and 6 in the Avondale 
School District  

Woodside Bible Church 
6600 Rochester 

6 Section 6 in the Troy School District Nature Center 
6685 Coolidge Hwy. 

7 
Section 7 in the Troy School District 
and Section 8 west of Coolidge 
Highway 

St. Stephen Episcopal Church 
5500 Adams 

8 Section 8 east of Coolidge Highway Northfield Hills Baptist Church 
1800 W. Long Lake 

9 Sections 9 & 10 St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic Church 
280 E. Square Lake 

10 Section 11 Kensington Community Church 
1825 E. Square Lake 

11 
Section 12 north of Highbury, east of 
Harbor, north of Willard, north and 
east of English  

Evanswood Church of God 
2601 E. Square Lake  

12 
Section 12 south of Highbury, west of 
Harbor, south of Willard, south and 
west of English 

Fire & Police Training Center 
4850 John R 

13 Section 13 Bethesda Romanian Pentecostal Church
2075 E. Long Lake 

14 Section 14 St. Anastasia Catholic Church 
4571 John R 

15 Section 15 St. Lucy Catholic Croatian Church 
200 E. Wattles 

16 Section 16 east of I-75 and Section 
21 east of I-75 

First Presbyterian Church 
4328 Livernois 

17 Section 16 west of I-75 and Section 
17  

St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church 
760 W. Wattles 

18 Section 18 in the Troy School District St. Stephen Episcopal Church 
5500 Adams 

19 Sections 19 and 30 in the Troy 
School District  

St. Alan Catholic Church 
3077 Glouchester 

20 Section 20 and Section 21 west of I-
75  

St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church 
760 W. Wattles 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Final December 7, 2007 
 

PCT # BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION POLLING LOCATION 

21 Section 22 St. Lucy Catholic Croatian Church 
200 E. Wattles 

22 Section 23 St. Anastasia Catholic Church 
4571 John R 

23 Section 24 St. Joseph Chaldean Catholic Church 
2442 E. Big Beaver 

24 
Sections 25 and 26 in the Warren 
Consolidated School District and 
Lamphere School District 

St. George Antiochian Orthodox Church 
2160 E. Maple 

25 Sections 35 and 36 in the Warren 
Consolidated School District 

St. George Antiochian Orthodox Church 
2160 E. Maple 

26 Sections 26, 27, 34 and 35 south of I-
75 in the Troy School District 

Troy Community Center 
3179 Livernois 

27 

Section 28 and Sections 25, 26, and 
27 north of I-75 and south of E. Big 
Beaver in Sections in the Troy School 
District  

Troy Community Center 
3179 Livernois 

28 Sections 29 and 32 in the Troy 
School District 

St. Alan Catholic Church 
3077 Glouchester 

29 Sections 18, 19, 30, and 31 in the 
Birmingham School District 

North Hills Christian Reformed Church 
3150 N. Adams 

30 
Section 35 in the Royal Oak School 
District and the Lamphere School 
District 

Troy Community Center 
3179 Livernois 

31 Sections 6, 7, and 18 in the 
Bloomfield Hills School District 

Nature Center 
6685 Coolidge Hwy. 

 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:41 AM. 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Jan. 3, 2008 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
Jan. 3 2008 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at 
1:02 PM. 
 
Present: Jo Rhoads, Member James Berar, Member   
 JoAnn Thompson, Member   Frank Shier, Member 
 David Ogg, Member Merrill Dixon, Member  
 Bud Black, Member Betty Coven, Member 
 Pauline Noce, Member 
 
Absent: Carla Vaughan, Staff   
   
Visitors:  Philip Kwik, Troy Library 
 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2008-1-001 
Moved by David Ogg 
Seconded by James Berar  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Dec. 6, 2007 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 9  
No:  0  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Philip Kwik, head of the Troy Library Technology Department, spoke about the wide use of the 
library how technology is changing things, and the many programs and services available to 
seniors.  Troy is in the suburban library network and will be going state-wide soon. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Lunch Visits:   It was reported that the lunch visits are going well.  
 
Medicare Part D:  No report.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Suggestion Box:  No report 
 
Projects for 2008:  The Committee will be discussing projects they would like to work on in 
2008.  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Jan. 3, 2008 

2 

 
 
 
REPORTS 
 
Park Board:  No report. 
 
Senior Program:  No report. 
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that they had a Christmas party for the drivers. 
 
OLHSA:  No report  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report 
 
Comments 
 
David Ogg mentioned that the meeting boards at both ends read Dec. 7.   They should have 
the correct information on them.  
 
James Berar noted that the January Troy Senior News had no mention of shuffleboard or 
bocce ball. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:15 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair  
 
 
 
Pauline Noce, Acting Secretary 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01d













1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL FEBRUARY 5, 2008 
 
This meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was held Tuesday, February 
5, 2008 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called to order at 7:40 
P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:    Kevin Lindsey 
   Kinda Hupman 
   Paul Lin 
   Charlene Harris-Freeman  
 
  ABSENT Linda Rivetto 
   Bob Miller 
 
  STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
      

Resolution #HDSC-2008-02-001 
Moved by Lin 
Seconded by Harris-Freeman 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Rivetto and Miller be excused  

Yes: 4  Lindsey, Hupman, Lin, and Harris-Freeman 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Resolution #HDSC-2008-02-002 
Moved by Harris-Freeman 
Seconded by Hupman 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of December 4, 2007 be approved  

Yes: 4  Lindsey, Hupman, Lin, and Harris-Freeman 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Above Ground Surveys 
No additional surveys completed. 
 

B. 60 W. Wattles - Request to expand boundaries 
Loraine Campbell will post the notice for the Public Hearing to be held at at 8:00 
PM. 

  
NEW BUSINESS 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



2 

A. Request to Delist 5875 Livernois 
Based on the information available, there does not appear that this property has 
any compelling historic significance. It is a nondescript 20th century farmhouse. 
No significant community members owned or resided in the home. No significant 
events occurred there. The committee will begin drafting a preliminary report to 
delist.   

 
 

 
The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 8:18 PM.  The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, march 4, 2008 at 7:30 PM at the Troy Museum & Historic 
Village.  

 
 
                  

Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 

 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final February 13, 2008 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, February 13, 2008, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:15 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT:  Nancy Bowren 

Mark Calice 
Michael Geise 
Thomas J. Gordon II 

     Martin Howrylak 
John M. Lamerato 
William R. Need (Ex-Officio) 

     Phillip L. Nelson 
 

MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2008-2- 05 
Moved by Bowren 
Seconded by Lamerato 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the January 9, 2008 meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 RETIREMENT REQUESTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2008-2- 06 
Moved by Bowren 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That the retirement request of Douglas J. Holser, DC, 3/1/08, 38 years 1 
month be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
REPORT 
 
Brad Armstrong, Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company reviewed the December 31, 2006 
OPEB actuarial valuation report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final February 13, 2008 
 
 

 2

OTHER BUSINESS – TRANSFER OF INVESTMENT ACCOUNT 
 
Resolution # ER – 2008-2- 07 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That UBS account No. DE 00865 AA be transferred to Citi Smith Barney. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2008 – 2- 08 
Moved by Geise 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board buy and sell the following investments: 
 
Sell: SLM Corporation;  

Capital One Financial;  
6,000 shares US Bancorp;  
10,000 shares Target call @ 60 

 
Buy: $1,000,000 Mainstay Convertible Bond Fund; 
 $500,000 Putnam Convertible Bond Fund 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
The next meeting is March 12, 2008 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:35 p.m.  
 
 
__________________________________ 
 Mark Calice, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2007\2.13.08 – Minutes_Final.doc 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, February 19, 2008 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Michael W. Bartnik 
   Kenneth Courtney 
   Marcia Gies 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Glenn Clark 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he had received a phone call from Mr. Clark indicating that he 
would be late for tonight’s meeting. 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JANUARY 15, 2008 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that on page 6 of the minutes, 6th line up, he wanted the words 
“recreational vehicles” added to the sentence regarding the parking of vehicles next to 
the lot line. 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of January 15, 2008 as amended. 
 
Yeas:   6- Bartnik, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
Absent:  1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS AMENDED CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TONY V’S SUNROOMS, 2024 LAKESIDE, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will result in a 28.18’ rear yard 
setback and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  
Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front 
yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is seeking relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
rear patio enclosure.   This property is located at the southwest corner of the 
intersection of Lakeside and Southpointe.  Because of the orientation of the adjacent  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
houses this is considered to be a double front corner lot and has front yard setbacks 
along both streets.   
 
Because of the orientation of this house the south property line is considered to be the 
rear property line.  The site plan submitted indicates a proposed 28.18’ rear yard 
setback and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  
Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front 
yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of January 15, 2008 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the petitioner wished to his request moved to the end of the 
agenda to wait for Mr. Clark’s arrival. 
 
Mr. Terry Blocitto stated that would be fine with him. 
 
Item #2 – moved to Item #6 to give Mr. Clark the opportunity to be present. 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  NINO SALVAGGIO INVESTMENT CO. OF 
TROY, 6835 ROCHESTER ROAD, for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a 6’ high 
landscaped berm in lieu of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the south 
and west sides of the property.  
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief granted by this Board to 
provide a landscaped berm in place of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required 
along the south and west property line where this site abuts residentially zoned 
property.  This relief has been granted on a yearly basis since 1995. This item last 
appeared before this Board at the meeting of February 2005 and was granted a three-
year renewal.  The site to the west is the site of a new condominium development and 
the site to the south, although residentially zoned, is the site of a commercial kennel.  
The Board, in 2005, resolved to consider making this a permanent variance at this time 
as construction on the property to the west would be complete.  Public hearing notices 
have been sent to the appropriate property owners and residents regarding this item.  
 
Mr. Bartnik asked for a clarification in the process of making this a permanent variance. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that this item has appeared before this Board for a number of 
years, each time extending the variance renewal.  At the meeting in 2005 it was 
determined that since the area around this property was now developed, public hearing 
notices would be sent to all property owners within 300’ of this property to notify them 
that the Board would consider having the landscaped berm remain permanently in lieu 
of the 6’ high masonry wall.  These notices have been sent out, as well as a notice  
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
published in the appropriate newspaper, to determine if there are any objections to this 
request. 
 
Mr. Kirk Taylor, President of Nino Salvaggio Investment Co. of Troy was present.  Mr. 
Taylor stated that they have made a determined effort to make sure that the  
landscaping on the berm was in keeping with what the Board wanted them to do, and in 
fact, have added many more shrubs to fill in any empty spots.  Mr. Taylor also stated 
that they have not received any complaints from the neighbors regarding this berm. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Ms. Wenhong Wang, 795 Red Run Drive, was present and stated that she had spoken 
to several neighbors and they did not quite understand the Public Hearing notice.  Ms. 
Wang said that they did not feel there was enough information regarding what type of 
wall would be put in.  Ms. Wang stated that they are quite happy with the landscaping. 
 
Mr. Maxwell explained that the petitioner is asking to leave the landscaped berm and 
not put in a wall.  The petitioner would maintain the landscaping as it is now. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Ordinance would normally require that a wall be built 
along the property line that abuts the residential property.  In 1995, this petitioner asked 
that they be allowed to install the landscaped berm rather than put up the masonry 
screening wall.  This was approved on a temporary basis.  The petitioner has come 
back to the Board every three (3) years in order to ask for a renewal of this request.  If 
this request is made a permanent variance, a wall will not be put in and a landscaped 
berm will remain on the property.  The Board is now considering making that a 
permanent variance so that they will not have to come back before the Board. 
 
Ms. Wang indicated that she was in favor of the landscaped berm.  Ms. Wang asked 
what was required to get a variance. 
 
Mr. Maxwell advised Ms. Wang that if this variance is granted tonight, they will not have 
to come before the Board again.  Mr. Maxwell also stated that if should anything change 
with the appearance of this berm, she should contact the City to address her concerns. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported Courtney 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Nino Salvaggio Investment Co. of Troy, 6835 Rochester Road, a 
permanent variance for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a 6’ high landscaped berm in 
lieu of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the south and west sides of 
the property.  
 

• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
• Absent a variance significant natural features would be negatively affected or 

destroyed. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Bartnik, Courtney, Gies 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT A PERMANENT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  DENNIS SIAVRAKAS, 330 OLYMPIA, for relief of 
the Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land which will result in a 78.77’ wide, 9,922 
square foot lot and to construct a two-family residence.   Section 30.10.09 requires an 
80’ wide, 10,000 square foot minimum lot for the construction of a two-family residence 
in R-2 Zoning. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to split an 
existing parcel of land to construct a two-family residence.  The property is the site of an 
existing single family home and a vacant lot.  The demolition of the home and 
combining of the property allows for an 80’ wide parcel to be split off on the east side for 
the construction of a two-family residence.  The remaining parcel is a 78.77’ wide; 9,922 
square foot lot. The site plan submitted indicates the construction of a two-family 
residence on this parcel.  Section 30.10.09 requires an 80’ wide, 10,000 square foot 
minimum lot for the construction of a two-family residence in R-2 Zoning.  A previous 
variance granted in 2006 allowed for the construction of a single family home on a 
59.27’ wide portion of this land where a 60’ minimum width is required. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked for a clarification on the original variance request. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the original request was to leave the existing house and place 
another home on the west side of that home, on a lot that had a shortage in width. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that originally the petitioner planned to construct houses for two (2) 
families and now wished to construct home for four (4) families. 
 
Mr. Dennis Siavrakas and his partner, Mr. Brian Vargason, were present.  Mr. Siavrakas 
stated that originally they did plan to put in a single-family home.  At that time they felt  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
that they were in an affordable market and since that time the market value has gotten 
very low and they now feel that there is too much risk to put in a single-family home.  
They had been marketing a brand new home on that lot and have not had one response 
since the variance was granted.  In this area, the property backs up to commercial 
property and they are proposing to re-configure the property and put in two-family  
homes.  There are other two-family homes in the area and they do appear to be more 
desirable than single-family homes.   This lot is pie-shaped and is narrower in the front  
than the rear.  Mr. Siavrakas said that they had entertained the thought of asking to split 
the parcel of land down the middle, but that would require two (2) variances rather than 
just one.   
 
Mr. Siavrakas said that this is a very small request and he believes that they are asking 
for less than 1% of the total lot area.  Another variance was granted several months ago 
on another property in this area and they are asking for the same consideration.  These 
homes will meet all building codes and setback requirements.  This is the highest, best 
and full use of this property and does meet the Zoning Requirements.  Mr. Siavrakas 
said that this site is a little more location challenged as it is adjacent to Commercial 
Zoning on the west and the north.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one written approval and one written objection on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Dennis Siavrakas, 330 Olympia, relief of the Ordinance to split an 
existing parcel of land which will result in a 78.77’ wide, 9,922 square foot lot and to 
construct a two-family residence.   Section 30.10.09 requires an 80’ wide, 10,000 
square foot minimum lot for the construction of a two-family residence in R-2 Zoning. 
 

• Configuration of lot is very challenging due to commercial property to the west 
and north. 

• Variance request is minimal. 
• Two-family homes are not out of character to this area. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance is unnecessarily burdensome. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Bartnik, Courtney, Gies 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  ELLEN TENCER, 1641 W. SQUARE LAKE 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a 120’ cellular 
communication tower located only 130’ from the residential property to the north and 
290’ from the residential property to the south.  This site is located in the R-C (Research  
Center) Zoning District.  Paragraph E of Section 27.25.03 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance 
requires that freestanding communications antenna tower structures in the R-C District  
be setback a minimum of five times their height from residentially zoned or used 
property.  This would require a 120’ tower to be a minimum of 600’ from residential 
property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new cellular communication tower within the I-75 Right of Way on the south side of 
Square Lake Road between Crooks Road and Coolidge Highway. 
 
Research into the records regarding this property reveals that the I-75 Right of Way in 
this area is located in the R-C (Research Center) Zoning District.  Prior to the 
construction of I-75 all of Section 8 was zoned in the R-C Zoning District.  When the 
right of way for the freeway was acquired, the zoning of the land was not changed.   
 
Re-zonings of the land adjacent to the freeway have occurred since the 1950’s, but they 
never included the land on which the freeway sits.  Therefore, the requirements of the 
R-C Zoning District are being applied.  Paragraph E of Section 27.25.03 of the Troy 
Zoning Ordinance requires that freestanding communications antenna tower structures 
in the R-C District be setback a minimum of five times their height from residentially 
zoned or used property.  This would require a 120’ tower to be a minimum of 600’ from 
residential property.  The plans submitted indicate that the tower is located only 130’ 
from the residential property to the north and 290’ from the residential property to the 
south.  In addition to the mandated notice to those within 300’ of the site, we have sent 
notices to property owners and residents within 600’ of the site since that would be the 
required setback in this instance. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if this stretch of I-75 was zoned R-C, what the rest of I-75 would be 
zoned. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that it would be the same as the zoning of the property at the time the 
freeway went through. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if a Research Center could be put up in this area, meaning the 
pavement and right of way. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that typically structures are not constructed in the right of way. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the right of way for I-75 in this area is 300’ in width and there 
are three (3) lanes of traffic in each direction, which are 36’ to 40’ on each side.  The 
entire land area, between Crooks and Coolidge was originally zoned R-C and it has  
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

7 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
never been changed.  The acquisition of the property by the Michigan Department of 
Transportation does not change the Zoning.  MDOT does not have the authority to  
change the Zoning of a property.  The only body that can change the Zoning is City 
Council and they have never changed the Zoning. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that the petitioner has submitted an exhibit that is contrary to that legal 
analysis and asked if staff had a response to that exhibit. 
 
Mr. Motzny stated that he has examined all of the correspondence and initially he might 
have agreed with that premise submitted by the petitioner that there is no zoning.  
However, based on the research done by Mr. Stimac, the zoning in this area has never 
changed and Mr. Motzny agrees with Mr. Stimac’s interpretation.  If this area was not 
zoned then the petitioner would be facing more of an uphill battle as there are permitted 
uses in certain zoning districts.  In Mr. Motzny’s opinion, the petitioner would be facing a 
text amendment. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he disagrees with this interpretation. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the park is zoned R-1B and asked how far away the closest house 
was. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that that he did not have a specific dimension on Firefighter’s Park.  
Notices were sent out to property owners within 600’ of this location and no notices 
were sent to homeowners in the Crescent Ridge Subdivision. 
 
Mr. Alan Green, Counsel for the applicant, and Ms. Ellen Tencer were present.  Mr. 
Green stated that he disagrees with the zoning of this property.  Looking back twenty 
(20) years the property was zoned Research.  Mr. Green said that they believe this is 
unzoned land.  Mr. Green said that they believe this is an ideal site for this antenna.  
Originally they had gotten approval from City Council to put the antenna at the site of 
the Fire Station on Coolidge, but this approval was taken away because of the number 
of people that were opposed to this location.  When abutting a road or lot line, you 
would extend the line to the adjacent property and take that zoning. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he did not believe this Board should discuss the zoning on the 
property.  If the zoning needs to be changed it would have to go back to the Planning 
Commission.  Mr. Courtney said that the zoning did not change because the I-75 went 
through this area. 
 
Mr. Maxwell agreed with Mr. Courtney and said he thinks that basically the discussion is 
mostly opinion and speculation. 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

8 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the reason is the petitioner is holding this position is because the 
antenna would need the 600 foot distance from residential property and if the R-C 
zoning did not apply to this property the variance request would be smaller. 
 
Mr. Green stated that was correct and if the location for the tower was in residential 
zoned property, a lesser variance would be required. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he could understand both points of view. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he does not believe the zoning of the property should be 
considered in this decision.   
 
Mr. Bartnik said that he has a problem relying on a map that is 50 years old and did not 
believe the legislative body intended for this site to remain under Research Center 
Zoning, and every other location along I-75 remains whatever zoning the highway 
crosses over. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that in his opinion they assumed that nothing could go in this area 
and that is one of the reasons the zoning was never changed. 
 
Ms. Tencer stated that they provide towers on MDOT, DNR and State owned property.  
Right now this tower would be for T-Mobile, but this location would be used by as many 
as 4 to 5 different carriers.   Originally they wished to put this tower at the Fire Station 
on Coolidge.  City Council approved it, but there was a great deal of opposition at the 
Public Hearing and City Council would not lease the land to them. City Council 
supported the citizens that were opposed to this location for a tower.  Everyone that 
lived around the Fire Station was opposed to this Tower as they did not want to look at 
it.  They cannot put the towers in residential zoned areas and be far enough away from 
residential structures.   There are a number of light poles along I-75 and these towers 
will be very similar; the main difference being that they are slightly thicker.  They are 
called monopole towers.   
 
Ms. Tencer went on to say that the State of Michigan is very happy to work with carriers, 
have a good quality system and help provide people with service.  They have received 
both Federal and State approval for this land. This is Federal land, State managed. 
Putting the tower right in front of the park is the farthest point from residential property.  
The Ordinance was revised to make it two times the height and they could put up a 
tower that was 65’ in height.  Trees in Michigan grow from 60’ to 80’ tall and the leaves 
would block the signal.  A tower that is 65’ in height would not allow for a number of 
carriers. 
 
Ms. Tencer also said that because of this economy, a number of people are not using 
land line phones.  In an effort to save money, many people use only cell phones.  In one 
month’s time there were 672 emergency phone calls made in this area.  If just one or  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

9 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
two calls are dropped it could be disastrous.  They want to make sure that they provide 
the service that people need.  These towers provide the service required for 911 calls.  
Ms. Tencer went on to say that the towers do not fall end over end.  When a tower does 
fail it “crimps” in the middle.  It does not fall all the way to the ground.  Ms. Tencer went 
on to show a picture of a tower that was considered a complete failure and it “crimped” 
in the middle.  The coax cable burned from the ground to the top of the tower.  The 
tower “crimps” and there is time to repair the tower. 
 
Ms. Tencer said that this particular location is in the best interest of Troy and she gave 
the Chairman, an affidavit from their engineer swearing that the tower is needed in this 
location to provide service for the residents and people on the road.  120,000 people 
use I-75 on a daily basis and they want to be able to use their cell phones if necessary.   
Ms. Tencer said that although she works for T-Mobile, she also carries a Verizon phone 
in case she cannot get service from her carrier. 
 
Ms. Tencer brought in a letter from one of the carriers that make the towers and the 
letter states that they have never had a tower that has failed and hit the ground.  The 
State of Michigan does not have a problem with a tower going right next to I-75.  Ms. 
Tencer asked their engineer to explain some of the maps that were part of her 
presentation. 
 
The engineer from T-Mobile, an expert on radio frequencies showed the Board the 
difference in coverage on several maps.  There are a lot of gaps in this area and the 
quality of the coverage on Coolidge.  There should be rock solid coverage and presently 
there is not.  This location is the best location for this tower and it will provide service for 
the greatest number of cell phone users.   
 
Ms. Tencer said that T-Mobile will be located at the top of the tower.  Other carriers will 
be placed at 10’ intervals.  Ms. Tencer said that there is a 40% between a 65’ tower and 
120’ tower.  Each of the co-locators is 10’ lower than the other carrier.  Sometimes it is 
better to go taller with a smaller number of towers, than to go lower with a lot of towers. 
 
Mr. Green said that the Zoning Ordinance includes co-location and the State wants to 
have a total grid at a site that is the most appropriate.  A location such as this will keep 
these towers out of residential neighborhoods. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Yousif Elias, 1697 Fleetwood, was present.  Mr. Elias stated that he lives directly 
south of this proposed location and can see the entrance to Firefighters Park from his 
living room.  Mr. Elias is against this proposed tower as he does not want to look at a 
120’ tower from his home. This tower will be 200’ from his child’s bedroom.  Mr. Elias 
believes that this tower will add to pollution and noise, especially if they have to bring in 
generators to keep these towers powered up when electricity goes out.  Mr. Elias said  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

10 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
that he has fifteen years experience in auto engineering and has also been employed 
with Nextel.   Mr. Elias said that they have four different carriers in their home, and they 
have never had a problem with coverage.  Mr. Elias said that he does not believe they 
need a 120’ tower as there are a number of tall buildings along Coolidge and Crooks  
and these antennas could be placed on top of these buildings.  Mr. Elias gave a number 
of locations that presently have roof top mounted antennas and he believes T-Mobile 
could do the same thing.  Mr. Elias was very surprised that there was not a larger 
turnout of people that objected to this request.  Mr. Elias said that in his opinion as a  
Radio Frequency Engineer, this tower is not needed.  Other cities and jurisdictions do 
not allow these large towers and have found compromises to provide coverage for cell 
phone carriers.  Mr. Elias believes that there are other solutions that do not require large 
towers, which include putting these antennas on the top of surrounding buildings.  This 
is more of a cheap, old way of getting into an area.  Mr. Elias has been to many 
meetings for Nextel and has worked with the community and the residents in the cities 
to come up with alternative solutions to provide more coverage.  These towers do not 
belong in the middle of neighborhoods.  There are many technical solutions that will 
provide coverage.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked where Mr. Elias lived.  Mr. Elias stated that he was at 1697 
Fleetwood. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he lives approximately a mile away from I-75 and hears noise all 
day and all night.  Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. Elias how the noise from the cell phone tower 
would compare with the noise from I-75. 
 
Mr. Elias said that the traffic is bad in the morning, but the noise will come from 
generators that are used in an emergency to power a cell tower.  Mr. Kovacs stated that 
his neighbors could have generators in use in an emergency. 
 
Mr. Kovacs confirmed that Mr. Elias had four cell phones in his home and believes this 
is part of the proliferation where more cell towers are needed.  No one wants cell phone 
towers near them, but everyone wants the convenience of a cell phone.  Living near I-
75 is noisy anyway and Mr. Kovacs does not believe that generators used in 
emergencies for cell towers would add to the problem.  
 
Mr. Elias stated that this tower is going to be too close to his home and believes that 
these carriers can come up with other solutions that will allow more coverage without 
the use of cell towers. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he believes that between the house and tower there are two 
trees in the area that would block the view of the tower.  Mr. Courtney said that looking 
out you would see the trees before you would see the tower. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

11 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Elias said that he can see the entrance to Firefighters Park from his living room and 
he does not want to see this tower. 
 
Mr. Te-Ying Lee, 1641 Fleetwood was present.  Mr. Lee stated that he was surprised 
that more people had not shown up in opposition of this request.  This location is much  
closer to residential property to the south than the original proposed location of the Fire 
Station.  Mr. Lee stated that he is more concerned about the location of this tower and is 
worried about structure failure, and is concerned about the radio waves of these towers.  
Mr. Lee said that he does believe more cell towers are needed to provide more  
coverage to the area; however, he does not want a tower in this location.  Mr. Lee 
asked how many objections were in the file and how many notices were sent out. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that there is one (1) written objection in the file. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that Public Hearing notices were sent out to property owners within 
600’ of this site, as well as the notice that was published in the Somerset Gazette.  A 
total of fourteen (14) Public Hearing notices were sent out.  Mr. Stimac went on to say 
that Federal Law has jurisdiction over the health effects of cell towers.  The Board of 
Zoning Appeals cannot base its decision on the health effects of towers, as they are 
under Federal jurisdiction. 
 
Mr. Lee asked that his objection be taken into consideration. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection in file.  There are no written approvals in file. 
 
Ms. Tencer said that the only noise that would come from the tower is a low hum, such 
as the hum of an air conditioner.  Ms. Tencer also stated that there is a new law in front 
of the Federal Government regarding the use of generators.  This is called the “Katrina” 
Law and applies to battery back up for cell towers.  If there is a two-day power outage, 
battery back up would be used, but if the power was out for three days the generators 
would be used.  Farmington Hills does allow for towers in parking lots that are 120’ high. 
 
Ms. Tencer pointed out several locations in Troy indicating that they have mounted 
antennas on the roofs of buildings wherever possible.  The antennas on the roofs do not 
give the coverage that the cell towers will provide.  Oakland County will soon be offering 
wireless systems, but cell towers will be needed to provide coverage.  Companies that 
are coming in to do this for Oakland County are planning to add their equipment to 
these cell towers. There are quite a few trees along the south side of I-75 and there are 
a lot of trees where this tower will be located.  Regarding safety, these towers are 
amazingly safe.  Ms. Tencer showed pictures of towers that were still standing after 
hurricane Katrina.  These towers are much safer than the wood poles that are in the 
area. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

12 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked where the location of the tower to the west was. 
 
Ms. Tencer said that she believed it was at the water treatment facility on Adams, and 
one is on the office building. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what the heights of those two towers were. 
 
The engineer stated that T-Mobile is at a height of 72’ on each tower, but did not have 
the exact height of the towers.  Ms. Tencer said that the location on a tower is on a first 
come, first serve basis and whoever gets there first gets the highest spot. 
 
A discussion began regarding the locations of the towers in Troy.  Mr. Stimac asked if 
the tower was on the northwest side of Adams and I-75.  Ms. Tencer said that there are 
two towers at that location; the tower may be at the water treatment facility and the 
other is on the office building.  Mr. Stimac also said that the location at 1450 W. Long 
Lake is a roof mount, which is indicated on the plan.   
 
Mr. Bartnik said that there are towers at Square Lake and Adams, one is north of 
Square Lake and the other is on the east side of Adams, on the south side of the 
expressway but north of Square Lake.  Ms. Tencer said that was correct.  Mr. Bartnik 
then said there is another tower on Long Lake around Northfield Parkway.  Mr. Stimac 
indicated that was not a tower but a building mount.  Mr. Bartnik said that there is 
another tower on the hotel between Crooks Road and the exit ramp.  Mr. Stimac said 
that was correct.  Mr. Bartnik said that there is another one on South Boulevard and 
Crooks and another further east of Livernois.  Mr. Stimac said that the towers shown on 
the maps included in the application, indicates that the tower on west side of Adams 
Road is actually in Bloomfield Hills.  Another tower mount is on 6966 Crooks Road, 850 
Tower has a roof mount, there is tower at Sylvan Glen Golf Course, and there is another 
located in Rochester Hills.   
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Ellen Tencer, 1641 W. Square Lake, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a 120’ cellular communication tower located only 130’ from the residential 
property to the north and 290’ from the residential property to the south.   Paragraph E 
of Section 27.25.03 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires that freestanding 
communications antenna tower structures in the R-C District be setback a minimum of 
five times their height from residentially zoned or used property.  This would require a 
120’ tower to be a minimum of 600’ from residential property. 
 

• Regardless of whether the zoning of the property is R-C or R-1C, the variance 
should be allowed. 

• The property on the north, closest to the site, is a public park. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

13 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not establish a prohibited use in a zoning district. 
• Variance will be beneficial to property owners in the area. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in the application. 
• Absent a variance, public health and safety will be negatively affected. 
• Absent a variance, conformance to the Ordinance is unnecessarily burdensome. 
• Park area located to the north and there are no residential buildings located in 

close proximity of the tower. 
• Residential homes are located more than two times the height of the tower. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Maxwell, Wright, Bartnik, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 (ITEM #2) – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TONY V’S SUNROOMS, 2024 
LAKESIDE, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will result in a 
28.18’ rear yard setback and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along 
Southpointe Drive.  Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 
25’ minimum front yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is seeking relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
rear patio enclosure.   This property is located at the southwest corner of the 
intersection of Lakeside and Southpointe.  Because of the orientation of the adjacent  
houses this is a double front corner lot and has front yard setbacks along both streets.   
 
Because of the orientation of this house the south property line is considered to be the 
rear property line.  The site plan submitted indicates a proposed 28.18’ rear yard 
setback and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  
Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front 
yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of January 15, 2008 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the Board wished to postpone this request to give the petitioner the 
opportunity of a full Board. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Kovacs 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

14 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Tony V’s Sunrooms, 2024 Lakeside, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will result in a 28.18’ rear yard setback 
and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  Section  
30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front yard 
setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 

• Variance request is excessive. 
• 28’ rear yard setback is excessive. 

 
Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. Courtney what his reason for denial was.  Mr. Courtney stated 
that he went back out and looked at the property and believes this request is excessive.  
Originally, Mr. Courtney thought there was more space available. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he agrees with Mr. Courtney. 
 
Mr. Blocitto said that he went back to the site and went down the side street and took 
pictures of the back of the property and does not believe this addition will be visible to 
anyone sitting on their front porch.  The only time this sunroom will be visible is when 
traveling north on Southpointe.  This room will not affect anyone’s site view.  Mr. Blocitto 
said that the family had planned to be here, however, the homeowner just got out of the 
hospital with pneumonia. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that because of the proximity of the home closest to this home, he 
believes the sunroom would be intrusive.   
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what the procedure was regarding a vote to deny the variance. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that if this request is denied, the petitioner could come back before the 
Board if they had a significant change in their plan.  At times the Board has looked at a 
change of 10% in a plan. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that was correct.  There is no exact, specific definition of what a 
substantial difference is.  Ultimately the Board can decide that the second request was 
the same as the first and deny it again.  It is up to the best interests of the applicant to 
provide the Board with a substantial change. 
 
Mr. Blocitto asked what Mr. Maxwell said regarding a 10% change.   
 
Mr. Stimac said that he is not trying to put out numbers, however, past history shows 
that if a new request is submitted it should be at least 10% different from the original 
submission.  There is nothing in the Ordinance that specifies 10%, but the change 
should be significant. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

15 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that he went out and looked at the property and believes the variance 
should be granted.  The neighborhood surrounds the lake, and there are large houses 
on the lots with shorter distances between the houses.  Mr. Bartnik believes this is a 
unique piece of property and the neighbors or association did not have a problem with 
this request.  Mr. Bartnik also said that he does not believe this request is excessive. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Tony V’s Sunrooms, 2024 Lakeside, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will result in a 28.18’ rear yard setback 
and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  Section 
30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front yard 
setback in R-1D Zoning Districts until the meeting of March 18, 2008. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Gies, Maxwell, Wright, Bartnik 
Nays:  2 – Kovacs, Courtney 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO TABLE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF MARCH 18, 2008 
CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac said that officially since there was a motion on the floor to deny this request, 
at the next meeting this motion will have to be acted upon.  Mr. Bartnik’s motion to 
postpone, only postponed the vote on the motion to deny. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he has no problem with the variance for the front yard setback, but 
does believe the rear yard setback variance is too large. 
 
Mr. Blocitto asked if the cell tower at 5600 Crooks Road was still in operation.  Mr. 
Stimac said it was and Mr. Blocitto said that he never has a problem with cell phone 
coverage. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the postponement will allow the petitioner to change his plans. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the petitioner will have the opportunity to speak about his 
request at the next meeting. 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that Mr. Maxwell had accepted a position on the 
Planning Commission and this would be his last meeting at the Board of Zoning 
Appeals.  It is quite likely that a new member will be at the next meeting. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

16 
 

Mr. Kovacs thanked Mr. Maxwell for the time he served on this Board and told him that 
he thought he did an excellent job as Chairman.   
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Clark from tonight’s meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Bartnik, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. CLARK CARRIED 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he appreciated the staff he has worked with and feels that 
everyone he has worked with cares about what happens with the City.  Mr. Maxwell said 
that everyone on the Board has a great deal of integrity and everyone has always been 
respectful even though not everyone agrees with each other.  Mr. Maxwell also thanked 
everyone that he had worked with in the nine (9) years he was on this Board. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
              
       Matthew Kovacs, Vice-Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MINUTES       FINAL          February 20, 2008 

 
 
A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, 
February 20, 2008 in the Lower Level Conference Room, City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Troy, Michigan.  Alan Kiriluk called the meeting to order at 7:36 a.m. 
 
 
 
PRESENT:  Michael Culpepper 
   David Hay 

Michele Hodges 
William Kennis 
Alan Kiriluk 
Ernest Reschke 
G. Thomas York 
 
 

ABSENT:  Al Aceves 
   Stuart Frankel 

Daniel MacLeish 
Louise Schilling  
Douglas Schroeder 
Harvey Weiss 
 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Phil Nelson 
   John M. Lamerato 

Brian Murphy   
   Lori Bluhm 
   Mark Miller 
   Steve Vandette 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution:    DD-08-03 
Moved by:    Kennis 
Seconded by:  York 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the January 16, 2008 regular meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All (7) 
Absent: Aceves, Frankel, MacLeish. Schilling, Schroeder, Weiss 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Investment Strategy Summary and Results 
 
A summary and results of the investment strategy exercise was compiled by Carlisle 
Wortman Associates, Inc. and presented at the DDA meeting by Executive Director, 
Brian Murphy. 
 
Resolution:   DD-08-04 
Moved by:     Kennis 
Seconded by:  Hodges 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy DDA adopts the Investment Strategy as a template for 
moving forward. 
 
Yeas:     All (7) 
Absent:   Aceves, MacLeish, Frankel. Schilling, Schroeder, Weiss 
 
   
B. December 31, 2007 Monthly Financial Report was Received and Filed  
 
 
C. Planning Department Updates 
 
Mark Miller, Planning Director updated the Board on the preparation of the Master 
Plan, copies are available on the website.  He also explained the Zucker report and 
updated the DDA on the passing of fee increases in the Building Department.               
 
 
D. Engineering Department Updates 
 
Discussion of the improvements on Big Beaver / Rochester Road were discussed 
and visuals shown.  Improvements at Big Beaver / I-75 were discussed. MDOT does 
not have a definite date, which lead to a Board resolution. 
 
Resolution:   DD-08-05 
Moved by:   Culpepper 
Seconded by:  Kennis 
 
RESOLVED, That a letter be sent with the following details included: 
 

1) After hearing the Engineering Department report on the state of the Big 
Beaver/I-75 Interchange, the Troy Downtown Development Authority has 



discussed the information and is disappointed that there is not a definite 
schedule for the improvements; 

2) Troy DDA has made significant financial commitment to several projects on 
the corridor via the Corridor Study such as: the improvements that are to 
occur at Rochester Road and Big Beaver; the intention to upgrade the Big 
Beaver/I-75 Interchange.  In the Board’s opinion, it is urgent from a 
community, regional, state, and economic standpoint that MDOT make this 
project a first phase enhancement in order to allow the DDA’s vision to 
move forward through other enhancements. 
 

Yeas:   All (7) 
Absent:   Aceves, Frankel, MacLeish, Schilling, Schroeder, Weiss 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Marv Reinhart made some comments about his concern for Troy becoming 
overpopulated. 
 
 
MEMBER COMMENT 
 
At next meeting have list of improvements needed for Big Beaver housekeeping. 
 
Inform constituents of future improvements on Big Beaver/Rochester Road. 
 
Update on Ocean Club, Starbucks and Pavilions.  
 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution:    DD-08-06 
Moved by:    York 
Seconded by:  Culpepper 
 
RESOLVED, That Aceves, Frankel, MacLeish, Schilling, Schroeder and Weiss be 
excused. 
 
Yeas:   All (7) 
Absent:  Aceves, Frankel, MacLeish, Schilling, Schroeder, Weiss 
 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:25 a.m. 
 
Next Meeting:  March 19, 2008 @ 7:30 a.m. in the Lower Level Conference 
Room, City Hall. 
 

 



 
 
 
         
________________________________________ 

Alan Kiriluk, Chair   
 
 

________________________________________ 
      John M. Lamerato, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
JL/ph 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL MARCH  4, 
2008 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was not held Tuesday, 
March 4, 2008 at the Troy Museum because of lack of quorum. 

 
 
The next regular meeting will be held, Tuesday, April 1, 2008  at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy 
Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  

Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 
 
 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 4, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on March 4, 2008 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Mark Maxwell Michael W. Hutson 
Robert M. Schultz  Mark J. Vleck 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-025 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Hutson and Vleck are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All (6) 
Absent:  Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-026 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 
Yes:  All (6) 
Absent:  Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 4, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-027 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 12, 2008 Regular meeting as 
distributed. 
 
Yes:  Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski, Wright 
Abstain: Maxwell 
Absent:  Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Wright presented a brief BZA Report. 

 
 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Miller presented the DDA Report.  The DDA requested that the team of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. and Grissom Metz Andriese Associates develop 
a proposal for design standards.  The Planning Commission will be given input into 
the process. 
 
Chair Schultz announced that he will attend the next DDA meeting as a 
representative of the Planning Commission. 
 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented the Planning and Zoning Report. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 4, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 233) – Article 03.00.00, Digital 
Application Submission Requirements 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment. 
 
Mr. Tagle suggested that the Planning Commission might want to consider three-
dimensional animation for certain areas to determine how projects will fit within the 
streetscape or neighborhood. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the idea. 
 
The Planning Commission suggested minor revisions to the draft text amendment. 
 
Mr. Miller reminded the Planning Commission that a Public Hearing is scheduled for 
the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment at the March 11, 2008 Regular 
meeting. 
 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.200.00 and 
Article 40.66.00, Pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking 
of Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment. 
 
The Planning Commission made minor revisions to the draft text amendment. 
 
Mr. Maxwell commented on the inadequacy of Section 43.74.01 that relates to the 
standards that must be applied by the BZA for the temporary parking of commercial 
vehicles in residential districts. 
 
Mr. Miller indicated the Planning Department would determine if vehicles in Troy 
were permitted to be parked on lawns in residential areas. 
 
Tom Krent, 3184 Alpine, Troy, suggested the commercial vehicle definition is 
difficult to enforce because it is difficult to restrict commercial vehicles that weigh 
less that 10,000 pounds.  He distributed an excerpt from the Michigan Vehicle 
Code, Act 300 of 1949, which indicates commercial vehicles weighing more than 
5,000 pounds are required to have signage. 
 
Jeanne Stine, 1915 Boulan, Troy, said the text amendment might go through some 
significant revisions at the City Council level.  She addressed a concern relating to 
the ability to appeal the provisions because they are open to interpretation. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 4, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Miller stated the text amendment would eliminate the standards for review of 
commercial vehicles; therefore, appeals would not go to the BZA since Troy does 
not authorize use variances.  He indicated appeals would be made to the Circuit 
Court. 
 
A Public Hearing will be scheduled for the April 8, 2008 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting. 

 
_______________ 

 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-028 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Tagle be excused from the remainder of this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All (6) 
Absent:  Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
[Mr. Tagle exited the meeting.] 
 

 
OTHER ITEMS 

 
10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
Jeanne Stine, 1915 Boulan, Troy, apologized for not being present for the first 
Public Comment agenda item.  Ms. Stine complimented the Planning Commission 
on their efforts in developing the draft Master Plan.  Additionally, she commended 
the Planning Commission on the Public Input Workshop. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Troshynski announced to the members that she will be submitting a letter of 
resignation from the Planning Commission for personal reasons. 
 
Members thanked Ms. Troshynski for her service and wished her luck in future 
endeavors.  Additionally, they welcomed Mr. Maxwell to the Planning Commission. 
 





BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                  MARCH 5, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:32 A.M., on Wednesday, March 5, 2008 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Keith Lenderman 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF FEBRAURY 6, 2008 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that he wished the minutes amended to indicate that he had 
abstained from the vote on Item #4, which was the interpretation of the 2003 Michigan 
Building Code. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of February 6, 2008 as amended. 
 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS AMENDED CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  THOMAS KEMP, KEMP BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT CO., 2477 W. MAPLE, for relief of Chapter 83 to construct a 6’ high 
chain link fence along the south property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to construct a 
6’ high chain link fence along the south property line at 2477 W. Maple Road.  The rear 
of this property abuts the private road Equity along its south property line.  Having 
frontage on a street on both its north and south sides makes this property a double 
front-through lot.  As such it has a front yard requirement along both streets.  Section 3 
of Chapter 83 of the City Code (the Fence Ordinance) prohibits fences in front yard 
locations on Industrial Zoned property. 
 
Ian Hurst and Tiffany Rust from Kemp Building Company, and Eugene Shanzo of 2477 
W. Maple were present.  Ms. Rust indicated that they plan to put in a detention pond 
with a one on four slope and it will require protection.  They do not have access to 
Equity Drive and therefore do not believe this should make their property a double front 
through lot.   
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                  MARCH 5, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hurst stated that because they do not have access to Equity Drive, this area is used 
as more a back yard than a front yard. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the detention pond required a fence around it. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the petitioner has other options available and the petitioner should 
demonstrate why this detention pond needs to be at this slope or at this location.  Mr. 
Stimac is not aware of any objections that the Engineering Department has to the slope 
of the detention pond. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if a fence was required because the slope of the pond is proposed 
to be one on four. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that if the slope were changed to no greater than one on six a fence 
would not be required. 
 
Mr. Shanzo stated in his opinion the fence should be put in to increase the safety factor 
around the detention pond. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the required parking would become an issue if the detention pond 
were moved to the north and the grade changed. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the front end of the property has a building under construction for 
indoor storage.  The rear of this property is proposed to provide storage for commercial 
and recreational vehicles.  The number of spaces is not dictated by the Ordinance, but 
rather by the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if a fence could be constructed at the south of the parking area if 
the detention pond was not fenced in. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that was correct if the detention pond was at least 50’ wide. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked about the one on six slope. 
 
Ms. Rust said if they enlarged the detention pond it would take out the drive lane.  This 
would amount to approximately 35’. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that they would lose approximately four spaces per row. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that in order to grant a variance there are requirements that have to 
be met.  A hardship is required in order for this Board to grant a variance.  This is a new 
project, and he believes underground detention is a possibility in the front of the 
property.  Mr. Kessler does not feel that the petitioner has provided a hardship. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                  MARCH 5, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hurst indicated that he believes the hardship is that they do not have access to 
Equity Drive. 
 
Mr. Richnak explained that the issue is the adjacent property, not the use. 
 
Mr. Hurst stated that their neighbor to the west use their property as a back yard and 
also have a pond in that location. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that they would rather see trees and landscaping and not a pond at all.  
Mr. Kessler did not see a hardship demonstrated. 
 
Ms. Rust stated that they are proposing to install trees along the south property line. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that the newer buildings along Equity meet the required setbacks.  
Arvin Meritor had parking in existence when the street was developed.  Maintaining 
setbacks would be more pleasing to property owners in the area. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Ms. Rust stated that the hardship is that there are two front yards on this property. 
 
Mr. Shanzo said that although there is frontage on Equity, they do not have any access 
to Equity. 
 
Mr. Hurst said that they don’t own the frontage on Equity Drive and believes someone 
else owns that property. 
 
Mr. Stimac clarified that their property does in fact butt up to Equity Drive.  Mr. Hurst 
said that was correct but Equity is a private road and they do have access to Equity 
Drive. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that Equity Drive is a private road and the owners of adjacent property 
do not automatically have access to the road. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how the detention pond would be maintained. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that they would have access from the north side. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked if a fence would be permitted if Equity Drive was not there.  Mr. 
Stimac replied that it would be allowed. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                  MARCH 5, 2008 

4 
 

 
ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that there are many locations in Troy that are considered to be 
double front lots and the petitioners that come before this Board have to demonstrate a 
hardship that runs with the land.  Not having access to Equity Drive is not a hardship. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if this would change if they had access to Equity Drive.  Mr. 
Richnak stated that if they had access to Equity Drive they would have to move the 
detention pond. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked if they could put up a fence on the north side of the pond.  Mr. 
Stimac said that they could since it appears that it is 75’ from Equity Drive. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked the petitioner if they had given any thought to moving the detention 
pond or creating a one on six slope. 
 
Mr. Shanzo said that when they appeared before the Planning Commission, they were 
told that storage is needed in the City for the storage of Commercial Vehicles as well as 
Recreational Vehicles so that they could be moved out of residential areas.  If they 
move the detention pond they will lose some parking spaces, and they believe by 
providing this space it will benefit the City. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that he agrees with what the petitioner is saying, but this Board is trying 
to maintain the setbacks and he does not feel the petitioner has demonstrated a 
hardship. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Thomas Kemp, Kemp Building & Development Co., 
2477 W. Maple, for relief of Chapter 83 to construct a 6’ high chain link fence along the 
south property line. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship. 
 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  VASILE CARSTEA, 5353 LIVERNOIS, for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install entrance gates at 5353 Livernois, St. Nicholas Romanian Orthodox 
Church. 
 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                  MARCH 5, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install 
entrance gates at 5353 Livernois.  The site plan submitted indicates installing entrance 
gates at the north (Stalwart) and east (Livernois) driveways to the parking lot.  The north  
gates are proposed to be 8’-10 ½” in height.  The proposed east gates are shown to be 
8’-6 ½” in height with decorative supporting columns and an archway up to 9’-4” in 
height.  Chapter 83 limits the heights of the gates and support columns to a 6’ maximum 
in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Vasile Carstea, Father George Carstea and Mr. Ilie Muresan were present.  Mr. 
Carstea stated that they need this fence to protect their property from trespassers and 
from cars that come into their drive and use this area to cut through the subdivision.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the same results could be achieved with a 6’ gate. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that it could, but they have already purchased these gates. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked where the fire hydrants were located on this property and Mr. 
Carstea indicated that they are right in front of the church on Livernois. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the gates were going to be locked. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that they have a magnetic locking system that requires 4 lbs of 
pressure to open. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the Fire Department would be able to push the gates open and Mr. 
Carstea said that was correct.  
 
Mr. Kessler confirmed that the petitioner wished to put these gates up to prevent people 
from cutting through their property. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that they want to keep trespassers off of the property and between the 
hours of 3:00 P.M. and 5:00 P.M., vehicles use their drives as a cut through to the 
subdivision. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
No one wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed.   
 
There is one written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Lenderman said that the petitioner is proposing to restrict access to this property 
with the use of these gates.  Mr. Lenderman went on to say that it has been his 
experience, that as soon as the public finds out that these gates can be opened with 4 
pounds of pressure, locks and chains will be put on the gates to keep them closed. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                  MARCH 5, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
These locks will slow the response time of the Fire Department to get to the structure 
thereby endangering the lives of people inside the structure. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that he had spoken to the Fire Marshall and stated that he will not lock 
the gates. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that a gate at a height of 6’ would still be an issue for the Fire 
Department to deal with. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the height of the fence was an issue. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that it was the height of the gates.  These gates are proposed to be 
between 2’ and 3 ½’ higher than what is allowed by the Ordinance.   The height of the 
towers are also included in this request. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the petitioner had spoken to the home owners on Stalwart to 
determine how they felt about this proposed fence and gates. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that he had not, but had spoken to the residents on either side of the 
Church and they did not object. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they had talked to anyone about modifying the gates. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that he had spoken to a contractor, but if the gates were modified at 
the top, they would be useless. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked why the petitioner bought the gates before he came to the Board. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that he did not think of it. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that in his opinion these gates are too high. 
 
Mr. Zuazo said that he feels there should be some way to modify the gates. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that he does think it can be done. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that he thinks these gates are too high, especially on Stalwart, which 
is a residential area. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there was anyway to compromise. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked what the height of the grade was to the second horizontal piece of the 
gate. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                  MARCH 5, 2008 

7 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that he believes it is 42”. 
 
A discussion began regarding the possibility of cutting off the bottom rail and re-welding 
it to make the gate shorter. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that he had not thought of that option. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he could understand how the gate could not be modified at the top, 
but feels that the structural stability of the gate should not be affected if the rail is cut 
from the bottom of the gate and then re-welded on. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that he did not have a problem with the proposed archway and felt that 
the last pillar on Livernois should be lowered.  Mr. Richnak also said that it was feasible 
to postpone this request to allow the petitioner the opportunity to talk to contractors to 
determine what could be done to reduce the height of these gates.   
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that the petitioner has to also appear before the Board of 
Zoning Appeals as these gates will affect the width of the driveways.  If the Board of 
Zoning Appeals does not grant the request to reduce the width of the driveways, the 
petitioner may have to look into a great deal of modifications for these gates. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked if the gates swing in or out when opening. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that they swing in. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that it appears that it may be better to postpone this request for 
one month, to allow the petitioner to appear before the Board of Zoning Appeals and to 
allow the petitioner the chance to contact fence contractors to see what kind of 
modifications could be made to the gates. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Vasile Carstea, 5353 Livernois, for relief of Chapter 
85 to install entrance gates at 5353 Livernois, St. Nicholas Romanian Orthodox Church 
until the meeting of April 2, 2008. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to appear before the Board of Zoning 
Appeals. 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to meet with fence contractors to see what 
modifications could be made to these gates. 

 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                  MARCH 5, 2008 

8 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF APRIL 2, 2008 
CARRIED 
 
Mr. Ilie Muresan asked why they can’t put up a 9’ high gate. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that he believes these gates are too high. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that the Ordinance has requirements and these gates do not meet the 
requirements of the Ordinance.  The petitioner has not demonstrated a hardship that 
would allow for this variance, and monetary expenditures alone are not considered a 
hardship.  It is up to the petitioner to explain what the problems with this property are. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that the Ordinance does not allow the gates to be more than 6’ in 
height. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:30 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        March 6, 2008 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
March 6 2008 at the Troy Community Center.  Vice-Chair Pauline Noce called the meeting to 
order at 1:08 PM. 
 
Present: Jo Rhoads, Member James Berar, Member   
 Frank Shier, Member David Ogg, Member   
 Betty Coven, Member Merrill Dixon, Member 
 Pauline Noce, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff 
 
Absent: Bud Black, excused; JoAnn Thompson  
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming, Jeff Biegler 
 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2008-3-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads 
Seconded by Frank Shier  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Jan. 3, 2008 be approved as submitted.  The February 
meeting was cancelled due to inclement weather. 
 
Yes: 7  
No:  0  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming discussed the new school district Gold Card and gave cards to all committee 
members.  She announced the play at Troy High School this weekend and other school district 
news. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Lunch Visits:   No report 
 
Medicare Part D:  No report.   
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Enhanced Garden:  Parks Superintendent Jeff Biegler discussed the development of the 
enhanced garden on the four acres just north of the Community Center.  There will be a 
walking path, a shelter, and rest rooms. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        March 6, 2008 

2 

 
 
Appointment to the Park Board:   
 
Resolution # SC-2008-3-002 
Moved by Betty Coven 
Seconded by James Berar  
 
RESOLVED, That Pauline Noce be recommended for reappointment to the Park Board 
 
Yes: 7  
No:  0  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Suggestion Box:  There were three suggestions from one man about 1. Transportation,  2. 
Volunteering in exchange for service, and 3. Creating a forum to consider new ideas.  Carla 
handed out copies of the suggestions and said she had met with the man to discuss them and 
invited him to the meeting today to explain.   The Committee suggested that perhaps SHARP 
clients could be asked to volunteer in return for the service they receive.  Carla will bring it up 
at the next SHARP meeting.  
 
Projects for 2008:  The Committee will participate in the Expo.  Carla will make brochures.  
Mr. Berar would like to pursue the park bench at Sanctuary Lake and asked about the 
possibility of offering a five pin bowling league. 
 
 
REPORTS 
 
Park Board:  No report. 
 
Senior Program:  A Men’s 50 Plus Softball League is forming.  It will be offered in the evening 
so that baby boomers who are still working can participate.  Troy has enough for a team, but 
the response has not been as good in other cities.  There will be a free demonstration class of 
the New Zumba Gold Dance Exercise Program on March 28.  Flyers have been mailed to last 
year’s bocce and shuffleboard league participants and registrations are now being taken.   
SHARP Volunteers were recognized by City Council on February 18.  Private computer 
consultations are now being offered by the SeniorNet volunteers.   
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that they are very busy and are looking at ways to become 
more efficient. 
 
OLHSA:  Pauline reported that they had a speaker from Beaumont about senior services.  Jo 
Rhoads said that the speaker provided good information and that we should have the program 
here.   Carla will contact the speaker if Pauling or Jo can provide contact information. 
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that attorneys spoke about 
legal issues such as power of attorney and estate planning. 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        March 6, 2008 

3 

Comments 
 
Jo Rhoads shared information from the latest issue of Access, a publication of the Area 
Agency on Aging. 
 
Betty Coven announced that there is a new session of Cross Train Your Brain coming up. 
 
Frank Shier announced the upcoming pasta dinner fundraiser for Troy People Concerned. 
 
Merrill Dixon commented that information from the county meetings should be passed on to 
the seniors via the newsletter. 
 
James Berar discussed Bocce ball and its similarities to bowling. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:15 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Pauline Noce, Vice Chair  
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on March 11, 2008, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Mark Maxwell Michael W. Hutson 
Robert Schultz Mark J. Vleck 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Wayne Wright (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Ron Figlan, Staff Planner 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-029 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 

RESOLVED, That Members Hutson, Vleck and Wright are excused from 
attendance at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 

Yes: All present (5) 
Absent:  Hutson, Vleck, Wright (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz announced that five (5) affirmative votes are required for approval and 
recommending actions.  He indicated a petitioner could request postponement of an 
item prior to the deliberation of the item.  
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-030 
Moved by:  Strat 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck, Wright (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

2 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-031 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 4, 2008 Special/Study meeting 
as presented. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck, Wright (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 

5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 946) – Proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy, Northeast corner of 
Long Lake and Rochester Road, Section 11, B-2 (Community Business) and H-S 
(Highway Service) Districts 
 
[Mr. Wright arrived at 7:38 p.m.] 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted. 
 
Mark Belmont of Atwell-Hicks, 30575 Bainbridge Road, Solon, Ohio, and John 
Hennessey of Hennessey Engineers, Inc., 2674 W. Jefferson, Trenton, Michigan, 
were present to represent the petitioner.  
 
Mr. Belmont addressed the parking spaces, cross access easement and the green 
features of the proposed site plan.  
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if it would be detrimental to require a right turn only at the 
northwest exit of the parcel. 
 
Mr. Tagle agreed the access could pose a safety issue and said the cross access 
easement might exacerbate the situation. 
 
Mr. Belmont replied that Rite Aid would like full access of the exit to eliminate 
potential stacking of cars on the site.  He said the item would have to be revisited by 
the corporate office if a right turn only sign is required.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

3 
 

Mr. Hennessey noted that the access would eventually be a right turn only at the 
completion of the Rochester Road improvement in the future. 
 
A short discussion continued.  It was agreed to request the City Traffic Engineer to 
revisit the exit onto Rochester Road for turning abilities. 
 
Chair Schultz addressed the proposed landscaping and asked the petitioner to 
consider providing an additional three (3) trees.   
 
Mr. Belmont said they would be willing to provide two (2) trees on the north and one 
(1) tree on the east.   
 
Chair Schultz asked if there are currently cross access easements in place with the 
adjacent properties. 
 
Mr. Figlan replied that no cross access easements are currently in place. 
 
Chair Schultz questioned the installation of the cross access easement.   
 
Mr. Savidant said it is a practice to require installation of a cross access easement 
at the time of ongoing construction. 
 
There was a brief discussion on the proposed lighting.  It was agreed to request 
appropriate City departments to revisit the proposed lighting to ensure appropriate 
shielding and compliance with City standards.  
 

Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-032 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces to forty nine (49) when a total of fifty six (56) 
spaces are required on the site based on the off-street parking space requirements 
for retail uses, as per Article XL.  This reduction meets the standards of Article 
40.20.12. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy, located on the 
northeast corner of Long Lake and Rochester Road, Section 11, approximately 
59,829 square feet, within the B-2 and H-S zoning districts, be granted, subject to 
the following conditions: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

4 
 

1. That the City Traffic Engineer review turning maneuvers for the left turn lane 
exiting from the northwest corner of the property onto Rochester Road; and 

2. That lighting levels be reviewed by the Engineering Department along all 
perimeter property lines; and 

3. That an additional three (3) trees are provided to the north and east landscape 
buffers. 

 
Yes:  All present (6) 
Absent:  Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 356) – Proposed Staybridge 
Hotel, Northeast corner of Maple and Research Drive (1553 E. Maple), Section 26, 
Zoned B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use request and site plan application.  He reported it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the special use request and 
proposed site plan with the condition that a cross access easement on the property 
is provided and a joint access drive from Maple Road is provided by the neighboring 
property owner.   
 
At the request of Mr. Tagle, Mr. Savidant provided an explanation on the City’s 
recommendation to provide a joint access drive from Maple Road.  
 
The petitioner, Hatem Hannawa of 5600 E. Nine Mile Road, Warren, and the 
property owner, Masoud Sesi of 2392 Hornbeam Drive, Sterling Heights, were 
present. 
 
Mr. Hannawa briefly addressed the existing conditions and proposed site plan.  A 
color rendering of the proposed hotel was displayed. 
 
There was discussion on the differences in construction materials between the 
building elevations provided in the site plan submittal and the visual color rendering 
displayed.  The site plan submittal drawings show all four floors as brick.  The color 
rendering shows three floors as brick and the top floor as EFIS (exterior finish 
insulation system). 
 
Mr. Hannawa said they are proposing brick on the first three floors and EFIS on the 
fourth floor to break up the materials, but noted that the corporate office mandates 
brick only on the first floor. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

5 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Discussion continued on the building materials. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-033 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 22.30.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed hotel, located on the northeast corner of Maple and Research Drive, in 
Section 26, within the B-3 zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Provide a cross access easement on the subject property and have the 

neighboring property owner provide a joint access drive to the subject property 
from Maple Road, prior to Final Site Plan Approval. 

2. That the elevations as depicted on the site plan submittal be approved, and not 
the rendering presented this evening.  

 
Yes: Maxwell, Schultz, Troshynski, Wright 
No: Strat, Tagle 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Strat said he likes the rendering and concurs with the petitioner in terms of the 
design elements.  Mr. Strat said two different materials would enhance the design of 
the hotel.  He indicated EFIS is comparable to brick in cost and quality. 
 
Mr. Tagle agreed the rendering is nice, and the building does not look like a lesser 
product with the EFIS.  Mr. Tagle said he would expect the building to look like the 
rendering in terms of colors and where the EFIS starts and stops on the dormers.  
 
Chair Schultz asked if any member would like to reconsider the item before moving 
ahead with the next agenda item.   
 
Messrs. Strat and Tagle confirmed that aesthetics is the basis for their preference of 
the rendering elevation.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

6 
 

Resolution # PC-2008-03-034 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To reconsider the item. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-035 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 22.30.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed hotel, located on the northeast corner of Maple and Research Drive, in 
Section 26, within the B-3 zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Provide a cross access easement on the subject property and have the 

neighboring property owner provide a joint access drive to the subject property 
from Maple Road, prior to Final Site Plan Approval. 

2. That the rendered elevations presented to the Commission tonight are 
acceptable and included as part of the site plan documentation submitted to the 
Planning Department this evening; and further that the building colors shall 
match the rendering submitted to the Planning Department this evening. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Ms. Troshynski addressed the quality of the material as emphasized by Messrs. 
Strat and Tagle.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 730) – Troy Museum and 
Historic Village Expansion, North side of Wattles, West of Livernois (109 Lange and 
100 W. Wattles), Section 16, From R-1B (One Family Residential) to C-F 
(Community Facilities) District 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

7 
 

Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning application, and reported City Management recommends 
approval of the rezoning request.  Mr. Savidant served as the petitioner on behalf of 
the City.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
John Lavender of 5849 Patterson Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Lavender is a 
member of the Troy Historic Society and serves as co-chair of the Heritage 
Campaign Committee.  Mr. Lavender offered to answer any questions the members 
might have.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-036 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to C-F rezoning request, located on the north side of Wattles, 
west of Livernois, within Section 16, being approximately 0.925 acres in size, be 
granted.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 947) – Proposed Spa Renaissance, North side of Big 
Beaver, between Louis and Troy, Section 22, O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and referenced a detailed summary provided by the petitioner in 
relation to the anticipated uses of the facility.  Mr. Savidant reported that City 
Management recommends approval of the site plan as submitted, with the condition 
to redesign the two parking spaces and trash/loading area on the south side of the 
western entry drive to provide a 10-foot greenbelt on the east side of Louis.  He 
indicated the redesign would have no impact on the site as relates to City 
standards.  
 
Mr. Savidant noted the City’s Landscape Architect commended the petitioner on 
one of the nicest landscape plans he has reviewed in the City of Troy. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

8 
 

The petitioners, William Stefani and Jeffrey Williams of 21000 Twelve Mile Road, St. 
Clair Shores, were present.   
 
Victor Saroki, project architect, of Victor Saroki & Associates Architects, 430 N. 
Woodward Avenue, Birmingham, was present.  Mr. Saroki introduced members of 
the project team who were in attendance.  He addressed the proposed site plan as 
relates to the Big Beaver Corridor Study, occupancy uses, reduction of parking 
spaces, building materials, reflecting pond, and the private and discreet practice of 
plastic surgery.  Mr. Saroki said they would accommodate the required 10-foot 
greenbelt on Louis.  Renderings of various elevations were displayed. 
 
Members Troshynski, Tagle, Strat and Schultz complimented the petitioner on the 
excellence of the proposed site plan. 
 
Mr. Tagle shared some concerns on the proposed reduction in parking spaces.  He 
asked the petitioner to address the occupancy of the building and the use of the 
conference room.   
 
Chair Schultz and Mr. Strat shared concerns with the parking reduction also.   
 
Dr. Stefani addressed the projected occupancy of the facility in relation to the 
parking.  He indicated the conference room would be used as a consultation room 
for patients and family as well as occasional educational seminars.  Dr. Stefani said 
a busy day might be 25 people spread out through a 7 to 8 hour day.   
 
Chair Schultz asked if the petitioner would consider placing four (4) additional trees 
across the north property line to shield the residents. 
 
Mr. Saroki replied he would discuss the additional trees with the landscape architect 
and petitioners. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-037 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces to fifty three (53) when a total of seventy one 
(71) spaces are required on the site based on the off-street parking space 
requirements for office and retail uses, as per Article XL.  This reduction meets the 
standards of Article 40.20.12. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

9 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed Spa Renaissance, located on the 
north side of Big Beaver, between Louis and Troy, Section 22, approximately 1.03 
acres, within the O-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Redesign the two parking spaces and trash/loading area on the south side of 

the western entry drive so that a 10-foot greenbelt on the east side of Louis 
can be provided.  

2. Consideration be given for an additional four (4) trees along the north 
property line. 

 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 233) – 
Article 03.00.00, Digital Submission Requirements 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a brief review of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment relating to digital submission requirements. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-038 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article III, APPLICATIONS AND PROCEDURES, pertaining to digital 
submission requirements, be amended as printed on the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment, Planning Commission Public Hearing Draft.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

10 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Several members addressed the excellent quality of the site plan submittal for Spa 
Renaissance (SP 947).   
 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:49 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2008 PC Minutes\Draft\03-11-08 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on March 11, 2008, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Mark Maxwell Michael W. Hutson 
Robert Schultz Mark J. Vleck 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Wayne Wright (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Ron Figlan, Staff Planner 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-029 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 

RESOLVED, That Members Hutson, Vleck and Wright are excused from 
attendance at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 

Yes: All present (5) 
Absent:  Hutson, Vleck, Wright (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz announced that five (5) affirmative votes are required for approval and 
recommending actions.  He indicated a petitioner could request postponement of an 
item prior to the deliberation of the item.  
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-030 
Moved by:  Strat 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck, Wright (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

2 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-031 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 4, 2008 Special/Study meeting 
as presented. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck, Wright (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 

5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 946) – Proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy, Northeast corner of 
Long Lake and Rochester Road, Section 11, B-2 (Community Business) and H-S 
(Highway Service) Districts 
 
[Mr. Wright arrived at 7:38 p.m.] 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted. 
 
Mark Belmont of Atwell-Hicks, 30575 Bainbridge Road, Solon, Ohio, and John 
Hennessey of Hennessey Engineers, Inc., 2674 W. Jefferson, Trenton, Michigan, 
were present to represent the petitioner.  
 
Mr. Belmont addressed the parking spaces, cross access easement and the green 
features of the proposed site plan.  
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if it would be detrimental to require a right turn only at the 
northwest exit of the parcel. 
 
Mr. Tagle agreed the access could pose a safety issue and said the cross access 
easement might exacerbate the situation. 
 
Mr. Belmont replied that Rite Aid would like full access of the exit to eliminate 
potential stacking of cars on the site.  He said the item would have to be revisited by 
the corporate office if a right turn only sign is required.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

3 
 

Mr. Hennessey noted that the access would eventually be a right turn only at the 
completion of the Rochester Road improvement in the future. 
 
A short discussion continued.  It was agreed to request the City Traffic Engineer to 
revisit the exit onto Rochester Road for turning abilities. 
 
Chair Schultz addressed the proposed landscaping and asked the petitioner to 
consider providing an additional three (3) trees.   
 
Mr. Belmont said they would be willing to provide two (2) trees on the north and one 
(1) tree on the east.   
 
Chair Schultz asked if there are currently cross access easements in place with the 
adjacent properties. 
 
Mr. Figlan replied that no cross access easements are currently in place. 
 
Chair Schultz questioned the installation of the cross access easement.   
 
Mr. Savidant said it is a practice to require installation of a cross access easement 
at the time of ongoing construction. 
 
There was a brief discussion on the proposed lighting.  It was agreed to request 
appropriate City departments to revisit the proposed lighting to ensure appropriate 
shielding and compliance with City standards.  
 

Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-032 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces to forty nine (49) when a total of fifty six (56) 
spaces are required on the site based on the off-street parking space requirements 
for retail uses, as per Article XL.  This reduction meets the standards of Article 
40.20.12. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy, located on the 
northeast corner of Long Lake and Rochester Road, Section 11, approximately 
59,829 square feet, within the B-2 and H-S zoning districts, be granted, subject to 
the following conditions: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

4 
 

1. That the City Traffic Engineer review turning maneuvers for the left turn lane 
exiting from the northwest corner of the property onto Rochester Road; and 

2. That lighting levels be reviewed by the Engineering Department along all 
perimeter property lines; and 

3. That an additional three (3) trees are provided to the north and east landscape 
buffers. 

 
Yes:  All present (6) 
Absent:  Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 356) – Proposed Staybridge 
Hotel, Northeast corner of Maple and Research Drive (1553 E. Maple), Section 26, 
Zoned B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use request and site plan application.  He reported it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the special use request and 
proposed site plan with the condition that a cross access easement on the property 
is provided and a joint access drive from Maple Road is provided by the neighboring 
property owner.   
 
At the request of Mr. Tagle, Mr. Savidant provided an explanation on the City’s 
recommendation to provide a joint access drive from Maple Road.  
 
The petitioner, Hatem Hannawa of 5600 E. Nine Mile Road, Warren, and the 
property owner, Masoud Sesi of 2392 Hornbeam Drive, Sterling Heights, were 
present. 
 
Mr. Hannawa briefly addressed the existing conditions and proposed site plan.  A 
color rendering of the proposed hotel was displayed. 
 
There was discussion on the differences in construction materials between the 
building elevations provided in the site plan submittal and the visual color rendering 
displayed.  The site plan submittal drawings show all four floors as brick.  The color 
rendering shows three floors as brick and the top floor as EFIS (exterior finish 
insulation system). 
 
Mr. Hannawa said they are proposing brick on the first three floors and EFIS on the 
fourth floor to break up the materials, but noted that the corporate office mandates 
brick only on the first floor. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

5 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Discussion continued on the building materials. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-033 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 22.30.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed hotel, located on the northeast corner of Maple and Research Drive, in 
Section 26, within the B-3 zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Provide a cross access easement on the subject property and have the 

neighboring property owner provide a joint access drive to the subject property 
from Maple Road, prior to Final Site Plan Approval. 

2. That the elevations as depicted on the site plan submittal be approved, and not 
the rendering presented this evening.  

 
Yes: Maxwell, Schultz, Troshynski, Wright 
No: Strat, Tagle 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Strat said he likes the rendering and concurs with the petitioner in terms of the 
design elements.  Mr. Strat said two different materials would enhance the design of 
the hotel.  He indicated EFIS is comparable to brick in cost and quality. 
 
Mr. Tagle agreed the rendering is nice, and the building does not look like a lesser 
product with the EFIS.  Mr. Tagle said he would expect the building to look like the 
rendering in terms of colors and where the EFIS starts and stops on the dormers.  
 
Chair Schultz asked if any member would like to reconsider the item before moving 
ahead with the next agenda item.   
 
Messrs. Strat and Tagle confirmed that aesthetics is the basis for their preference of 
the rendering elevation.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

6 
 

Resolution # PC-2008-03-034 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To reconsider the item. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-035 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 22.30.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed hotel, located on the northeast corner of Maple and Research Drive, in 
Section 26, within the B-3 zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Provide a cross access easement on the subject property and have the 

neighboring property owner provide a joint access drive to the subject property 
from Maple Road, prior to Final Site Plan Approval. 

2. That the rendered elevations presented to the Commission tonight are 
acceptable and included as part of the site plan documentation submitted to the 
Planning Department this evening; and further that the building colors shall 
match the rendering submitted to the Planning Department this evening. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Ms. Troshynski addressed the quality of the material as emphasized by Messrs. 
Strat and Tagle.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 730) – Troy Museum and 
Historic Village Expansion, North side of Wattles, West of Livernois (109 Lange and 
100 W. Wattles), Section 16, From R-1B (One Family Residential) to C-F 
(Community Facilities) District 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

7 
 

Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning application, and reported City Management recommends 
approval of the rezoning request.  Mr. Savidant served as the petitioner on behalf of 
the City.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
John Lavender of 5849 Patterson Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Lavender is a 
member of the Troy Historic Society and serves as co-chair of the Heritage 
Campaign Committee.  Mr. Lavender offered to answer any questions the members 
might have.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-036 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to C-F rezoning request, located on the north side of Wattles, 
west of Livernois, within Section 16, being approximately 0.925 acres in size, be 
granted.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 947) – Proposed Spa Renaissance, North side of Big 
Beaver, between Louis and Troy, Section 22, O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and referenced a detailed summary provided by the petitioner in 
relation to the anticipated uses of the facility.  Mr. Savidant reported that City 
Management recommends approval of the site plan as submitted, with the condition 
to redesign the two parking spaces and trash/loading area on the south side of the 
western entry drive to provide a 10-foot greenbelt on the east side of Louis.  He 
indicated the redesign would have no impact on the site as relates to City 
standards.  
 
Mr. Savidant noted the City’s Landscape Architect commended the petitioner on 
one of the nicest landscape plans he has reviewed in the City of Troy. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

8 
 

The petitioners, William Stefani and Jeffrey Williams of 21000 Twelve Mile Road, St. 
Clair Shores, were present.   
 
Victor Saroki, project architect, of Victor Saroki & Associates Architects, 430 N. 
Woodward Avenue, Birmingham, was present.  Mr. Saroki introduced members of 
the project team who were in attendance.  He addressed the proposed site plan as 
relates to the Big Beaver Corridor Study, occupancy uses, reduction of parking 
spaces, building materials, reflecting pond, and the private and discreet practice of 
plastic surgery.  Mr. Saroki said they would accommodate the required 10-foot 
greenbelt on Louis.  Renderings of various elevations were displayed. 
 
Members Troshynski, Tagle, Strat and Schultz complimented the petitioner on the 
excellence of the proposed site plan. 
 
Mr. Tagle shared some concerns on the proposed reduction in parking spaces.  He 
asked the petitioner to address the occupancy of the building and the use of the 
conference room.   
 
Chair Schultz and Mr. Strat shared concerns with the parking reduction also.   
 
Dr. Stefani addressed the projected occupancy of the facility in relation to the 
parking.  He indicated the conference room would be used as a consultation room 
for patients and family as well as occasional educational seminars.  Dr. Stefani said 
a busy day might be 25 people spread out through a 7 to 8 hour day.   
 
Chair Schultz asked if the petitioner would consider placing four (4) additional trees 
across the north property line to shield the residents. 
 
Mr. Saroki replied he would discuss the additional trees with the landscape architect 
and petitioners. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-037 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces to fifty three (53) when a total of seventy one 
(71) spaces are required on the site based on the off-street parking space 
requirements for office and retail uses, as per Article XL.  This reduction meets the 
standards of Article 40.20.12. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 11, 2008 
  

 
 

9 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed Spa Renaissance, located on the 
north side of Big Beaver, between Louis and Troy, Section 22, approximately 1.03 
acres, within the O-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Redesign the two parking spaces and trash/loading area on the south side of 

the western entry drive so that a 10-foot greenbelt on the east side of Louis 
can be provided.  

2. Consideration be given for an additional four (4) trees along the north 
property line. 

 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 233) – 
Article 03.00.00, Digital Submission Requirements 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a brief review of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment relating to digital submission requirements. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-038 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article III, APPLICATIONS AND PROCEDURES, pertaining to digital 
submission requirements, be amended as printed on the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment, Planning Commission Public Hearing Draft.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 





BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

1 
 

The Vice-Chairman, Matthew Kovacs, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning 
Appeals to order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, March 18, 2008 in Council Chambers of the 
Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Michael Bartnik 

Glenn Clark 
    Kenneth Courtney 
    Matthew Kovacs 
    Dave Lambert 
    Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:   Marcia Gies 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to excuse Ms. Gies from this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:   6 – Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Kovacs, Lambert, Wright 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MS. GIES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF FEBRUARY 19, 2008 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he would like the minutes amended as follows:  Page 12, second 
line up, wording to be changed to “… whether the zoning of the property is R-C or R-1B, 
the variance should be allowed.” 
 
Mr. Lambert pointed out that on motion to approve the minutes of January 15, 2008 the 
minutes indicate that Mr. Clark abstained from the vote; however he was absent from 
the meeting of January 15, 2008. 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of February 19, 2008 with above 
amendments. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Courtney, Kovacs, Lambert, Wright, Bartnik, Clark 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS AMENDED CARRIED 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – RENEWAL REQUEST.  K-MART, 100 E. MAPLE, for relief of the Ordinance 
to allow for an outdoor display of plant material in front of K-Mart along the north side of 
the fenced area and a four-foot section of the sidewalk at the west end of the building 
adjacent to the building. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of a variance granted by 
this Board on a yearly basis since 1978, which allows for an outdoor display of plant 
materials in front of K-Mart along the north side of the fenced garden area and four-foot 
section of the sidewalk adjacent to the building, at the west end of the building.  This 
display area is used for plants and flowers, and the variance is valid during the months 
of April through July.  This request has previously been subject to the petitioner 
providing a corral type fence to both enclose the area of the display and maintain a safe 
sidewalk at the same time.  This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of 
March 20, 2007 and was granted a one-year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain 
the same and we have no complaints or objections on file. 
 
The petitioner was not present.   
 
Mr. Clark asked if there were any changes to this request. 
 
Mr. Stimac indicated that the Building Department had not received any notice of any 
proposed changes compared to the previous years. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant K-Mart, 100 E. Maple renewal for one-year (1) of relief of the 
Ordinance to allow for an outdoor display of plant material in front of K-Mart along the 
north side of the fenced area and a four-foot section of the sidewalk at the west end of 
the building adjacent to the building. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
• Display out only during months of April through July. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Lambert, Wright, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO GRANT RENEWAL FOR ONE-YEAR CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TONY V’S SUNROOMS, 2024 LAKESIDE, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will result in a 28.18’ rear yard 
setback and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  
Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front 
yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is seeking relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
rear patio enclosure.   This property is located at the southwest corner of the 
intersection of Lakeside and Southpointe.  Because of the orientation of the adjacent 
houses it is a double front corner lot and has front yard setbacks along both streets.  
Because of the orientation of this house the south property line is considered to be the 
rear property line.  The site plan submitted indicates a proposed 28.18’ rear yard 
setback and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  
Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front 
yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac reminded the Board that there is an active motion on the floor to deny this 
request and it would require action taken by the Board. 
 
Mr. Tony Coatto of Tony V’s Sunrooms and Spas and Mr. Nuzhat Ali, the homeowner 
were present.  Mr. Coatto stated that he did not feel the site line would be affected at all 
as this is a corner lot and there is an existing deck that Mr. Coatto could walk under.  
The proposed sunroom would not be visible to traffic heading south on Southpointe.  
The builder constructed this home within 2” or 3” of setback and all of the lots around 
the lake are different sizes and shapes and Mr. Coatto is hoping that the Board will 
approve this request. 
 
Mr. Ali stated that his wife suffers from emphysema and arthritis. Mr. Ali has put a 
treadmill in the basement for his wife to do exercises that will help to strengthen her 
physically.  The cold weather makes it difficult for her to work in the basement. His 
daughter, who is a physician, has forbidden his wife to go near the door as the cold 
weather could have an adverse effect on her health.  Mr. Ali said that when they bought 
the house, they did not realize how close the house behind them was.  They have a 
large backyard and the Homeowners Association has approved these plans for the 
sunroom.  They had talked to many contractors and hired Tony V’s as they felt that their 
design was the best.  Mr. Ali also stated that the house behind them has a bay window 
that extends into the backyard and they did not realize that they would not be able to 
add on to their home at the time they purchased it. 
 
Mr. Kovacs informed Mr. Ali that this Board does not have the power to vote on a 
motion based on personal illness or personal circumstance of the person residing in a 
particular residence.  The Board does sympathize with Mr. Ali, however, in order for the 
variance to be granted there has to be a hardship that runs with the land and they must 
vote on the facts that are presented. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that in his opinion the house is large enough that the walking that is 
required for Ms. Ali could be done on the first floor and the treadmill would not take up 
that much room. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Ali said that there are not enough windows in the bedrooms to make them a 
pleasant location for the treadmill.  The other alternative they have is to place the 
treadmill in the breakfast room and then they would lose the use of this area.  Mr. Ali 
said that in his opinion the hardship is his wife’s physical difficulties.  The treadmill is 
quite large and this is the reason the sunroom is needed.   
 
Mr. Bartnik asked about the house behind Mr. Ali’s home with the bay window.  Mr. 
Bartnik asked exactly which property Mr. Ali referred to. 
 
Mr. Ali said that it was the home directly behind his home to the south.   
 
Mr. Bartnik then asked if this enclosure was going to be put on the existing deck. 
 
Mr. Coatto said that it will be smaller although the existing deck will have to be 
reinforced in order to hold the walls and windows. 
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Kovacs brought it back to the Board for a vote on the motion to deny the request.  
Mr. Kovacs pointed out that a “yes” vote would be in favor of denial. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that because this item had been postponed to allow the petitioner the 
opportunity of a full Board, and Ms. Gies was not present; he felt that the petitioner 
should be offered the opportunity to postpone this request once again.  
 
Mr. Courtney stated that it was up to the Board whether to postpone this matter or not, 
and Ms. Gies had voted in the past to deny the request.  He did not feel postponing 
would be necessary.  Mr. Courtney suggested that other members may want to 
postpone the request to give them the opportunity to go out and look at the property. 
 
Mr. Kovacs felt that with the new members it may be better to take a vote tonight. 
 
Mr. Clark said that the building to the south appears to be very close to the property line 
compared to what the petitioner is asking for.  Mr. Clark also asked what the setbacks 
were for the home to the south. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that that was a side yard setback and asked Mr. Stimac to explain 
the setbacks. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the north property line of the house to the south of 2024 Lakeside 
is considered to be a side yard setback. In the R-1D Zoning District, the minimum side 
yard setback is 8’.  The petitioner’s rear yard is the south side of his property and in the  
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
R-1D Zoning; it is required to be 40’.  Mr. Stimac also said that he believes the house to 
the south would have a setback to the rear property line of 40’ to the west.  The  
orientation of the house to the south is as follows: the front yard is to the east, the side 
yard is to the north and the rear yard is to the west.  Regarding the petitioner’s property, 
it is considered to be a double front corner lot as the rear yard is the south yard, which 
is required to be 40’, the side yard is the west side of the house and is allowed to be 8’ 
and the front yard would be the north side of the house.   
 
Mr. Clark asked if the fact that this home is a double front corner lot negatively affects 
this property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the property to the west of the petitioner’s home, the north 
property line fronts Lakeside Drive and is considered the front yard setback, the rear 
property line which is required to be 40’ is on the south side of the home.  That property 
also fronts on John R. and is also considered to be a double front through lot.  In the R-
1D Zoning Classification the minimum lot width is 75’ and a corner lot is required to be 
90’ wide.  The developer in this case met the 90’ width at the north setback line, and it 
tapers back to the south property line to 72’ wide.  Overall lot width at the rear is 72’, 
where 75’ is required; however they do meet the 90’ width at the front of the lot.  You 
don’t get the additional 15’ full width you would if this lot was a rectangle shape. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that the petitioner came forward and gave additional facts, but he was 
prepared to vote favorably on this request last month.  Mr. Bartnik stated that there is an 
existing structure there that is raised off the grade.  Mr. Bartnik also stated that the 
homes in this area are very close together and the subdivision is landlocked because of 
the lake and John R.  The developer took advantage of the 10% rule in putting these 
homes in and this is a unique property and Mr. Bartnik does not feel it would be a fair 
solution to prohibit him from building this sunroom. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he is not in favor of this request and does not think anyone on 
the Board had a problem with the 25’ setback on Southpointe and everyone 
understands that because it is a double front corner lot certain leeway should be 
allowed.  The rear yard setback request going from 40’ to 28’ is a very large request and 
is too excessive.  This home sits on the back property line and this is a very big 
variance request. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that originally he had voted not to deny, but when he took a closer 
look at this property he saw that adding this on, will put these homes too close and he is 
not in favor of this request. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked for a vote on the motion to deny the request made by Mr. Courtney at 
the meeting of February 19, 2008. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Tony V’s Sunrooms, 2024 Lakeside, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will result in a 28.18’ rear yard setback 
and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  Section  
30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front yard 
setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 

• Variance request is excessive. 
• 28’ rear yard setback will bring these two homes too close to each other. 

 
Yeas:   3 – Clark, Courtney, Kovacs 
Nays:   3 – Lambert, Wright Bartnik 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST FAILS 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Tony V’s Sunrooms, 2024 Lakeside, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will result in a 28.18’ rear yard setback 
and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  Section 
30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front yard 
setback in R-1D Zoning Districts until the meeting of April 15, 2008. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 
 
Mr. Clark apologized to the petitioner and said that he is not familiar with this request 
and he plans to go out and take a good look at this property so that he is more 
comfortable with what the petitioner is proposing.  Mr. Clark said that he is concerned 
that the setback to the south could be quite over-whelming. 
 
Mr. Ali said that he had received approval from the Architectural Committee and the 
neighbors.  Mr. Ali said that Mr. Clark would be welcome anytime to come and look at 
his property.  This will also enable Mr. Clark to see how high the existing deck is. 
 
Yeas:   6 – Lambert, Wright, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL APRIL 15, 2008 CARRIED 
 
Mr. Lambert asked how Ms. Gies had voted. 
 
Mr. Kovacs informed him that Ms. Gies had voted to deny this request, which is why he 
felt that they could go ahead with the vote. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

7 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Lambert suggested that the petitioner could go in and speak with City Staff 
regarding alternate plans. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that the petitioner could come back with a lesser variance request.  
 
ITEM #4 – APPROVAL REQUEST.  ROBERT & GENOVENA RASCOL, 635 
HARTLAND, for approval under Section 43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store 
a commercial vehicle outside on residential property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are seeking approval under Section 43.74.01 
of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential 
property.  The Ford F450 stake truck described in the application does not meet the 
exceptions found in Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Troy City Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the three (3) lots to the north of this site had homes on them. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he knows that there was at least one existing home and does 
know for sure if there are others. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he had looked at the area on line and there are three homes on 
the property. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he felt those homes would be too far away to see this truck. 
 
Mr. Rascol was present and stated that the truck is slightly larger than a F150 or F250.  
It is approximately 3’ longer, 2’ wider and 2’ taller than a normal pickup truck.  They 
have lived in Troy since 1996 and previously had lived at 680 Hartland.  They had been 
before Council and received a variance either in 1996 or 1997 and they have not had to 
appear before a Board since then. In May 2006 they moved across the street to a home 
that has a larger lot, and the present vehicle is 1’ shorter than the original truck.  Mr. 
Rascol has a small tree service and only one truck is required.  Due to the economy, it 
is much easier for them to keep the truck on their property rather than spend the extra 
money to store it in another location.  The truck is not visible and Mr. Rascol would like 
to be able to keep the truck parked on his property.  This is a very large property and if 
the Board wished, they would be willing to move the truck to another location on their 
lot. 
 
Mr. Kovacs informed the Board that there are three (3) written approvals on file and two 
(2) written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Lambert stated that he was probably on City Council the last time this request came 
before a Board and asked Mr. Rascol if Council had placed any stipulations on this 
request such as additional screening with landscaping or fencing. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

8 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Rascol said that the last time they had received approval they were not required to 
add any fencing or landscaping to park the truck on their property.  This was at 680 
Hartland and it was parked in front of the garage.  Mr. Rascol said that he would like to 
be able to keep his truck on his property. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that the Ordinance had changed and it may cost the petitioner 
some money to park the truck elsewhere.  Mr. Courtney said that he would be in favor 
of short term approval to allow the petitioner the opportunity to explore other possibilities 
for the storage of this truck.  Mr. Courtney also stated that it may be possible for Mr. 
Rascol to build a garage that would hold this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Rascol said that the truck is approximately 10’ tall and is not sure that he would be 
able to fit it inside his attached garage. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how high the opening of a garage door could be. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that presently an attached garage could have a door opening with a 10’ 
height. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion the restrictions of the Ordinance do not allow a 
petitioner to build a garage with a large enough door opening to hold a commercial 
vehicle. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that there is no limit on the size of the door opening for a detached 
garage, although the maximum height of a detached garage is limited to 14’ to the 
average roof line. 
 
Mr. Rascol said that he can lower the box of the truck and asked how close he could 
come to the side property line with the attached garage. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that as long as there is 10’ from the side property line on the east side 
of the house, then the west building line could be within 5’ of the property line. 
 
Mr. Rascol said that he would prefer to keep the truck outside. 
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. Rascol about the standards listed on the application and said that 
the Board had to agree that the petitioner met Item C and either A or B.  Mr. Kovacs 
asked the petitioner how he felt that he met the other criteria. 
 
Mr. Rascol said that in his opinion, he had met all of the criteria listed in order for the 
Board to grant approval. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

9 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Lambert 
 
MOVED, to grant Robert & Genovena Rascol, 635 Hartland, approval under Section 
43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on 
residential property for a period of one-year. 
 

• One-year time frame will give the petitioner the opportunity to look into other 
options for the storage of this vehicle. 

• Petitioner met the requirements of A and C. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he did not believe the petitioner met the criteria for either A or B 
and was concerned about granting this approval for one-year without evidence of either 
A or B.  Mr. Bartnik informed the applicant that it was up to him to provide evidence that 
he looked for another area to store this vehicle.   
 
Mr. Rascol stated that he would really like to keep this commercial vehicle at his home 
as he has done for the past ten (10) years. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that this was a residential neighborhood and would like to see the 
motion amended and reduce the amount of time allowed to six months rather than one-
year. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he would be willing to amend the motion for a period of six 
months, and if during that time period the petitioner had shown that he was trying to 
enlarge the existing garage, he would be willing to extend that another month or two. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the Board is looking for the information it needs that Mr. Rascol 
has made a solid, reasonable effort to find somewhere else to store this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked for a vote on the motion with the amendment of time allowed from 
one year to six months. 
 
MOVED, to grant Robert & Genovena Rascol, 635 Hartland, approval under Section 
43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on 
residential property for a period of six (6) months. 
 

• Six-month time frame will allow the petitioner to explore the possibility of 
enlarging his attached garage. 

• Six-month time frame will allow the petitioner to look into other sites where this 
vehicle could be stored. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Clark, Courtney, Kovacs, Lambert 
Nays:  2 – Wright, Bartnik 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

10 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO GRANT APPROVAL FOR SIX MONTHS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  VASILE CARSTEA, 5353 LIVERNOIS, for relief of 
the Ordinance to reduce the width of the driveways by installing gates.  The site plan 
submitted indicates that the gates will reduce the width of both driveways, (Stalwart and 
Livernois), to 18’.  Section 40.25.00 requires a minimum width of 22’ for a two-way 
driveway. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to reduce 
the width of the existing driveways by installing gates at 5353 Livernois.  The site plan 
submitted indicates installing entrance gates at the north (Stalwart) and east (Livernois) 
driveways to the parking lot.  As shown on the plans, these gates will reduce the width 
of both driveways to 18’.  Section 40.25.00 requires a minimum width of 22’ for a two-
way driveway. 
 
Mr. Lambert asked if the gate width is set up for public safety purposes such as the 
ingress and egress of Fire Trucks. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he did speak with the Fire Department on this issue and 
presumably if the Fire Department were arriving to the site, they would not be dealing 
with on-coming traffic to get to the site.  A fire truck can get through an area that is 18’ 
wide.  The actual requirement is basically to deal with day to day passenger vehicles 
trying to go through this opening in both directions simultaneously.  Standard parking 
spaces in the City of Troy are 9 ½’ wide and you will be doing two-way traffic with 1’ less 
for two cars if this variance is granted.  The gates have already been fabricated. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked for a clarification on the size of parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the width of two parking spaces is required to be 19’ and two-way 
traffic is 22’.  A drive aisle is 11’ wide. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what the width of the pavement on Stalwart as it appeared to him that 
the north driveway was no narrower than the pavement on Stalwart. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the typical width of asphalt street pavement is 22’ from edge to 
edge.  Right now the drive at the church is 24 1/2’ wide.  In a parking lot arrangement 
where you are actually maneuvering in and out of a parking space the two-way 
driveway width is actually 24’.  Where there are just two cars passing each other in a 
driveway, the minimum width is 22’.  The extra space is required when you are backing 
out and making a 90° turn. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what the zoning of this property was. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

11 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the zoning is R-1B (Single Family Residential).  Churches are 
a permitted use in R-1B Zoning subject to Special Use Approval. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the Church could be sold and a commercial building put on this 
property. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that it could not.  A commercial building could not be located in this 
area without the re-zoning of the property. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if commercial operations, such as day care, or a nursing school 
could be conducted from this location. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that there are allowable usages in conjunction with the Church such as 
regular elementary education as well as day care. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that you would have people coming in to drop off children at the same 
time people are leaving. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that their basement does not meet the requirements to have any living 
space so they only use the Social Hall on Sundays. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if it was possible to put a condition on a variance so that it would 
not permit using the site for a Sunday or nursery school. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that the variance request could have conditions imposed as long as the 
conditions are related to the use of the land.  A nursery school or day care use could 
possibly be viewed as a use of the land. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he was concerned because if there was a school, there could be 
traffic coming in and out at the same time. 
 
Mr. Vasile Carstea was present and said that the purpose of the gates were to keep out 
trespassers and to prevent cars from cutting through the property to get to Crooks or 
through the subdivision from 3:00 P.M. to 6:00 P.M.  There have been cars doing 
“donuts” in the parking lot and in the last year there have been two accidents.  Services 
are held once a week from 10:00 AM to 12:00 PM.  Twice a year, Christmas and Easter, 
services are held once during the day and once in the evening.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if they were separated by a significant amount of time. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that it was approximately 6 to 8 hours in between services.  Mr. 
Carstea also said that they have only one mass on Sunday. 
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

12 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. John Inch, 5247 Livernois, was present and stated that he lives approximately four 
houses away from the Church.   Mr. Inch’s driveway is 18’ wide and he thinks there may 
be a problem with traffic overstepping the driveway going into Church.  Mr. Inch also 
stated that he has concerns because cars will back up on Livernois.  This area starts to 
narrow down and he thinks it could pose a problem. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. Inch how the traffic would affect his driveway. 
 
Mr. Inch stated that the road narrows down and he is concerned about someone rear-
ending the car in front of it.  He believes that the gates will make the opening narrower.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he thought there was enough room for 2 or 3 cars in the driveway 
before getting to the gates.  Mr. Kovacs said that he also understood that Mr. Inch was 
concerned about the safety of traffic in this area. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if this wasn’t an existing problem. 
 
Mr. Inch said that it was but he did believe that the gates would make the drive tighter 
for the cars to get in and out of.  Mr. Inch stated that he has lived in this area for twenty-
six years and has firsthand knowledge of the traffic in the area. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written objections on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Clark asked for an explanation of where the gates were going to be.   
 
Mr. Carstea pointed out the location of the gates on a drawing he brought in. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that he well aware that Churches are targets for thievery.  Mr. Clark 
also stated that the petitioner spent a large amount of money on the gates. 
 
Mr. Carstea stated that they are trying to keep the area looking as authentic as possible.  
Mr. Carstea also said that the Church is empty except for Saturday nights and Sundays 
during services. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that the objections on file concern the parking of cars on Stalwart and 
do not have anything to do with the gates themselves.  Mr. Kovacs also said that he 
feels this is a small request and believes it will be beneficial to the petitioner and does 
not believe it will be a safety concern. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Bartnik 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

13 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Vasile Carstea, 5353 Livernois, relief of the Ordinance to reduce the 
width of the driveways by installing gates.  The site plan submitted indicates that the 
gates will reduce the width of both driveways, (Stalwart and Livernois), to 18’.  Section 
40.25.00 requires a minimum width of 22’ for a two-way driveway. 
 

• The petitioner cannot operate any type of school or day care center at this 
location. 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will aid the petitioner in providing security at this location. 

 
Mr. Clark asked if this motion was appropriate. 
 
Mr. Motzny stated that this Board has the authority to place conditions on a variance as 
long as it applies to the use of the land and this would be a use of this land. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion a pre-school on this property should not require that 
stipulation and asked if this motion was denied what the next step would be. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that the reason he put the condition in the motion was so that you 
would not worry about whether or not two-way traffic can fit through a narrower 
driveway. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that in the future if the petitioner wanted to add pre-school he would 
have to come before the Board for a variance. 
 
Mr. Bartnik confirmed that any school would be involved with this Church and not a 
commercial entity.  There is another Church north of this location and they do have child 
care with a narrow drive and he does not see that this would be problem. 
 
Motion by Clark 
Supported by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, to amend the motion made by Mr. Courtney to remove the condition placed on 
the motion. 
 
Vote on amendment. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Bartnik, Clark, Kovacs, Lambert 
Nays:  2 – Courtney, Wright 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE AMENDMENT CARRIED 
 
Therefore the motion on the floor is: 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

14 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Vasile Carstea, 5353 Livernois, relief of the Ordinance to reduce the 
width of the driveways by installing gates.  The site plan submitted indicates that the 
gates will reduce the width of both driveways, (Stalwart and Livernois), to 18’.  Section 
40.25.00 requires a minimum width of 22’ for a two-way driveway. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will aid the petitioner in providing security at this location. 

 
Vote on amended motion. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Kovacs, Lambert, Wright 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JASON WENZEL, 213 FABIUS, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct an addition to an existing, legal non-conforming structure.  The 
existing home has a 29’ front yard setback.  Section 30.10.02 requires a 40’ front yard 
setback in the R-1B Zoning District.  The site plan submitted indicates a proposed 32’-8” 
front setback to the new covered porch and a 36’-8” front setback to the two-story 
addition.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits expansions of non-conforming structures in a way 
that increases the non-conformity. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition to an existing single-family residence.  Records show that this home was 
originally constructed in 1940.  The existing home has a 29’ front yard setback.  Section 
30.10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 40’ minimum front yard setback in the R-
1B Zoning District.  The existing house is considered to be a legal non-conforming 
structure.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the side yard setback was in compliance. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the side yard setback is 10’. 
 
Jason Wenzel was present and stated that basically there is an existing covered porch 
and he plans to extend the covered porch over to the addition. Everything will stay the 
same and he does not believe you will notice a difference.  The major difference would 
be that instead of a one-car garage door, there will be a two-car garage door.  Mr. 
Wenzel took the Public Hearing notice to his neighbors and received eight (8) 
signatures indicating approval of this request. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that two (2) of the people that had signed Mr. Wenzel’s petition had 
already sent in written approvals. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

15 
 

 
ITEM #6 – con’t. 
Mr. Stimac asked the petitioner if the eastern portion of the existing house was a 
garage.  He then asked if he planned to extend the porch along the front of the garage. 
 
Mr. Wenzel stated that he plans to extend the roof along the front of the garage. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the petitioner is planning to extend the existing roof line over the 
garage to the east property line. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said that right now the roof line is over the existing garage and he plans to 
continue that roof line.  Mr. Wenzel also stated that this Board had granted a variance to 
another home in the area and his request is much smaller than what that particular 
homeowner had received. 
 
Mr. Kovacs pointed out that each request is taken on its own merit and does not have 
anything to do with other properties. 
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There is one written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the home was built in 1940 and Mr. Wenzel was not moving any 
closer to the front property line and it does not make sense to put an addition 11’ or 12’ 
behind the front of the house.   
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Lambert 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Jason Wenzel, 213 Fabius, for relief of the 
ordinance to construct an addition to an existing, legal non-conforming structure.  The 
existing home has a 29’ front yard setback.  Section 30.10.02 requires a 40’ front yard 
setback in the R-1B Zoning District.  The site plan submitted indicates a proposed 32’-8” 
front setback to the new covered porch and a 36’-8” setback to the two-story addition.  
Section 40.50.04 prohibits expansions of non-conforming structures in a way that 
increases the non-conformity. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not encroach any farther to the front property line. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 

 
Yeas:  6 - Kovacs, Lambert, Wright, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

16 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs informed the petitioner that the objections received by the Building 
Department concerned storing construction equipment and vehicles on the property. 
 
Mr. Kovacs informed the Board that Mr. Lambert feels he has a conflict of interest with 
Item #7. 
 
Mr. Lambert stated that Mr. Root is his brother-in-law and he feels that it could create a 
conflict of interest for him to vote on this item.  Mr. Lambert said it would be up to the 
Board to decide if he should participate or not. 
Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion it was a conflict of interest and brought it to the 
Board for discussion. 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Bartnik 
 
Mr. Clark said that he does not have a direct financial interest in the matter and 
wondered if he should be excused. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that the By-Laws of the Board of Zoning Appeals make it very clear that 
a member of the BZA should never vote on a matter with a conflict of interest.  Having a 
relative as a petitioner would be a conflict of interest and could give the appearance of 
malfeasance.  Anytime there is a personal interest, such as knowing someone or having 
a financial interest, the person should be excused from voting on the item.  The Board 
will have to decide and the route to avoid impropriety is to excuse that member. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if that would include discussion on the matter. 
 
Mr. Motzny stated that it would be appropriate not to discuss the matter at all and if the 
Board approves to excuse Mr. Lambert, to have him step down from the podium. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked Mr. Lambert if he felt he would have a conflict. 
 
Mr. Lambert said that with City Council the rule they followed was that if there was a 
financial interest the person would be excused.  Mr. Lambert did say that he thought 
there would be a conflict and did not think it would be appropriate for him to vote on this 
request. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if it was necessary to vote on the motion to excuse Mr. Lambert. 
 
Mr. Motzny stated that there should be some kind of vote by the Board. 
 
Mr. Kovacs suggested that the Board vote. 
 
Motion by Wright 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

17 
 

Supported by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Lambert from the discussion and vote on Item #7 as one of the 
petitioners is his brother-in-law. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Kovacs, Wright, Bartnik, Clark 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. LAMBERT CARRIED 
 
Mr. Lambert left the podium. 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  DONALD ROOT, 621 W. LONG LAKE, for relief of 
the Ordinance to construct a new mausoleum and garden area at the White Chapel 
Cemetery.  Section 10.60.03 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 50’ setback from major 
thoroughfares for main buildings in the R-1B Zoning District.  The site plan submitted 
indicates wall and benches that are part of the garden area that include niches for the 
internment of cremated remains.  As such, these structures meet the definition of 
buildings per Section 04.20.21.  The plans submitted, although not dimensioned, appear 
to show these structures within 3’ of the east property line along I-75. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new mausoleum and garden area at the White Chapel Cemetery.  This property is 
located in the R-1B Zoning Classification.  Section 10.60.03 of the Zoning Ordinance 
requires a 50’ setback from major thoroughfares for main buildings in the R-1B District.  
The site plan submitted indicates walls and benches that are part of the garden area 
include niches for the internment of cremated remains.  As such, these structures meet 
the definition of buildings per Section 04.20.21.  Since the principal use of this facility is 
the internment of human remains, these structures would be considered main buildings 
per the definition contained in Section 04.20.27.  As such, they are not permitted to be 
located within 50’ of the property line along I-75.  The plans submitted, although not 
dimensioned, appear to show these structures within 3’ of the east property line along I-
75. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if this was a burial plot if it would still have to be at the 50’ setback 
line. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that as long as it was not considered to be a “building” it would not 
have to be at the 50’ setback. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if there were burial plots that were closer to the setback line. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that as far as he knew there were no other “buildings” located within 
the 50’ setback but was not able to say for sure that there were burial plots in this area. 
 
Dennis Cowan of Plunkett & Cooney, David Krall of White Chapel Cemetery and Don 
Root of Integrated Design Solutions were present.  Mr. Cowan explained that Mr. Root  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

18 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
has been the architect for White Chapel Cemetery for the last twenty-five (25) years.  
Mr. Cowan said that he felt it would be better from Mr. Krall to come forward and explain 
what White Chapel is doing. 
 
Mr. Krall explained that they are planning a cremation garden that will be a unique 
aspect that is not seen anywhere else in Metro Detroit.  Right now the rate of cremation 
is at 35% and they expect this number to increase.  They want to be able to offer a full 
service to their cremation families. They are planning to construct an elaborate garden 
setting, the “Garden of Living Waters”, with heated walkways, landscaping, a waterfall 
and niche walls and benches.  Niche walls and benches are very popular with cremation 
families. This will be a totally unique meditative garden that will add to the City of Troy. 
 
Mr. Krall went on to say that further south on this property there are internments closer 
than the 50’ setback. 
 
Mr. Cowan said that he thought these burial plots were probably done before the I-75 
expressway came through. 
 
Mr. Root stated that they are trying to create something beautiful for families to be able 
to come to and would be happy to answer any questions that the Board may have.  
They would like this garden to become an inspiration to other cemeteries in the area. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if there was any other location on the site that this garden could go. 
 
Mr. Krall stated that one of the reasons they want the garden in this area is to 
compliment the existing mausoleum. They will have an outdoor garden and during 
inclement weather they could go inside the mausoleum. White Chapel Cemetery is a 
very open area and this particular spot gives them the opportunity to create a more 
intimate scenario. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if there was an existing mausoleum and Mr. Krall stated not at this 
time.  Mr. Courtney asked if there was any other area that this garden could go. 
 
Mr. Krall stated that in their estimation this was the best location for these gardens. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he did not see a practical difficulty with the property that would 
justify a variance.  There is a mausoleum structure in the middle of the south half of the 
cemetery and it appears there are no graves in this area.  Mr. Bartnik stated that in Mr. 
Cowan’s letter of March 12th it is stated:  “The “intimate enclosed feel” of the Garden at 
this site cannot be achieved in other locations due to the openness of the White Chapel 
cemetery grounds.” and asked Mr. Cowan if he had any factual support of that 
conclusion. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

19 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Cowan said that the point of setting up the mausoleum with the cremation garden 
together is to give this area an enclosed feeling and there is no where else in the 
cemetery to create this enclosed feeling.  This can’t be accomplished anywhere else on 
the property as most of the property is a big open space. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the existing mausoleum in the northeast corner is needed with the 
new mausoleum and the garden to create this enclosure.  Mr. Bartnik asked what the 
pieces were for this proposal. 
 
Mr. Cowan stated that the two pieces that are required are the new mausoleum and the 
creation of the garden setting.   The garden will be in the setback area and does not 
require approval.  The niche walls and benches are what require the variance in order to 
be placed within the 50’ setback.  Mr. Cowan went on to say that a variance will be  
required from the Building Code Board of Appeals to allow them to put up the perimeter 
walls around the garden. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked how tall the walls are proposed to be. 
 
Mr. Root stated that there are two different types of walls.  The bench walls are 
approximately 2’-4” or 2’-6” tall and the curved perimeter walls are proposed to be 7’-1” 
tall.  They will have granite fronts on them and six tiers for burial. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if they had plans to put a roof in this area, since these niche walls are 
classified as structures. 
 
Mr. Root stated that there is a small chapel inside the mausoleum and people that have 
loved ones buried outside will be able to go inside and meditate.  The reason they call 
this area the “Garden of Living Waters” is because there will also be a waterfall inside 
the mausoleum.  The waterfall in the garden looks like a pile of rocks and there is a 
fountain on the inside of the mausoleum near the entrance and there is another fountain 
in the north location of the building. 
 
Mr. Clark said that the area to the north and east is what is going into the setback area. 
 
Mr. Root said that there will be trees and shrubs, the area in the center is thought of as 
the pond.  This will give the people that are buying that space the places they want their 
loved ones to be. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that this is a magnificent facility and they do take in the grief process, 
but he does not see a practical difficulty with this area.  Mr. Bartnik asked what was in 
the area in the southeast that would prevent the gardens from going into this area. 
 
Mr. Root stated that to the south right now is a road with underground electrical 
easements. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

20 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked why this garden area could not be put in on the southernmost part 
of this site. 
 
Mr. Root said that the south end is already covered with burial plots. 
 
Mr. Courtney then asked about the ownership of the property south of the boundary of 
the cemetery. 
 
Mr. Cowan said that currently the cemetery owns approximately 25 acres to the south, 
but it has not been approved for cemetery use.  One of the reasons for having the  
mausoleum at the front of the cemetery is so that people will not have to drive through 
the entire cemetery to get where they want to be.  White Chapel does not have above  
ground grave markers and so it appears that the land to the south is vacant; however, 
there are already a number of burial plots in this area. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they could have an entrance coming in from Wattles since they 
owned that property and said that many cemeteries have more than one entrance. 
 
Mr. Root stated at this point they cannot connect the two properties as there are already 
existing burials. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if because there are burials there, if that property could be 
combined. 
 
Mr. Cowan said that at this point he did not know how the property would be connected 
and is not sure if the cemetery knows what they will do at this point. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked for a clarification on which pieces of property are owned by the 
cemetery to the south. 
 
Mr. Stimac pointed out the acreage that is owned by White Chapel on the south side of 
the existing cemetery. 
 
Mr. Krall said that at this point this acreage is not designated as cemetery property at 
this time. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if there was a timetable for this property to be designated as 
cemetery. 
 
Mr. Krall said that he would not be able to give any time table at this time. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the property is in the R-1B Zoning Class.  Cemeteries in existence 
in 1956 are a permitted use in the R-1B Zoning Class.  This property would have to be  
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

21 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
re-zoned to establish a new cemetery and that is done through the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he thinks that the Zoning Ordinance is too strict in the 
interpretation that these niche walls are structures. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he thinks this garden area could be located to another spot. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said he thinks it would be difficult as they do not know how the property is 
going to be used. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he thinks the other part of the property is a better place than the 
area the petitioner has proposed. 
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file.   
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he thinks this is a very strict interpretation of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the wall is considered a structure because it holds burial 
remains. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he understands that, but the niche walls are only 3’ wide. 
 
Motion by Clark 
Supported by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, to grant Donald Root, 621 W. Long Lake, relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
new mausoleum and garden area at the White Chapel Cemetery.  To have main 
buildings consisting of niche walls and benches within 3’ of the east property line along 
I-75 where Section 10.60.03 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 50’ setback from major 
thoroughfares for main buildings in the R-1B Zoning District.   
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not establish a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 

 
Yeas:   5 – Kovacs, Wright, Bartnik, Clark 
Nays:   1 – Courtney 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 18, 2008 

22 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Clark stated that he understood that a storage facility is a building, but did not think 
the memorial walls should be considered a building.  Mr. Clark also stated that he looks 
at how a variance would impact the neighbor and in this case I-75 is the neighbor and 
he believes this will be an improvement to the property. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he objected to this request as he believes it is short sighted to 
put it in this location and believes that the property to the south is a better location. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Stimac knew when the hotel on Maple Road would be going 
in and Mr. Stimac replied that the demolition of the Jumbo Buffet was started today and 
the hotel should begin construction shortly. 
 
Mr. Kovacs welcomed Mr. Lambert to this Board and hoped he would enjoy his time 
with the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if it wouldn’t be more practical to have the owners of the properties 
listed in the Agenda as the applicant. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that a Church could not be the applicant.  A person can appear on 
behalf of a Church, or the applicant can be anyone who is affected by the decision of 
the Building Official.  A person can represent any entity. 
 
Mr. Motzny stated that the Board of Zoning Appeals by-laws refer to the request of 
“…applicant”, who signed the application. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:38 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
     Matthew Kovacs, Vice-Chairman 
 
 
 
              
     Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 25, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on March 25, 2008 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson  Mark Maxwell 
Robert M. Schultz  Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle   
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright (arrived at 7:33 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-039 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed.  
 
Yes:  All present (5) 
Absent:  Maxwell, Strat, Wright (arrived at 7:33 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-040 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 11, 2008 Regular meeting as 
printed. 
 
Yes:  Hutson, Schultz, Tagle, Troshynski, Wright 
Abstain: Vleck 
Absent:  Strat, Maxwell 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01p



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 25, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Wright presented a brief BZA report. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented a brief DDA report. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented a brief Planning and Zoning report. 
 

 
STUDY ITEMS 

 
8. CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN – REVIEW OF DRAFT PLAN 

 
Mr. Miller introduced the item and Richard Carlisle and Zak Branigan of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Mr. Branigan discussed the minor changes made to the document since the Public 
Input Workshop. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed: 

 Process for review and approval of the Master Plan. 

 Public comment generated at the Public Input Workshop. 

 Public comment provided after the Public Input Workshop (Fred Phillips 
and Paul Lin). 

 
It was agreed by the Planning Commission to continue to gather public input and 
consider all comments at one time following the public review period for the Master 
Plan. 
 
The Planning Commission suggested minor revisions to the document, as follows: 
 

 Add photo of the LaSalle Building, one of the first USGBC Gold rated 
buildings in the United States. 

 Add photo of a model home from Cedar Pines Site Condominium. 

 Add photo of Walsh College. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 25, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

 Replace town home photo from Ann Arbor with a photo of a town home 
from Midtown Square. 

 Improve the resolution of the photo on page 115. 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
There was general discussion by the Planning Commission. 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 

 

       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 

 

 

       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2008 PC Minutes\Draft\03-25-08 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 25, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on March 25, 2008 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson  Mark Maxwell 
Robert M. Schultz  Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle   
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright (arrived at 7:33 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-039 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed.  
 
Yes:  All present (5) 
Absent:  Maxwell, Strat, Wright (arrived at 7:33 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-040 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 11, 2008 Regular meeting as 
printed. 
 
Yes:  Hutson, Schultz, Tagle, Troshynski, Wright 
Abstain: Vleck 
Absent:  Strat, Maxwell 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01q



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 25, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Wright presented a brief BZA report. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented a brief DDA report. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented a brief Planning and Zoning report. 
 

 
STUDY ITEMS 

 
8. CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN – REVIEW OF DRAFT PLAN 

 
Mr. Miller introduced the item and Richard Carlisle and Zak Branigan of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Mr. Branigan discussed the minor changes made to the document since the Public 
Input Workshop. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed: 

 Process for review and approval of the Master Plan. 

 Public comment generated at the Public Input Workshop. 

 Public comment provided after the Public Input Workshop (Fred Phillips 
and Paul Lin). 

 
It was agreed by the Planning Commission to continue to gather public input and 
consider all comments at one time following the public review period for the Master 
Plan. 
 
The Planning Commission suggested minor revisions to the document, as follows: 
 

 Add photo of the LaSalle Building, one of the first USGBC Gold rated 
buildings in the United States. 

 Add photo of a model home from Cedar Pines Site Condominium. 

 Add photo of Walsh College. 





ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft March 27, 2008 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Thursday, March 27, 2008, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 
4:36 PM. 

ROLL CALL:  

PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  None 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of December 7, 2007  

 
Resolution #EC-2008-03-001 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Friday, December 7, 2007, are APPROVED as 
submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments – Tuesday, May 6, 2008 Election 

 
Resolution #EC-2008-03-002 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 

 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be appointed for the Tuesday, May 6, 2008 

Election, as presented by the City Clerk, are hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Consolidation of All Applicable Precincts in the City of Troy for All 

Elections Which do not Contain Statewide Ballot Questions 

 
Resolution #EC-2008-03-003 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 

RESOLVED, That the Election Commission of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES that 

applicable precincts servicing qualified electors in the City of Troy be CONSOLIDATED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01r



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft March 27, 2008 
 
for all elections which do not contain state-wide ballot questions as deemed necessary 
and in accordance with MCL 168.659.  
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  

 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:45 PM. 

 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Draft April 3, 2008 
 

-1- 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Personnel Board was held Thursday, April 3, 2008, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Deputy Clerk Pallotta called the meeting to order at 8:00 
AM. 

ROLL CALL: 

 
 PRESENT: Member Deborah L. Baughman 

  Member Laurie G. Huber 

  Member Albert T. Nelson, Jr. 

   

   

 ABSENT: Member Jayshree Shah 

   

 ALSO PRESENT: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager, Finance & Administration 

  Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 

  Barbara A. Pallotta, Deputy City Clerk 

 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Agenda 

 
Resolution PB-#2008-04-001 
Moved by Nelson 
Seconded by Baughman 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy Personnel Board hereby AMENDS the agenda, Item 6. New 
Business:  B. Approval of Revisions to Personnel Rules to include proposed revisions as 
laid on the table. 
 
Yes: All-3  
No: None 
Absent: Shah 

 

Appointment of Personnel Board Chairperson: 
 
Resolution PB-#2008-04-002 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Huber 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy Personnel Board hereby APPOINTS Member Albert T. Nelson, 
Jr. to serve as interim Chairperson until a full board is present. 
 
Yes: All-3  
No: None 
Absent: Shah 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01s



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Draft April 3, 2008 
 

-2- 

Approval of Minutes of May 29, 2007: 
 
Resolution PB-#2008-04-003 
Moved by Nelson 
Seconded by Baughman 
 

RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the minutes of Tuesday, May 
29, 2007 as amended to include the “Absent: Shah” vote for resolution A. 
Recommendations for Classification and Pay Plan; Resolution #2007-05-003. 
 
Yes: All-3  
No: None 
Absent: Shah 
 

Old Business: None 

 

New Business: 

 

6. New Business: 
 

A. Recommended Revisions to Benefit Provisions: 

 

a.   Elimination of Blue Cross Traditional Plan 
 
Human Resources Director Sears, advised that this item is before the Personnel Board at 
this time due to the high costs involved with this plan. She continued by stating that by 
taking action today, that  this revision will be completed prior to Open Enrollment scheduled 
for May, 2008. 
 
Human Resources Director Sears explained that the purpose of the proposed revisions 
made to the first paragraph is to delete obsolete acronyms and replace them with the title of 
the suffix group. She added that this section is also another example of the tiered plan and 
that by making these modifications, they will be more accurate. 
 
PB-2008-04-004 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Huber 
 

RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed 
recommendations in the Personnel Rules, Section XXVI. Hospitalization and Medical 
Insurance, as submitted. 
 
Yes: All-3  
No: None 
Absent: Shah 
 
 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Draft April 3, 2008 
 

-3- 

b.   Elimination of Payment to Employees for Selecting Coverage That is Less 

Expensive Than Blue Cross Traditional 
 
PB-2008-04-005 
Moved by Huber  
Seconded by Baughman 
 

RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed 
recommendations in the Personnel Rules, Section XXVI. Hospitalization and Medical 
Insurance, as submitted. 
 
Yes: All-3  
No: None 
Absent: Shah 
  

B. Approval of Revisions to Personnel Rules  
 
PB-2008-04-006 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Huber 
 

RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed language 
revision recommendations in the Personnel Rules as submitted and as laid on the table.  
 
Yes: All-3  
No: None 
Absent: Shah 
 

7. Adjournment:  
 
Resolution PB-2008-04-007 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That there being nothing else to come before the Board, the meeting be 

ADJOURNED. 
 
Yes: All-3  
No: None 
Absent: Shah 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 8:14 AM. 
 

 

Albert T. Nelson, Jr., Chairman 

 

Barbara A. Pallotta, Deputy City Clerk 

 



 

 
 
 
 
March 18, 2008 
 
 
 

TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

 

SUBJECT: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – January and 
February 2008  

 
 
 

Background 
 

 Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use 
BidCorp with the provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  
BidNet moved forward and implemented the on-line surplus auction service for the MITN 
System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be accessed through the 
City of Troy home web page.  MITN is the official e-procurement website used by the City 
for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. It was a Purchasing goal 
that one e-procurement site would be operational for all functions. 

 
 
 

Financial Considerations 
 

 In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for one 
(1) Samsung microwave, one (1) poster rack,  one (1) BurnaHam boiler, one (1) HP 
business inkjet, two (2) hats, one (1) set of metal panels for Edsal shelving, four (4) 
Ricoh color cartridges, one (1) file cabinet, one (1) lock set, two (2) fire alarms, one (1) 
water hose rack, one (1) Sony digital camera, (2) phonograph cabinets, one (1) 
National cash register, one (1) mop ringer, two (2) chairs, one (1) Dr. Scholl’s display 
rack, and Dr. Scholl’s merchandise that were auctioned on-line through BidNet, the 
City’s e-procurement website, and closed on January 6, 2008, February 3, 2008 and 
February 20, 2008.   

 

 
 
 

1 of 2 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



 
March 18, 2008 
 
To: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services –January and February 2008         
 
Financial Considerations - continued 
 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS    SUB-TOTAL  NET INCOME 

January 08 – (Samsung Microwave)   $    2.00           
   February 08 – (Museum Items, Boiler, Poster Rack, Printer, etc.)         $603.68   

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:     $605.68  

 FEES:   

5% - (Microwave, Museum Items, Boiler, Poster Rack, etc.)        ($  30.28)   

    
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:     ($ 30.28)  

Sales Tax +6% (Microwave, Museum Items, Boiler, etc.)                                                    $   36.34           

    
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:     $ 36.34   

      $ 611.74 

 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Farmington Hills, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line 

auction website.  Resolution #2004-02-075. 
 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the 

surplus auction process. (Goal II).  
 
Options 
 
 To report final results of January and February 2008 auctions to City management. 
 
 No action required 
 
 
 
G:Agenda-Final Reporting-BidNet on line/Mid-Thumb Auctioneer – January & February 2008  

 
2 of 2 



 

MITN Auctions National Auctions   Auctions Main Menu     HELP/FAQ     Contact Support   MITN Admin Menu 

 
 

Report for the City of Troy, MI   

Detailed Report for Seller: ALL   

Reported on 3/13/2008 From: 1/1/2008  To: 2/29/2008 

Item ID Date 

Sale Amount Tax Collected Charge Type of Fee 

Auction Description Seller  

2320 1/6/2008 2.00 0.12 0.10 Sale  Samsung Microwave Bockstanz   

2805 2/3/2008 225.00 13.50 11.25 Sale  Poster Rack Bockstanz   

2837 2/20/2008 127.50 7.65 6.38 Sale  BurnaHam Boiler Bockstanz   

2811 2/20/2008 2.00 0.12 0.10 Sale  Hats Bockstanz   

2921 2/20/2008 10.00 0.60 0.50 Sale  Ricoh Color Cartridges Bockstanz   

2922 2/20/2008 20.00 1.20 1.00 Sale  HP Business Inkjet  Bockstanz   

2930 2/20/2008 6.00 0.36 0.30 Sale  File Cabinet Bockstanz   

2932 2/20/2008 50.50 3.03 2.53 Sale  Dr. Scholl's Merchandise Bockstanz   

2933 2/20/2008 7.16 0.43 0.36 Sale  Lockset Bockstanz   

2931 2/20/2008 10.00 0.60 0.50 Sale  Dr. Scholl's Display Rack Bockstanz   

2926 2/20/2008 10.50 0.63 0.53 Sale  Fire Alarms Bockstanz   

2929 2/20/2008 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  Metal Panels for Edsal Shelving Bockstanz   

2936 2/20/2008 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  Chair Bockstanz   

2927 2/20/2008 16.50 0.99 0.83 Sale  Water Hose Rack Bockstanz   

2935 2/20/2008 34.00 2.04 1.70 Sale  Sony Digital Manica Camera Bockstanz   

2923 2/20/2008 5.50 0.33 0.28 Sale  Silverstone Phonograph Cabinet Bockstanz   

2925 2/20/2008 27.01 1.62 1.35 Sale  National Cash Register Bockstanz   

2934 2/20/2008 24.01 1.44 1.20 Sale  Chair Bockstanz   

2924 2/20/2008 10.50 0.63 0.53 Sale  Victrola Phonograph Cabinet Bockstanz   

2829 2/20/2008 7.50 0.45 0.38 Sale  Mop Ringer Bockstanz   

  

Total Sales 
Amount 

Total Tax 
Collected 

Total Amount 
Charged 

Total 
Payments 

Total Balance Due for the selected 
date range 

Total Balance 
Due 

$605.68 $36.34 $30.28 $0.00 $30.28 $54.08 
 

 

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/default.asp?pid=1
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/natauctions.asp?National=1
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/faq.asp?pid=4
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/feedback.asp?pid=5
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=1&beginyear=2008&endmonth=2&endyear=2008&sortby=id
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=1&beginyear=2008&endmonth=2&endyear=2008&sortby=Date
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=1&beginyear=2008&endmonth=2&endyear=2008&sortby=Type
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=1&beginyear=2008&endmonth=2&endyear=2008&sortby=Seller
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2320
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2805
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2837
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2811
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2921
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2922
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2930
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2932
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2933
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2931
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2926
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2929
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2936
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2927
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2935
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2923
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2925
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2934
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2924
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2829


CITY COUNCIL EXPENSE REPORT
Month of March, 2008

Council Person Expense  Date Purpose Amount Totals

Beltramini, Robin 3/14/2008 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 123.72$           
April, May, & June 2008

123.72$             
Broomfield, Cristina 3/14/2008 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 194.85$           

April, May, & June 2008

194.85$             
Wade Fleming 3/14/2008 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 215.70$           

April, May, & June 2008

215.70$             
Howrylak, Martin F. -$                 

0.00
Kerwin, Mary 3/14/2008 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 212.85$           

April, May, & June 2008

212.85$             
Schilling, Louise E. 3/14/2008 Quarterly DSL Line 117.90$           

April, May, & June 2008

117.90$             
Eisenbacher, David -$                 

-$                  

Total for Month 865.02$            

NOTE: This report is presented in compliance with Rules of Procedure for the City Council,
            Item 18. Miscellaneous Expenses

Date Prepared: 3/14/2008
Final Preparation By: J. Nash

S://Finance/Template - City Council monthly expense report.xls

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



  
  

TO: Members of the Troy City Council 
 

FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Robert F. Davisson, Assistant City Attorney  
Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney   
Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney  
Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 

DATE: April 4, 2008 
 

SUBJECT: 2008 First Quarter Litigation Report 
 

 

The following is the quarterly report of pending litigation and other matters of 
interest.  Developments during the FIRST quarter of 2008 are in bold. 

 
 

A. ANATOMY OF THE CASE 
 

Once a lawsuit has been filed against the City or City employees, the City Attorney’s 
office prepares a memo regarding the allegations in the complaint.  At that time, our office 
requests authority from Council to represent the City and/or the employees.  Our office then 
engages in the discovery process, which generally lasts for several months, and involves 
interrogatories, requests for documents, and depositions.  After discovery, almost all cases 
are required to go through case evaluation (also called mediation).  In this process, three 
attorneys evaluate the potential damages, and render an award.  This award can be 
accepted by both parties, and will conclude the case.  However, if either party rejects a case 
evaluation award, there are potential sanctions if the trial result is not as favorable as the 
mediation award.  In many cases, a motion for summary disposition will be filed at the 
conclusion of discovery.  In all motions for summary disposition, the Plaintiff’s version of the 
facts are accepted as true, and if the Plaintiff still has failed to set forth a viable claim against 
the City, then dismissal will be granted.  It generally takes at least a year before a case will 
be presented to a jury.  It also takes approximately two years before a case will be finalized 
in the Michigan Court of Appeals and/or the Michigan Supreme Court.   

 
B. ZONING CASES 

 
These are cases where the property owner has sued for a use other than that for which 
the land is currently zoned and/or the City is suing a property owner to require 
compliance with the existing zoning provisions.  
 
1. Troy v. Papadelis and Papadelis v. Troy - This is a case filed by the City against 

Telly’s Nursery, seeking to enjoin the business from using the northern parcel for 
commercial purposes.  After a lengthy appellate history, an order was entered in 
the Oakland County Circuit Court, requiring compliance on or before April 29, 
2002.  The Papadelis family failed to comply with the court’s order, and therefore 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



 2 

a Contempt Motion was filed.  Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Colleen 
O’Brien determined that the defendants were in contempt of court, and required 
them to pay $1,000 to the City of Troy.  However, the court also determined that 
the defendants were in compliance with the City of Troy zoning ordinances as of 
the date of the court decision.  The Troy City Council authorized an appeal of this 
decision to the Michigan Court of Appeals.  It was filed on September 27, 2002. 
The neighbors filed an application for leave to appeal, which was denied by the 
Michigan Court of Appeals on 2/10/03.   After receiving criminal citations from the 
City for expansion of the business, Papadelis filed a federal lawsuit against the 
City of Troy, alleging civil rights violations and seeking an injunction against the 
prosecution and/or further expansion.  The neighboring property owners filed a 
Motion to Intervene, which was granted by Federal US District Court Judge 
Arthur Tarnow.  Troy filed a counterclaim in the Federal Court case but it was 
dismissed by Judge Tarnow, who refused to exercise jurisdiction over the 
counter-complaint, since it would require him to interpret the opinion of the 
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge.  Troy has subsequently filed two separate 
motions to dismiss the Papadelis complaint. One of the motions asserted the 
same jurisdictional claim that was raised against the counter-complaint.  The 
Court granted Troy’s motion based on jurisdictional issues and dismissed the 
case without prejudice.  The court did not rule on the other motion, but instead, 
directed the Papadelises to re-file their case in state court.  The Papadelis family 
then re-filed its lawsuit in Oakland County Circuit Court.  Troy filed an answer 
and a counterclaim.  Troy also immediately filed a motion for summary 
disposition seeking dismissal of the complaint and a judgment in favor of Troy. 
The counterclaim seeks an order requiring the Papadelis family to remove two 
greenhouses and other structures that have been built upon the property without 
approvals that are required under the zoning ordinance.  The Court scheduled an 
early intervention conference (settlement conference) for October 18, 2005.  The 
Court has set the hearing date for the Motion for Summary Disposition for 
January 4, 2006.  Subsequent to the filing of Troy’s Motion for Summary 
Disposition, Plaintiffs’ filed a Cross Motion for Summary Disposition, and the 
hearing was rescheduled for January 18, 2006.  On February 17, 2006, the Court 
entered its written Opinion and Order, dismissing the Papadelis claim for money 
damages and their claim for injunctive relief.  However, the Court also granted 
Summary Disposition in favor of the Plaintiffs on their claim for declaratory relief, 
and held that “retail” activity was not occurring on the northern parcel, and that 
the “agricultural” activities on the northern parcel were protected under the Right 
to Farm Act.  Additionally the Court ruled the Plaintiffs’ were exempt from City 
permitting requirements under the agricultural building permit exemption of the 
State Construction Code Act.  The Court also dismissed the City’s counterclaim.  
Troy has filed an appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals.  Plaintiffs’ have filed 
a cross appeal challenging the dismissal of their claims for money damages and 
injunctive relief.  All the required briefs have been filed with the Court of Appeals, 
which will either schedule an oral argument or will inform the parties that the case 
will be decided without oral argument.  Since this case was assigned to the 
expedited track for summary disposition appeals, a final decision on appeal is 



 3 

expected before the end of September of this year. On June 16, 2006, the 
Building Department discovered that the Papadelis family was erecting a new, 
large pole barn structure on the property at 3301 John R. Road.  This structure 
was likely in violation of local and/or state law.  The Building Department followed 
the procedure for issuing a Stop Work Order.  In addition, our office filed an 
emergency motion with the Court of Appeals, seeking to enjoin construction of 
the building pending final outcome of the appeal.  On June 21, 2006, the Court of 
Appeals granted the motion for immediate consideration, but denied the motion 
to enjoin construction of the building.  The denial of the motion has no bearing on 
the final outcome of this appeal, and if Troy ultimately prevails on appeal, the 
new building will have to be removed.  Despite the issuance of the Stop Work 
Order, the construction continued on the new building.  The Papadelis Family 
then filed a Motion to hold the City Attorney and the Director of Building and 
Zoning in contempt of court.  In this Motion, the Papadelis family argued that the 
Circuit Court ruling (Judge Colleen O’Brien) allows the construction of the new 
building without a permit and without having to comply with the zoning ordinance 
provisions regulating the size and location of buildings.  Judge O’Brien denied 
this Motion on June 28, 2006, and ruled that her earlier ruling (the ruling on 
appeal) was limited to the buildings on the property at the time of the ruling, and 
did not extend to allow for new construction on the site.  On September 19, 2006, 
the Court of Appeals affirmed the decisions of the Circuit Court.  Thus, the Court 
affirmed the declaratory judgment in favor of the plaintiffs, but it also affirmed the 
dismissal of plaintiff’s civil rights claims against the City, Mark Stimac, and 
Marlene Struckman.  Troy has filed an Application for Leave to Appeal with the 
Michigan Supreme Court.  The Michigan Municipal League is also filing an 
amicus brief in support of the City’s Application for Leave to Appeal.  The 
Papadelis family filed a Cross Application for Leave to Appeal.  If the Supreme 
Court denies both the Application for Leave to Appeal and the Cross Application 
for Leave to Appeal, the Court of Appeals decision becomes the final decision in 
this case.  The Supreme Court may grant both the Application and Cross 
Application for Leave to Appeal, or it may grant one and deny the other, or it may 
grant either Application in part and limit the issues that it will review.  The 
Michigan Municipal League (MML) has prepared an Amicus Brief in support of 
the municipal position, and the Papadelis family has opposed the MML’s Motion 
for Leave To File the Amicus Brief.  The parties are now waiting for the Michigan 
Supreme Court to take action.  On June 29, 2007, in lieu of granting leave to 
appeal, the Michigan Supreme Court ruled in favor of the City, and reversed the 
decisions of the Oakland County Circuit Court and the Court of Appeals.  The 
case will now be remanded back to the Oakland County Circuit Court for an order 
requiring the Papadelis family to comply with Troy’s zoning ordinances.  The 
Michigan Supreme Court declared that the greenhouses and pole barn are not 
“incidental to the use for agricultural purposes of the land on which they are 
located.”  Plaintiff’s cross appeal against the City was denied.   Troy filed a 
motion in Circuit Court to enforce the Supreme Court’s ruling, which requires all 
of the buildings constructed on the Papadelis property to be in compliance with 
Troy’s zoning ordinance.  In the alternative, the structures need to be removed. 



 4 

The Court scheduled an evidentiary hearing on our Motion for October 17, 2007.  
A hearing/bench trial began on October 17th and continued on October 23rd.  The 
City presented evidence in support of its request for an Order requiring the 
Papadelis family to remove two large greenhouses, eight smaller greenhouse 
type structures (cold frames) and a pole barn from the subject property.  The 
Papadelis Family has started to present evidence in support of their defense and 
opposition to the City’s requested relief.  They contend the zoning ordinance is 
not applicable to the buildings.  The Court has set the next hearing/ bench trial 
continuation date for January 30, 2008.  The hearing/bench trial continued on 
January 30, 2008 and closing arguments were scheduled for March 5, 2008.  
After closing arguments were made, Judge O’Brien indicated she would 
prepare a written opinion. 

 
2. Milano Development Company, Inc. v. City of Troy, et. al. – This lawsuit 

was filed on December 11, 2006.  It seeks to amend part of a plat to vacate an 
easement reserved on the original plat of the Square Acres Subdivision Plat, located 
in Section 14.  The Plaintiff is proposing to develop a 13-unit site condominium 
project on Lot 17.  The City has already granted preliminary site plan approval of the 
proposed Athens Park Site Condominium Project.   However, the development 
cannot be completed in accordance with the approved site plan unless the private 
roadway easement is vacated.  The Plaintiff is currently working on a proposed 
Consent Judgment, which will incorporate the requests of the attorneys of record.    
There has been a delay to this case, since Plaintiff needs to add some recently 
discovered parties who are necessary to the lawsuit, and delete some originally 
named but unnecessary parties from the lawsuit.  Once the issue of the proper 
defendants is resolved, we will submit a proposed Consent Judgment to amend the 
plat as a future City Council action item.  A Consent Judgment was approved by 
City Council, and subsequently entered with the Court on February 5, 2008.  
The Consent Judgment provides that Plaintiff will send a copy of the proposed 
amended plat to the City Clerk within 120 days of the entry of the judgment.  
The City Clerk will verify that all City requirements have been satisfied, and the 
amended plat would then be subsequently forwarded to the State of Michigan 
for approval.  Plaintiff’s final step is to submit the amended plat to the Oakland 
County Register of Deeds for recording.  This case is now closed. 
 

3. Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Ltd.Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al.  
The Plaintiffs, Nick and Leslie Karagiannakis, are the owners of property that is 
designated as “Outlot B” in the Troy Villas Subdivision No. 1 (north of Square Lake 
Road, west of Rochester Road).  The Co-Plaintiff, Garrett Family Limited Partnership 
(hereinafter “Garrett”) has a purchase agreement with the Karagiannakis family for a 
portion of this property, which has or will be combined with the rear portions of other 
parcels that front on Square Lake Road. Garrett proposes to build a 12-unit site 
condominium on this approximately 6.04 acre parcel, which is currently landlocked 
and is located behind several homes that front on Ottawa and Donaldson.  The plat 
for the property does not expressly designate a public roadway easement that would 
allow for a roadway to be constructed over the property owned by co-defendants 
Arthur and Delphine Lubiarz (480 Ottawa) and James and Cynthia Smith (536 



 5 

Ottawa- actually on the adjoining plat).  The express language of the plat grants only 
a 43-foot private easement- not a public road. In 1981, a private driveway agreement 
over this 43-foot private easement allowed for the construction of the Karagiannakis’ 
residence (500 Ottawa).  However, this agreement is extremely limited, and 
authorizes only a private driveway to a single-family residence.   It could not be used 
to service a 12-unit condominium site.  Plaintiffs seek to convert the private easement 
to a public road, which is required for the proposed development.  The Plaintiffs 
previously filed an action for Declaratory Judgment, and the City argued that the 
complaint was not correctly filed, since the requested relief could only be granted 
through a re-plat lawsuit under the Michigan Subdivision Control Act.  Under this law, 
a plat revision complaint needs to be filed against all persons having an interest that 
could be impacted by revisions to the plat.  Plaintiffs thereafter agreed to voluntarily 
dismiss their Declaratory Judgment action lawsuit, and have now filed this plat 
revision lawsuit.  In the alternative, Plaintiffs have also pled a count asking the Court 
to allow it to put in a public or private road that is less than the 60- foot width required 
by City ordinance. The City has filed an Answer to the Complaint and discovery is 
continuing. Trial is scheduled for April 3, 2008.  Prior to the trial date, we will file a 
Motion for Summary Disposition, seeking dismissal of the case.  Plaintiffs filed a 
motion to adjourn the April trial date, and the new trial date is May 5, 2008.  In the 
meantime, Plaintiffs recently submitted interrogatories to a number of Defendants, 
including the City.  The City is in the process of preparing answers to these 
interrogatories.  The City has filed a Motion for Summary Disposition, arguing 
that Plaintiffs have failed to serve all necessary parties with the Complaint and 
Summons.  In addition, the City argues that dismissal in its favor is warranted 
to avoid potential takings claims or claims that the City has misused the 
powers of condemnation, for the benefit of a private developer.  Oral argument 
on the motion will be April 16, 2008.  If the motion is denied, the Court has set 
the bench trial in this matter for May 5, 2008. 

 

C.  EMINENT DOMAIN CASES 
 

These are cases in which the City wishes to acquire property for a public 
improvement and the property owner wishes to contest either the necessity or the 
compensation offered. In cases where only the compensation is challenged, the City 
obtains possession of the property almost immediately, which allows for major projects 
to be completed.    

 
There are no pending eminent domain cases at this time. 

 
D. CIVIL RIGHTS CASES 

 
 These are cases that are generally filed in the federal courts, under 42 U.S.C. 
Section 1983.  In these cases, the Plaintiffs argue that the City and/or police officers of the 
City of Troy somehow violated their civil rights.   

 



 6 

1. Gerald Molnar v. Janice Pokley, the City of Troy et al.-  Plaintiff filed this lawsuit 
against the City and Troy Detective Janice Pokley, after a jury found him not 
guilty of the charge of Criminal Sexual Conduct in the Second Degree. Plaintiff 
alleges that the City and Detective Pokley violated his constitutional rights to be 
from an unreasonable seizure, due process, and equal protection.  These 
constitutional violations allegedly occurred during the criminal sexual conduct 
investigation of Plaintiff.   Plaintiff also claims that the Troy defendants conspired 
with other named defendants to violate his constitutional rights, and intentionally 
inflicted emotional distress on Plaintiff.  Plaintiff is requesting an unspecified 
amount of compensatory, exemplar, and punitive damages. On February 27, 
2007, Troy filed a motion to dismiss, or in the alternative summary judgment.  
Plaintiff filed his response to our motion to dismiss on May 21, 2007.  As of the 
end of the first quarter, the Court had not yet set a date for oral argument on the 
motion or otherwise ruled on our motion to dismiss.  Since the other defendant, 
Care House, subsequently filed its motion to dismiss the lawsuit, it is possible 
that the Court will simultaneously rule on both of these pending motions.        

 
2. Kenneth Morrell v Troy, et al.  Plaintiff Kenneth Morrell filed a lawsuit against the 

City of Troy and Troy Police Officer Meghan Broderick.  In the complaint, Mr. 
Morrell alleges a count of assault, gross negligence, a violation of Michigan’s 
Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act (PWDCRA), Constitutional violations, 
false imprisonment, and racial discrimination.  The lawsuit was filed in Oakland 
County Circuit Court and assigned to Judge Steven N. Andrews. 
According to the complaint, the Plaintiff is a disabled person who is African-American.  
He contends that the PWDCRA entitles him to have employees of self-service gas 
stations pump gasoline into his car on demand.  He alleges that on April 28, 2006 he 
drove to the BP gas station at Maple and John R., seeking some gasoline for his car.  
Plaintiff claims that his request for gasoline was denied, and that the gas station 
owner/ operator instead contacted the Troy Police, who sent Officer Broderick to the 
scene.  In his complaint, he alleges that Officer Broderick aided and abetted the gas 
station employees in violating his rights under the PWDCRA.  He also complains that 
Officer Broderick drew a weapon (a handgun) on the Plaintiff without justification.  
Officer Broderick denies that she drew a handgun, although the circumstances may 
have justified it. She did take her department issued taser out of the holster, but did 
not use it. Plaintiff also complains that another unidentified Troy police sergeant told 
him he was permanently barred from the BP gas station, and that he would be 
arrested for trespassing if he returned.  He claims the incident resulted in emotional 
agitation, forcing him to seek medical help, including medication for his nerves. He is 
seeking over $25,000 in damages, plus attorney fees and costs. Plaintiff has also 
named the gas station owners and its manager as co-defendants in this lawsuit.  
Troy has filed a Motion for Summary Disposition.  The hearing on the motion is 
scheduled for July 11, 2007.  The Court granted Troy’s motion in part and dismissed 
the assault, gross negligence and false imprisonment claims against the City of Troy.  
The Court also initially dismissed the alleged violation of PWDCRA claim against 
both Troy and Officer Broderick, but reinstated the claim in response to Plaintiff’s 
Motion for Reconsideration.  The case is now in the discovery phase.  Plaintiff filed a 



 7 

motion to extend discovery.  The motion was granted and the discovery phase has 
been extended to February 1, 2008.  At the close of discovery, Troy filed a 
second Motion for Summary Disposition.  Case evaluation was held on 
February 29, 2008.  On March 12, 2008, the Court denied Troy’s Motion for 
Summary Disposition.  Additionally, the Court has ordered the remaining 
parties to facilitate/ mediate the case.  If the case is not resolved through either 
case evaluation or facilitation, it will proceed to trial, which was initially 
scheduled for April 4, 2008.  Plaintiff filed a Motion to Adjourn the trial, which 
was granted by the Court, and the trial is now set to start on April 21, 2008. 

   
E. PERSONAL INJURY AND DAMAGE CASES 

 
These are cases in which the Plaintiff claims that the City or City employees were 

negligent in some manner that caused injuries and/or property damage.  The City 
enjoys governmental immunity from ordinary negligence, unless the case falls within 
one of four exceptions to governmental immunity:  a) defective highway exception, 
which includes sidewalks and road way claims; b) public building exception, which 
imposes liability only when injuries are caused by a defect in a public building; c) motor 
vehicle exception, which imposes liability when an employee is negligent when 
operating their vehicle; d) proprietary exception, where liability is imposed when an 
activity is conducted primarily to create a profit, and the activity somehow causes injury 
or damage to another; e)  trespass nuisance exception, which imposes liability for the 
flooding cases.     

 
1. Mary Ann Hennig v. City of Troy- Plaintiff has filed this lawsuit, claiming that the 

City is liable for injuries she sustained after her vehicle was struck by a Troy 
Police Officer as he was pursuing a suspected drug dealer.  Her complaint 
alleges serious impairment of a bodily function, in that she has neurological 
damages.  The City has filed an answer to the complaint, and the parties are now 
conducting discovery.  The parties have exchanged witness list, expert witness 
lists and exhibit lists. The parties are continuing to do discovery including 
updating medical records and deposing witnesses.  The Plaintiff has been 
examined by an orthopedic physician chosen by the City and is scheduled to be 
examined during the week of October 22, 2008 by a clinical neuropsychologist 
chosen by the City.  Discovery is continuing.  On December 12, 2007, the Court 
ordered facilitation of the case, which is scheduled for March 4, 2008.  If the 
parties are unable to settle the case with facilitation, then a jury trial is scheduled 
to start on April 22, 2008.  The Court ordered facilitation was conducted on 
March 28, 2008.  In the interim, the City filed a Motion for Summary 
Disposition, alleging that Plaintiff cannot establish negligence, or that Ms. 
Hennig’s injuries satisfy the no-fault minimum threshold standard, which is 
that the injuries constitute a “serious impairment of a bodily function.”  
Troy’s Motion will be heard on April 16, 2008.  The jury trial date has been 
adjourned to July 29, 2008. 

 



 8 

2. Rome Love v. City of Troy- This lawsuit has been filed in the Wayne County 
Circuit Court, which is the county where the Plaintiff resides, as well as the 
location of the accident.  Plaintiff argues in his complaint that the City is 
liable for his alleged injuries that were caused when a City of Troy tour bus 
hit the rear corner panel of a SMART bus on April 6, 2006.  The Troy bus 
was driving on Woodward Avenue, returning from a senior field trip.  The 
Troy bus sustained minor damage, including a broken mirror.  Plaintiff 
claims to have been a passenger on the SMART bus.  Plaintiff seeks 
damages in excess of $25,000 for alleged pain, disability, and mental 
anguish, although the alleged injuries are not specified.  The City’s answer 
to the complaint is due on April 14, 2008.   
 

 
F. MISCELLANEOUS CASES 

 

1. Nardi v Troy, et al.  - Plaintiff Leroy S. Nardi named the City of Troy, the County of 
Oakland, and the State of Michigan as Defendants in this lawsuit filed in the United 
States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan.  The Plaintiff owns a 
parcel of land located at 97 East Wattles.  On April 26, 2001, he received a letter 
from the Building Department, advising him that public sanitary sewer would soon 
be available to service his property, since there was a new subdivision that abutted 
his property.  The letter informed Mr. Nardi of Chapter 20, which at that time 
required connection to the newly available public sewer within 18 months.  This 
mandatory connection included a $200.00 Interceptor Connection fee (tap fee) 
and a $3,400.00 Lateral Benefit Charge.  These costs could be financed over a 
40- year period of time, through a Sewer Contract with the City.  In November 
2001, Plaintiff’s septic system on the property was showing signs of failure, and 
the Oakland County Health Department was investigating the matter.  On 
November 21, 2001, the Plaintiff signed a Sewer Contract with the City, where he 
agreed to pay the sewer connection fees for the hook up in quarterly installments 
of $57.00 each.   Pursuant to the contract, unpaid installments are collected in the 
same manner as taxes, which mean that all delinquent payments are forwarded to 
Oakland County for collection and/or foreclosure proceedings.  As a result of 
Plaintiff’s failure to pay the quarterly installments, Oakland County initiated 
foreclosure proceedings for the property.   

In the lawsuit, Plaintiff seeks an injunction to stop the foreclosure proceeding, as 
well as reimbursement for all sewer fees previously paid, and punitive damages in 
the amount of $500,000.00.  Plaintiff filed the complaint without the assistance of an 
attorney, and his basis for relief is not exactly clear.  He contends all defendants 
have violated his rights under the 5th, 7th, and 14th Amendments of the United 
States Constitution and he alleges fraud, extortion, a violation of Article VI, Section 
2 of the Constitution, and a taking of property without due process of law.  
Essentially, he claims the Sewer Contract is not valid because he signed it under 
duress.  He did make a note on the contract when signing that said that he was 
signing it under duress.  However, without such a contract, the entire collection fee 
would have been immediately due, rather than financing the payments over a 40 



 9 

year period.  Plaintiff also challenges the City’s ability to collect a Benefit Charge, 
because a private developer constructed the portion of the sanitary sewer system 
to which his property is connected.  The Benefit Charge is designed to reimburse 
the City for the proportional cost of operating the entire system.  The City has filed a 
Motion to Dismiss, which is scheduled for April 23, 2007.  After receiving Troy’s 
Motion to Dismiss, Plaintiff hired an attorney to represent him.  Plaintiff filed a 
response to the motion, and oral argument was held.  Judge Anna Diggs Taylor 
granted the Motion in part and dismissed Plaintiff’s state law (fraud, contract, 
duress, extortion and common law) claims.  With regard to Plaintiff’s federal claims, 
the Court indicated it would grant the Motion to Dismiss unless Plaintiff filed an 
amended complaint within 20 days.  The Plaintiff filed an amended complaint and 
Troy has filed its Answer and Affirmative Defenses.  The case is now in the 
discovery phase.  Discovery is continuing.  The City filed a Motion for Summary 
Judgment, seeking a dismissal of the Lawsuit.  The Court will set the hearing dates 
for the Motion. The Court granted Troy’s Motion for Summary Judgment and 
dismissed the case.   

3. Kocenda v City of Troy, et al. – David Kocenda has filed a complaint against the City 
of Troy, Chief Craft, Captain Murphy, Captain Mott, Lieutenant Hay, Lieutenant 
Pappas, and Lieutenant Rossman, alleging Defamation and Intentional Infliction of 
Emotonal Distress.  Plaintiff, a Troy police officer, claims he was offered a job as a 
police officer with the City of Palm Beach Gardens, Florida, but the offer was 
retracted because of false information provided by Troy and its officers.  He contends 
remarks made by Troy employees constitute both Defamation and Intentional 
Infliction of Emotional Distress.  He is seeking damages in excess of $25,000.  The 
lawsuit was filed in Oakland County Circuit Court and assigned to Judge Fred 
Mester.  Troy’s responsive pleading is due December 18, 2007.  The City has filed a 
Motion for Summary Disposition, seeking a dismissal of the lawsuit against the City 
and its Officers.  The Court will set the date for the hearing on our motion.  The Court 
granted the Motion for Summary Disposition and dismissed the case. 

 
G.  CRIMINAL APPEALS  

 
 

1. People v Megan B. Nairne – Ms. Nairne was charged with domestic assault. She 
was represented by a court appointed attorney, and pled no contest to the 
assault charge on December 21, 2006.  Although a no contest plea is treated like 
a guilty plea, the Defendant is able to defer to the police report, instead of 
detailing the crime on the record.  Since Ms. Nairne is deaf, there was an 
interpreter present at the time of the plea.   Shortly after pleading no contest, Ms. 
Nairne hired a new attorney, who filed a motion asking the Court to allow 
Defendant to withdraw her plea.  In this motion, Ms. Nairne claimed that her court 
appointed attorney did not adequately represent her, and her plea of no contest 
was not voluntarily and knowingly made. On September 20, 2007, Judge 
Martone denied her motion.  She then filed an application for leave to appeal 
Judge Martone’s decision in the Oakland County Circuit Court.  We responded to 
her motion, arguing that Judge Martone properly denied her motion to withdraw 



 10 

the no contest plea.  On October 11, 2007, Oakland County Circuit Court Judge 
Colleen O’Brien issued an opinion and order denying Defendant’s application for 
leave to appeal. Defendant has now filed an application for leave to appeal in the 
Michigan Court of Appeals. The City filed its response, and we are waiting for a 
decision. On February 5, 2008, the Court of Appeals denied Defendant’s 
application, and ruled in favor of the City.  The case has been remanded to 
Judge Martone for Ms. Nairne to be sentenced.  

 
2. People v Ravi Arya – Ravi Arya is charged with domestic assault and battery.  

The victim, his mother in law, has left the country and is not expected to return.  
The defendant’s wife witnessed the assault but has indicated she will exercise 
her spousal privilege.  The City Attorney’s Office advised Defendant’s attorney of 
its intent to introduce into evidence the statements made by the victim and 
Defendant’s wife to Troy Dispatch and to two Troy Police Officers.  The 
Defendant filed a Motion to Suppress the Statements and a Motion to Dismiss 
the Case.  At the hearing on the Motion, the City argued the statements were 
admissible under Michigan statute and the Rules of Evidence.  Judge Drury 
agreed and denied both motions. The Defendant filed an interlocutory appeal 
(Application for Leave to Appeal) to Oakland County Circuit Court.  The City has 
filed its response.  The Court may schedule the case for oral argument or it may 
issue a written decision without oral argument.  As of December 20th, a Court 
date has not been scheduled.  On appeal, the Circuit Court affirmed part and 
reversed part of the decision of 52-4 District Court Judge Dennis Drury.   
The Circuit Court ruled that the statement made by the Defendant’s wife to 
dispatch are admissible in the criminal trial.  However, the other statements 
are not admissible in the criminal trial.  The case was remanded to the 
District Court for the continuation of the criminal proceedings. 
 

3. People v Karam – Defendant David Paul Karam was charged with drunk 
driving (operating a vehicle while intoxicated).  He filed a motion to dismiss 
the charge, arguing that the Troy police officer’s stop of his vehicle was 
invalid.  Specifically, Mr. Karam argued that there was no probable cause to 
believe that he was a drunk driver.  However, at the evidentiary hearing 
held before 52-4 District Court Judge Michael A. Martone, Lieutenant (now 
Captain) Colleen Mott testified that she monitored radio dispatch, where 
there was a report that the driver of a Chevrolet Equinox, license plate 282 
WPS, was intoxicated, and was driving eastbound on Big Beaver Road.  
When she personally observed this identified vehicle, she noticed that it 
drifted from side to side in the lane.  Based on her own observations and 
experience, in addition to the information provided via dispatch, she 
believed that the driver was drunk, and stopped the car, driven by Mr. 
Karam.  Subsequent sobriety and breathalyzer tests confirmed Mott’s 
suspicions, and he was charged with operating a vehicle while intoxicated.  
Judge Martone denied Mr. Karam’s motion to dismiss the charge.  Mr. 
Karam then filed an Application for Leave to Appeal this decision to the 
Oakland County Circuit Court.  Judge Nanci Grant, after hearing the 



 11 

arguments of the parties, denied Mr. Karam’s application for leave to 
appeal, and the case is now scheduled for trial before Judge Martone. 

 
 

H. ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS 
  

1. In the Matter of the Application of International Transmission Company, d/b/a 
ITCTransmission, for a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity for the 
Construction of a Major Transmission Line Running From and Through Sterling 
Heights, Troy, Clawson, and Royal Oak, MI.   ITCTransmission has requested 
permission to construct a new major transmission line- the Bismark- Troy Project.  
After meeting with City Administration, ITC’s proposed location for this new 
transmission line is primarily through industrial properties, and underground.  
Previously, a route traversing Maple Road was considered.  Before any 
construction can commence, ITCTransmission needs to obtain a Certificate of 
Public Convenience and Necessity from the Public Service Commission (PSC).  
In this proceeding, the PSC determines whether the public benefits justify the 
construction of the new transmission line; whether the proposed route is feasible 
and reasonable; and whether the proposed line presents an unreasonable threat 
to public health or safety.  In this particular case, Detroit Edison and Consumers 
Power filed to intervene.  On appeal, these petitions were granted.  The parties 
are now conducting discovery.    The expert witnesses of the parties were cross 
examined on September 27 and 28, 2007.  The parties are now preparing written 
legal briefs for the Administrative Law Judge.   Briefs have been filed, and the 
Administrative Law Judge issued his Notice of Proposal for Decision on 
December 5, 2007, concluding that ITC has not demonstrated that the 
quantifiable and nonquantifiable public benefits justify the line’s construction, 
and/or that the proposed route is reasonable.  Since Exceptions to this Notice of 
Proposal for Decision have been timely filed with the Michigan Public Service 
Commission, the Administrative Law Judge’s Decision is not final, and the case 
will continue.  On February 22, 2008, the Michigan Public Service 
Commission denied ITC’s application for a Certificate of Public Necessity. 
On March 24, 2008,  ITC timely filed its appeal of this decision with the 
Michigan Court of Appeals.      

 
 

If you have any questions concerning these cases, please let us know.   



 
 
April 2, 2008 
 
To:     The Mayor and City Council 
 
From:    Phil Nelson, City Manager 
 
Subject:   Zucker Report Implementation Plan 
 
 
On February 4, 2008, the Council received a report and presentation by the 
Zucker Group concerning City of Troy development processes.  The report noted 
102 recommendations for improvement.  Broken down by priority type, there 
were 20 Priority 1; 56 Priority 2; and 26 Priority 3 recommendations. 
 
From the City Manager’s point of view, the three main areas of focus will include: 
 

 Enhanced customer service and response 

 Information Technology and how we can use computers to improve 
performance and accessibility by the public 

 Making the various departments that are under the umbrella of community 
development come as close as possible to being self-sufficient in terms of 
revenues to cover expenses 

 
Enhanced Customer Service 
 
When plans are submitted through the review and permitting process, the normal 
routine is route the plans to the various inspectors, engineering, the Fire 
Department and other related divisions.  While the review process might take 
three to four weeks, in actuality, staff time in reviewing the plans is between 8 
and 10 hours.  The difference between the permitting process and actual staff 
time reviewing plans and relevant documents is now referred to as Lost 
Opportunity Time.  Staff is looking to reduce lost opportunity time as well as 
continue to upgrade customer service in all Service Bureaus. 
 
Process Improvement:  Upon Council approval, funds will be appropriated to 
provide sufficient computer and technological equipment to accept plans in digital 
form.   
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



Zucker Report Implementation Plan 
April 2, 2008 
Page Two 
 
 
 
Instead of passing paper plans from one desk to the next, and one department to 
the other, plans will be shared digitally so that review can be reduced by one-
third the “normal” time. 
 
We will also be creating “productivity centers” by bringing the right people to the 
table at the right time.  As example, representatives from various Service 
Bureaus will have a space to exchange ideas, innovate and create solutions to 
process related problems.  In essence, a planner, engineer, firefighter, police 
officer, park and recreation representative and a finance person will go to the 
“productivity center” to identify common challenges and to develop responses 
and answers to meet and overcome those challenges. 
 
Staff will also implement “Development Teams” whereby representatives from 
the various Service Bureaus will meet with developers in a group setting and 
explain the different elements of the development process.  As example, the 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Analyst will build layered maps of zoning, 
utility, drainage and other information.  Code enforcement staff will detail what 
steps the development will need to follow.  We will also have tax information, 
permit costs and other relevant information that the developer might need.      
When the developer leaves the meeting, he/she will have a CD of all maps and 
information that was presented at the meeting.  Developers will also have a 
single point of contact who will lead them through the development processes.   
 
As an additional part of the process, we will also have information available for 
new or relocating employees that will help with “trailing families” such as 
educational opportunities, quality of life venues, or, in essence what there is to do 
in Troy.  So that employers know that we are striving to enhance the idea of a 
complete community, it is staff’s idea to include a representative from the Troy 
School District at the table to be able to answer any questions about schools and 
educational opportunities that might arise. 
 
Staff has also instituted Team Troy, comprised of representatives from all of the 
primary customer service departments.  Their task has been to develop 
communications tools to set “quality standards” for customer service provision.  
Departmental representatives on the team are the first line employees that have 
the most public contact.  When the first phase of the teamwork is completed, all 
departments will have protocol for customer services. 
 
 
 



Zucker Report Implementation Plan 
April 2, 2008 
Page Three 
 
 
 
Staff recently implemented the Customer Solutions Desk.  While this is a scaled 
down version of the original “Welcome Center” concept, the Solutions 
Coordinator will be the direct contact for citizen inquiries.  The Customer 
Solutions Desk will also identify complaint “trends” using available software and 
will work with the appropriate Service Bureau(s) to develop solutions to the 
problems.  The Coordinator has developed a network of employees that can 
provide rapid response to questions.  The primary goal is to provide a response 
to questions that take more than normal answers within a 24 hour period. 
 
Process Improvement 
 
Staff will begin implementation of improvement recommendations in concert with 
available training times and available funding for additional computer hardware.  
The IT Director has developed cost estimates to properly furnish development 
elements of the various Service Bureaus with technological equipment.  Again, 
the primary purpose of expanding technological capabilities is to reduce the time 
spent on plan review and the permitting process.  Cost estimates call for 
expenditures for new hardware of $114,600, and $172,135 in ongoing annual 
costs. 
 
Many of the new processes involved in customer service will also be utilized is 
this section of process improvement.  We will mandate the use of existing 
software for tracking processes and making improvements where and when 
possible. 
 
The Council recently approved fee increases for plan review and building permit 
processes.  While the fees will not cover the entire margin between revenues and 
expenditures, the additional fee money will be used to acquire equipment and 
other needs that will make the departments more effective and efficient.  Fee 
structures will be reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that fees pay a 
substantial portion of the operating costs of building permit issuance, plan review 
and inspection costs.  It is staff’s intention to cover as much of the departmental 
costs with fees and productivity increases so that the city-at-large does not have 
to subsidize operational costs of the applicable departments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Zucker Report Implementation Plan 
April 2, 2008 
Page Four 
 
 
 
Process Improvement 
 
Process improvements involving regaining some of the lost opportunity time will 
allow personnel in all permit and inspection services to develop new cost cutting 
measures, and to be cross-trained to do other functions, and to provide 
assistance in new and changing work tasks. 
 
Management staff will also be instituting new performance based outcomes and 
will monitor the way business is done in terms of how the outcomes are being 
met.  While staff anticipates the work loads to increase significantly with new 
construction of the Big Beaver Corridor, we will also look at what happens if we 
don’t see large scale development and make decisions as to staff levels based 
on actual work load and other performance measures. 
 
Conclusions: 
 
The City of Troy is at a crossroads in terms of continued economic viability.  The 
primary source of increased revenues will be in the form of redevelopment of 
land adjacent to several key arterials.  Staff will be prepared to accommodate 
development in all possible ways assuming the development plans are within 
City and State of Michigan adopted codes.  Staff will work with applicants, 
developers and contractors to ensure the highest quality development with the 
highest level of customer service, professionalism and quality team plan review. 
 
The Zucker Report gave support to the fact that staff does work to help people 
succeed, and we accept the report’s findings with the note that we can and will 
continue to improve our processes and will continue to change to meet the 
changing styles and needs of development. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PN/pn\AGENDA ITEMS\2008\04.07.08 – Zucker Report Implementation Plan 



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d



campbellld
Text Box
J-03e





campbellld
Text Box
J-04a



campbellld
Text Box
J-05



Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting 
February 21, 2008 Draft Minutes 

6:00 p.m. 
 

Present: Robin Beltramini, Robin Lilly, George Zielinski, Charlene Krupitzer, Dale Zygnowicz, Mike Kerr, Deb 
Debacker, Ann Comiskey, Wendy Underwood, Paul Scobie. 
 
Call to order: Robin B. called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. All rose for the Pledge of Allegiance.  
                         
Minutes:  Ann moved to approve the minutes of January 17, 2008. George seconded; so moved.  
 
Treasurer’s Report: George Zielinski:  

• George presented Treasurers Report. Robin L. moved to approve report as presented. Ann seconded; so 
moved. 

Communications:  
 Paul spoke about the Oakland County Youth Summit being held February 25, 2008.  

 
Caseworker’s Report: 

 VOLUNTEER RECRUITMENT-We have an exciting opportunity in front of us to bring new people to serve 
within TYA. New membership brings new perspective, creative ideas, and fresh energy. Let’s take seriously 
our own personal responsibility to “think outside the box” in considering people we know who could assist us 
going forward. Amy Johnson is also working on a press release at present to help us in this regard 

 OAKLAND COUNTY YOUTH SUMMIT –On Monday, February 25, I will be acting as a facilitator at the 
Oakland County Youth Summit sponsored by the Oakland County Circuit Court-Family Division, Oakland 
Schools, Community Corrections, and Welcome Baptist Church of Pontiac. The purpose of the event is to 
improve and enhance communication and foster positive change through continuing dialogue between 
Oakland County Youth and Oakland County Child Welfare Stakeholders.  This event will be much like Troy’s 
own Youth Dialogue Day, but will involve middle and high school students from throughout Oakland County. 

 SPRING BREAK/TROY STYLE-This Fourth Annual community wide event for students is coming up on us 
fast this year………March 24-29. I will be assisting Troy Community Coalition staff in distribution of flyers 
to schools in early March. 

 CASEWORK- During January, twelve new referrals came into TYA-six from police, five from schools, and 
one from a parent. Our caseload as of January 31, 2008 stood at 54-31 boys and 23 girls. 

Executive Committee Report: 
• Robin B. talked about TYA’s recruitment options. It was suggested to change the job description layout. 
• We looked at different organizations to collaborate with: Work Perks Website, Chamber of Commerce, faith 

community, others.   
• Robin B. compiled a list of potential names that members brought to the table tonight.  

Committee Reports: 
  
       A.   Camp/Skill Building:  

• No report 
 
B.   Family Education:  
• Charlene reported: Active Parenting of Teens is running right now and going well. We are getting ready 

to advertise the upcoming Teen Sex: At What Cost April 10th. 
 

       C. Fundraising- Vacant: 
 
       D. Mentors Plus-Paul Scobie reported. 

• Paul will be following up with Joe Janus in regards to continuing as chairperson. There are two active 
matches at this time. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



E. Membership- Vacant 
 
       F. Publicity- Amy Johnson:  

• Paul reported. Amy is working on a press release for volunteer recruitment.   
E. Youth Involvement-  

• No report 
       H. Youth Recognition-Committee 

• On track. Jeanne Stine spoke with Troy Rotary and they may be willing to be involved this year. 
School Reports:  

• No report.  
Old Business:  

• Nancy and Paul participated in an interview at CMNTV. 
• TYA made a donation to the Spring Break Troy Style. 

New Business: 
• Robin L distributed updated Board Of Directors Roster.  

Community Information From Organization/Agencies Liaisons: 
• Ann spoke of her trip to Washington DC. Troy Community Coalition will be holding its Incredible 

Kids ceremony on March 6th. 
• Wendy reports that March 7th will be opening night for the spring play, “Thoroughly Modern Millie” 

at Troy High School. Tony Award winning Alumni Ms. Sutton Foster will be there for Q&A. 
• Robin B spoke of Troy Land Use Meeting scheduled for February 26th. 

Other concerns:  
• It was suggested to contact Sandy Armbruster of the Troy Eccentric on the New Beginnings 

Scholarship. Paul to follow up on this. 
 

Adjourned:  7:30 p.m. 
                  Next meeting will be March 13, 2008 @ 6:00 p.m. (Please note a week early) 
                                                   
Respectfully Submitted, 
Robin Lilly, Secretary   



campbellld
Text Box
J-07





 

 
March 31, 2008 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police   

 
SUBJECT:   Skunk Removal Services 
 
Background: 
 
 Prior to 1998, the control and removal of skunks was a task assigned to the police 

department’s Animal Control Officers. 
 In 1998, the department became aware of the Wildlife Conversation Act, which 

dictated the manner skunks could be disposed of or relocated. 
 Compliance with the Act was cost prohibitive.  
 Therefore, in November of 1998, City Council approved a request from the police 

department to enter into a contract with private vendor for the skunk removal services. 
 Most recently, the department has budgeted $22,500, annually for the service. 
 A&D Animal Control holds the contract and has provided good service. 
 The current contract expires on May 3, 2008. 
 Research conducted by Lieutenant Chuck Pappas indicates a decreasing number of 

requests for the service over the last three years. 
 Our records indicate that in 2007, 55 traps were set and 29 skunks captured and 

removed. 
 A survey of neighboring communities revealed that most do not trap skunks, but refer 

residents to private animal control services. 
 Given the relatively low number of requests for skunk removal services and the even 

smaller number of skunks actually trapped, the police department is not renewing the 
contract with A&D Animal Control. 

 Citizens requesting trapping and removal of skunks will be advised to directly contact a 
private animal control service. 

 Animal control personnel will continue to respond to incidents where a skunk has 
gained access to a dwelling or is sick/injured and/or posing a risk to public safety. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The departments operating budget will be reduced by $22,500. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 None 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-08



 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 City Council Goal II: Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of 

City government. 
 
 


	AGENDA: April 7, 2008
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Presentation of “Green Space in Troy” – Zach Kilgore and the Smith Middle School Student Ecology Club
	Proclamation – National Child Abuse Prevention and Awareness Month – April 2008 Presented to Chuck Ludwig, Director of Advocacy and Prevention at CARE House
	Proclamation – Celebrating 25 Years Congregation Shir Tikvah Presented to Barry Rubin, President of Shir Tikvah


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – Republic/APT, 1889 Larchwood
	C-2 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to Republic/APT, 1889 Larchwood

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Sale of Real Estate – John R Garden Subdivision

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Nominations:  None (b) City Council Nominations: Cable Advisory Committee and Personnel Board
	E-2 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Planning Commission b) City Council Appointments: Historic District Commission; Library Advisory Board; and Parks & Recreation Board
	E-3 Scheduling Special Meetings for Budget Discussion
	E-4 Addendum to Sylvan Glen Lease Agreement

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):
	a) National Child Abuse Prevention and Awareness Month – April, 2008
	b) Congregation Shir Tikvah – Celebrating 25 Years

	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Amend Agreement – Avondale Youth Assistance
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Asphalt Patching Material
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Transit Mixed Concrete
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Police Carports
	e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Lowest Acceptable Bidders – Liquid Calcium Chloride
	f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders – Aggregates
	g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot Maintenance
	h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Sole Bidder – Troy Daze Amusement Rides
	i) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products for Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses
	j) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend Funds on Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expenses – National League of Cities (NLC) Finance, Administration, and Intergovernmental Relations (FAIR) Steering Co...
	k) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles
	l) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders – Hauling/Disposal of Dirt and Debris
	m) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Regional Educational Media Center – REMC Cooperative Program – Purchase of Storage Area Network (SAN)

	F-5 Contract with Greenstar & Associates, LLC for Right-of-Way Services
	F-6 Proposed City of Troy Precinct Boundary Alterations and Relocations
	F-7 Application for Transfer of Class C License to AMC Troy, Inc.
	F-8 Clinton River Watershed Council Membership Dues 2007 and 2008
	F-9 Contract Addendum No. 1 – 07-6 – Northfield Parkway Mill and Overlay
	F-10 Allocation of 2008 Tri-Party Funds and Cost Participation Agreement for 2008 Concrete Program
	F-11 Private Agreement for Binson’s Medical Equipment – Project No. 07.917.3
	F-12 Support of Project Safe Passage – Detroit Audubon Society
	F-13 Contract Extension – Concrete Pavement Repair
	F-14 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #51    Sidwell #88-20-02-228-039 – Bill and Minerva Dumiter
	F-15 Request to Waive Permit Fees, Christmas in Action Projects
	F-16 Private Agreement for Grand Troy Villas Condominiums
	F-17 Traffic Committee Recommendations – March 19, 2008

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Brownfield Redevelopment Plan #5 – Pavilions of Troy – NW Corner of Big Beaver and Coolidge – Section 19 (Former Kmart Site) – April 21, 2008

	G-2 Memorandums:
	Amendment to Chapter 3, Section 1.78 – Unclaimed Property


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 6, 2007
	Election Commission/Final – December 7, 2007
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – January 3, 2008
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – January 17, 2008
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – February 5, 2008
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – February 13, 2008
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – February 19, 2008
	Downtown Development Authority/Final – February 20, 2008
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – March 4, 2008
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 4, 2008
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – March 5, 2008
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – March 6, 2008
	Planning Commission/Draft – March 11, 2008
	Planning Commission/Final – March 11, 2008
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – March 18, 2008
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 25, 2008
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 25, 2008
	Election Commission/Draft – March 27, 2008
	Personnel Board/Draft – April 3, 2008

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – January and February 2008
	City Council Expense Report – March, 2008
	City Attorney’s Office – 2008 First Quarter Litigation Report
	City Manager’s Office – Zucker Report Implementation Plan

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Westland Mayor William Wild in Appreciation of the Participation and Support during Funeral Procession
	Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson representing TEAM Troy from Steve Toth, Boys & Girls Club Executive Director for the City of Troy’s Casual for a Cause Contribution
	Letter of Thanks to Barb Myhal representing TEAM Troy from Patricia Rosen, CARE House Executive Director for the City of Troy’s Casual for a Cause Contribution
	Letter to Lt. Frye from Virginia Bertram Commending Sgt. Barry Whiteside for his Professionalism and Dedication
	Letter of Thanks to Officers Brazel and Quaiatto from Troy Residents James and Paula Young

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:
	State of Michigan Senate Resolution No. 148 – Commemorating March 2008 as Ethnic and Cultural Heritage Month in the State of Michigan

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Draft Minutes from February 21, 2008
	J-7  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding  Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company – Case No. U-15506
	J-8  Communication from Chief Craft Regarding Skunk Removal Services

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



